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III. VISHWARAJ INFRASTRUCTURE PRIVATE LIMITED (“VIPL”)

Incorporation

Vishwaraj Infrastructure Private Limited was incorporated as Vishwaraj Power Private Limited on 
November 11, 2009 under the Companies Act, 1956 with the Registrar of Companies, Bangalore, 
in the State of Karnataka. The name of the Company was changed to Vishwaraj Infrastructure 
Private Limited on 03rd August 2010.

CIN U45400KA2009PTC051441
Registered Office ‘Sneh' Bellad Bagewadi, Hukkeri, Belgaum – 591 305 

Nature of Business Vishwaraj Infrastructure Private Limited is engaged establishment, growth, developing Special 
Economic Zone. However, the company has not yet commenced its commercial operations.

Registrar of 
Companies ‘E’ Wing, 2nd Floor, Kendriya Sadan, Bangalore – 560 034.

Board of Directors

Sr. No. Name
1. Mr. Umesh Katti
2. Mr. Nikhil Katti

Interest of our promoter

Our promoters and promoters group hold 98.00% equity shares of this company.

Brief Audited Financials of VIPL
��������	
��

Particulars As at March 31,
2018 2017 2016

Equity Share ���
�����$�������"���-) 10.00 10.00 10.00
Reserves (excluding revaluation reserve) and Surplus(1) 318.80 467.35 (39.19)
Sales - - -
Profit/ (Loss) after tax - - -
Earnings per share (2) - - -
Net asset value per share(3) �$�������"���-) 3,287.99 4,773.50 (291.90)

(1) Excluding preliminary expenses not written off
(2) EPS is calculated on PAT minus Preference Dividend and Tax thereon, if any
(3) NAV per share does not include Preference Share Capital and Share Application Money, if any

NATURE AND EXTENT OF INTEREST OF OUR GROUP COMPANIES

a. Interest in our Company

Our Group Companies have no interest in the promotion of the Company. Further, except as otherwise stated, our 
Group Companies have no interest including any business interest in our Company. For further details, please see 
“Annexure VI – Note 34 - Related Party Transaction” and “Capital Structure” on page nos. 238 and 69 of this Red 
Herring Prospectus, respectively.

a. Interest in the Properties acquired or proposed to be acquired by our Company

Our Group Companies have no interest in any property acquired by our Company in the two years preceding the 
filing of this Red Herring Prospectus or proposed to be acquired by the Company as of the date of this Red Herring 
Prospectus.

b. Interest in transactions for acquisition of land, construction of building and supply of machinery

Except as stated in “Annexure VI – Note 34 - Related Party Transactions” on page no. 238 of this Red Herring 
Prospectus, our Group Companies have no interest in the transactions for acquisition of land, construction of 
building and supply of machinery or any other contracts, agreements or arrangements entered into by our Company 
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and no payments have been made or are proposed to be made in respect of these contracts, agreements or 
arrangements by our Company to its Group Companies.

Common Pursuits between the Company and its Group Companies

Our Group Companies do not have any common pursuits with our Company.

Related business transactions within the Group Companies and significance on the financial performance of the 
Company

Except as disclosed in “Related Party Transactions” on page no. 238 of this Red Herring Prospectus, there are no 
related business transactions of the Company with its Group Companies. For details on the significance of related party 
transactions on the financial performance of the Company, please see “Our Business” and “Management’s Discussion 
and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” on page nos. 130 and 252, respectively. 

Sale/Purchase between our Company and its Group Companies

Our Group Companies are not involved in any sales or purchases with our Company where such sales or purchases 
exceed, in the aggregate, 10% of the total sales or purchases of our Company for the financial year 2019.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

Under the Companies Act, 2013, our Company can pay dividends upon a recommendation by our Board of Directors 
and approval by a majority of the shareholders at the General Meeting. The shareholders of our Company have the right 
to decrease, not to increase the amount of dividend recommended by the Board of Directors. The dividends may be 
paid out of profits of our Company in the year in which the dividend is declared or out of the undistributed profits or 
reserves of previous fiscal years or out of both. The Articles of Association of our Company also gives the discretion to 
our Board of Directors to declare and pay interim dividends.

In accordance with Ind AS, our Company has declared dividend in the financial years 2014-15 and 2015-16, details of 
which are as below:

���
����khs)

Particulars For the year ended March 31,
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

Equity Share Capital 3,455.60 3,455.60 3,455.60 3,455.60 3,455.60
$�������	�������	
���
�������������
share) 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00

Interim Dividend Nil Nil Nil 345.56 Nil
Final Dividend Nil Nil Nil Nil 345.56
Total Dividend Nil Nil Nil 345.56 345.56
Total Dividend Tax Nil Nil Nil 71.31 56.06
Rate of Dividend (%) Nil Nil Nil 10% 10%
�������
!
*��*�������������� Nil Nil Nil 1.00 1.00

Our dividend payments and policy in the past is not necessarily indicative of our dividend policy or dividend amounts 
in the future.

The declaration and payment of dividend will be recommended by our Board of Directors and approved by the 
shareholders of our Company at their discretion and will depend on a number of factors, including the results of 
operations, earnings, capital requirements and surplus, general financial conditions, applicable Indian legal restrictions 
and other factors considered relevant by our Board of Directors.
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SECTION VI – FINANCIAL INFORMATION

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REPORT OF THE AUDITORS ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

To,
The Board of Directors,
Vishwaraj Sugar Industries Limited,
Bellad Bagewadi, Taluka Hukkeri,
District Belgaum – 591 305
Karnataka, India

Independent Auditors’ Report on Restated Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS”) Financial Information in 
�������
����
��������������*�'�
�
���;	��
��+������';+�����������	
������������� �����!��	�������"����������Vishwaraj 
Sugar Industries Limited (the ‘Company’)

Dear Sirs,

1. We have examined the attached Restated Financial Information of Vishwaraj Sugar Industries Limited (the 
“Company”) which comprise the Restated Statement of Assets and Liabilities as at March 31, 2019, March 31, 2018, 
March 31, 2017, March 31, 2016 and March 31, 2015, the Restated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other 
Comprehensive Income), the Restated Statement of Cash Flows and the Restated Statement of Changes in Equity for 
the years ended March 31, 2019, March 31, 2018, March 31, 2017, March  31, 2016 and March 31, 2015and the 
Statement of Notes to the Restated Financial Statements along with significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory information (collectively the “Restated Financial Information”) as approved by the Board of Directors at 
their meeting held on July 08, 2019, for the purpose of inclusion in the Red Herring Prospectus / Prospectus prepared 
by the Company in terms of the requirements of:

a) Section 26 of Part I of Chapter III of the Companies Act, 2013, as amended (the “Act") 

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009, 
as amended in pursuance of provisions of Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 ("ICDR 
Regulations") and the related clarifications issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India ('SEBI'); as 
amended to date;

c) The Guidance Note on Reports in Company Prospectuses (Revised 2019) issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India (“ICAI”), as amended from time to time (the “Guidance Note”).

2. The preparation of the Restated Financial Information is the responsibility of the management of the Company for the 
purpose set out in paragraph 12 below. The management’s responsibility includes designing, implementing and 
maintaining adequate internal control relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Restated Financial 
Information. The management is also responsible for identifying and ensuring that the Company complies with the 
Act and ICDR Regulations.

3. We have examined such Restated Financial Information taking into consideration:

a) The terms of reference and terms of our engagement agreed upon with you in accordance with our engagement 
letter dated May 24, 2019 in connection with the proposed IPO; and

b) The Guidance Note on Reports in Company Prospectuses (Revised 2019) issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India (the “ICAI”), as amended from time to time (the “Guidance Note”).

4. These Restated Financial Information have been compiled by the management of the Company from:

a) The audited financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018, prepared in 
accordance with the Indian Accounting Standard (Indian Accounting Standards) prescribed under Section 133 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended), and 
other relevant provisions of the Act, and on which we have expressed an unmodified audit opinion, which have 
been approved by the Board of Directors.
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b) The audited financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2017, March 31, 2016 and March 31, 
2015, prepared in accordance with Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006, as amended, other 
accounting principles generally accepted in India (“Previous GAAP” or “IGAAP”) and the other relevant 
provisions of the Act, which have been approved by the Board of Directors. 

c) The information has been extracted from the financial statements audited by M/s. P. G. Ghali & Co., 
Chartered Accountants, for the F. Y. 2016-17, F. Y. 2015-16 and F. Y. 2014-15, being the Statutory Auditors 
of the Company for the respective years. The adjustments related to transition to Ind AS from the audited 
financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2017, March 31, 2016 and March 31, 2015 have 
been audited by us. These audited financial statements have been adjusted for the differences in the accounting 
principles adopted by the Company on transition to Ind AS.

d) The Restated Financial Information as at and for the years ended March 31, 2017, March 31, 2016 and March 
31, 2015 is referred to as “the Proforma Ind AS Restated Financial Information” as per the Guidance Note.

5. In accordance with the requirements of Section 26 of Part I of Chapter III of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 
read with ICDR Regulations and the Guidance Note, we report that:

a) The Restated Statement of Assets and Liabilities of the Company as at March 31, 2019, March 31, 2018, March 
31, 2017, March 31, 2016 and March 31, 2015 examined by us, as set out in Annexure I to this report, have been 
arrived at after making adjustments and regrouping/ reclassifications as in our opinion were appropriate and more 
fully described in the statement of Significant Accounting Policies and the Notes to Restated Financial 
Information in Annexure V and Annexure VI respectively read along with Statement of First Time Adoption 
of Ind AS and Adjustments to Audited Financial Statements in Annexure VII.

b) The Restated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income) of the Company, for the 
years ended March 31, 2019, March 31, 2018, March 31, 2017, March 31, 2016 and March 31, 2015 examined 
by us, as set out in Annexure II to this report, have been arrived at after making adjustments and regrouping/ 
reclassifications as in our opinion were appropriate and more fully described in the statement of significant 
accounting policies and the Notes to Restated Financial Information in Annexure V and Annexure VI 
respectively read along with Statement of First Time Adoption of Ind AS and Adjustments to the Audited 
Financial Statements in Annexure VII;

c) The Restated Statement of Cash Flows of the Company, for the years ended March 31, 2019, March 31, 2018, 
March 31, 2017, March 31, 2016 and March 31, 2015 examined by us, as set out in Annexure III to this 
report, have been arrived at after making adjustments and regrouping/ reclassifications as in our opinion were 
appropriate and more fully described in the statement of significant accounting policies and the Notes to 
Restated Financial Information in Annexure V and Annexure VI respectively read along with Statement of 
First Time Adoption of Ind AS and Adjustments to the Audited Financial Statements in Annexure VII; and

d) The Restated Statement of Statement of Changes in Equity of the Company, for the years ended March 31, 
2019, March 31, 2018, March 31, 2017, March 31, 2016 and March 31, 2015 examined by us, as set out in 
Annexure IV to this report, have been arrived at after making adjustments and regrouping / reclassifications 
as in our opinion were appropriate and more fully described in Notes to the Restated Financial Information in 
Annexure VI read along with Statement of First Time Adoption of Ind AS and Adjustments to the Audited 
Financial Statements in Annexure VII.

e) There were no auditor qualifications and / or emphasis of matter on the Financial Statements in the Auditors 
Report for the years ended March 31, 2019, March 31, 2018, March 31, 2017, march 31, 2016 and March 31, 
2015.

6. Based on the above and according to the information and explanations given to us, and also based on the reliance 
placed on the financial statements, audited by the previous auditor, M/s. P. G. Ghali & Co., Chartered Accountants,
for the years ended March 31, 2017, March 31, 2016 and March 31, 2015, and their audit reports which have been 
furnished to us by the Company, we further report that the Restated Financial Information:

i) have been made after incorporating adjustments for the changes in accounting policies retrospectively in 
respective financial years to reflect the same accounting treatment as per changed accounting policy for all the 
reporting periods;
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ii) have been made after incorporating adjustments for the material amounts in the respective financial years to 
which they relate; 

iii) do not contain any extraordinary items that need to be disclosed separately and do not contain any qualification 
requiring adjustments;

iv) have been made after incorporating adjustments for prior period and other material amount in the respective 
financial years to which they relate; and

v) do not require any corrective adjustments on account of other remarks/ comments in the Companies (Auditor's 
Report) Order, 2016 ("the Order"), as amended, issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub -
section (11) of section 143 of the act, on financial statements of the Company for the financial years ended 
March 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015, which are stated in the Notes to Accounts as set out in Annexure VI:
Statement of Notes to the Restated Financial Information read alongwith Annexure VII: Statement of First 
Time Adoption of Ind AS and Adjustments to the Audited Financial Statements.

7. We have also examined the following Restated Financial Information of the Company set out in the Annexures 
prepared by the Management and approved by the Board of Directors for the years ended March 31, 2019, March 31, 
2018, March 31, 2017, March 31, 2016 and March 31, 2015. In respect of the years ended March 31, 2017, March 31, 
2016 and March 31, 2015, our examination was based upon the financial statements audited and reported by the 
previous auditor, M/s. P. G. Ghali & Co., Chartered Accountants, and relied upon by us.

a) Annexure V: Restated Statement of Significant Accounting Policies;

b) Annexure VI: Notes to Restated Financial Statements

c) Annexure VII: Statement of First Time Adoption of Ind AS and Adjustments to the Audited Financial 
Statements; and

d) Annexure VIII: Statement of Tax Shelter

According to the information and explanations given to us, and also as per the reliance placed on the reports issued 
by the previous auditor, M/s. P. G. Ghali & Co., Chartered Accountants, the Restated Financial Information of the 
Company as at and for the years ended March 31, 2019, March 31, 2018, March 31, 2017, March 31, 2016 and 
March 31, 2015, including the above mentioned Restated Financial Information contained in Annexures I to V are 
prepared after making adjustments and regrouping / reclassifications as considered appropriate and have been 
prepared in accordance with Section 26 of Part I of Chapter III of the Act, the ICDR Regulations and the Guidance 
Note.

8. At the request of the company, we have also examined the financial information ("Other Financial Information") 
proposed to be included in the Red Herring Prospectus / Prospectus, prepared by the management and approved by 
the board of directors of the company and annexed to this report.

9. In our opinion, the Restated Financial Statements and the other Financial Information set forth in Annexure I to 
VII have been prepared in accordance with Section 26 of Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI Regulations and the 
Guidance Note on the reports in Company Prospectus (Revised) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants 
of India (ICAI).

Consequently, the financial information has been prepared after making such regroupings and adjustments as 
were, in our opinion, considered appropriate to comply with the same. As a result of these regrouping and 
adjustments, the amount reported in the financial information may not necessarily be the same as those appearing 
in the respective audited financial statements for the relevant years.

10. This report should not in any way be construed as a reissuance or re-dating of any of the previous audit reports issued 
by us and the previous auditor, M/s. P. G. Ghali & Co., Chartered Accountants, nor should this report be construed as 
a new opinion on any of the audited financial statements referred to herein.

11. We have no responsibility to update our report for events and circumstances occurring after the date of the report.
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12. Our report is intended solely for use of management for inclusion in the Offer Document to be filed with Securities 
and Exchange Board of India, the Stock Exchanges where the equity shares are proposed to be listed and the Registrar 
of Companies, Bangalore in connection with the proposed issue of equity shares of the Company. Our report should 
not be used, referred to or distributed for any other purpose except with our prior consent in writing.

For and on behalf of 

For Gojanur & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 000941S

G. M. Channappa Shetty
Proprietor
M. No. 020227

Place: Bellad Bagewadi
Date: July 08, 2019
UDIN: 19020227AAAAAZ1545



Page | 206

Vishwaraj Sugar Industries Limited

INDEX

Sr. No. Details of Restated Financial Information Annexure Reference
1 Restated Statement of Assets and Liabilities I
2 Restated Statement of Profit and Loss II
3 Restated Statement of Cash Flows III
4 Restated Statement of Changes in Equity IV
5 Restated Statement of Significant Accounting Policies V
6 Statement of Notes to the Restated Financial Information VI

7 Statement of First Time Adoption of Ind AS and Adjustments to Audited 
Financial Statements VII

8 Statement of Tax Shelter VIII
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RESTATED STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
��]�?�
�	��	�	�����^	?�����	�
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�
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Annexure I

Particulars Note 
No.

As at March 31,

2019 2018 2017
(Proforma)

2016
(Proforma)

2015
(Proforma)

ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, Plant and Equipments 2 26,440.54 27,188.80 24,069.44 24,413.23 24,598.79 
Capital Work-in-Progress 2 1,126.02 - 3,834.55 128.82 508.21 
Intangible Assets - - - - -
Financial Assets:
i. Investments 3 108.24 53.24 37.98 37.65 37.65 
ii. Other financial assets 4 214.60 213.45 262.89 263.18 265.18 

Deferred Tax Assets (Net) - - - - -

Other Non-Current Assets - - - - -
Total Non – Current Assets 27,889.40 27,455.49 28,204.86 24,842.88 25,409.83 

CURRENT ASSETS
Inventories 5 32,434.62 26,157.20 18,199.84 24,446.57 26,953.98 

Financial assets:
i. Trade Receivables 6 3,835.87 3,388.06 4,435.39 1,857.18 1,249.79 
ii. Cash & Cash Equivalents 7 169.35 671.02 1,242.07 5,135.81 1,977.55 
iii. Bank Balances other than ii
above. 8 15.00 74.70 31.58 29.13 14.88 

iv. Others financial assets 9 4.47 4.61 15.52 44.64 0.22

Current Tax Assets (Net) - - - - -

Other Current Assets 10 7,606.26 4,667.56 2,190.73 2,542.33 4,894.96
Total Current Assets 44,053.93 34,963.14 26,115.13 34,055.65 35,091.37

TOTAL ASSETS 71,954.96 62,418.63 54,319.99 58,898.53 60,501.20 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholder’s Funds
Equity Share Capital 11 3,455.60 3,455.60 3,455.60 3,455.60 3,455.60 
Other Equity 12 17,694.09 19,432.35 19,793.19 19,153.66 19,533.82
Total Equity 21,149.69 22,887.95 23,248.79 22,609.26 22,989.42 

Non-Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities:
i. Borrowings 13 6,541.43 3,700.79 999.46 2,076.77 3,402.04 

Provisions 14 182.65 167.96 209.72 211.65 116.58 

Deferred Tax Liabilities(Net) 15 765.21 1,391.94 1,057.56 841.63 354.70 
Total Non-Current Liabilities 7,489.29 5,260.69 2,266.75 3,130.06 3,873.33

Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities:
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i. Borrowings 16 25,385.68 26,467.77 21,666.16 22,647.16 19,433.79 
ii. Trade Payables 17 11,271.89 2,686.39 1,434.36 2,694.25 5,561.88 
iii. Other Financial Liabilities 18 3,716.34 2,417.46 2,046.84 4,353.25 3,914.01 

Other Current Liabilities 19 2,931.57 2,664.44 3,412.73 3,309.29 4,717.90 

Provisions 20 10.49 12.36 12.17 114.79 6.76 

Current Tax Liabilities (Net) 21 - 21.58 232.18 143.00 4.13 
Total Current Liabilities 43,315.97 34,269.99 28,804.45 33,159.21 33,638.46

TOTAL LIABILITIES 71,954.96 62,418.63 54,319.99 58,898.53 60,501.20 

The above statement should be read with the Basis of Preparation - Significant Accounting Policies and Statement On 
First Time Adoption of Ind AS and Adjustments to Audited Financial Statements appearing in Annexure V and 
Annexure VII of Restated Financial Information, respectively.

As per our report of even date attached

For Gojanur & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 000941S

G. M. Channappa Shetty
Proprietor
M. No. 020227

Place: Bellad Bagewadi
Date: July 08, 2019

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Vishwaraj Sugar Industries Limited

Nikhil Katti                Mukesh Kumar
Managing Director Director

Sheshagiri Kulkarni              Sneha Patil
Chief Financial Officer              Company Secretary 

Place: Bellad Bagewadi
Date: July 08, 2019
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RESTATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
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Annexure II

Particulars Note 
No.

For the year ended March 31,

2019 2018 2017
(Proforma)

2016
(Proforma)

2015
(Proforma)

INCOME
Revenue from Operations 
(inclusive of excise duty) 22 30,679.58 25,928.30 32,184.21 40,575.83 34,508.36 

Other Income 23 107.97 964.80 103.91 288.73 428.02 
Total Income 30,787.55 26,893.11 32,289.84 40,864.55 34,936.75 

EXPENDITURE
Cost of Materials Consumed 24 27,665.37 22,695.78 12,819.41 22,928.76 23,239.60 
Change in Inventories of Finished 
goods, Work-in-progress 25 (6,280.27) (7,894.47) 6,292.78 2,535.09 (2,323.23)

Other Manufacturing Expenses 26 2,058.96 2,425.34 2,375.51 2,455.17 2,298.66 
Excise Duty 2,044.29 3,746.95 3,782.47 7,011.17 6,883.51 
Employee Benefit Expenses 27 1,303.28 1,242.97 1,361.77 1,215.76 1,190.65 
Finance Costs 28 3,635.69 2,085.05 2,491.41 1,787.34 1,608.98 
Depreciation & Amortisation 2 1,334.28 1,319.96 1,153.47 1,133.96 1,011.33 
Other Expenses 29 1,414.66 1,357.72 965.95 1,069.57 1,039.63 
Total Expenses : 33,176.27 26,979.30 31,242.78 40,136.83 34,949.14 

Profit / (Loss) Before Tax (2,388.72) (86.20) 1,045.34 727.73 (12.77)
Tax Expenses:
- Current Tax - 6.08 223.16 155.45 6.36 
- Deferred Tax Charge/(Credit) (626.72) 334.38 215.93 486.93 38.57

Total Tax Expenses (626.72) 340.47 439.09 642.38 44.92 

Profit / (Loss) After Tax (1,761.99) (426.67) 606.25 85.35 (57.68)

Other Comprehensive Income
i. Items that will not be 
reclassified to Profit or loss 23.74 81.32 42.31 (61.10) (11.72)

ii. Income tax relating to items 
that will not be reclassified to 
Profit or loss

- (15.50) (9.03) 12.46 2.23 

Total Comprehensive Income (1,738.26) (360.85) 639.53 36.71 (67.17)

��������	���	�����	���	��
Basic and Diluted 31 (5.10) (1.23) 1.75 0.25 (0.17)

The above statement should be read with the Basis of Preparation - Significant Accounting Policies and Statement On 
First Time Adoption of Ind AS and Adjustments to Audited Financial Statements appearing in Annexure V and 
Annexure VII of Restated Financial Information, respectively.
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As per our report of even date attached

For Gojanur & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 000941S

G. M. Channappa Shetty
Proprietor
M. No. 020227

Place: Bellad Bagewadi
Date: July 08, 2019

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Vishwaraj Sugar Industries Limited

Nikhil Katti                Mukesh Kumar
Managing Director Director

Sheshagiri Kulkarni              Sneha Patil
Chief Financial Officer              Company Secretary 

Place: Bellad Bagewadi
Date: July 08, 2019
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RESTATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
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Annexure III

Particulars
For the year ended March 31,

2019 2018 2017
(Proforma)

2016
(Proforma)

2015
(Proforma)

Cash flow from operating activities:
Net Profit before tax (2,388.72) (86.20) 1,045.34 727.73 (12.77)
Adjusted for:

Depreciation & Amortisation 1,334.28 1,319.96 1,153.47 1,133.96 1,011.33 
Dividend (3.41) (3.40) (4.30) (0.02) (0.03)
Profit/ (Loss) on sale of assets 83.72 5.03 4.79 8.33 5.16 
Interest & Financial Charges 3,635.69 2,085.05 2,491.41 1,787.34 1,608.98 

Operating Profit Before Working 
Capital Changes 2,661.56 3,320.44 4,690.71 3,657.34 2,612.68 

Adjusted for (Increase)/ Decrease in:
Trade Receivables (447.81) 1,047.34 (2,578.21) (607.39) 2,812.74 
Inventories (6,277.42) (7,957.36) 6,246.73 2,507.41 (2,451.75)
Other Current Assets (2,938.70) (2,476.83) 351.59 2,352.63 (464.72)
Other Financial Assets (1.01) 60.36 29.41 (42.43) 0.48 
Trade Payables 8,585.51 1,252.03 (1,259.89) (2,867.63) (1,660.58)
Provisions 36.56 39.75 40.27 39.49 21.76
Other Financial Liabilities 642.04 235.08 (1,311.09) (626.04) 575.23 
Other Current Liabilities 267.13 (748.30) 103.45 (1,408.61) 1,570.34 
Cash Generated From Operations 
Before Extra-Ordinary Items 2,527.85 (5,227.49) 6,312.96 3,004.77 3,016.18 

Cash Generated From Operations 2,527.85 (5,227.49) 6,312.96 3,004.77 3,016.18 
Direct Tax Paid 21.58 232.18 143.00 4.13 462.67 
Net Cash Flow from/(used in) Operating 
Activities: (A) 2,506.27 (5,459.67) 6,169.97 3,000.65 2,553.52 

Cash Flow From Investing Activities:
Purchase of Fixed Assets (Including 
CWIP) (1,916.59) (612.49) (4,542.07) (581.60) (4,966.02)

Sale of Fixed Assets 120.83 2.68 21.88 4.26 1.83 
Investment in Shares (55.00) (15.26) (0.33) - (27.50)
Dividend Received 3.41 3.40 4.30 0.02 0.03 
Net Cash Flow from/(used in) Investing 
Activities: (B) (1,847.34) (621.67) (4,516.22) (577.33) (4,991.65)

Cash Flow from Financing Activities:
Increase / (Decrease) in Long Term 
Borrowing 3,497.48 2,836.87 (1,970.11) (362.50) 1,367.33 

Increase / (Decrease) in Short Term 
Borrowing (1,082.09) 4,801.61 (981.00) 3,213.37 3,989.56 

Interest & Financial Charges (3,635.69) (2,085.05) (2,491.41) (1,787.34) (1,608.98)
Dividend and Dividend Distribution Tax 
Paid - - (102.52) (314.35) (401.62)

Net Cash Flow from/(used in) Financing 
Activities ( C) (1,220.30) 5,553.43 (5,545.03) 749.19 3,346.29 

Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash & Cash 
Equivalents (A+B+C) (561.37) (527.91) (3,891.29) 3,172.50 908.16 

Cash & Cash Equivalents As At 
Beginning of the Year 745.72 1,273.65 5,164.93 1,992.43 1,084.27 

Cash & Cash Equivalents As At end of 
the Year 184.35 745.73 1,273.64 5,164.93 1,992.43 
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1. The Restated Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in 7, Statement of 
Cash Flows. Effective 01 April 2017, the Company adopted the amendment to 7, which require the entities to provide 
disclosures that enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing activities, 
including both changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes, suggesting inclusion of a reconciliation between 
the opening and closing balances in the Restated Statement of Assets and Liabilities for liabilities arising from 
financing activities, to meet the disclosure requirement. The adoption of amendment did not have any material impact 
on the Restated Statement of Cash Flows.

2. Figures in brackets represent outflow of cash and cash equivalents

3. The above statement should be read with the Basis of Preparation - Significant Accounting Policies and Statement 
On First Time Adoption of Ind AS and Adjustments to Audited Financial Statements appearing in Annexure V and 
Annexure VII of Restated Financial Information, respectively.

As per our report of even date attached

For Gojanur & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 000941S

G. M. Channappa Shetty
Proprietor
M. No. 020227

Place: Bellad Bagewadi
Date: July 08, 2019

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Vishwaraj Sugar Industries Limited

Nikhil Katti                Mukesh Kumar
Managing Director Director

Sheshagiri Kulkarni              Sneha Patil
Chief Financial Officer              Company Secretary 

Place: Bellad Bagewadi
Date: July 08, 2019
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Annexure V: Restated Statement of Significant Accounting Policies

DESCRIPTION OF THE COMPANY AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1) General Information

Vishwaraj Sugar Industries Limited (the company) domiciled and Incorporated in India in accordance with the 
provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. The Company is engaged in the Production of sugar, alcoholic spirits by 
distillation including ethanol, blending and bottling of Indian Made Liquor (IML), vinegar and generation of 
power. The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of the financial statements are set out below. 
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2) Basis of preparation and presentation of Financial Statements

The Restated financial statements of Assets and Liabilities as at March 31, 2019, 2018, 2017, 2016 and 2015 and 
Restated Statement of Profit and Loss, Restated Statement of Cash Flows and the Restated Statement of Changes 
in Equity for the years ended March 31, 2019, 2017, 2016 and 2015 (together referred to as “Restated Financial 
Information”) have been compiled by the Company from the Ind AS Audited Financial Statements for F. Y. 2018-
19 and F. Y. 2017-18 and Indian GAAP Audited Financial Statements for F. Y. 2016-17, F. Y. 2015-16 and F. Y. 
2014-15, to which further adjustments are made to comply in all material aspects with the requirements of the 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Disclosure and Capital Requirements) Regulations, 2009, as 
amended (the “ICDR Regulations”). Accordingly, these Restated Financial Information have been prepared after 
incorporating adjustments for the material amounts in the respective financial years to which they relate as 
explained later. There were no exceptional items that needed to be disclosed separately for the respective years 
under consideration. 

The Restated Financial Statements have been prepared and presented in accordance with the Indian Accounting 
Standards (“Ind AS”) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with Companies 
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) (Amendment) Rules, 
2016 and other relevant provisions of the Act.

3) Basis of Measurement

These Restated Financial Statements have been prepared on the historical cost convention and on an accrual basis, 
except for the following material items in the balance sheet:

� Certain financial assets and liabilities are measured either at fair value or at amortized cost depending on the 
classification;

� Net defined benefit assets / (liability) are measured at fair value of plan assets, less present value of defined 
benefit obligations.

4) Use of estimates and judgments 

The preparation of Restated Financial Information in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make 
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts 
of assets and liabilities, the disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the restated statement of assets and 
liabilities date and reported amounts of revenues and expenses for the reporting period. Accounting estimates could 
change from period to period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Appropriate changes in estimates 
are made as management becomes aware of changes in circumstances surrounding the estimates. Changes in 
estimates are reflected in the financial information in the period in which changes are made and in any future 
periods affected.

Information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting policies 
that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the Restated Financial Information is included in 
the following notes:

� Useful lives of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets;
� Impairment of non-financial and financial assets;
� Financial instruments;
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� Employee benefits;
� Provisions, contingencies; and
� Income taxes.

5) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The Restated Financial Information have been prepared using the accounting policies and measurement basis 
summarized below.

a) Functional and presentation currency

These financial �����#�����������������*�
��'�*
����	�����']<����������
���
������������	���
������	����������
the Company. All financial information presented in Indian rupees has been rounded to the nearest lakhs.

b) Current and noncurrent classification

All the assets and liabilities have been classified as current or noncurrent as per the Company’s normal 
operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013and Ind AS 1, 
Presentation of financial statements.

Assets: An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:
� It is expected to be realized in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the Company’s normal operating 

cycle;
� It is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;
� It is expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting date; or
� It is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at 

least twelve months after the reporting date.

Liabilities: A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:
� It is expected to be settled in the Company’s normal operating cycle;
� It is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;
� It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting date; or
� The Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve 

months after the reporting date. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in 
its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its classification.

Current assets/ liabilities include the current portion of noncurrent assets/ liabilities respectively. All other 
assets/ liabilities are classified as noncurrent. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are always disclosed as non-
current.

c) Foreign Currency Transaction

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the functional currency of the Company at exchange rates 
at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the 
reporting period are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rate at that date. Nonmonetary 
items denominated in foreign currencies which are carried at historical cost are reported using the exchange 
rate at the date of the transaction; and non-monetary items which are carried at fair value or any other similar 
valuation denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rates at the date when the fair 
value was measured.

Exchange differences arising on monetary items on settlement, or restatement as at reporting date, at rates 
different from those at which they were initially recorded, are recognized in the statement of profit and loss in 
the year in which they arise.

d) Fair valuation

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 
transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly 
observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, 
the Company takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability at the measurement date. The fair 
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value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the financial asset or settle the 
financial liability takes place either:

� In the principal market, or
� In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. A fair value measurement 
of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by 
using the asset in its highest and best use. Fair value measurement and / or disclosure purposes in the Restated 
Ind AS Financial Information is determined on such a basis, except for measurements that have some 
similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net realizable value in Ind AS 2 or value in use in Ind 
AS 36.

The Company- uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for  which sufficient 
data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the 
use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the Restated Ind AS Financial 
Information are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level 
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

� Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
� Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 

measurement is directly or indirectly observable
� Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 

measurement is unobservable

At each reporting date, the Management analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which 
are required to be re-measured or re-assessed as per the Company’s accounting policies.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the 
basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as 
explained above.

Government Grants:

Recognition & Measurement

Grants & Subsidies received from the Governments are recognised only when there is reasonable assurance 
that:

a. The company will comply with the conditions attached to the grant
b. There is a reasonable certainty that the grant will be received.

Government grants related to assets are treated as deferred income and are recognized in net profit in the 
statement of Profit & Loss on a systematic and rational basis over the useful life of the asset.

Government grants related to revenue are recognized on a systematic basis in net profit in the Statement of 
Profit & Loss over the periods necessary to match them with the related costs which they are intended to 
compensate.

e) Revenue Recognition

Sale of goods

Effective April 1, 2018, the Company adopted Ind AS 115 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers” using 
the cumulative catch-up transition method, applied to contracts that were not completed as of April 1, 2018. In 
accordance with the cumulative catch-up transition method, the comparatives have not been retrospectively 
adjusted. The company has insignificant impact on adoption of IND AS 115.
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Revenue from goods and services is recognized, when the company satisfies a performance obligation by 
transferring a promised good or service to its customers. The company considers the terms of the contract and 
its customary business practices to determine the transaction price. Performance obligations are satisfied at the 
point of time when the customer obtains controls of the asset.

Other Income

Other Income is recognized only when it is reasonably certain that the ultimate collection will be made.

Interest Income

Interest Income mainly comprises of interest on Margin money deposit with banks relating to bank guarantee. 
Interest income should be recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR). However, the amount of margin 
money deposits relating to bank guarantee are purely current in nature, hence effective interest rate has not 
been applied. Interest is recognized using the time-proportion method, based on rates implicit in the 
transactions.

Dividend

Dividend income is recognized when the Company’s right to receive dividend is established.

Prior Period Error

Prior period errors are omissions from, and misstatements in, the entity’s financial statements for one or more 
prior periods arising from a failure to use, or misuse of, reliable information that: 

a. was available when financial statements for those periods were approved for issue; and 

b. could reasonably be expected to have been obtained and taken into account in the preparation and 
presentation of those financial statements. Such errors include the effects of mathematical mistakes, 
mistakes in applying accounting policies, oversights or misinterpretations of facts, and fraud 

Retrospective restatement is correcting the recognition, measurement and disclosure of amounts of elements of 
financial statements as if a prior period error had never occurred.

The material prior period errors are corrected retrospectively in the first set of financial statements approved 
for issue after their discovery by: 

a. restating the comparative amounts for the prior period(s) presented in which the error occurred; or 

b. if the error occurred before the earliest prior period presented, restating the opening balances of assets, 
liabilities and equity for the earliest prior period presented except in the following circumstance:

A prior period error shall be corrected by retrospective restatement except to the extent that it is impracticable 
to determine either the period-specific effects or the cumulative effect of the error. 

When it is impracticable to determine the period-specific effects of an error on comparative information for 
one or more prior periods presented, the entity shall restate the opening balances of assets, liabilities and 
equity for the earliest period for which retrospective restatement is practicable (which may be the current 
period). When it is impracticable to determine the cumulative effect, at the beginning of the current period, of 
an error on all prior periods, the entity shall restate the comparative information to correct the error 
prospectively from the earliest date practicable.

f) Property Plant & Equipment

Recognition and measurement

Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at cost of acquisition or construction less accumulated depreciation 
and impairment loss, if any. Cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the 
asset i.e., freight, duties and taxes applicable and other expenses related to acquisition and installation. The 
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cost of self-constructed assets includes the cost of materials and other costs directly attributable to bringing the 
asset to a working condition for its intended use. Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the 
construction or production of a qualifying asset are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset.

When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as 
separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Gains and losses upon disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment are determined by comparing the 
proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment and are recognized net 
within in the statement of profit and loss.

The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized in the carrying amount of 
the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to the Company 
and its cost can be measured reliably. The costs of repairs and maintenance are recognized in the statement of 
profit and loss as incurred.

Items of property, plant and equipment acquired through exchange of non-monetary assets are measured at fair 
value, unless the exchange transaction lacks commercial substance or the fair value of either the asset received 
or asset given up is not reliably measurable, in which case the asset exchanged is recorded at the carrying 
amount of the asset given up.

Depreciation

Depreciation on items of PPE is provided on written down value basis, computed on the basis of useful lives 
as estimated by the management which coincides with the useful lives mentioned in Schedule II to the 
Companies Act, 2013. Assets acquired under finance leases are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term 
and their useful lives unless it is reasonably certain that the Company will obtain ownership by the end of the 
lease term. Freehold land and land under perpetual lease are not depreciated.

Depreciation on additions / disposals is provided on a pro-rata basis i.e. from / upto the date on which asset is 
ready for use / disposed-off.

The residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation are reviewed at each financial year end and 
adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Type of Asset Estimated useful life
Buildings 30
Plant & Machinery 25
Plant & Machinery (IML) 25
Plant & Machinery (Vinegar) 25
Electrical Installations 25
Furniture & Fixtures 10
Office Equipment 5
Computers 6
Vehicles 8

Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each reporting date is 
disclosed as capital advances under other noncurrent assets. The cost of property, plant and equipment not 
ready to use before such date are disclosed under capital work-in-progress. Assets not ready for use are not 
depreciated.

g) Intangible assets

Intangible assets are initially measured at cost. Subsequently, such intangible assets are measured at cost less 
accumulated amortization and any accumulated impairment losses, if any. Subsequent expenditure is 
capitalized only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to which it 
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relates. All other expenditure, including expenditure on internally generated goodwill and brands, is 
recognized in statement of profit or loss as incurred.

h) Inventories

Inventories consist of raw materials, stores and spares, work-in-progress and finished goods . Cost includes 
expenditures incurred in acquiring the inventories, production or conversion costs and other costs incurred in 
bringing them to their existing location and condition. In the case of finished goods and work-in-
progress, cost includes an appropriate share of overheads based on normal operating capacity.

The method of valuing the inventories is as follows:
� Raw-materials, Stores, Packing materials, Spare parts are valued at cost. 
� Finished goods are valued at cost / Net realizable value, whichever is less.
� Stock in process is valued at cost or Net realizable value, whichever is less. 
� Waste is valued at net realizable value. 
� By product is valued at net realizable value. 
� Cost of inventories is ascertained on FIFO basis

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of 
completion and selling expenses. The net realisable value of work-in-progress is determined with reference to 
the selling prices of related finished products.

i) Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability 
or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement
All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair 
value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. 
Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by 
regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognized on the trade date, i.e., the date 
that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement

Debt instrument at FVTPL
Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized 
in the statement of profit and loss. The Company has not designated any debt instrument as at FVTPL.

Unquoted trade Investments
Unquoted trade Investments are measured at amortised cost using Effective Rate of Return (EIR).

Investment in equity instruments
All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held 
for trading and contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which Ind 
AS103 applies are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Company may make an 
irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The 
Company makes such election on an instrument by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial 
recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the 
instrument, excluding dividends, are recognised in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to 
the statement of profit and loss, even on sale of investment. However, the Company may transfer the 
cumulative gain or loss within equity.

Equity instruments i.e., investments in equity shares within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value 
with all changes recognized in the statement of profit and loss.
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De-recognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) 
is primarily derecognized (i.e., removed from the Company’s balance sheet) when:

� The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or
� The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation 

to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ 
arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the 
asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of 
the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-
through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. 
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor 
transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognize the transferred asset to the extent of the 
Company’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also recognizes an associated liability. The 
transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that 
the Company has retained.

Impairment of trade receivables

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and 
recognition of impairment loss on the trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another 
financial asset that result from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 18. Expected credit loss model 
takes into consideration the present value of all the cash shortfalls over the expected life of a financial 
instrument.  In simple terms, it is weighted average of credit losses with the respective risks of default 
occurring as weights.  The credit loss is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to an 
entity as per the contract and all the contractual cash flows that the entity expects to receive, discounted to the 
effective interest rate. The Standard presumes that entities would suffer credit loss even if the entity expects to 
be paid in full but later than when contractually due. In other words, it simply focuses on DELAYS in 
collection of receivables. 

For the purpose of identifying the days of delay, the Company took into consideration the weighted average 
number of delays taking into consideration the date of billing, the credit period and the collection days.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or 
loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective 
hedge, as appropriate. All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and 
borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank 
overdrafts, financial guarantee contracts.

Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Loans and borrowings
After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized cost 
using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the liabilities 
are derecognized as well as through the EIR amortization process.

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs 
that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included as finance costs in the statement of profit 
and loss.
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j) Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Company’s non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assets are 
reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such 
indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. For goodwill and intangible assets that have 
indefinite lives or that are not yet available for use, an impairment test is performed each year at March 31.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit (as defined below) is the greater of its value in use 
and its fair value less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to 
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of 
money and the risks specific to the asset or the cash-generating unit. For the purpose of impairment testing, 
assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use 
that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or groups of assets (the “cash-generating unit”).

An impairment loss is recognized in the statement of profit and loss if the estimated recoverable amount of an 
asset or its cash-generating unit is lower than its carrying amount. Impairment losses recognized in respect of 
cash-generating units are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the units 
and then to reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in the unit on a pro-rata basis.

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. In respect of other assets, impairment losses 
recognized in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the loss has decreased 
or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to 
determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying 
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or 
amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized. 

k) Cash & Cash Equivalents

Cash and bank balances comprise of cash balance in hand, in current accounts with banks, demand deposit, 
short-term deposits and Margin Money deposits. For this purpose, “short-term” means investments having 
maturity of three months or less from the date of investment. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand 
and form an integral part of our cash management are included as a component of cash and cash equivalents 
for the purpose of the statement of cash flows. The Margin money deposits shall be disclosed as restricted cash 
balances.  

l) Employee Benefits

Short term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognized for the 
amount expected to be paid if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as 
a result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

Defined Contribution Plan

The Company’s contributions to defined contribution plans are charged to the statement of profit and loss as 
and when the services are received from the employees.

Defined Benefit Plans
The liability in respect of defined benefit plans and other post-employment benefits is calculated using the 
projected unit credit method consistent with the advice of qualified actuaries. The present value of the defined 
benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows using interest rates based 
on prevailing market yields of Indian Government Bonds and that have terms to maturity approximating to the 
terms of the related defined benefit obligation. The current service cost of the defined benefit plan, recognized 
in the statement of profit and loss in employee benefit expense, reflects the increase in the defined benefit 
obligation resulting from employee service in the current year, benefit changes, curtailments and settlements. 
Past service costs are recognized immediately in income. The net interest cost is calculated by applying the 
discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is 
included in employee benefit expense in the statement of profit and loss. Actuarial gains and losses arising 
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from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are charged or credited to equity in other 
comprehensive income in the period in which they arise.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognized as an expense when the Company is demonstrably committed, without 
realistic possibility of withdrawal, to a formal detailed plan to either terminate employment before the normal 
retirement date, or to provide termination benefits as a result of an offer made to encourage voluntary 
redundancy. Termination benefits for voluntary redundancies are recognized as an expense if the Company 
has made an offer encouraging voluntary redundancy, it is probable that the offer will be accepted, and the 
number of acceptances can be estimated reliably.

Other long-term employee benefits

The Company’s net obligation in respect of other long term employee benefits is the amount of future benefit 
that employees have earned in return for their service in the current and previous periods. That benefit is 
discounted to determine its present value. Re-measurements are recognized in the statement of profit and loss 
in the period in which they arise.

m) Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs consist of interest, ancillary and other costs that the Company incurs in connection with the 
borrowing of funds and interest relating to other financial liabilities. Borrowing costs also include exchange 
differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs. Borrowing costs directly 
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period 
of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the asset. All other 
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur.

n) Operating lease:

Lease payments under an operating lease shall be recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis over the 
lease term unless another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern of the user’s benefit.

o) Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive 
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be 
required to settle the obligation. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined 
by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the 
time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. Where discounting is used, the increase in the 
provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.

Contingent liabilities

A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that 
may, but probably will not, require an outflow of resources. Where there is a possible obligation or a present 
obligation in respect of which the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is 
made.

Contingent assets

Contingent assets are not recognized in the financial statements. However, contingent assets are assessed 
continually and if it is virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits will arise, the asset and related 
income are recognized in the period in which the change occurs.

p) Tax Expenses

Tax expense consists of current and deferred tax.

Income Tax
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Income tax expense is recognized in the statement of profit and loss except to the extent that it relates to 
items recognized directly in equity, in which case it is recognized in equity. Current tax is the expected tax 
payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting 
date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognized using the balance sheet method, providing for temporary differences between the 
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation 
purposes. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to the temporary differences 
when they reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date. 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities 
and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on 
different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets 
and liabilities will be realized simultaneously.

A deferred tax asset is recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available 
against which the temporary difference can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date 
and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized.

q) Earnings Per Share

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (“EPS”) data for its ordinary shares. The basic 
earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit after tax by the weighted average number of equity 
shares outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit after tax by 
the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and also the 
weighted average number of equity shares that could have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive 
potential equity shares.
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3. Non-Current Investments

Particulars
As at March 31,

2019 2018 2017
(Proforma)

2016
(Proforma)

2015
(Proforma)

Non Trade Investments
Unquoted investments in equity 
instruments at FVTPL
Bellad Bagewadi Urban Souhard Sahakari 
Shares 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 

BDCC Bank Shares 108.14 53.14 37.88 37.55 37.55 
Equity Shares Fully Paid-up 108.24 53.24 37.98 37.65 37.65 

Aggregate amount of quoted investment 
and market value thereof - - - - -

Aggregate amount of unquoted 
investments 108.24 53.24 37.98 37.65 37.65 

Aggregate amount of impairment in value 
of investments - - - - -

Total Non-Current Investments 108.24 53.24 37.98 37.65 37.65 

4. Other Non-Current Financial Assets

Particulars
As at March 31,

2019 2018 2017
(Proforma)

2016
(Proforma)

2015
(Proforma)

Security Deposits 214.60 213.45 262.89 263.18 265.18 
Total 214.60 213.45 262.89 263.18 265.18 

5. Inventories

Particulars
As at March 31,

2019 2018 2017
(Proforma)

2016
(Proforma)

2015
(Proforma)

Valued at lower of cost and net 
realisable value.
- Raw Materials 2,405.52 1,178.60 657.27 1,790.06 2,455.57
- Stores & Spares 555.16 558.00 495.11 449.05 421.37 
- Process Stocks - - - - 214.13 
- Finished Goods 29,473.94 24,420.60 17,047.46 22,207.46 23,862.92

Total 32,434.62 26,157.20 18,199.84 24,446.57 26,953.98 
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6. Trade Receivables

Particulars

As at March 31,

2019 2018 2017
(Proforma)

2016
(Proforma)

2015
(Proforma

)
Secured
O/s More than six months

- Promoters / Promoter Group - - - - -
- Others: Considered Good - - - - -

O/s Less than six months
- Promoters / Promoter Group - - - - -
- Others: Considered Good - - - - -

Unsecured
O/s More than six months

- Promoters / Promoter Group 83.68 - - - -
- Others: Considered Good 2,413.51 2,254.00 3,321.42 351.08 524.55 

O/s Less than six months
- Promoters / Promoter Group - - - - -
- Others: Considered Good 2,001.78 1,534.41 1,270.59 1,616.02 791.97 

Sub - Total 4,498.97 3,788.41 4,592.01 1,967.10 1,316.52 
Less: Expected Credit Loss 663.11 400.35 156.62 109.92 66.73 

Total 3,835.87 3,388.06 4,435.39 1,857.18 1,249.79 

7. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Particulars

As at March 31,

2019 2018 2017
(Proforma)

2016
(Proforma)

2015
(Proforma

)
Cash in hand and as Imprest - - - - -
- Cash in Hand 18.39 13.12 12.04 13.67 14.15 

Cash at Banks
- In Current Account 150.97 657.90 1,230.03 5,122.14 1,963.40 

Total 169.35 671.02 1,242.07 5,135.81 1,977.55 

8. Bank Balance Other Than Above

Particulars
As at March 31, 

2019 2018 2017
(Proforma)

2016
(Proforma)

2015
(Proforma)

Bank Balances
- As Margin Money 15.00 74.70 31.58 29.13 14.88

Total 15.00 74.70 31.58 29.13 14.88

9. Other Current Financial Assets

Particulars
As at March 31, 

2019 2018 2017
(Proforma)

2016
(Proforma)

2015
(Proforma)

Other Financial Assets 4.47 4.61 15.52 44.64 0.22
Total 4.47 4.61 15.52 44.64 0.22 
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10. Other Current Assets

Particulars
As at March 31,

2019 2018 2017
(Proforma)

2016
(Proforma)

2015
(Proforma)

Secured, considered good, unless 
otherwise stated
Balances with Statutory Authorities 347.58 821.86 385.58 500.20 780.25 
Other Current Assets (including Advances 
to Suppliers & Services) 7,258.68 3,845.70 1,805.15 2,042.12 4,114.71 

Less : Allowances for doubtful assets - - - - -
Total 7,606.26 4,667.56 2,190.73 2,542.33 4,894.96 

11. Equity Share Capital

Particulars

As at March 31,

2019 2018 2017
(Proforma)

2016
(Proforma)

2015
(Proforma

)
Authorised:
~��������������	
���
�����������"������ 6,000.00 6,000.00 6,000.00 6,000.00 6,000.00 

Issued & Subscribed:
��{`�`~�������	
���
�����������"������ 3,455.60 3,455.60 3,455.60 3,455.60 3,455.60 

Paid up:
��{`�`~�������	
���
�����������"������ 3,455.60 3,455.60 3,455.60 3,455.60 3,455.60 

a. Details of Shareholder(s) holding more than 5% shares are as follows:

Particulars
As at March 31,

2019 2018 2017
(Proforma)

2016
(Proforma)

2015
(Proforma)

Nikhil Umesh Katti 369.29 369.29 365.61 365.61 365.61
% of Total Shareholding 10.69% 10.69% 10.58% 10.58% 10.58%
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12. Other Equity

Particulars
As at March 31,

2019 2018 2017
(Proforma)

2016
(Proforma)

2015
(Proforma)

Security Premium
Securities Premium Reserve 1,466.39 1,466.39 1,466.39 1,466.39 1,466.39 

Actuarial Gain/ (loss) in OCI 64.71 40.97 (24.85) (58.13) (9.49)

Profit & Loss Account
(i) Opening Balance 17,924.98 18,351.65 17,745.40 18,076.92 19,315.37(1)

Add / (Less): Changes during the year
Less:  Transitional Adjustments
- Deferred Tax on account of IND AS - - - - (752.45)
- Measurement of Employee benefit at 

Fair Value - - - - (1.43)

- Expected Credit Loss - - - - (25.26)

(ii) Add: Profit for the year (1,761.99) (426.67) 606.25 85.35 (57.68)
Less: Proposed Dividend (@ 10% on paid 
up capital) - - - (345.56) (345.56)

Less: Dividend Distribution Tax - - - (71.31) (56.06)
Net Profit Transfer to Reserves (1,761.99) (426.67) 606.25 (331.52) (459.30)

Closing balance 16,162.99 17,924.98 18,351.65 17,745.40 18,076.92 
Total 17,694.09 19,432.35 19,793.19 19,153.66 19,533.82 

(1) Does not include Ind AS effect for first time adoption and the same have been shown separately in the above table

13. Non Current Borrowings

Particulars
As at March 31, 

2019 2018 2017
(Proforma)

2016
(Proforma)

2015
(Proforma)

Secured
Loans From Banks
- Term Loans (including Hypothecation 

Loans) 6,533.31 3,669.41 963.26 2,059.93 3,361.89 

- Vehicles Loans 8.12 31.38 36.20 16.85 40.16 
Total 6,547.90 3,700.79 999.46 2,076.77 3,402.04 

For further details with respect to borrowings, kindly see “Schedule – I - Financial Indebtedness” forming part of this 
Restated Financial Statements.

14. Non – Current Provisions

Particulars
As at March 31, 

2019 2018 2017
(Proforma)

2016
(Proforma)

2015
(Proforma)

Gratuity 182.65 167.96 209.72 211.65 116.58 
Total 182.65 167.96 209.72 211.65 116.58 
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15. Deferred Tax Liabilities

Particulars
As at March 31,

2019 2018 2017
(Proforma)

2016
(Proforma)

2015
(Proforma)

Opening 1,391.94 1,057.56 841.63 354.70 316.12 
Add: Deferred Tax Liabilities during year (626.72) 334.38 215.93 486.93 38.58
Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 765.21 1,391.94 1,057.56 841.63 354.70 

16. Current Borrowings

Particulars
As at March 31,

2019 2018 2017
(Proforma)

2016
(Proforma)

2015
(Proforma)

Secured
Working Capital Loans
Bank of India 
Cash Credit - Pledge 9,192.91 7,747.55 3,680.67 5,817.61 5,298.15 
Cash Credit - Hypothecataion 1,483.33 (0.00) 1,197.50 - 500.00 
Harvesting & Transport Loan 5,000.00 5,000.00 5,000.00 5,000.00 5,000.00
SBI
Cash Credit (SBI) WHR Loan 6,001.44 7,579.12 3,025.82 1,000.56 3,531.21 
Cash Credit (SBI) Demand Loan A/c - 1,641.10 4,262.18 6,328.99 2,104.43 
Harvesting & Transport Loan 3,708.00 4,500.00 4,500.00 4,500.00 3,000.00

Total 25,385.68 26,467.77 21,666.16 22,647.16 19,433.79 
For further details with respect to borrowings, kindly see “Schedule – I - Financial Indebtedness” forming part of this
Restated Financial Statements.

The above amounts in Note 13 and Note 16 include:

Particulars
As at March 31,

2019 2018 2017
(Proforma)

2016
(Proforma)

2015
(Proforma)

Secured Borrowings(1) 33,879.42 31,464.03 23,825.56 26,776.66 23,925.79 
Unsecured Borrowings - - - - -

Total 33,879.42 31,464.03 23,825.56 26,776.66 23,925.79 
(1) Including current maturities of Long – Term Debts

17. Trade Payables

Particulars
As at March 31, 

2019 2018 2017
(Proforma)

2016
(Proforma)

2015
(Proforma)

Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises - - - - -
Others 11,271.89 2,686.39 1,434.36 2,694.25 5,561.88 

Total 11,271.89 2,686.39 1,434.36 2,694.25 5,561.88 

Note 17.1:

(a) ���*�����������
���	*����]'��*	������
�����
#������*���*
	#��������
����registered under the Micro, Small and 
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED).
(b) The Company is in the process of compiling relevant information from its suppliers about their coverage under the 
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006. As the Company has not received any intimation from 
its suppliers as on date regarding their status under the above said Act and hence disclosures if any relating to amounts 
unpaid as at year end together with the interest paid /payable as required under the said Act have not been given.
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18. Other Current Financial Liabilities

Particulars
As at March 31,

2019 2018 2017
(Proforma)

2016
(Proforma)

2015
(Proforma)

Dividends on Equity Shares - - - 102.52 -
Current Maturities of Long-term Debt 1,952.31 1,295.47 1,159.93 2,052.73 1,089.96 
Trade Deposits & Advances 1,257.02 491.82 210.47 1,553.53 2,203.88 
Other Financial liabilities 507.00 630.17 676.44 644.48 620.17 

Total  3,716.34 2,417.46 2,046.84 4,353.25 3,914.01 

19. Other Current Liabilities

Particulars
As at March 31,

2019 2018 2017
(Proforma)

2016
(Proforma)

2015
(Proforma)

Statutory Dues Payable 2,832.35 2,607.02 2,551.95 2,397.45 2,206.02 
Other Payables 99.22 57.42 860.78 911.84 2,511.87 

Total 2,931.57 2,664.44 3,412.73 3,309.29 4,717.90 

20. Current Provisions

Particulars
As at March 31, 

2019 2018 2017
(Proforma)

2016
(Proforma)

2015
(Proforma)

Gratuity Provision 10.49 12.36 12.17 12.27 6.76 
Total 10.49 12.36 12.17 12.27 6.76 

21. Current Tax Liabilities (Net)

Particulars
As at March 31,

2019 2018 2017
(Proforma)

2016
(Proforma)

2015
(Proforma)

Income Tax - 21.58 232.18 143.00 4.13 
Total - 21.58 232.18 143.00 4.13 

Tax reconciliation (for profit and loss)
Profit before income tax expense
Tax at the rate of (MAT 18.5% + 
Surcharges + Education Cess) of respective 
years

- 6.08 223.16 155.45 6.36 

Tax adjustments pertaining to earlier year - - - - -
Tax expense for the year - 6.08 223.16 155.45 6.36 

22. Revenue from Operations

Particulars
For the year ended March 31,

2019 2018 2017
(Proforma)

2016
(Proforma)

2015
(Proforma)

Sales (Inclusive of Excise duty) 28,854.46 25,928.30 32,184.21 40,575.83 34,508.36 

Other Operating Revenue 1,825.12 - - - -
Total 30,679.58 25,928.30 32,184.21 40,575.83 34,508.36 
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23. Other Income

Particulars
For the year ended March 31,

2019 2018 2017
(Proforma)

2016
(Proforma)

2015
(Proforma)

Recurring Other Income
Dividend Income 3.41 3.40 4.30 0.02 0.03
Rental Income 34.56 13.10 10.52 29.64 14.29
Insurance Claims and Income 51.55 55.46 65.83 19.01 28.06
Other Non - Operating Income 18.44 64.11 23.26 240.07 385.63 
Non – Recurring Other Income
Balances Written – off - 828.72 - - -

Total 107.97 964.80 103.91 288.73 428.02 
% of PBT Negative Negative 10.10% 39.68% Negative

24. Cost of Materials Consumed

Particulars
For the year ended March 31,

2019 2018 2017
(Proforma)

2016
(Proforma)

2015
(Proforma)

Raw  Materials Consumed 26,686.96 21,740.92 12,168.01 21,569.89 21,911.71 
Stores, Spares, Chemicals & Packing 
Materials Consumed 978.41 954.86 651.40 1,358.87 1,327.90 

Total 27,665.37 22,695.78 12,819.41 22,928.76 23,239.60 

25. Changes in Inventory

Particulars
For the year ended March 31,

2019 2018 2017
(Proforma)

2016
(Proforma)

2015
(Proforma)

Raw Material
Opening 1,178.60 657.27 1,790.07 2,455.57 2,270.14 
Closing 2,405.52 1,178.60 657.27 1,790.07 2,455.57 

(1,226.93) (521.33) 1,132.80 665.50 (185.43)
Work in Process
Opening - - - 214.13 137.73 
Closing - - - - 214.13 

- - - 214.13 (76.39)
Finished Goods
Opening 24,420.60 17,047.46 22,207.45 23,862.91 21,801.50 
Closing 29,473.94 24,420.60 17,047.46 22,207.45 23,862.91 

(5,053.34) (7,373.14) 5,159.99 1,655.46 (2,061.41)
Total (6,280.27) (7,894.47) 6,292.78 2,535.09 (2,323.23)
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26. Other Manufacturing Expenses

Particulars
For the year ended March 31,

2019 2018 2017
(Proforma)

2016
(Proforma)

2015
(Proforma)

Processing, Transportation and Other 
Charges 526.44 732.38 598.16 753.61 589.39 

Power & Fuel 428.74 1,072.00 792.81 722.64 991.20 
Repairs - Plant & Machinery 1,103.79 620.96 984.54 978.91 718.07 

Total 2,058.96 2,425.34 2,375.51 2,455.17 2,298.66 

27. Employee Benefit Expenses

Particulars
For the year ended March 31,

2019 2018 2017
(Proforma)

2016
(Proforma)

2015
(Proforma)

Salaries and Wages to employees 1,177.38 1,120.88 1,240.96 1,086.05 1,081.88 
Contribution to Provident and other Funds 93.93 111.10 117.41 116.22 94.35 
Staff Welfare Expenses 31.97 10.99 3.39 13.49 14.42 

Total 1,303.28 1,242.97 1,361.77 1,215.76 1,190.65 

28. Finance Cost

Particulars
For the year ended March 31,

2019 2018 2017
(Proforma)

2016
(Proforma)

2015
(Proforma)

Interest Expenses 3,501.06 1,947.10 2,406.97 1,657.46 1,526.11 
Other Borrowing Costs 134.63 137.95 84.44 129.88 82.88 

Total 3,635.69 2,085.05 2,491.41 1,787.34 1,608.98 

29. Other Expenses

Particulars
For the year ended March 31,

2019 2018 2017
(Proforma)

2016
(Proforma)

2015
(Proforma)

Rent 6.86 6.94 6.89 6.32 5.31 
Advt, Publicity & Sales Promotion 352.42 220.28 111.83 1.63 2.17 
Insurance 142.06 102.70 96.31 78.21 80.74 
Travelling Expenditure 37.63 26.39 33.98 38.29 31.10 
Vehicle Running & Maintenance 184.51 146.25 155.21 159.62 145.56 
Printing & Stationery 11.70 10.78 9.95 8.89 12.10 
Communication Expenses 9.48 16.26 12.64 15.27 16.01 
Legal, Professional & Consultancy Charge 74.48 205.85 65.88 64.94 19.80
Discount, Rebate & Commission 18.94 6.83 20.17 43.14 61.51 
Loss/(Gain) on Sale / Disposal of Fixed 
Assets 83.72 5.03 4.79 8.33 5.16 

Freight Charges 10.10 11.09 10.03 9.17 18.94 
Donation 2.00 2.00 2.50 0.05 43.87 
License Fees & Taxes 139.12 220.89 230.21 373.92 449.79 
Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses 8.80 14.19 21.80 - -
Other Miscellaneous Exp 70.08 118.51 137.06 218.58 106.11 
Expected Credit Loss 262.76 243.73 46.70 43.19 41.47 

Total 1,414.66 1,357.72 965.95 1,069.57 1,039.63 
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29.1 Payment to Auditors

Particulars
For the year ended March 31,

2019 2018 2017
(Proforma)

2016
(Proforma)

2015
(Proforma)

Audit fees 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00 4.00
For Other Matters 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00 1.00

Total 7.00 7.00 7.00 7.00 5.00

30. Deferred Tax Assets & Liabilities

The tax effects of significant temporary differences that resulted in deferred tax assets and liabilities and a description 
of the items that created these differences is given below:

Particulars For the year ended March 31,
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

Property, plant and equipment 357.16 415.38 96.03 630.49 457.82
MAT Credit Entitlement - (21.58) (232.18) (142.99) (4.13)
Accumulated Losses (971.71) (76.56) 290.64 6.32 (296.96)
43 B Disallowances (12.18) 17.14 61.44 (6.89) (118.17)
Net deferred tax( assets)/liabilities (626.72) 334.38 215.93 486.93 38.57

31. Earnings Per Share

Particulars
For the year ended March 31,

2019 2018 2017
(Proforma)

2016
(Proforma)

2015
(Proforma)

Net Profit attributable to equity holders (1761.99) (426.67) 606.25 85.35 (57.68)
Calculation of weighted average number of 
equity shares
No. of shares at the beginning of the year 345.56 345.56 345.56 345.56 345.56
Add: Allotment during the year - - - - -
Add: Effect of Bonus Equity shares issued - - - - -
Weighted average number of equity shares 
outstanding during the year 345.56 345.56 345.56 345.56 345.56

Basic and Diluted EPS (5.10) (1.23) 1.75 0.25 (0.17)
Nominal Value per Equity Share 10 10 10 10 10

Note: Weighted average number of shares is the number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning of the 
period/year adjusted by the number of equity shares issued during period/year, multiplied by the time weighting factor. 
The time weighting factor is the number of days for which the specific shares are outstanding as a proportion of total 
number of days during the period/year.

32. Contingent Liability

Particulars
As at March 31,

2019 2018 2017
(Proforma)

2016
(Proforma)

2015
(Proforma)

(a) Court Cases 1,506.15 1,253.66 1,182.31 2,061.99 1,847.84
(b) Bank Guarantee 57.00 143.78 110.28 115.50 58.50
(c)    EPCG Export Obligation 289.99 289.99 289.99 - -

1,853.14 1,649.43 1,582.58 2,177.49 1,906.34
Note: In respect of above matters, future cash outflows in respect of contingent liabilities are determinable only by the 
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company.
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33. As per Indian Accounting Standard-19, ‘Employee Benefits’, the disclosure of Defined Benefit Plan as 
defined in the Standard are given below:

The Company provides for gratuity for employees in India as per the Payment of the Gratuity Act, 1972. Employees 
who are in continuous service for a period of 5 years are eligible for gratuity. The amount of gratuity payable on 
retirement/termination is the employees last drawn basic salary per month computed proportionally for 15 days salary 
#	��
��
�*����������	#�����������������������!
���	������#��
#	#������"�#
��
���

(i) The assumptions used in accounting for the gratuity plan are set out as below:

Particulars
For the year ended March 31,

2019 2018 2017
(Proforma)

2016
(Proforma)

2015
(Proforma)

Future Salary rise 7.00% 7.00% 7.00% 7.00% 7.00%
Discount rate 7.75% 7.75% 7.50% 7.50% 7.50%

Mortality
IALM 

2006-08
Ultimate

IALM 
2006-08
Ultimate

IALM 
2006-08
Ultimate

IALM 
2006-08
Ultimate

IALM 
2006-08
Ultimate

Withdrawal rate 5% 5% 5% 5% 5%

The estimates of future salary increase, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, 
promotions and other relevant factors such as supply and demand in the employment market. The Company evaluates 
these assumptions annually based on its long term plans of growth and industry standard.

(ii) The components of gratuity cost recognised in the statement of profit and loss consist of the following:

Particulars
For the year ended March 31,

2019 2018 2017
(Proforma)

2016
(Proforma)

2015
(Proforma)

Current Service Cost 13.98 22.55 26.88 30.24 15.03
Interest cost 22.58 17.20 16.79 9.25 6.74
Gratuity cost recognised in statement of 
profit and loss 36.56 39.75 43.67 39.49 21.77

(iii) Details of the employee benefits obligations and plan assets are provided below:

Particulars
As at March 31,

2019 2018 2017
(Proforma)

2016
(Proforma)

2015
(Proforma)

Present value of funded obligations 193.14 180.32 221.89 223.94 123.34
Fair value of plan assets - - - - -
Net defined benefit liability recognized 193.14 180.32 221.89 223.94 123.34

(iv) Details of changes in the present value of defined benefit obligations are as follows:

Particulars
For the year ended March 31,

2019 2018 2017
(Proforma)

2016
(Proforma)

2015
(Proforma)

Defined benefit obligations at the 
beginning of the year 180.32 221.89 223.93 123.34 89.85

Current service cost 22.58 22.55 26.88 30.24 15.03
Interest Cost 13.98 17.20 16.79 9.25 6.74
Re measurement - Actuarial (gain)/loss on 
obligation (23.74) (81.32) (42.31) 61.10 11.72

Benefits paid during the year - - (3.40) - -
Defined benefit obligations at the end of 
the period/ year 193.14 180.32 221.89 223.93 123.34
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34. Related party disclosures as required under Indian Accounting Standard 24, "Related party disclosure" are 
given below.

In accordance with the provisions of Ind AS 24 “Related Party Disclosures” and the Companies Act, 2013, Company’s 
Directors, members of the Company’s Management Council and Company Secretary are considered as Key 
Management Personnel. List of Key Management Personnel of the Company is as below:

(i) Key Managerial Personnel (KMPs) & Relatives of KMPs

For the year ended March 31,
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

Umesh V Katti Umesh V Katti Umesh V Katti Umesh V Katti Umesh V Katti
Nikhil U Katti Nikhil U Katti Nikhil U Katti Nikhil U Katti Nikhil U Katti
Mukesh Kumar - Mukesh Kumar Mukesh Kumar Mukesh Kumar
Lava R Katti Lava R Katti Lava R Katti Lava R Katti Lava R Katti
Kush R Katti Kush R Katti Kush R Katti Kush R Katti Kush R Katti
Sheela Umesh Katti Sheela Umesh Katti Sheela Umesh Katti Sheela Umesh Katti Sheela Umesh Katti
Sheshagiri Kulkarni Sheshagiri Kulkarni Sheshagiri Kulkarni Sheshagiri Kulkarni Sheshagiri Kulkarni
Sneha Patil Sneha Patil Sneha Patil Sneha Patil Sneha Patil
Mallikarjun J Pujar Mallikarjun J Pujar Mallikarjun J Pujar Mallikarjun J Pujar Mallikarjun J Pujar

The following is a summary of significant related party transactions:

Name of Related Party
As at March 31,

2019 2018 2017
(Proforma)

2016
(Proforma)

2015
(Proforma)

Directors Remuneration
Nikhil Katti 36.00 36.00 34.50 18.00 18.00 
Mukesh Kumar 2.25   - 3.00 15.00 15.00 
Mallikarjun Pujar 9.00             9.00 8.75 6.00            6.00 
Lava Katti 24.00 24.00 23.00 12.00 12.00 
Kush Katti 24.00 24.00 23.00 12.00 12.00 
Salary
Sneha Patil 4.20 4.20 4.00            3.00 3.00 
Sheshagiri Kulkarni 4.71 4.68 4.60 3.18 3.12 
Transportation Expense
Mallikarjun Pujar 3.13 3.00
Purchases(1)

Nikhil Katti 4.52 0.86 6.65 15.66 8.49 
Mallikarjun Pujar 0.39 0.33 - 3.15 4.38 
Lava Katti 10.71 2.16 0.09 0.36 6.50 
Kush Katti 10.91 22.39 19.77 0.27 10.44 
Umesh V. Katti 10.19 26.28 - -            8.56 
Basavaraj V Hagaragi 0.40 0.98 - - -
Sheela Umesh Katti - - 2.45 - -
Ramesh Katti 20.54 - - - -
Advances
Nikhil U Katti 40.78 40.78 - - -
Lava R Katti 52.47 52.47 - - -
Kush R Katti 57.24 57.24 - - -
Mallikarjun Pujar - - - 2.00 -
Lease Security Deposit
Nikhil Katti 200.00 200.00 200.00 200.00 200.00

(1) The purchases made by the Company from the Promoters / Directors pertain to purchase of sugarcane from the 
agricultural fields owned by such Promoters / Directors.
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In accordance with the applicable provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961, the Company is required to use certain 
specified methods in assessing that the transactions with the related parties, are carried at an arm’s length price and is 
also required to maintain prescribed information and documents to support such assessment. The appropriate method to 
be adopted will depend on the nature of transactions / class of transactions, class of associated persons, functions 
performed and other factors as prescribed. Based on certain internal analysis carried out, management believes that 
transactions entered into with the related parties were carried out at arms length prices.

(ii) Associates / Enterprises over which directors and / or their relatives has significant influence

For the year ended March 31,
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

U R Agrofresh 
Private Limited

U R Agrofresh 
Private Limited

U R Agrofresh 
Private Limited

U R Agrofresh 
Private Limited

U R Agrofresh 
Private Limited

Vishwaraj 
Infrastructure Private 
Limited

Vishwaraj 
Infrastructure Private 
Limited

Vishwaraj 
Infrastructure Private 
Limited

Vishwaraj 
Infrastructure Private 
Limited

Vishwaraj 
Infrastructure Private 
Limited

UK27 Hospitality 
Services (India) 
Limited

UK27 Hospitality
Services (India) 
Limited

UK27 Hospitality
Services (India) 
Limited

UK27 Hospitality
Services (India) 
Limited

UK27 Hospitality
Services (India) 
Limited

M/s Vishwaraj 
Developers

M/s Vishwaraj 
Developers

M/s Vishwaraj 
Developers

M/s Vishwaraj 
Developers

M/s Vishwaraj 
Developers

The following is a summary of significant related transactions with the entities having significant influence

Name of Related Party
As at March 31,

2019 2018 2017
(Proforma)

2016
(Proforma)

2015
(Proforma)

UR Agro Fresh Pvt. Ltd.
Sales 93.46 - - - -
Debtors outstanding 83.46 - - - -
Advances
Opening Balance o/s 100.00 - - - -
Advance given during the year 225.00 100.00 - - -
Closing Balance o/s 335.00 100.00 - - -

UK 27 Hospitality Services (India) Ltd.
Sales 0.47 - - - -
Debtors outstanding 0.22 - - - -
Expenses 0.47 - - - -
Payable Outstanding 0.14 - - - -

M/s. Vishwaraj Developers
Sales 0.34 - - - -
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Annexure VII: Statement of First Time Adoption of Ind AS and Adjustments to the Audited Financial
Statements
��]�?�
�	��	�	�����^	?�����	�
���_���	�
�
�!�

The Company's Financial Statements for the period ended March 31, 2018, were the first financial statements that have 
been prepared in accordance with Ind AS. The accounting policies set out in note 1 have been applied in preparing the 
financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018, the comparative information presented in these financial 
statements for the year ended March 31, 2017 and in the preparation of an opening Ind AS balance sheet at April 01, 
2016 (the date of transition). In preparing its opening Ind AS balance sheet, the Company has adjusted the amounts 
reported previously in financial statements prepared in accordance with the accounting standards notified under 
Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 (as amended) and other relevant provisions of the Act (previous 
GAAP or Indian GAAP). An explanation of how the transition from previous GAAP to Ind AS has affected the 
Company’s financial position, financial performance and Cash flow is given below:

(i) Optional Exemptions Availed

� Business combinations

The Company has availed the business combination exemption on first time adoption of Ind AS and 
accordingly the business combinations prior to date of transition have not been restated to the accounting 
prescribed under Ind AS 103 – Business combinations. The Company applies the requirements of Ind AS 103 
– Business combinations to business combinations occurring after the date of transition to Ind AS

� Deemed cost

Since, there is no change in the functional currency of the Company, it has opted to continue with the carrying 
values measured under the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed cost for property, plant 
and equipment, other intangible assets and investment properties on the date of transition.

� Leases

Appendix C to Ind AS 17, Leases, requires an entity to assess whether a contract or arrangement contains a 
lease. As per Ind AS 17, this assessment should be carried out at inception of the contract or arrangement. 
However, Company has used Ind AS 101 exemption and assessed all arrangements based for embedded leases 
based on conditions in place as at the date of transition.

� Designation of previously recognised financial instruments

Ind AS 101 allows an entity to designate investments in equity instruments at FVTPL on the basis of the facts 
and circumstances at the date of transition to Ind ASs. Company has elected to apply this exemption for its 
investment in equity instruments.

(ii) Mandatory exceptions applied

� Estimates

The estimates as at April 01, 2016 and March 31, 2017 are consistent with those made for the same dates in 
accordance with previous GAAP (after adjustment to reflect differences if any, in accounting policies) apart 
from the following items where the application of previous GAAP did not require estimation:
� Impairment of financial assets based on the expected credit loss model; and
� Investments in equity instruments carried as FVPL or FVOCI.
The estimates used by the Company to present the amounts in accordance with Ind AS reflect conditions that 
existed at the date on transition to Ind AS.

� De-recognition of financial assets and liabilities

Ind AS 101 requires a first-time adopter to apply the de-recognition provisions of Ind AS 109 prospectively 
for transactions occurring on or after the date of transition to Ind AS. However, Ind AS 101 allows a first-time 
adopter to apply the de-recognition requirements in Ind AS 109 retrospectively from a date of the entity’s 
choosing, provided that the information needed to apply Ind AS 109 to financial assets and financial liabilities 
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derecognised as a result of past transactions was obtained at the time of initially accounting for those 
transactions. The Company has applied the de-recognition provisions of Ind AS 109 prospectively from the 
date of transition to Ind AS.

� Classification and measurement of financial assets

Ind AS 101 requires an entity to assess classification and measurement of financial assets on the basis of the 
facts and circumstances that exist at the date of transition to Ind AS.

Reconciliation of Equity between Ind AS and Previous GAAP

Particulars As at March 31,
2017 2016 2015

Equity under erstwhile Indian GAAP 24,416.56 23,538.68 23,514.09 
Change due to Restatement Adjustment - - -
Impairment of Trade Receivables under ECL Method (156.62) (109.92) (66.73)
Fair Value of defined benefit obligation (3.98) (6.63) (10.23)
Finance cost de-recognised based on effective interest 
cost 1.91 8.99 4.11 

Deferred tax benefit (1,009.08) (821.86) (451.82)
De-recognition of Proposed Dividend (Dividend and 
Dividend distribution tax) - - -

Equity under Ind AS 23,248.79 22,609.26 22,989.42 

Effect of Ind AS adoption on the statement of profit and loss

Particulars For the year ended March 31,
2017 2016 2015

Net profit under erstwhile Indian GAAP 877.87 441.45 (321.65)
Restatement Adjustments - - -
Impairment of Trade Receivables under ECL Method (46.70) (43.19) (41.47)
Fair Value of defined benefit obligation (39.66) 64.70 2.93 
Finance cost recognised based on effective interest 
cost (7.09) 4.88 4.11 

Re-classification of actuarial loss on defined 
employee benefit obligations - - -

Deferred tax impact (187.21) (370.04) 300.63 
Net profit for the period under Ind AS 597.22 97.80 (55.45)
Other comprehensive income 42.31 (61.10) (11.72)
Total comprehensive income 639.53 36.71 (67.17)

Prior Period Restatements

The company has adopted Ind AS for the first time in respect of the Audited Financial Statements prepared for the year 
ending March 31, 2018. There were some omissions in relation to certain items in the Financial Statements as on the 
Ind AS transition date i.e. April 01, 2017. As per Ind AS 8 prior period errors can be corrected retrospectively in the 
first set of financial statements approved for issue after the discovery of the error by restating the comparative amounts 
for the prior period(s) presented in which the error occurred i.e., March 31, 2018; or if the error occurred before the 
earliest prior period presented, restating the opening balances of assets, liabilities and equity for the earliest prior period 
presented i.e. April 01, 2017. The following were the details regarding amount of correction made for the opening 
equity, assets and liabilities of the earliest period presented i.e. April 01, 2017 and for the year ended March 31, 2018 
and its impact on Net Profit reported and Other Equity.

Reconciliation of Equity between Restated and Previous Reported

Particulars As at March 31,
2018 2017

Equity as per Audited 24,103.72 24,416.56
Impairment of Trade Receivables under ECL Method (400.35) (156.62)
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Fair Value of defined benefit obligation 130.67 (3.98)
Finance cost de-recognised based on effective interest cost 0.29 1.91 
Deferred tax benefit (942.37) (1,009.08)
Restated Equity 22,887.95 23,248.79 

Effect on Profit and Loss Account due to restatement of Prior period errors 

Particulars Year ended March 31, 2018
Net profit as per Audited (312.87)
Impairment of Trade Receivables under ECL Method (243.73)
Fair Value of defined benefit obligation 53.33 
Finance cost recognised based on effective interest cost (1.62)
Deferred tax impact 62.71 
Restated Net profit for the period (442.17)
Other comprehensive income 81.32 
Total Restated comprehensive income (360.85)
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Annexure – VIII: Statement of Tax Shelter
��]�?�
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Particulars
For the year ended March 31,

2019 2018 2017
(Proforma)

2016
(Proforma)

2015
(Proforma)

NORMAL TAX
Income Tax Rate (%) 33.06% 33.06% 33.06% 33.06% 32.45%
Restated Income before tax as per books 
(A) (2,388.72) (86.20) 1,045.34 727.73 (12.77)

Incomes considered separately
Dividend and other income 3.41 3.40 4.30 0.02 0.03 
Total Incomes considered separately (B) 3.41 3.40 4.30 0.02 0.03 
Restated Profit other than income 
considered separately (C)=(A-B) (2,392.13) (89.60) 1,041.04 727.71 (12.80)

Tax Adjustment
Permanent Differences 
Section 40 Disallowance - 39.96 15.78 - 52.62 
Section 43B Disallowance - - 132.85 261.56 343.60 
Section 37 Disallowance (Including 
Deferment of Processing charges &
Impairment of Trade receivables)

263.04 261.55 59.81 38.36 81.22 

Section 40A disallowance 21.45 93.08 4.02 104.19 24.69 
Section 36 Disallowance - - 10.46 - -
Loss on sale of Vehicles - - - - -
Donation - - - - -
Other Deductions - 779.80 1,220.44 - -
Total Permanent Differences (D) 284.49 1,174.39 1,443.36 404.11 502.13 
Timing Differences 
Book Depreciation 1,334.28 1,319.96 1,153.47 1,133.96 1,011.33 
Income Tax Depreciation allowance 2,180.96 2,586.39 2,035.83 2,246.31 2,415.83 
Total Timing Differences (E) (846.68) (1,266.43) (882.35) (1,112.35) (1,404.50)
Income From Business or Profession 
(F)=(C+D+E) (2,954.32) (181.64) 1,602.04 19.47 (915.16)

Income From Other Sources (G)
Dividend 3.41 3.40 4.30 0.02 0.03 
Taxable income from other sources (G) 3.41 3.40 4.30 0.02 0.03 
Taxable Income/(Loss) (F+G) (2,950.91) (178.23) 1,606.34 19.49 (915.13)
Unabsorbed Losses 2,950.91 178.23 (895.64) (19.49) 915.13 
Gross Total Income - - 710.69 - -
Deductions under chapter VI-A
80IA Infrastructure development and 80G 
Donations - - (514.35) - -

Taxable Income - - 196.34 - -
Tax on Total Income - - 64.91 - -
MINIMUM ALTERNATE TAX
Minimum Alternate Tax Rate (%) 21.55% 19.06% 21.34% 20.39% 19.06%
Restated Income before tax as per books 
(A) (2,689.04) (139.53) 1,045.34 727.73 (12.77)

Add: Income Tax Paid - - - - -
Book Profit u/s 115JB (2,689.04) (139.53) 1,045.34 727.73 (12.77)
MAT on Book Profit MAT MAT MAT MAT MAT 
Tax paid as per normal or MAT - - 223.09 148.37 -
Total Tax as per Return - 21.58 243.03 143.00 4.13 
Diff - (21.58) (19.94) 5.38 (4.13)
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OTHER FINANCIAL INFORMATION

RESTATED STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING RATIOS
��]�?�
�	��	�	�����^	?�����	�
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Particulars As at March 31,
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

Restated PAT as per P & L Account (1,761.99) (426.67) 606.25 85.35 (57.68)
Actual Number of Equity Shares 
outstanding at the end of the year 34,556,000 34,556,000 34,556,000 34,556,000 34,556,000 

Equivalent Weighted Average number of 
Equity Shares at the end of the year 34,556,000 34,556,000 34,556,000 34,556,000 34,556,000 

Share Capital 3,455.60 3,455.60 3,455.60 3,455.60 3,455.60 
Reserves & Surplus 17,694.09 19,432.35 19,793.19 19,153.66 19,533.82 
Net Worth 21,149.69 22,887.95 23,248.79 22,609.26 22,989.42 
Earnings Per Share:
Basic & Diluted ��� (5.10) (1.23) 1.75 0.25 (0.17)
Return on Net Worth (%) -8.33% -1.86% 2.61% 0.38% -0.25%
*�
	����
	;��?�	���	�����	���	- based on 
actual no. of equity shares at the end of 
the year 

61.20 66.23 67.28 65.43 66.53 

]�#
�������	��������	
������������ 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00

Notes to Accounting Ratios:

a) The above statement should be read with the Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Accounts appearing in 
Annexure V & VI respectively.

b) There is no revaluation reserve in last five years in our company.

c) As there is no dilutive capital in the company, Basic and Diluted EPS are similar.

d) Formulas used for calculating above ratios are as under:

i. Basic EPS is being calculated by using the formula: (Net Profit after excluding Extra-ordinary items / 
Equivalent Weighted Average No. of outstanding shares)

ii. Net Asset Value is being calculated by using the formula: (Net Worth / Actual Number of Equity Shares at 
year end)

iii. Return on Net worth is being calculated by using the formula: (Profit After Tax / Networth)
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CAPITALISATION STATEMENT

R RESTATED STATEMENT OF CAPITALISATION
��]�?�
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Particulars Pre Issue
(as at March 31, 2019) Post Issue

Borrowings
Current Borrowings (A) 25,385.68 25,385.68
Non-Current Borrowings (including Current Maturity) (B) 8,493.74 8,493.74
Total Borrowings (C=A+B) 33,879.42 33,879.42

Shareholders’ funds
Equity share capital (D) 3,455.60 ���
Other Equity - as restated (E) 17,694.09 ���

Total Equity Capital (F=D+E) 21,149.69 ���

Non Current Borrowings / Total Equity 0.40 ���
Total Borrowings / Total Equity 1.60 ���

Notes:

1. The corresponding post IPO capitalisation data for each of the amounts given in the above table is not determinable 
at this stage pending the completion of the Book Building process and hence the same have not been provided in 
the Restated Statement of Capitalisation.

2. The amounts disclosed above are based on the Restated Ind AS Financial Information of the Company.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF 
OPERATION

The following discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations are based on, and should be 
read in conjunction with the Restated Financial Statements, the notes and significant accounting policies thereto and 
the Reports thereon included in the section “Financial Statements” beginning on page no. 202 of this Red Herring 
Prospectus. 

Our financial statements, as included in this Red Herring Prospectus, for financial year ended March 31, 2019 and 
March 31, 2018 were prepared in accordance with Ind AS, as notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) Rules, 2015 read with Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 to the extent applicable and complying with 
the requirements of SEBI ICDR Regulations. Our Financial Statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2017, 
2016 and 2015 was prepared in accordance with Indian GAAP, which have been translated into figures as per Ind AS 
to align accounting policies, exemptions and disclosures as adopted by our Company on its first-time adoption of Ind 
AS on the transition date and are restated in accordance with requirements of SEBI ICDR Regulations. The restated 
financials of the Company restated in accordance with SEBI ICDR Regulations, including the schedules, annexures 
and notes thereto and reports thereon, is included in the section “Financial Statements” beginning on page no. 202 of 
this Red Herring Prospectus. Ind AS differs in certain material respects from IFRS and U.S. GAAP. We have not 
attempted to quantify the impact of IFRS or U.S. GAAP on the financial information included in this Red Herring 
Prospectus, nor do we provide a reconciliation of our financial statements to those under U.S. GAAP or IFRS. 
Accordingly, the degree to which the financial information included in this Red Herring Prospectus will provide 
meaningful information depends on the reader’s level of familiarity with the Companies Act, Ind AS and the SEBI 
ICDR Regulations. Any reliance on the financial disclosure in this Red Herring Prospectus, by persons not familiar 
with Indian accounting practices, should accordingly be limited.

This discussion contains forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties and reflects our current view 
with respect to future events and financial performance. Actual results may differ from those anticipated in these 
forward-looking statements as a result of factors such as those set forth under “Risk Factors” on page no. 17 of this 
Red Herring Prospectus.

In this section, a reference to the “Company” means Vishwaraj Sugar Industries Limited. Unless the context otherwise 
requires, references to “we”, “us”, or “our” refers to Vishwaraj Sugar Industries Limited. Our Company does not 
have any subsidiaries, joint ventures or associates, and no consolidated financial statements are prepared. Unless 
otherwise indicated, the financial information included herein is based on the Restated Financial Statements as at and 
for the Fiscals 2015, 2016, 2017, 2018 and 2019.

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

We are an integrated sugar and other allied products manufacturing company operating from Belgaum District in 
the State of Karnataka which is designated as one of the “High Recovery zones” for sugar production by 
Government of India. We operate a single location sugar unit having licensed crushing capacity of 11,000 TCD. 
In addition to sugar we also manufacture other allied products like Rectified Spirits, Extra-Neutral Spirits, Indian 
Made Liquor, Vinegar, Compost, Carbon dioxide (CO2), etc. and are further engaged in the generation of Power 
for captive consumption as well as external sale. Our business can hence be broken up into five main segments 
namely Sugar, Co-Generation, Distillery, Indian Made Liquor (IML) and Vinegar.

In the year 2001, we commenced operations of manufacture of Distillery products such as Ethanol, Rectified 
Spirit and Extra Neutral Spirit. In the year 2006, our Company implemented backward integration and began 
commercial operations for Sugar manufacture from sugarcane, along with Co-Generation capabilities. During the 
year 2008, we began bottling of Indian Made Liquor. Currently our integrated unit processes sugarcanes to 
produce sugar and the by-products are used to generate electricity for captive use and commercial sale, 
manufacture rectified spirit, ENA, IML, Vinegar, Press-mud and Compost. Over the years, we have expanded the 
production / manufacturing capacities of all our products.

During the production of sugar; bagasse and molasses are produced which are the basic raw materials for power 
generation and Distillery (Spirit) manufacturing unit, respectively. The sugar unit of our integrated production facility 
first crushes sugarcane to extract juice and processes the juice to produce sugar. The sugar manufactured is then graded 
and packed based on the size of crystals and quality of the sugarcane. During the last fiscal year we produced 32,170 
tonnes of sugar. After extracting the juice from sugarcane, the residual fibre leftover called Bagasse is used as a fuel for 
power generation. The molasses used in the process of sugar production is fermented and distilled to manufacture 
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various spirits (Rectified Spirit and Extra Neutral Spirit) and IML in the distillery unit of our integrated production and 
manufacturing facility.

Bagasse is the fibrous residual matter used as a bio-fuel to generate steam in high pressure boilers for turning turbines 
to generate electricity. We obtain enough Bagasse during the crushing seasons, such that the electricity produced is 
used not just for captive consumption, but also for sale. For electricity generated over and above our captive 
consumption, we have entered into Power Purchase Agreements with 5 electricity distribution companies in Karnataka 
to supply a total of 22.4 MW. It is possible that during the year we may produce surplus energy and supply the surplus 
energy to other Companies / Industries based on demand.

Molasses is the viscous product resultant of refining sugarcane juice. Molasses, which forms the primary raw material 
for the distillery unit, is fermented, distilled and made to undergo various processes for making rectified spirit and extra 
neutral spirit. Rectified Spirit is processed to manufacture Industrial Vinegar. Extra- Neutral spirit is further processed 
for manufacture of IML products. The Extra-Neutral spirit is blended to manufacture Whiskey which is sold by us 
under our various brands like VSL Deluxe Whisky, District-1 and VSL Black. During the last financial year, we 
manufactured approximately 1,890 boxes of IML, 4,098 KL of Industrial Vinegar, 8,838 KL of Rectified Spirit and 
2,269 KL of Extra-Neutral Spirit.

Further the waste water extracted from Distillery unit is called as spentwash which is further mixed with mud to form 
Compost / Organic Manure, which is supplied back to farmers for cultivation of their fields which ensures higher 
yields. Further the company has set up a CO2 plant also. Thus, we believe that nothing is wasted, as every single output 
whether residue or by-product is utilised.

COMPETITION

India is one of the largest sugar producer and consumer in the world. Our Company faces severe competition in the 
business of Sugar production from sugar mills operating not only in Karnataka and Maharashtra but throughout the 
country and also from international markets. Though our direct sugar competitors are the sugar mills operating out of 
North West Karnataka and South West Maharashtra, with the de-regulation of sugar prices, we now have to set sugar 
prices as per national competition. The competition faced by us is also in the form of sugarcane purchase from farmers 
from villages in our vicinity and also outside the area of our factory. Further, competition in the sugar industry arises 
from organised as well as from un-organised sector.

We face scarce competition in our power generation segment in lieu of existing PPA with 5 electricity supply 
companies, huge demand from our customers and limited competitors.

Our distillery segment faces stiff competition from domestic players as well as local players with regards to pricing our 
brands vis-à-vis the other IML and IMFL products. Competition in IML is relatively strong from the un-organised 
market. The distillery segment being highly price sensitive, we respond to our competitors by pricing our alcoholic 
products suitably.

Significant Developments after March 31, 2019 that may affect our Future Results of Operations

The Directors confirm that other than the following developments, there have been no events or circumstances since the 
date of the last financial statements as disclosed in the Red Herring Prospectus which materially or adversely affect or 
is likely to affect the profitability of our Company, or the value of our assets, or our ability to pay liabilities within next 
twelve months.

� Our Company has been sanctioned a new term loan from The Belgaum District Central Cooperative Bank Ltd. 
(BDCC) with a vide sanct
����������*���*�����}���}�"�������������������
����#�	��������"��{}�������
�������
������
the GoI Scheme of Soft Loan to Sugar Mills to facilitate payment of cane dues of the farmers for the season of 
2018-19.

� Our Company has been sanctioned a new term loan from Bank of India (BoI) with a vide sanction letter dated May 
"`��}�"�������������������
����#�	����������`����������
�������
����������¨�'�
���#�����
������������
	�����
�������
facilitate payment of cane dues of the farmers for the season of 2018-19.
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FACTORS AFFECTING OUR RESULT OF OPERATION

Our business is subject to various risks and uncertainties, including those discussed in the section titled “Risk Factors”
on page no. 17 of this Red Herring Prospectus. 

Among various other factors that affect our financial results and operations for a given financial year, some key factors 
are as follows:

� Sugarcane is the principal raw material used for the production of sugar. Our business depends on the 
availability of sugarcane and any shortage of sugarcane may adversely affect our business and results of 
operations.

We purchase our entire sugarcane requirement directly from various independent farmers. After the de-regulation of the 
sugar sector, the farmers growing sugarcane within the villages around our manufacturing facility are not required to 
sell the sugarcane to our Company and we need to maintain cordial relations with these farmers to ensure that they sell 
their produce to us. Also, we strive to maintain relations with farmers in other villages not in our immediate vicinity so 
that we have adequate supply of sugarcane during the crushing season. Further, the farmers within our reserved area
have no legal or contractual obligation to cultivate sugarcane and may instead grow other crops. If the farmers within 
our reserved area cultivate other crops, or otherwise limit their cultivation of sugarcane, we may have a shortage of the 
raw material. We work with the farmers to determine the harvesting schedule and also provide them with subsidised 
seeds, cutting & transport assistance so that these farmers sell their produce to us. However, if the farmers are able to 
realise a higher price for sales of sugarcane from other sugar factories or other users, the farmer may have an incentive 
to sell the sugarcane to parties other than us.

Further, farmers may want to harvest the crop earlier than we have scheduled or grow other crops thereby disrupting 
our operations. To ensure that the farmers stay interested in selling sugarcane to our Company, we may need to provide 
financial and other incentives to the farmers. Diversion of sugarcane to other users or other sugar factories may reduce 
the sugarcane available to us and may adversely affect our financial condition and results of operation.

In addition, adverse weather conditions, crop disease, pest attacks may adversely affect sugarcane crop yields and sugar 
recovery rates for any given harvest. Our sugar production depends on the volume and sucrose content of the sugarcane 
that is supplied to us. Crop yields and sucrose content depends primarily on the variety of sugarcane grown, the 
presence of any crop disease, weather conditions such as adequate rainfall and temperature which may vary even in a 
particular season. Adverse weather conditions may adversely affect our manufacturing operations. Flood or drought can 
adversely affect the supply and pricing of the sugarcane procured by us from the farmers. There can be no assurance
that weather patterns, crop disease or the cultivation of certain sugarcane crop varieties will not reduce the amount of 
sugar that we can recover in any given harvest. Any reduction in the amount of sugar recovered from sugarcane could 
have a material adverse effect on our business and results of operations.

� We operate in five business segments and our inability to manage our diversified operations may have an 
adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.

We operate in five business segments under our own Company: Sugar, Co-generation, Distillery, IML and Vinegar. 
Though these business segments are inter-connected, our management requires considerable expertise and skill to 
manage and allocate an appropriate amount of time, attention sand other resources to each segment. Operating such 
multiple segments also makes forecasting future revenue and operating results difficult, which may impair our 
operations and your ability to assess our prospects. In addition, our cost controls, internal controls, and accounting and 
reporting systems must be integrated and upgraded on a continual basis to support our segments. In order to manage 
and integrate our segments effectively, we will be required to, among other things, stay abreast with key developments 
in each geography in which we operate, implement and continue to improve our operational, financial and management 
systems, develop the management skills of our managers and continue to train, motivate and manage our employees. If 
we are unable to manage our segmental operations, our business, results of operations and financial condition may be 
adversely affected.

� Our business is working capital intensive. If we are unable to generate sufficient cash flows to allow us to make 
required payments on our debt or fund working capital requirements, there may be an adverse effect on our 
results of operations.

Our business is working capital intensive including fund requirement for payment for sugarcane purchase during the 
crushing season. Hence, major portion of our working capital is utilised towards debtors and inventory. Our debtors for 
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the F. Y. 2018-19, 2017-18 and 2016-17 was 18.14%, 14.80%, and 19.08% of the total net worth respectively in each 
year. Our inventories F. Y. 2018-19, 2017-18 and 2016-17 was 153.36%, 114.28%, and 78.28% of the total net worth 
respectively in each year.

The results of operations of our business are dependent on our ability to effectively manage our inventory (raw material 
and finished goods) and trade receivables. To effectively manage our inventory, we must be able to accurately estimate 
customer demand and supply requirements and purchase new inventory accordingly. However, if our management 
misjudges expected customer demand, it could cause either a shortage of products or an accumulation of excess 
inventory. Further, if we fail to sell the inventory we produce / manufacture or purchase, we may be required to write-
down our inventory or pay our suppliers without new purchases, or create additional vendor financing, all of which 
could have an adverse impact on our income and cash flows. To effectively manage our trade receivables, we must be 
able to accurately evaluate the credit worthiness of our customers and dealers and ensure that suitable terms and 
conditions are given to them in order to ensure our continued relationship with them. However, if our management fails 
to accurately evaluate the credit worthiness of our customers, it may lead to bad debts, delays in recoveries and / or 
write-offs which could lead to a liquidity crunch, thereby adversely affecting our business and results of operations. A 
liquidity crunch may also result in increased working capital borrowings and, consequently, higher finance cost which 
will adversely impact our profitability.

We have a sanctioned limit for working capital of � 26,500 lakhs from the existing bankers / financial institutions. Our 
inability to maintain sufficient cash flow, credit facility and other sourcing of funding, in a timely manner, or at all, to 
meet the requirement of working capital or pay out debts, could adversely affect our financial condition and result of 
our operations. In the event we are not able to recover our dues from our trade receivables or utilise / sell our inventory, 
we may not be able to maintain our Sales level and thus adversely affecting our financial health. If this situation 
persists, we may not be able to pay our lenders / creditors and we may be forced to go for Corporate Debt Restructuring 
(CDR) which may result in adversely affecting our operations and future prospects.

� We have incurred substantial indebtedness which exposes us to various risks which may have an adverse effect 
on our business and results of operations. We may also be unable to obtain future financing to fund our 
operations, expected capital expenditure and working capital requirements on favourable terms, or at all.

��� ��� ������ �"�� }�"�� ��*� ������ �"�� }�"��� ��� ��!�� �� �������{}� ������ ��*� �� �"�{~{���� ������ �
���	*
��� �	������
maturities of long term debt but excluding non fund based) respectively, of outstanding debt on our balance sheet. Our 
level of indebtedness has important consequences to us, such as:

� increasing our vulnerability to general adverse economic, industry and competitive conditions;
� limiting our flexibility in planning for, or reacting to, changes in our business and the industry;
� affecting our credit rating;
� limiting our ability to borrow more money both now and in the future; and
� increasing our interest expenditure and adversely affecting our profitability, since almost all of our debt bears 

interest at floating rates.

If any of these risks were to materialise, our business and results of operations may be adversely affected. Our business 
requires funding for capital expenditure and working capital requirements. The actual amount and timing of future 
capital expenditure may depend on several factors, among others, new opportunities, availability of land, regulatory 
approvals, regulatory changes, economic conditions, technological changes and market developments in our industry. 
Our sources of additional funding, if required, to meet our capital expenditure may include the incurrence of debt or the 
issue of equity or debt securities or a combination of both. If we decide to raise additional funds through the incurrence 
of debt, our interest and debt repayment obligations will increase, and could have a significant effect on our 
profitability and cash flows and we may be subject to additional covenants, which could limit our ability to access cash 
flows from operations. In case there is insufficient cash flow to meet our working capital requirement or we are unable 
to arrange the same from other sources or there is delay in disbursement of arranged funds, or there is any increase in 
interest rate on our borrowings, it may adversely affect our operations and profitability. These factors may result in an 
increased amount of short-term borrowings. Continuous increase of our working capital requirements may have an 
adverse effect on our results of operations and financial condition.

Further our ability to arrange for additional funds on acceptable terms is subject to a variety of uncertainties, including 
future results of operations, financial condition and cash flows; economic, political conditions and market scenario for 
our products; costs of financing, liquidity and overall condition of financial and capital markets in India; issuance of 
necessary business/government licenses, approvals and other risks associated with our businesses; and limitations on 
our ability to raise capital in capital markets and conditions of the Indian and other capital markets in which we may 
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seek to raise funds. Any such inability to raise sufficient funds could have a material adverse effect on our business and 
results of operations.

� Our business is subject to seasonal variations that could result in fluctuations in our results of operations.

Our business is seasonal in nature and as a result, our operating results may fluctuate. Since our business is influenced 
by the availability of our basic raw material, i.e. sugarcane, our production schedules are operational only according to 
such availability. For example, Belgaum area, the crushing season generally starts from October each year and remains 
till April. It is during this period that our majority of the sugar production takes place. During the non-crushing season, 
i.e. May to September, not only is our sugar production affected but also our co-generation and distillery units are 
affected for the lack of bagasse and molasses. Further, other seasonal factors such as irrigation, seed quality, area of 
sugarcane production and amount of rainfall also play a role in determining the quantity and quality of sugarcane 
produce. Consequently, the results of one reporting period may not be necessarily comparable with the preceding, 
succeeding or corresponding reporting periods. Our revenues recorded during planting and harvesting seasons (i.e. 1st

half of any financial year) are typically lower or even in losses as compared to revenues recorded during the crushing 
season (i.e. 2nd half of the financial year). During periods of lower sugar production, we continue to incur substantial 
operating expenses in connection with day to day operations, employees’ salaries, miscellaneous maintenance cost and 
among other things, product promotion expenses which are not reduced significantly during such periods, while our 
revenues remain reduced.

We have experienced, and expect to continue to experience, significant variability in our total revenue, operating cash 
flows, operating expenses and net revenues on a seasonal basis. Accordingly, our financial year ended March 31, 2019 
���� �������*� �� ����� ��� �� 1,761.99 lakhs. However, with the increase in sugar prices in the 1st quarter of the current 
financial year, we believe that we may experience better revenues, operating cash flows, etc. in the forthcoming 
financial years.

For more details, see “Risk Factors” and “Our Business”, on page nos. 17 and 130, respectively of this Red Herring
Prospectus.

Revenue and Expenses

The major component of our Revenue and Expenditure is as below:

Revenue: Total revenue consists of revenue from operations and other income.

Revenue from operations: Revenue from operations consists of income from the following segments:

a. Sugar Segment
b. Power 
c. Ethanol, Spirit and allied Products (Distillery Segment)
d. IML
e. Vinegar
f. Other By-Products

Other Income: Other income includes dividend income, rental income, profits from sale of income, insurance claims 
and insurance income.

Expenses: Expenses consists of cost of material consumed, changes in inventories, other manufacturing expenses, 
employee benefit expenses, finance costs, depreciation and other expenses.

Cost of Material Consumed: Cost of raw materials includes purchase of sugarcane, cane cess and tax, harvesting and 
transport costs, purchase of raw sugar, consumption of power and fuel, purchase of stores, spares and chemicals.

Changes in inventories: Consists of changes in raw materials, work-in-progress and finished products. Raw materials 
consist of coal, molasses and bagasse. Finished goods consist of sugar, vinegar, IML and other by-products. 

Other manufacturing expenses: Other manufacturing expenses consist of Processing, transportation and other charges 
and Repairs to Plant and Machinery.
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Employee benefit expenses: Employee benefit expenses comprises of salaries and wages paid to employees and 
workers, bonuses, contribution to provident and other funds, staff welfare expenses and director’s remuneration.

Finance Cost: Finance cost includes interest expenses and other borrowing costs such as commission and charges by 
banks, loan processing charges, Letter of Credit charges and Bank rating charges.

Depreciation and Amortization expenses: Depreciation and amortization expenses comprises of depreciation on 
tangible assets and amortization of intangible assets.

Other expenses: Other expenses include rent, advertisement expenses, insurance, travelling expenses, vehicle running 
and maintenance, printing and stationery, communication expenses, legal, professional and consultancy charges, license 
fees and other miscellaneous expenses.
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Fiscal 2019 compared with Fiscal 2018

Revenue from Operation

Revenue from operations had increased by 18.32©�� ���#� �� 25,928.30 lakhs in Fiscal 2018 ��� �� 30,679.58 lakhs in 
Fiscal 2019. The increase is mainly attributable to good cane harvesting leading to better sugarcane crushing and also 
due to a marginal increase in sugar prices.

Other Income

Other income had decreased by 88.81©�� ���#� �� 964.80 lakhs in Fiscal 2018 ��� �� 107.97 lakhs in Fiscal 2019 on 
account of decrease of non-recurring miscellaneous income.

Cost of Material Consumed

Cost of material consumed had increased by 21.90©�����#���22,695.78 lakhs in Fiscal 2018 �����27,665.37 lakhs in 
Fiscal 2019. This increase is due to increase in Minimum Support price and increase in cultivation of sugarcane, 
resulting in increase in cost of material consumed.

Changes in inventories 

Changes in Inventories had a variance by 20.45©����#���(7,894.47) lakhs in Fiscal 2018 �����(6,280.27) lakhs in Fiscal 
2019.

Other Manufacturing Expenses

Other Manufacturing Expenses have decreased by 15.11% ���#���2,425.34 lakhs in Fiscal 2018 �����2,058.96 lakhs in 
the Fiscal 2019 primarily on account of reduction of processing & transportation charges and also due to lower lower 
power & fuel cost, as our Company used higher captive power.

Excise Duty

Excise Duty had decreased by 45.44©�� ���#� �� 3,746.95 lakhs in Fiscal 2018 ��� �� 2,044.29 lakhs in Fiscal 2019
primarily on account of abolishment of Excise Duty from July 01, 2017 onwards (except on IML sales).

Employee Benefit Expenses

Employee benefit expenses had increased by 4.85©�����#���1,242.97 lakhs in Fiscal 2018 �����1,303.28 lakhs in Fiscal 
2019 primarily on account of annual increments and incentives.

Finance Cost  

Finance Cost had increased by 74.37©����#���2,085.05 lakhs in Fiscal 2018 �����3,635.69 lakhs in Fiscal 2019. This is 
primarily on account of increased interest liability on account of new loans taken during last financial year and end of 
their moratorium period, if any.

Depreciation and Amortization Expenses

Depreciation had increased by 1.08©�� ���#� �� 1,319.96 lakhs in Fiscal 2018 ��� �� 1,334.28 lakhs in Fiscal 2019 on 
account of marginal increase in gross block of Assets by during the year.

Other Expenses

Other expenses had increased by 4.19©����#���1,357.72 lakhs in Fiscal 2018 �����1,414.66 lakhs in Fiscal 2019. The 
increase is to be attributed to an increase in various expenses including loss on sale of assets, advertisement, publicity 
and sale promotion expenses and insurance charges.
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Tax Expenses

The Company’s tax expenses had decreased by 284.08©����#���340.47 lakhs in the Fiscal 2018 to a negative � 626.72 
lakhs in Fiscal 2019. This was mainly due to nil tax provisions as the Company reported a loss in the Fiscal 2019 and 
also due to higher Deferred Tax write-off.

Profit after Tax

After accounting for taxes at applicable rates, our Company reported a loss of � 1,761.99 lakhs in Fiscal 2019 as 
compared to a loss of � 426.67 lakhs in Fiscal 2018, mainly due to increase in cost of materials consumed and other 
reasons as stated above.

Fiscal 2018 compared with Fiscal 2017

Revenue from Operation

Revenue from operations had decreased by 19.44©�� ���#� �� 32,184.21 lakhs in Fiscal 2017 ��� �� 25,928.30 lakhs in 
Fiscal 2018. Our Company is a seasonal enterprise and the Fiscal 2018 witnessed average rainfall resulting in good 
cane harvesting. However due to higher sugar surplus the overall prices of sugar had reduced in Karnataka i.e. reduced 
per quintal sugar price the overall revenue has decreased.

Other Income

Other income had increased by 828.45©�� ���#� �� 103.91 lakhs in Fiscal 2017 ��� �� 964.80 lakhs in Fiscal 2018 on 
account of increase in miscellaneous income.

Cost of Material Consumed

Cost of material consumed had increased by 77.04©�����#���12,819.41 lakhs in Fiscal 2017 �����22,695.78 lakhs in 
Fiscal 2018. This increase is due to increase in Minimum Support price and increase in cultivation of sugarcane, 
resulting in increase in cost of material consumed.

Changes in inventories 

Changes in Inventories had a variance by 225.45©����#���6,292.78 lakhs in Fiscal 2017 �����(7,894.47) lakhs in Fiscal 
2018.

Other Manufacturing Expenses

Other Manufacturing Expenses have increased by 2.10% ���#���2,375.51 lakhs in Fiscal 2017 �����2,425.34 lakhs in 
the Fiscal 2018 primarily on account of reduction of repairs and maintenance expenses.

Excise Duty

���
����	�����*�*�������*�������{©�����#�������}�{��������
��$
�����}�"����������{~��`�������
��$
�����}�"����
#��
���
on account of reduction in Sales during the year.

Employee Benefit Expenses

Employee benefit expenses had decreased by 8.72©�����#���1,361.77 ������
��$
�����}�"�������1,242.97 lakhs in Fiscal 
2018 primarily on account of reduction in number of employees.

Finance Cost  

Finance Cost had decreased by 16.31©����#���2,491.41 lakhs in Fiscal 2017 �����2,085.05 lakhs in Fiscal 2018. This is 
primarily on account of decrease in interest paid on loans taken, moratorium period available on new term loans and 
marginal increase in borrowing costs.
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Depreciation and Amortization Expenses

Depreciation had increased by 14.43©�� ���#��� 1,153.47 lakhs in Fiscal 2017 �����1,319.96 lakhs in Fiscal 2018 on 
account of increase in gross block by during the year.

Other Expenses

Other expenses had increased by 40.56©����#���965.95 lakhs in Fiscal 2017 �����1,357.72 lakhs in Fiscal 2018. The 
increase is to be attributed to an increase in advertisement, publicity and sale promotion and an increase in legal, 
professional and consultancy charges.

Tax Expenses

The Company’s tax expenses had decreased by 22.46©����#���439.09 lakhs in the Fiscal 2017 �����340.47 lakhs in 
Fiscal 2018. This was mainly due to decrease in tax provisions as the Company reported a loss in the Fiscal 2018.

Profit after Tax

After accounting for taxes at applicable rates, our Company reported a loss of � 426.67 lakhs in Fiscal 2018 as 
compared to a profit of � 606.25 lakhs in Fiscal 2017 as a result of reasons stated above.

Fiscal 2017 compared with Fiscal 2016

Revenue from Operation

Revenue from operations had decreased by 19.44©�� ���#� �� 40,575.83 ������ 
�� $
����� }�"~� ��� �� 32,184.21 lakhs in 
Fiscal 2017. Our Company is a seasonal enterprise and the Fiscal 2017 witnessed lower than average rainfall resulting 
in reduced overall sugarcane produce. Because of this the production of most of our segments (sugar, co-generation, 
IML, distillery) decreased and our Company recorded lower revenue from operations.

Other Income

Other income had decreased by 64.01©�� ���#� �� }������ ������ 
�� $
����� }�"~� ��� �� 103.91 lakhs in Fiscal 2017 on 
account of decrease in other non-operating income. 

Cost of Material Consumed

Cost of material consumed had decreased by 44.09©�����#���22,928.76 ������ 
��$
�����}�"~������12,819.41 lakhs in 
Fiscal 2017. This reduction is due to below average rainfall in the region during the Fiscal 2017 and consequent lower 
sugarcane harvest, resulting in decrease in cost of material consumed. The quantity of cane crushed during the FY 
2015-16 was 8,00,234 Tons, whereas the same for FY 2016-17 was only 3,10,681 Tons, mainly due to draught leading
to shortage of cane availability. Hence Cost of Material consumed for FY 2016-17 showed a substantial decrease from 
that of previous year.

Changes in inventories 

Changes in Inventories had a variance by 148.23©����#���2,535.09 ������
��$
�����}�"~������6,292.78 lakhs in Fiscal 
2017.

Other Manufacturing Expenses

Other Manufacturing Expenses have decreased by 3.24©����#���2,455.17 ������
��$
�����}�"~������2,375.51 lakhs in 
the Fiscal 2017 primarily on account of lower scale of operations due to lower sugarcane production.

Excise Duty

Excise Duty had decreased by 46.05©�� ���#� �� 7,011.17 lakhs in Fiscal 2016 ��� �� 3,782.47 lakhs in Fiscal 2017
primarily on lower sales of sugar and also other allied products during the year.
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Employee Benefit Expenses

Employee benefit expenses had been increased by 12.01©�����#���1,215.76 ������
��$
�����}�"~������1,361.77 lakhs in 
Fiscal 2017 primarily on account of  annual increments and increase in directors’ remuneration(1).
(1) Our Company had substantially increased its operations during the financial year 2016-17, mainly due to its 
increase of sugar crushing capacity from 5,500 TCD to 8,500 TCD and also had recently started the new segment of 
Vinegar manufacturing, which required additional responsibility and time from the executive Directors of the 
Company. Also, the Company is in the process of planning for setting up of 2nd integrated unit for manufacture for 
sugar and allied products which requires the planning expertise and continued presence. Considering the above 
enhanced responsibility, the Board, after following due process of law, has approved the increase in Director’s 
Remuneration.

Finance Cost  

Finance Cost had increased by 39.39©����#���1,787.34 lakhs in Fiscal 2016 �����2,491.41 lakhs in Fiscal 2017. This is 
primarily on account of increase in borrowing cost, increase in interest rates and interest paid on loans taken and paid 
off during the reporting period.

Depreciation and Amortization Expenses

Depreciation had 
�������*� ��� "��}©�� ���#� �� "�"����~� ������ 
�� $
����� }�"~� ��� �� "�"`��{�� ������ 
�� $
����� }�"�� ���
����	������
��������
���������������������`��{�������

Other Expenses

Other expenses had decreased by 9.69©����#���1,069.57 ������ 
��$
�����}�"~������965.95 lakhs in Fiscal 2017. The 
decrease is to be attributed to decrease in license fees and taxes attributable to sugarcane purchase and reduction of 
other miscellaneous expenses.

Tax Expenses

The Company’s tax expenses had decreased by 31.65©����#���642.38 la���� 
�� ����$
�����}�"~� �����439.09 lakhs in 
Fiscal 2017. This is primarily due to an decrease in deferred tax which comprises the total tax expenses. The decrease 
in deferred tax liability is primarily due to decrease in timing difference as per the Ind AS calculations of deferred tax 
done for the purpose of Proforma financials in the Restated Financial Statements.

Profit after Tax

After accounting for taxes at applicable rates, our profit after tax had increased by 610.31©�� ���#��� 85.35 lakhs in 
Fiscal 2�"~������606.25 lakhs in Fiscal 2017 as a result of reasons stated above.

Other Material Analysis of the Financial Statements

The reason for the substantial increase / decrease in the above financial heads is explained as below:

a) Long Term Borrowings from March 31, 2018 to March 31, 2019;

The increase in Long Term Borrowings from March 31, 2018 to March 31, 2019 pertains to Term Loan sanctioned and 
����
!�*����#����������	#��
���
�������������������
!���������*���������������#�	��
����������������������*���
2,500 lakhs. These loans are being utilised for the purpose of expansion of the existing distillery unit from 35 KLPD to 
100 KLPD.

b) Short Term Loans and Advances from March 31, 2018 to March 31, 2019;

Majority of the amounts of the ‘Short Term Loans & Advances’ have been classified as ‘Other Current Assets’ under 
the Ind AS presentation in the Red Herring Prospectus. The Other Current Assets mainly include Deposits with 
Statutory Authorities, Cane Purchase Advance and advances to Harvesting and Transport Contractors (H & T 
Contractors) for harvesting cane from field and transporting it to the factory. As an Industry practice, these contractors 
are paid a substantial amount as an advance i.e. before the beginning of the Crushing Season (September / October to 
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March / April each year). During the Crushing Season, these contractors provide the required service ensuring smooth 
availability and transport of sugarcane to our factory. According to the duration of service rendered and other factors, 
the final accounts are settled after the end of the Crushing Season every year and hence as at March 31 of each year, 
majority of the advance is charged to the P& L A/c.

However, for the financial year ended March 31, 2019, the outstanding advances represent amounts that have been paid 
and no service against the same has been received or the account against the service is not yet settled. Thus the said 
amount is kept under Other Current Assets and there is a substantial increase in the same for the financial year ended 
March 31, 2019 as compared to year ended March 31, 2018.

Financial Condition 

Assets 

The following table sets forth the principal components of our assets as of the dates specified: 
��������	
���

Particulars As at March 31,
2019 2018 2017 2016

ASSETS
A) Non - Current Assets 
a) Fixed Assets

i.) Property, Plant and Equipments 26,440.54 27,188.80 24,069.44 24,413.23 
ii.) Intangible Assets - - - -
iii.) Capital Work in Progress 1,126.02 - 3,834.55 128.82 

b) Non Current Investment 108.24 53.24 37.98 37.65 
c) Other Non Current Financial Assets 214.60 213.45 262.89 263.18 

27,889.40 27,455.49 28,204.86 24,842.88 
B) Current Assets 
a) Inventories 32,434.62 26,157.20 18,199.84 24,446.57 
b) Trade Receivables 3,835.87 3,388.06 4,435.39 1,857.18 
c) Cash and Cash Equivalents 184.35 745.72 1,273.65 5,164.93
d) Current Financial Assets 4.47 4.61 15.52 44.64 
e) Other Current Assets 7,606.26 4,667.56 2,190.73 2,542.33 

44,065.56 34,963.14 26,115.13 34,055.65 
TOTAL (A+B) 71,954.96 62,418.63 54,319.99 58,898.53 

Discussion on select Balance Sheet items:

Fixed Assets:

During the Fiscal 2017, the total Property, Plant and Equipments decreased �����343.79 lakhs comprising of certain 
additions to the Sugar and Distillery segment and also due to the increase in depreciation during the year.

During the Fiscal 2018, Company added new Assets mainly comprising of plant and machinery of � 4,085.36 lakhs and 
������**
�
���
������������*��������	
�*
����������{~���������.

During the Fiscal 2019, the total Property, Plant and Equipments decreased �����748.26 lakhs mainly due to the written 
down value effect during the year.

Capital Work in Progress

�	�
��� ���� $
����� ª����}�"��� ���� ����
��� ���
���� ����� 
�� ��������� ����*� ��� ������{�``� ������ �����
�	�
��� #�¥��������
purchase of plant and machinery including a steam optimizer for increase in sugar manufacturing operations,
construction of IML godown and purchase of IML packing machinery.

There was no capital work in progress during the Fiscal 2018

During the Fiscal Year 2019����������
������
���������
���������������*������1,126.02 lakhs constituting construction 
work undertaken by the Company for increase in the distillery capacity from 35 KLPD to 100 KLPD.
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Inventories:

Our Company is a seasonal enterprise being heavily dependent on the availability of sugarcane on a timely basis. Our 
inventory of raw materials comprises of coal, molasses and bagasse which are used for co-generation and Distillery 
segments. Our finished stock of inventories comprises of Sugar, Rectified Spirit, MG Spirit, Neutral Spirit, IML, 
Compost, Denature spirit and Vinegar among others.

During Fiscal 2017, 2018 and 2019�� ���� 
�!������� ��!���� ��� �	�� ��#����� ���� ����� ����*� ��� �� 18,199.84������� ��
26,157.20��������32,434.62lakhs respectively.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Historically, our primary liquidity requirements have been to finance our working capital needs, loan repayments, and 
our capital expenditures. To fund these requirements we have relied on short-term and long-term borrowings and cash 
flows from operations. Our business requires a significant amount of working capital. We expect to meet our working 
capital requirements for Fiscal 2020 primarily from bank finance and also from the funds from this Fresh issue, as may 
be required.

Cash Flows 

The table below sets forth our net cash flows with respect to operating activities, investing activities and financing 
activities for the periods indicated

��������	
�)

Particulars Year ended March 31,
2019 2018 2017 2016

Net Cash from Operating Activities 2,506.27 (5,459.67) 6,169.97 3,000.65 
Net Cash from Investing Activities (1,847.34) (621.67) (4,516.22) (577.33)
Net Cash used in Financing Activities (1,220.30) 5,553.43 (5,545.03) 749.19 

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Net cash flow from operating activities for the Fiscal 2019 ����� 2,506.27 lakhs. This was primarily due to changes in 
depreciation, interest and finance charges, trade receivables, trade payables and inventories. The net cash from 
operating activities prior to working capital adjustment was *	������**
�
������� 3,635.69 lakhs of �
�������������*��
1,334.28 lakhs of depreciation. Balance changes were due to working capital adjustments.

Net cash flow from operating activities for the Fiscal 2018 ����� (5,459.67) lakhs. This was primarily due to changes in 
depreciation, interest and finance charges, trade receivables and inventories. The net cash from operating activities 
prior to working capital adjustment was *	�� ����**
�
������� 2,085.05 ��������� �
������ �������*���1,319.96 lakhs of 
depreciation. Balance changes were due to working capital adjustments.

]����������������#�������
������
!
�
�����������$
�����}�"��������`�}`~��~����������
��������
#��
���*	�������������
��
depreciation, interest and finance charges, trade receivables and inventories. The net cash from operating activities 
��
��� �������
������
���� �*¥	��#��������*	�� ����**
�
��������}�{�{��}� ��������� �
������ �������*���"�"}��"�� ���������
depreciation. Balance changes were due to working capital adjustments.

Cash Flows from Investment Activities

In the Fiscal 2019, t������������	��*�����'�!���
������
!
�
���������1,847.34 lakhs. A major part of the net cash used 
comprises of purchase of fixed assets (net) (including changes in Capital work in progress�������"���`��~� ����� and 
investment in BDCC shares �����55.00 lakhs.

In the Fiscal 2018�� �������������	��*� ���� '�!���
������
!
�
���������621.67 lakhs. A major part of the net cash used 
comprises of �	�����������
��*�������������������~��.81 lakhs and investment in BDCC shares �����15.26 lakhs.

'������$
�����}�"����������������	��*�����'�!���
������
!
�
���������4,516.22 lakhs. A major part of the net cash used 
comprises of purchase of fixed assets (net) (including changes in Capital work in progress) of � 4,520.19 lakhs.   
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Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Net cash outflow from financing activities in fiscal 2019 ������1,220.30 lakhs. This was on account of repayment of 
short term borrowings, increase in long term borrowings and payment of interest.

Net cash inflow from financing activities in fiscal 2018 ������5,553.43 lakhs. This was on account of increase in short 
term and long term borrowings and payment of interest.
]���������	���������#��
����
������
!
�
���
���
�����}�"��������5,545.03 lakhs. This was on account of repayment in 
short term and long term borrowings and payment of interest and payment of dividend & related taxes.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We do not have any material off-balance sheet arrangements.

Indebtedness

The following table sets forth our secured and unsecured debt position as at March 31, 2019.
��������	
��

Particulars Amount Amount
Secured 33,879.42
Fund based borrowings (including current maturities of long term liabilities) 33,879.42
Non fund based borrowings Nil
Unsecured Nil
Total 33,879.42 33,879.42

For more information regarding our indebtedness, please refer to the sections titled “Financial Indebtedness” and 
“Financial Statements” on page nos. 273 and 202, respectively, of this Red Herring Prospectus.

Contingent Liabilities and Commitments

Set forth below are details on our contingent liabilities and commitments as at March 31, 2019:
(� in lakhs)

Particulars As at March 31, 2019
Outstanding guarantees and counter guarantees to various Banks 57.00
Court Cases 1,506.15
Non fulfillment of export obligation under Zero Duty EPCG Scheme 289.99
Total 1,853.14

Related Party Transactions 

We have engaged in the past, and may engage in the future, in transactions with related parties, including with 
promoters and certain key management members on an arm’s lengths basis. Such transactions could be for 
remuneration, rent paid and loan availed.

Further, the related party transactions include purchases made from Promoters / Directors which indicates the purchase 
of sugarcane from the agricultural fields owned by such Promoters / Directors in their respective individual capacities. 
For details of our related party transactions, please refer to the sub- section titled “Restated Financial Statements –
Annexure VI – Note 34 – Restated Statement of Related Party Transactions” on page no. 238 of this Red Herring 
Prospectus.

Qualitative Disclosure about Risks and Risk Management

Raw material cost risk

Our operations are exposed to fluctuations in the market price of our basic raw materials viz. sugarcane and coal. 
Sugarcane is a highly regulated agro-product with the government setting the FRP (Fair and Remunerative Price). This 
means our company has to purchase sugarcane from the farmers at the price decided by the Government. The market 
price of coal is dependent on demand and supply, its availability from suppliers, cost of transportation etc. Any 
significant upward fluctuations may result in an increase in price at which we source these raw materials. 
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Inflation Risk 

Inflationary factors such as increases in the input costs and overhead costs may adversely affect our operating results. 
There may be time lag in recovering the inflation impact from our customer and we may not be able to recover the full 
impact of such inflation. A high rate of inflation in the future may, therefore, have an adverse effect on our ability to 
maintain our profit margins.

Interest Rate Risk

As of March 31, 2019, a part of the indebtedness incurred by us carried interest at floating rates with the provision for 
periodic reset of interest rates and thus, we are exposed to market risk as a result of changes in interest rates. Upward 
fluctuations in interest rates increase the cost of both existing and new debts. It is likely that in the current Fiscal and in 
future periods, our borrowings and interest expenses may rise substantially, given our growth plans.

Credit Risk

We are exposed to credit risk on monies owed to us by our customers and these trade receivables are typically 
unsecured. If our customers do not pay us promptly, or at all, we may have to make provisions for, or write off, such 
amounts. As at March 31, 2019, our trade receivables were � 3,835.87 lakhs.

Liquidity risk

The principal sources of liquidity are cash and cash equivalents and the cash flow that is generated from operations. We 
borrow short term and long term loans from banks and financial institutions to meet our working capital requirements. 
As of March 31, 2019 �����!���	�����*
���������
���������33,879.42 lakhs from banks (including current maturities 
of long term debts). We largely depend on the banks for working capital financing. We may be exposed to liquidity risk 
if we do not generate enough cash flow from operations, and do not repay the loans from the banks or pay off our trade 
payables as per the agreed contractual terms.

Foreign currency exchange risk

We may incur capital expenditure including cost of procuring equipment and machinery, in currencies other than in the 
Indian Rupee. We may also make sales of IML and purcahse of raw materials, in currencies other than in the Indian 
Rupee. Any significant decline in the value of the Indian Rupee against foreign currencies may lead to an increase in 
our costs and expenditures.

Unusual or Infrequent Events or Transactions 

Except as described in “Risk Factors” and “Our Business”, on page no.  17 and 130, respectively, of this Red Herring 
Prospectus there have been no events or transactions to our knowledge which may be described as “unusual” or 
“infrequent”. 

Significant Economic Changes that Materially affect or are likely to affect Income from Continuing Operations

Except as described in “Risk Factors” and “Key Regulations and Policies” on page nos. 17 and 156, respectively, of 
this Red Herring Prospectus, to the best of our knowledge, there have been no significant economic or regulatory 
changes that we expect could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations.

Known trends and uncertainties

Our business has been impacted and we expect will continue to be impacted by the trends identified above in 
“Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations– Significant Factors 
Affecting Our Results of Operations and Financial Condition” and the uncertainties described in “Risk Factors” on 
page nos. 252 and 17, respectively of this Red Herring Prospectus. To our knowledge, except as we have described in 
this Red Herring Prospectus, there are no known factors that we expect to have a material adverse impact on our 
revenues or income from operations.



Page | 271

Future relationship between costs and income

Other than as described in this section and in “Risk Factors” and “Our Business” on page nos. 17 and 130, respectively 
of this Red Herring Prospectus to the best of our knowledge, there are no factors that are expected to have a material 
adverse effect on the relationship between our costs and income.

Total turnover in each major industry segment

Other than as described in the Restated Financial Statements and this Management's Discussion and Analysis of 
Financial Condition and Results of Operations, we do not report any other segments for our financial statements 
prepared in accordance with Ind As.

Publicly Announced New Products or Business Segments / Material increases in Revenue due to Increased 
Disbursements and Introduction of New Products

We have not publicly announced any new products or business segments nor have there been any material increases in 
our revenues due to increased disbursements and introduction of new products.

Seasonality of business

Our business is seasonal in nature. For further details, see the discussions regarding the seasonality of our business in 
“Risk Factors” and “Our Business” on page nos. 17 and 130, respectively, of this Red Herring Prospectus.

Dependence on a few Customers and Suppliers

The revenue from our top 10 Customers constituted approximately 41.26% of the total revenue for the financial year 
ended March 31, 2019.

Competitive Conditions

We operate in a competitive environment. For further details, see the discussions regarding our competition in “Risk 
Factors” and “Our Business” on page nos. 17 and 130, respectively, of this Red Herring Prospectus.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

Ind AS 116 Leases:
Ind AS 116, Leases: The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified the Ind AS 116, Leases which will be effective 
from April 1, 2019. Ind AS 116 would replace the existing leases standard Ind AS 17. The standard sets out the 
principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosures for both parties to a contract, i.e. the lessee
and the lessor. Ind AS 116 introduces a single lessee accounting model and requires a lessee to recognise assets and 
liabilities for all leases with a term of more than 12 months, unless the underlying asset is of low value. Currently, 
operating lease expenses are charged to the statement of profit and loss. The Company is currently evaluating the effect 
of Ind AS 116 on the financial statements.

Ind AS 12 Income Taxes:
On March 30, 2019, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified limited amendments to Ind AS 12 ‘Income Taxes’. 
The amendments require an entity to recognise the income tax consequences of dividends as defined in Ind AS 109 
when it recognises a liability to pay a dividend. The income tax consequences of dividends are linked more directly to 
past transactions or events that generated distributable profits than to distributions to owners. Therefore, an entity shall 
recognize the income tax consequences of dividends in profit or loss, other comprehensive income or equity according 
to where the entity originally recognised those past transactions or events. The amendment will come into force for 
accounting periods beginning on or after April 1, 2019. The Company is evaluating the effect of the above in the 
financial statements. 

Ind AS 12, Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments:
On March 30, 2019, Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) has notified the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Amendment Rules, 2019 containing Appendix C to Ind AS 12, Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments which 
clarifies the application and measurement requirements in Ind AS 12 when there is uncertainty over income tax 
treatments. The current and deferred tax asset or liability shall be recognized and measured by applying the 
requirements in Ind AS 12 based on the taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax 
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rates determined by applying this appendix. The amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or after April 
1, 2019. The Company is evaluating the effect of the above in the financial statements.

Ind AS 19 ‘Employee Benefits’:
On March 30, 2019, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified limited amendments to Ind AS 19 ‘Employee 
Benefits’ in connection with accounting for plan amendments, curtailments and settlements. The amendments require 
an entity to use updated assumptions to determine current service cost and net interest for the remainder of the period 
after a plan amendment, curtailment or settlement and to recognise in profit or loss as part of past service cost, or a gain 
or loss on settlement, any reduction in a surplus, even if that surplus was not previously recognised because of the 
impact of the asset ceiling. The amendment will come into force for accounting periods beginning on or after April 1, 
2019. The Company is evaluating the effect of the above in the financial statements.

Auditor qualification

There are no reservations, qualifications or adverse remarks in the audit report submitted by our auditors in the last five 
financial years.
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SECTION VII – LEGAL AND OTHER REGULATORY INFORMATION

OUTSTANDING LITIGATIONS AND MATERIAL DEVELOPMENTS

Except as stated in this section, there are no:

A. (i) criminal proceedings; (ii) actions by statutory or regulatory authorities; (iii) claims relating to direct and 
indirect taxes; or (iv) Material Litigation (as defined below); involving our Company, Directors, Promoters or Group 
Companies. Our Board, in its meeting held on December 18, 2017 determined that all pending litigations  involving 
our Company, Promoters, Directors, or Group Companies as the case may be, other than criminal proceedings, 
statutory or regulatory actions and taxation matters, would be considered material,  where the monetary liability 
quantified exceeds 1% of the total Revenue of company as per latest full year audited financial or where the 
monetary liability is not quantifiable, each such case involving our Company, Promoters, Directors, or Group 
Companies, whose outcome would have a bearing on the operations or performance of our Company (“Material 
Litigation”).

B. (i) litigation or legal actions, pending or taken, by any Ministry or department of the Government or a statutory 
authority against our Promoters during the last five years; (ii) pending proceedings initiated against our Company 
for economic offences; (iv) default and non-payment of statutory dues by our Company; (v) inquiries, inspections or 
investigations initiated or conducted under the Companies Act, 2013 or any previous companies law in the last five 
years against our Company; or (vi) material frauds committed against our Company in the last five years.

C. (i) outstanding Material Dues (as defined below) to creditors; or (ii) outstanding dues to small scale undertakings
and other creditors. 

Our Board, in its meeting held on December 18, 2017, determined that all outstanding dues owed by the Company to 
small scale undertaking and other creditors exceeding 1% of the revenue of our Company as per the last audited 
financial statements shall be considered as material dues (“Material Dues”). Details of outstanding dues to creditors
(including micro and small enterprises as defined under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development 
Act, 2006) as required under the SEBI ICDR Regulations have been disclosed on our website at www.vsil.co.in 

Our Company, Directors, Promoters and Group Companies are not Wilful Defaulters and there have been no 
violations of securities laws in the past or pending against them.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES OF OUR COMPANY 

Particulars
As at March 31,

2019 2018 2017
(Proforma)

2016
(Proforma)

2015
(Proforma)

(a) Court Cases 1,506.15 1,253.66 1,182.31 2,061.99 1,847.84
(b) Bank Guarantee 57.00 143.78 110.28 115.50 58.50
(c)   EPCG Export Obligation 289.99 289.99 289.99 - -

1,853.14 1,649.43 1,582.58 2,177.49 1,906.34

A. LITIGATION AGAINST OUR COMPANY

1. Criminal matters

a. Criminal Revision Petition bearing No. 100294/2016 filed by Appasab Shivappa Halijoli (“the 
Petitioner”) against the Company (“Accused”) before the  High Court of Karnataka, Dharwad 
Bench(“the Court”).

The Company had issued an advance amount to the Accused for transportation of sugar during the harvest 
season of 2009-2010. However, the Complainant alleges that the accused failed to transport the sugarcane. 
Therefore, the Complainant requested the Accused to return the advance amount issued by the Company. On 
August 05, 2011, the Accused issued a cheque to the Company for the advance amount (including added 
interest) of � 1,76,273/- (“the Cheque Amount”) which was returned by the bank on account of insufficient 
funds. Upon receiving no response from the Accused, the Complainant filed the aforesaid Criminal Complaint 
bearing No. 126/2012 before the Court inter-alia praying that the Court direct the Accused to pay the Cheque 
Amount at the earliest and be penalized for an amount which is double cheque Amount. On being aggrieved 
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by the Judgment and Order dated March 27, 2014 passed in Criminal Complaint no. 126/2012 before the Civil 
Judge, J.M.F.C. Court, the Petitioner further filed a Criminal Appeal bearing no. 57/2014 before the Hon’ble 
VII Additional District and Sessions Judge, Belagavi which as dismissed by vide Order dated October 13, 
2016. However, the Petitioner has filed a Criminal Revision Petition bearing No. 100294/2016 before the 
Court inter-alia praying to call for the records, pleased to allow this Criminal Revision Petition and to set aside 
the judgment and order dated October 13, 2016 filed before the VII Additional District and Sessions Judge, 
Belagavi in Criminal Appeal no 57/2014 and also to set aside the judgment and order of conviction and 
sentence dated March 27, 2014 in Criminal Complaint no. 16/2012 passed by the Civil Judge and JMFC Court 
acquitting the Petitioner of the offences punishable under Section 138 of the Negotiable Instruments Act in the 
interest of justice and equity. This matter is currently pending.

2. Litigation Involving Actions by Statutory/Regulatory Authorities

a. MVC No. 540/2017 in the matter between Shobha Pujeri & Ors v. the Company and Vidyadhar 
Dadasaheb Borade before the Motor Accident Claims Tribunal, Belagavi

A petition bearing no. 540/2017 has been filed before the Motor Accidents Claims Tribunal, Belagavi 
(“Tribunal”) by Shobha Pujeri (“Petitioner”) against Nikhil Umesh Katti, Managing Director of the Company 
and Vidyadhar Dadasaheb Borade under Section 166 of the Motor Vehicles Act, 1988 for claiming a 
compensation of � 20,00,000/- (Rupees Twenty Lakh only) (“Claim Amount”) along with interest at the rate 
of 18% per annum from the date of accident till the realization of the Claim Amount, for the death of her 
husband, due to a motor accident caused by the Company’s vehicle. The matter is pending in the Tribunal.

b. MVC No. 2321/2016 in the matter between M.A. Bicchunnavar v. the Company before the Motor 
Accident Claims Tribunal, Belagavi.

A petition bearing No. 2321/2016 has been filed before the Motor Accidents Claims Tribunal, Belagavi (“The 
Tribunal”) by M.A. Bicchunnavar (“Petitioner”) against the Nikhil Umesh Katti, Managing Director and Ors 
under Section 166 of the Motor Vehicles Act, 1988 for claiming a compensation of �5,00,000 (Rupees Five 
Lakh Only) (“The Claim Amount”) for the physical injury arising out of a motor accident caused by motor 
vehicle of the Company. The matter is pending in the Tribunal.

c. W.M.C No. 15/2016 in the matter between Sunita Waghmare & Anr. v. General Manager of the 
Company & Anr. before the Civil Judge and Workmen Compensation Officer Court, Beed

A suit bearing no. 15/2016 has been filed before Civil Judge and Workmen Compensation Officer Court, Beed 
(“Court”) by Sunita Waghmare (“Applicant”) against the General Manager of the Company for inter-alia 
claiming workman’s compensation amounting to � 6,77,760/- (“Compensation Amount”) along with interest 
at the rate of 12% on the Compensation Amount, for the accidental death of her husband during the course of 
his employment with the Company. The matter is pending before the Court.

3. Litigation involving Tax Liabilities

(i) Direct Tax Liabilities

NIL

(ii) Indirect Taxes Liabilities

Sr. No. Type of Direct Tax No. of Cases Amount in dispute/ demanded (in �)
1. Central Excise 9 1,17,68,501/-

Total 9 1,17,68,501/-

1. Show Cause Notice dated August 05, 2011 bearing No. 10/2011 issued by Superintendent of Central 
Excise, Belgaum Division (“the Superintendent”) to Vishwanath Sugar and Steel Limited (“the 
Company”).

The Superintendent had issued a show cause notice dated August 5, 2011 inter-alia requiring the Company to 
show cause as to why (i) CENVAT credit of � 11,324/- on welding Electrodes availed for the period from July 
2010 to January 2011 by the Company should not be demanded and recovered under Rule 14 of CENVAT 
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Credit Rules, 2004 and (ii) why interest and penalty on the same should not be imposed on the Company. 
Thereafter, the Company filed its reply on August 28, 2011. This matter is currently pending.

2. Show Cause Notice dated January 29, 2008 bearing No. 10/2008 issued by Superintendent of Central 
Excise, Belgaum Division (“the Superintendent”) to Vishwanath Sugar and Steel Limited (“the 
Company”).

The Superintendent had issued a show cause notice dated January 29, 2008 inter-alia requiring the Company 
to show cause as to why (i) CENVAT credit of � 38,94,851/- should not be demanded and recovered under 
Rule 14 of CENVAT Credit Rules, 2004 read with section 11-A of the Central Excise Act, 1994 and (ii) why 
penalty under Rule 15 of the CENVAT on the same should not be imposed on the Company. Thereafter, the 
Company filed its reply on June 05, 2008. This matter is currently pending.

3. Show Cause Notice dated April 29, 2009 bearing No. 14/2009 issued by the Assistant Commissioner of 
Central Excise, Belgaum (“the Commissioner”)  to Vishwanath Sugars Limited (“the Company”).

The Commissioner had issued a Show Cause Notice dated April 29, 2009 bearing No. 14/2009-(AC) (“SCN”) 
to the Company inter alia requiring our Company to show cause as to why (i) Cenvat credit of � 0.28 lakhs (�
27,709) during the period from April 2008 to March 2009 should not be recovered from our Company along 
with interest thereon;  (ii) interest at appropriate rate on the amount as demanded above, should not be 
charged, demanded and recovered under Section 11AB of the Central Excise Act, 1944 and (iii) Penalty under 
Rule 15 of the Cenvat Credit Rules, 2004 should not be imposed on our Company. The Company filed its 
reply vide dated May 19, 2009 inter alia requesting the Assistant Commissioner to vacate the SCN and drop 
the proceedings. This matter is currently pending

4. Show Cause Notice dated April 08, 2008 bearing No. 40/2010 issued by the Additional Commissioner of 
Central Excise to Vishwanath Sugars Limited (“the Company”).

The Additional Commissioner of Central Excise, Belgaum had issued a Show Cause Notice dated April 08, 
2010 bearing No. 40/2010 (“SCN”) to the Company inter alia requiring our Company to show cause as to why 
(i) Cenvat credit of � 17,49,305/- should not be demanded and recovered from the Company under Rule 14 of 
the Cenvat Credit Rules, 2004; (ii) the interest should not be recovered from the Company under Rule 14 of 
the Cenvat Credit Rules, 2004 and (iii) penalty should not be imposed on the Company under Rule 15 of the 
Cenvat Credit Rules, 2004. The Company filed its reply vide dated February 23, 2012 and May 22, 2015 inter 
alia requesting the Assistant Commissioner to vacate the SCN and drop the proceedings. Thereafter, The Joint 
Commissioner of the Central Excise and Customs, Belgaum filed a Corrigendum dated October 14, 2016 inter
alia substituting the words “Additional/Joint Commissioner of Central Excise, Customs and Service Tax, No. 
71, Club Road, Belgaum-590 001” with “The Deputy /Assistant Commissioner of Central Excise, Belgaum 
Division, Belgaum”. This matter is currently pending.

5. Show Cause Notice dated October 17, 2012 bearing No. 37 of 2012 issued by the Assistant 
Commissioner of Central Excise, Belgaum Division to the Company.

The Assistant Commissioner of Central Excise, Belgaum Division had issued a Show Cause Notice ("SCN") 
dated October 17, 2012 inter alia requiring the Company to show cause as to why (i) Cenvat credit of ��
3,12,718/- (Rupees Three Lakhs Twelve Thousand and Seven Hundred and Eighteen only) during the period 
from December 2010 to September 2011 should not be recovered from the Company along with interest 
thereon; and (ii) Penalty under Section Rule 15of the Cenvat Credit Rules, 2004 should not be imposed on the 
Company for these alleged violations. The Company submitted its reply to the aforementioned SCN by a letter 
dated November 30, 2012. The matter is currently pending before the Assistant Commissioner of Central 
Excise, Belgaum.

6. Show Cause Notice dated September 23, 2008 bearing No. 80 of 2008 issued by the Joint Commissioner 
of Central Excise, Belgaum Division to the Company.

The Joint Commissioner of Central Excise and Customs, Belgaum had issued a Show Cause Notice 
("SCN")dated September 23, 2008 inter alia requiring the Company to show cause as to why (i) Cenvat credit 
of � 19,70,728 (Rupees Nineteen Lakhs Seventy Thousand Seven Hundred and Twenty-Eight only) during the 
period from September 2007 to July 2008 should not be demanded and recovered from them along with 
interest thereon; and (ii) Penalty under Rule 15 of the Cenvat Credit Rules, 2004 should not be imposed on the 
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Company for these alleged violations. The Company has submitted its reply to the aforementioned SCN by a 
letter dated June 22, 2009. The matter is currently pending before the Joint Commissioner of Central Excise, 
Belgaum.

7. Show Cause Notice dated October 18, 2012 bearing No. 38 of 2012 issued by the Commissioner of 
Central Excise & Customs, Belgaum to the Company.
The Commissioner of Central Excise & Customs, Belgaum issued a Show Cause Notice dated October 18, 
2012 to the Company to show cause as to why (i) The amount of � 4,87,691/- (ii) a proportionate Cenvat 
Credit to extent of 13.533% involved in production of steam used for generation of electricity and production 
of steam should not be demanded and recovered from the Company and (iii) interest and penalty on the same
should not be imposed on the Company. The company filed a reply on November 30, 2012. The matter is 
currently pending.

8. Show Cause Notice dated January 23, 2018 bearing No. 32 of 2017 issued by the Assistant 
Commissioner of Central Tax, Belgaum Division to the Company.

The Assistant Commissioner of Central Tax, Belgaum Division had issued a Show Cause Notice ("SCN")
dated January 23, 2018 inter alia requiring the Company to show cause as to why (i) an amount of � 40,271 
(Rupees forty thousand two hundred seventy one) during the period from January 2016 to March 2016 should 
not be recovered from the Company along with interest thereon; and (ii) Penalty under Section Rule 25 of the 
Central Excise Rules, 2002 read along with Section 11AC of The Central Excise Act, 1944 should not be 
imposed on the Company for these alleged violations. The Company submitted its reply to the aforementioned 
SCN by a letter dated April 9, 2018. Thereafter, the Assistant Commissioner of Central Excise, Customs and 
Service Tax, Belgaum passed an Order dated May 15, 2018 inter-alia (i) Confirming and ordering the recovery 
of � 40,271; (ii) demanding interest under Section 11AA under Central Excise Act, 1944 (iii) imposing 
penalty of � 5,000/- under Rule 25 of Central Excise Rules, 2002 read with Section 11AC (1) (a) of Central 
Excise Act, 1944.  Thereafter, the Company presented an appeal before the Superintendent CGST and C. Ex 
inter alia praying the Order dated May 15, 2018 be set aside and any other relief be granted. Furthermore, an 
Order in Appeal issued by the Commissioner (Appeals) Central Tax, Belagavi allowed the appeal in their 
favour.

9. Civil Appeal No. 013921-013922 filed by the Commissioner of Central Excise, Belgaum against  the 
Company before the Supreme Court of India (“the Court”)

Vide an Order in Original No. 4/2005 (ADC) dated August 31, 2005, the Commissioner of Central Excise 
inter-alia demanded � 32,73,904/- along with interest and penalties from the Company for wrongly availing 
Cenvat credit in respect of certain items used for construction of steel structure of the factory shed. Thereafter, 
on being aggrieved by the aforesaid Order, the Company filed an appeal bearing No. 322/05-CE before the 
Commissioner (Appeals) of Central Excise inter-alia praying to set aside the aforesaid Order dated August 31, 
2005 and allow the appeal. Subsequently, vide Order in Appeal No. 322/05-CE dated December 09, 2015 by 
which the Commissioner (Appeals) of Central Excise inter-alia upheld the Order in Original No. 4/2005 
(ADC) and rejected the aforesaid appeal. Consequently, the Company filed an Appeal No. E/169/2006 before 
the Customs, Excise, Service Tax Appellate Tribunal, South Zonal Bench, and Bangalore (“CESTAT”) inter-
alia praying to set aside the aforesaid Order in Appeal dated December 09, 2015 and allow the appeal. Vide 
Order dated February 14, 2008, CESTAT allowed the Company’s Appeal. On being aggrieved by the 
aforesaid CESTAT order, the Commissioner of Central Excise, Belgaum filed C.E.A No. 61 of 2008 before 
the Hon’ble Karnataka High Court (“the High Court”). Vide Order dated August 18, 2011, the High Court 
dismissed the aforesaid appeal No. 61 of 2008. Further, on being aggrieved by the High Court Order, the 
Commissioner of Central Excise, Belgaum has filed the aforesaid Civil Appeal No. 013921-013922 before the 
Court inter-alia praying the Court to set aside the Order dated August 18, 2011 and allow the appeal. This 
matter is currently pending.

4. Other Pending Litigations

a. CS (Comm) 646/2018 dated May 29, 2014 filed by M/s Allied Blenders and Distilleries Private Limited 
("the Plaintiff") against (i) Sri Venkateshwara Distilleries and (ii) the Company (“the Defendants”) 
before Delhi High Court  (“the Court”).

An Ordinary Suit dated May 29, 2014 was filed by the Plaintiff before the Court for permanent injunction 
debarring the Defendants from use of the label "Our Choice" wherein the Plaintiff had prayed for a decree of 



Page | 281

permanent injunction in respect of infringement of copyright, infringement of design and for restraining 
passing off along with leave to reserve the right under Order II, Rule 2 of Code of Civil Procedure, 1908. In 
pursuance of the above mentioned prayer, an ex-parte ad interim stay order was passed by the Court as on May 
29, 2014 in the favour of the Plaintiff. Consequently, an application under Order 39, Rule 4 of Code of Civil 
Procedure, 1908 was filed by the Company to vacate the ex parte ad interim stay order passed by the Court 
May 29, 2014. In the interim, the Company adopted a new mark “Your’s Choice” and the Court passed a 
further Order dated September 27, 2017 under which the Company was injuncted from using the mark “Your’s 
Choice”. Further, on February 23, 2018 the aforesaid Ordinary Suit was converted from no. 1769 of 2014 to 
CS (Comm) 646/2018. This matter is currently pending before the Hon’ble Delhi High Court.

b. Miscellaneous Appeal dated September 07, 2018 bearing no. 81 of 2018 filed by Joitba Birje (“the
Plaintiff”) against Nikhil Umesh Katti, Managing Director of the Company and others (“the 
Respondent”) before the Principle Civil Judge and JMFC (“the Court”).

Original Suit bearing No. 1330/ 2015 dated December 02, 2015 was filed by the Jotiba Birje against the 
Respondent for Declaration and Consequential relief of injunction against debarring the Respondent from use 
of the suit property in respect of Survey No. 56-3/1/2 measuring 22 Gunthas 08 Annas situated at Kadoli, 
Belagavi. I.A. was filed under Order XXXIX Rule 1 and 2 of C.P.C dated September 11, 2012 for restraining 
the Respondent from disturbing the possession of the Plaintiffs suit property was rejected. The Plaintiff filed 
an appeal before the Assistant Commissioner against the rejection of the above application filed under the 
RTS appeal No. 1433/2014-15 which was dismissed by the Assistant Commissioner on the ground of delay 
and asked the Plaintiff to approach the civil court to get an appropriate relief vide order dated July 07, 2015. 
However, as on the date of the filing of the I.A. there is no evidence stating the plaintiff to be in possession of 
the said suit property and hence the Court states there is no prima –facie case existed in favour of the Plaintiff 
and therefore the Court vide Order dated July 21, 2018 stated that I.A.NoI filed by the plaintiff under Order 
XXXIX Rule 1 and 22 of C.P.C is rejected with cost of � 100/-. Since, the Original suit filed by the Plaintiff 
was rejected, the Petitioner preferred a Miscellaneous Appeal dated September 07, 2018 against the 
Respondent No. 1 before the Court. This matter is currently pending.  

c. Original Suit dated February 18, 2015 bearing No. 62/2015 filed by Suprita Inamdar (“the Plaintiff”) 
against Vishwaraj Developers a Partnership firm represented by its authorised partner Nikhil Umesh 
Katti (“the Defendant No. 3”) before the Principle Senior Civil Judge and CJM (“the Court”).

Original Suit dated February 18, 2015 bearing No. 62/015 was filed by the Plaintiff before the Court against 
the Defendant No. 3 for relief of Declaration, partition and separate possession in respect of ancestral 
properties, joint family properties and inherited properties. Since, the Defendant No. 3 was not in joint 
possession of the suit schedule properties, the suit was valued at � 1,02,75,000/- (Rupees One Crore two Lakhs 
and Seventy Five Thousand Only) under Section 35(2) of Karnataka Court Fees and Suit Valuation Act being 
the value of the Plaintiff’s share in the suit schedule properties. Therefore, the Plaintiff inter-alia praying to 
the Court to pass a decree, declaring 1/3rd of the share to the Plaintiff in the scheduled properties by way of 
partition and separate possession, by declaring the sale deeds executed by the deceased, wherein Defendant 
No. 3 is not binding on the Plaintiff’s legitimate share, to award the costs of the suit, to grant permission to 
amend the plaint if necessary and to grant any other equitable relief the Plaintiff is found entitled to. This 
matter is currently pending before the Court. 

B. CASES FILED BY OUR COMPANY

1. Litigation Involving Criminal matters

a. Criminal Complaint dated June 12, 2018 bearing No. 567/2018 filed by the Company against Jaganath 
Sitaram Ghule (“the Accused”) before the Court of J.M.F.C, Hukkeri (“the Court”). 

The Company had issued an advance amount to the Accused for transportation of sugar during the harvest 
season of 2017-18. However, the Complainant alleges that the accused failed to transport the sugarcane. 
Therefore, the Complainant requested the Accused to return the advance amount issued by the Company. On 
March 21, 2018, the Accused issued a cheque to the Company for the advance amount of � 10,98,959/- (“the 
Cheque Amount”) which was returned by the bank on account of insufficient funds. Subsequently, the 
Company issued a legal notice dated April 26, 2018 to the Accused requiring the Accused to pay � 10,98,959/-
at the earliest. Upon receiving no response from the Accused, the Complainant filed the aforesaid Criminal 
Complaint bearing No. 567/2018 before the Court inter-alia praying that the Court direct the Accused to pay 



Page | 282

the Cheque Amount at the earliest and be penalized for an amount which is double cheque Amount. This 
matter is currently pending. 

b. Criminal Complaint dated June 12, 2018 bearing No. 568/2018 filed by the Company against Ashok 
Vaman Javale (“the Accused”) before the Court of J.M.F.C, Hukkeri (“the Court”).

The Company had issued an advance amount to the Accused for transportation of sugar during the harvest 
season of 2017-18. However, the Complainant alleges that the accused failed to transport the sugarcane. 
Therefore, the Complainant requested the Accused to return the advance amount issued by the Company. On 
March 21, 2018, the Accused issued a cheque to the Company for the advance amount of � 3,28,652/- (“the 
Cheque Amount”) which was returned by the bank on account of insufficient funds. Subsequently, the 
Company issued a legal notice dated April 26, 2018 to the Accused requiring the Accused to pay � 3,28,652/-
at the earliest. Upon receiving no response from the Accused, the Complainant filed the aforesaid Criminal
Complaint bearing No. 87/2018 before the Court inter-alia praying that the Court direct the Accused to pay 
the Cheque Amount at the earliest and be penalized for an amount which is double cheque Amount. This 
matter is currently pending. 

c. Criminal Complaint dated June 13, 2018 bearing No.574/2018 filed by the Company against Laxman 
Manashing Pawar (“the Accused”) before the Court of J.M.F.C, Hukkeri (“the Court”).

The Company had issued an advance amount to the Accused for transportation of sugar during the harvest 
season of 2017-18. However, the Complainant alleges that the accused failed to transport the sugarcane. 
Therefore, the Complainant requested the Accused to return the advance amount issued by the Company. On 
March 21, 2018, the Accused issued a cheque to the Company for the advance amount of � 5,49,479/- (“the 
Cheque Amount”) which was returned by the bank on account of insufficient funds. Subsequently, the 
Company issued a legal notice dated April 26, 2018 to the Accused requiring the Accused to pay � 5,49,479/-
at the earliest. Upon receiving no response from the Accused, the Complainant filed the aforesaid Criminal
Complaint bearing No. 574/2018 before the Court inter-alia praying that the Court direct the Accused to pay 
the Cheque Amount at the earliest and be penalized for an amount which is double cheque Amount. This 
matter is currently pending. 

d. Criminal Complaint dated June 13, 2018 bearing No. 575/2018 filed by the Company against Devidas 
Dhanasing Jadhav (“the Accused”) before the Court of J.M.F.C, Hukkeri (“the Court”).

The Company had issued an advance amount to the Accused for transportation of sugar during the harvest 
season of 2017-18. However, the Complainant alleges that the accused failed to transport the sugarcane. 
Therefore, the Complainant requested the Accused to return the advance amount issued by the Company. On 
March 21, 2018, the Accused issued a cheque to the Company for the advance amount of � 5,49,479/- (“the 
Cheque Amount”) which was returned by the bank on account of insufficient funds. Subsequently, the 
Company issued a legal notice dated April 26, 2018 to the Accused requiring the Accused to pay � 5,49,479/-
at the earliest. Upon receiving no response from the Accused, the Complainant filed the aforesaid Criminal
Complaint bearing No. 575/2018 before the Court inter-alia praying that the Court direct the Accused to pay 
the Cheque Amount at the earliest and be penalized for an amount which is double cheque Amount. This 
matter is currently pending. 

e. Criminal Complaint dated June 13, 2018 bearing No. 576/2018 filed by the Company against Tanaji 
Shymarao Pawar (“the Accused”) before the Court of J.M.F.C, Hukkeri (“the Court”).

The Company had issued an advance amount to the Accused for transportation of sugar during the harvest 
season of 2017-18. However, the Complainant alleges that the accused failed to transport the sugarcane. 
Therefore, the Complainant requested the Accused to return the advance amount issued by the Company. On 
March 21, 2018, the Accused issued a cheque to the Company for the advance amount of � 5,49,479/- (“the 
Cheque Amount”) which was returned by the bank on account of insufficient funds. Subsequently, the 
Company issued a legal notice dated April 26, 2018 to the Accused requiring the Accused to pay � 5,49,479/-
at the earliest. Upon receiving no response from the Accused, the Complainant filed the aforesaid Criminal
Complaint bearing No. 576/2018 before the Court inter-alia praying that the Court direct the Accused to pay 
the Cheque Amount at the earliest and be penalized for an amount which is double cheque Amount. This 
matter is currently pending. 
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f. Criminal Complaint dated June 13, 2018 bearing No. 578/2018 filed by the Company against Ramadhan 
Ashokrao Chate (“the Accused”) before the Court of J.M.F.C, Hukkeri (“the Court”).

The Company had issued an advance amount to the Accused for transportation of sugar during the harvest 
season of 2017-18. However, the Complainant alleges that the accused failed to transport the sugarcane. 
Therefore, the Complainant requested the Accused to return the advance amount issued by the Company. On 
March 21, 2018, the Accused issued 3 cheques to the Company for the total advance amount of � 1,11,449/-
(“the Cheque Amount”) which was returned by the bank on account of insufficient funds. Subsequently, the 
Company issued a legal notice dated April 26, 2018 to the Accused requiring the Accused to pay � 1,11,449/-
at the earliest. Upon receiving no response from the Accused, the Complainant filed the aforesaid Criminal
Complaint bearing No. 578/2018 before the Court inter-alia praying that the Court direct the Accused to pay 
the Cheque Amount at the earliest and be penalized for an amount which is double cheque Amount. This 
matter is currently pending. 

g. Criminal Complaint dated November 24, 2018 bearing No. 36/2019 filed by the Company against 
Venkati Narayan Gopalagare (“the Accused”) before the Court of J.M.F.C, Hukkeri (“the Court”).

The Company had issued an advance amount to the Accused for transportation of sugar during the harvest 
season of 2016-17. However, the Complainant alleges that the accused failed to transport the sugarcane. 
Therefore, the Complainant requested the Accused to return the advance amount issued by the Company. On 
September 07, 2018, the Accused issued a cheque to the Company for the advance amount of � 2,68,722/-
(“the Cheque Amount”) which was returned by the bank on account of insufficient funds. Subsequently, the 
Company issued a legal notice dated October 09, 2018 to the Accused requiring the Accused to pay �
2,68,722/- at the earliest. Upon receiving no response from the Accused, the Complainant filed the aforesaid 
Criminal Complaint bearing No. 190/2018 before the Court inter-alia praying that the Court direct the 
Accused to pay the Cheque Amount at the earliest and be penalized for an amount which is double cheque 
Amount. This matter is currently pending. 

h. Criminal Complaint dated November 24, 2018 bearing No. 37/2019 filed by the Company against 
Bhagawant Bhagawan Gore (“the Accused”) before the Court of J.M.F.C, Hukkeri (“the Court”).

The Company had issued an advance amount to the Accused for transportation of sugar during the harvest 
season of 2016-17. However, the Complainant alleges that the accused failed to transport the sugarcane. 
Therefore, the Complainant requested the Accused to return the advance amount issued by the Company. On 
September 07, 2018, the Accused issued a cheque to the Company for the advance amount of � 4,19,096/-
(“the Cheque Amount”) which was returned by the bank on account of insufficient funds. Subsequently, the 
Company issued a legal notice dated October 09, 2018 to the Accused requiring the Accused to pay �
4,19,096/- at the earliest. Upon receiving no response from the Accused, the Complainant filed the aforesaid 
Criminal Complaint bearing No. 37/2019 before the Court inter-alia praying that the Court direct the 
Accused to pay the Cheque Amount at the earliest and be penalized for an amount which is double cheque 
Amount. This matter is currently pending. Note: 37/19

i. Criminal Complaint dated June 13, 2018 bearing No. 579/2018 filed by the Company against 
Uttareshwar Mahadev Lad (“the Accused”) before the Court of J.M.F.C, Hukkeri (“the Court”).

The Company had issued an advance amount to the Accused for transportation of sugar during the harvest 
season of 2017-18. However, the Complainant alleges that the accused failed to transport the sugarcane. 
Therefore, the Complainant requested the Accused to return the advance amount issued by the Company. On 
March 21, 2018, the Accused issued a cheque to the Company for the advance amount of � 1,11,449/- (“the 
Cheque Amount”) which was returned by the bank on account of insufficient funds. Subsequently, the 
Company issued a legal notice dated April 26, 2018 to the Accused requiring the Accused to pay � 1,11,449/-
at the earliest. Upon receiving no response from the Accused, the Complainant filed the aforesaid Criminal
Complaint bearing No. 579/2018 before the Court inter-alia praying that the Court direct the Accused to pay 
the Cheque Amount at the earliest and be penalized for an amount which is double cheque Amount. This 
matter is currently pending. 
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j. Criminal Revision Petition bearing No. 47/2017 filed by against Bhimasen Sabu Pujeri (“Accused”) 
before the Court of Hon’ble Principle District and Sessions Judge, Belgavi, Belgavi (“the Court”).

The Company has filed a Criminal Revision Petition bearing no. 47/2017 before the Court against the Accused 
on being aggrieved by the Order passed by Hon’ble J.M.F.C. Court, Sankeshwar in Private Compliant bearing 
no. 19/2015 dated July 21, 2016 under Section 397 of the Criminal Procedure Code, 1973 whereby the 
Hon’ble J.MF.C. Court Sankeshwar dismissed the Private Complaint no. 19 of 2015 for non – prosecution. 
The Company vide this aforesaid Criminal Revision Petition bearing no. 47/2017 inter-alia prays that the 
Court be pleased to set aside the Order passed by Hon’ble J.M.F.C. Court, Sankeshwar and allow this 
Criminal Revision Petition. This matter is currently pending. 

k. Private Complaint bearing No. 15/2016 filed by the Company (“the Complainant”) against Pralhad 
Chandrakant Bhondave (“the Accused”) before the Court of J.M.F.C, Hukkeri (“the Court”).

The Company had issued an advance amount to the Accused for transportation of sugar during the harvest 
season of 2012-2013. However, the Complainant alleges that the accused failed to transport the sugarcane. 
Therefore, the Complainant requested the Accused to return the advance amount issued by the Company. 
Thereafter, the Accused issued a cheque to the Company for the advance amount of � 2,66,796/- (“the 
Cheque Amount”) which was returned by the bank on account of insufficient funds. Subsequently, the 
Company issued a legal notice dated October 8, 2013 to the Accused requiring the Accused to pay �
2,66,796/- at the earliest. Upon receiving no response from the Accused, the Complainant filed the aforesaid 
Private Complaint bearing No. 15/2016 before the Court inter-alia praying that the Court direct the Accused to 
pay the Cheque Amount at the earliest and be penalized for an amount which is double cheque Amount. This 
matter is currently pending. 

l. Criminal Complaint dated November 21, 2018 bearing No. 52/2019 filed by the Company (the 
“Complainant”) against Shri. Bharat Ashruba Jadhav (“the Accused”) before the Court of J.M.F.C, 
Hukkeri (“the Court”).  

The Accused had executed an agreement bond with respect to the transportation and harvesting of sugarcane 
to the Complainant factory for the harvest season 2016-2017 and the Complainant had issued an advance 
amount for the same. However, the Complainant alleges that the Accused failed to transport the sugarcane and 
hence committing a breach of contract. Hence the Complainant requested the Accused to return the advance 
amount and interest amounting to � 4,19,096/- However, the cheque issued in this respect by the Complainant
bearing cheque no. 513588 was dishonored due to insufficient funds. Inter-alia the cause of action arose when 
the legal notice dated October 9, 2018 was sent to the Accused and he failed to pay the Complainant issued a 
legal notice dated October 9, 2018 and he failed to pay the cheque amount within the stipulated time period 
mentioned. Hence the aforesaid complaint was filed by the Complainant inter-alia praying that the accused 
had committed an offence u/s. 138 of Negotiable Instrument Act and hence the accused shall be penalized for 
double the amount of cheque and out of the penalty amount to be paid to the complainant society along with 
collection charges and an devotes fees of � 3000/- and other expenses. 

m. Criminal Complaint dated November 28, 2018 bearing No. 51/2019 filed by the Company (the 
“Complainant”) against Shri. Sitaram Shankar Jogdand (“the Accused”) before the Court of J.M.F.C, 
Hukkeri (“the Court”).  

The Accused had executed an agreement bond with respect to the transportation and harvesting of sugarcane 
to the Complainant factory for the harvest season 2016-2017 and the Complainant had issued an advance 
amount for the same. However, the Complainant alleges that the Accused failed to transport the sugarcane and 
hence committing a breach of contract. Hence the Complainant requested the Accused to return the advance 
amount and interest amounting to � 4,19,096/- However, the cheque issued in this respect by the Complainant 
bearing cheque no. 000003 was dishonored due to insufficient funds. Inter-alia the cause of action arose when 
the legal notice dated October 9, 2018 was sent to the Accused and he failed to pay the Complainant issued a 
legal notice dated October 9, 2018 which was allegedly not received and he failed to pay the cheque amount 
within the stipulated time period mentioned. Hence the aforesaid complaint was filed by the Complainant 
inter-alia praying that the accused had committed an offence u/s. 138 of Negotiable Instrument Act and hence 
the accused shall be penalized for double the amount of cheque and out of the penalty amount to be paid to the 
complainant society along with collection charges and an devotes fees of � 3000/- and other expenses. 
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n. Criminal Complaint dated November 28 bearing No. 50/2019 filed by the Company (the 
“Complainant”) against Shri. Parameshwar Bahusaheb Mengade (“the Accused”) before the Court of 
J.M.F.C, Hukkeri (“the Court”).  

The Accused had executed an agreement bond with respect to the transportation and harvesting of sugarcane 
to the Complainant factory for the harvest season 2016-2017 and the Complainant had issued an advance 
amount for the same. However, the Complainant alleges that the Accused failed to transport the sugarcane and 
hence committing a breach of contract. Hence the Complainant requested the Accused to return the advance 
amount and interest amounting to � 4,19,096/- However, the cheque issued in this respect by the Complainant 
bearing cheque no. 138199 was dishonored due to insufficient funds. Inter-alia the cause of action arose when 
the legal notice dated October 9, 2018 was sent to the Accused and he failed to pay the Complainant issued a 
legal notice dated October 9, 2018 which was allegedly not received and he failed to pay the cheque amount 
within the stipulated time period mentioned. Hence the aforesaid complaint was filed by the Complainant 
inter-alia praying that the accused had committed an offence u/s. 138 of Negotiable Instrument Act and hence 
the accused shall be penalized for double the amount of cheque and out of the penalty amount to be paid to the 
complainant society along with collection charges and an devotes fees of � 3000/- and other expenses.

o. Criminal Complaint dated November 24, 2018 bearing No. 42/2019 filed by the Company (the 
“Complainant”) against Shri. Bhausaheb Tulsiram Bhavar (“the Accused”) before the Court of 
J.M.F.C, Hukkeri (“the Court”).  

The Accused had executed an agreement bond with respect to the transportation and harvesting of sugarcane 
to the Complainant factory for the harvest season 2016-2017 and the Complainant had issued an advance 
amount for the same. However, the Complainant alleges that the Accused failed to transport the sugarcane and 
hence committing a breach of contract. Hence the Complainant requested the Accused to return the advance 
amount and interest amounting to � 8,38,192/- However, the cheque issued in this respect by the Complainant 
bearing cheque no. 998372 was dishonored due to insufficient funds. Inter-alia the cause of action arose when 
the legal notice dated October 9, 2018 was sent to the Accused and he failed to pay the cheque amount within 
the stipulated time period mentioned in the legal notice. Hence the aforesaid complaint was filed by the 
Complainant inter-alia praying that the accused had committed an offence u/s. 138 of Negotiable Instrument 
Act and hence the accused shall be penalized for double the amount of cheque and out of the penalty amount 
to be paid to the complainant society along with collection charges and an devotes fees of � 3,000/- and other 
expenses.

p. Criminal Complaint dated November 28, 2018 bearing No. 49/2019 filed by the Company (the 
“Complainant”) against Shri. Padurang Baliram Das (“the Accused”) before the Court of J.M.F.C, 
Hukkeri (“the Court”).  

The Accused had executed an agreement bond with respect to the transportation and harvesting of sugarcane 
to the Complainant factory for the harvest season 2016-2017 and the Complainant had issued an advance 
amount for the same. However, the Complainant alleges that the Accused failed to transport the sugarcane and 
hence committing a breach of contract. Hence the Complainant requested the Accused to return the advance 
amount and interest amounting to � 8,38,192/- However, the cheque issued in this respect by the Complainant 
bearing cheque no. 193341 was dishonored due to insufficient funds. Inter-alia the cause of action arose when 
a legal notice dated October 9, 2018 was sent to the Accused and he failed to pay the cheque amount within 
the stipulated time period mentioned in the legal notice and neither was there any reply. Hence the aforesaid 
complaint was filed by the Complainant inter-alia praying that the accused had committed an offence u/s. 138 
of Negotiable Instrument Act and hence the accused shall be penalized for double the amount of cheque and 
out of the penalty amount to be paid to the complainant society along with collection charges and an devotes 
fees of � 3,000/- and other expenses.

q. Criminal Complaint dated December 12, 2018 bearing No. 43/2019 filed by the Company (the 
“Complainant”) against Shri. Shivaji Tulsiram Shinde and Bhagavat Bajaguli Patardi (“the Accused”) 
before the Court of J.M.F.C, Hukkeri (“the Court”). 

The Accused had executed an agreement bond with respect to the transportation and harvesting of sugarcane 
to the Complainant factory for the harvest season 2017-18 and the Complainant had issued an advance amount 
for the same. However, the Complainant alleges that the Accused failed to transport the sugarcane and hence 
committing a breach of contract. Hence the Complainant requested the Accused to return the advance amount 
and interest amounting to � 51,33,992/-. However, the cheque issued in this respect by the Complainant was 
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dishonored due to insufficient funds. Inter-alia the cause of action arose when a legal notice dated November 
2, 2018 was sent to the Accused and he failed to pay the cheque amount within the stipulated time period 
mentioned in the legal notice and neither was there any reply. Hence the aforesaid complaint was filed by the 
Complainant inter-alia praying that the accused had committed an offence u/s. 138 of Negotiable Instrument 
Act and hence the accused shall be penalized for double the amount of cheque and out of the penalty amount 
to be paid to the complainant society along with collection charges and an devotes fees of � 3,000/- and other 
expenses. 

r. Criminal Complaint dated November 27, 2018 bearing No. 41/2019 filed by the Company (the 
“Complainant”) against Shri. Chhagan Elarnath Kshirasagar (“the Accused”) before the Court of 
J.M.F.C, Hukkeri (“the Court”).  

The Accused had executed an agreement bond with respect to the transportation and harvesting of sugarcane 
to the Complainant factory for the harvest season 2016-17 and the Complainant had issued an advance amount 
for the same. However, the Complainant alleges that the Accused failed to transport the sugarcane and hence 
committing a breach of contract. Hence the Complainant requested the Accused to return the advance amount 
and interest amounting to � 2,14,879/-. However, the cheque issued in this respect by the Complainant bearing 
cheque no. 053189 was dishonored due to insufficient funds. Inter-alia the cause of action arose when a legal 
notice dated November 2, 2018 was sent to the Accused and he failed to pay the cheque amount within the 
stipulated time period mentioned in the legal notice and neither was there any reply. Hence the aforesaid 
complaint was filed by the Complainant inter-alia praying that the accused had committed an offence u/s. 138 
of Negotiable Instrument Act and hence the accused shall be penalized for double the amount of cheque and 
out of the penalty amount to be paid to the complainant society along with collection charges and an devotes 
fees of � 3,000/- and other expenses.

s. Criminal Complaint dated November 27, 2018 bearing No. 40/2019 filed by the Company (the 
“Complainant”) against Shri. Janardhan Bhagawan Tonde (“the Accused”) before the Court of 
J.M.F.C, Hukkeri (“the Court”).  

The Accused had executed an agreement bond with respect to the transportation and harvesting of sugarcane 
to the Complainant factory for the harvest season 2016-17 and the Complainant had issued an advance amount 
for the same. However, the Complainant alleges that the Accused failed to transport the sugarcane and hence 
committing a breach of contract. Hence the Complainant requested the Accused to return the advance amount 
and interest amounting to � 4,19,096/-. However, the cheque issued in this respect by the Complainant bearing 
cheque no. 003746 was dishonored due to insufficient funds. Inter-alia the cause of action arose when a legal 
notice dated October 9, 2018 was sent to the Accused and he failed to pay the cheque amount within the 
stipulated time period mentioned in the legal notice. Hence the aforesaid complaint was filed by the 
Complainant inter-alia praying that the accused had committed an offence u/s. 138 of Negotiable Instrument 
Act and hence the accused shall be penalized for double the amount of cheque and out of the penalty amount 
to be paid to the complainant society along with collection charges and an devotes fees of � 3,000/- and other 
expenses.

t. Criminal Complaint dated November 27, 2018 bearing No. 39/2019 filed by the Company (the 
“Complainant”) against Shri. Rajabahu Sopanarao Soundaramal (“the Accused”) before the Court of 
J.M.F.C, Hukkeri (“the Court”).  

The Accused had executed an agreement bond with respect to the transportation and harvesting of sugarcane 
to the Complainant factory for the harvest season 2016-2017 and the Complainant had issued an advance 
amount for the same. However, the Complainant alleges that the Accused failed to transport the sugarcane and 
hence committing a breach of contract. Hence the Complainant requested the Accused to return the advance 
amount and interest amounting to � 2,67,689/-. However, the cheque issued in this respect by the Complainant 
bearing cheque no. 000028 was dishonored due to insufficient funds. Inter-alia the cause of action arose when 
a legal notice dated October 9, 2018 was sent to the Accused and he failed to pay the cheque amount within 
the stipulated time period mentioned in the legal notice. Hence the aforesaid complaint was filed by the 
Complainant inter-alia praying that the accused had committed an offence u/s. 138 of Negotiable Instrument 
Act and hence the accused shall be penalized for double the amount of cheque and out of the penalty amount 
to be paid to the complainant society along with collection charges and an devotes fees of � 3,000/- and other 
expenses. 
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u. Criminal Complaint dated November 27, 2018 bearing No. 38/2019 filed by the Company (the 
“Complainant”) against Shri. Rajebhau Dnyanoba Tidke (“the Accused”) before the Court of J.M.F.C, 
Hukkeri (“the Court”).  

The Accused had executed an agreement bond with respect to the transportation and harvesting of sugarcane 
to the Complainant factory for the harvest season 2016-17 and the Complainant had issued an advance amount 
for the same. However, the Complainant alleges that the Accused failed to transport the sugarcane and hence 
committing a breach of contract. Hence the Complainant requested the Accused to return the advance amount 
and interest amounting to � 2,83,540. However, the cheque issued by the Accused in this respect to the 
Complainant bearing cheque no. 596613 was bounced and returned unencashed with an endorsement that 
“payment stopped by Drawer” vide intimation date September 18, 2018. Inter-alia the cause of action arose 
when a legal notice dated October 9, 2018 was sent to the Accused and he failed to pay the cheque amount 
within the stipulated time period mentioned in the legal notice. Hence the aforesaid complaint was filed by the 
Complainant inter-alia praying that the accused had committed an offence u/s. 138 of Negotiable Instrument 
Act and hence the accused shall be penalized for double the amount of cheque and out of the penalty amount 
to be paid to the complainant society along with collection charges and an devotes fees of � 3,000/- and other 
expenses.

v. Criminal Complaint bearing No. 554/2018 filed by the Company (“the Complainant”) against Amit 
Shrirang Shinde (“the Accused”) before the Court of J.M.F.C, Hukkeri (“the Court”). 

The Company had issued an advance amount to the Accused for transportation of sugar during the harvest 
season of 2017-2018. However, the Complainant alleges that the accused failed to transport the sugarcane. 
Therefore, the Complainant requested the Accused to return the advance amount issued by the Company. On 
March 21, 2018, the Accused issued a cheque to the Company for the advance amount (including added 
interest) of � 7 49,905/- (“the Cheque Amount”) which was returned by the bank on account of insufficient 
funds. Subsequently, the Company issued a legal notice dated April 26, 2018 to the Accused requiring the 
Accused to pay � 7,49,905/- at the earliest. Upon receiving no response from the Accused, the Complainant 
filed the aforesaid Criminal Complaint bearing No. 554/2018 before the Court inter-alia praying that the Court 
direct the Accused to pay the Cheque Amount at the earliest and be penalized for an amount which is double 
cheque Amount. This matter is currently pending.

w. Criminal Complaint bearing No. 566/2018 filed by the Company (“the Complainant”) against Ankush 
Vilas Gosavi (“the Accused”) before the Court of J.M.F.C, Hukkeri (“the Court”). 

The Company had issued an advance amount to the Accused for transportation of sugar during the harvest 
season of 2017-2018. However, the Complainant alleges that the accused failed to transport the sugarcane. 
Therefore, the Complainant requested the Accused to return the advance amount issued by the Company. On 
March 21, 2018, the Accused issued a cheque to the Company for the advance amount (including added 
interest) of � 4,77,818/- (“the Cheque Amount”) which was returned by the bank on account of insufficient 
funds. Subsequently, the Company issued a legal notice dated April 26, 2018 to the Accused requiring the 
Accused to pay � 4,77,818/- at the earliest. Upon receiving no response from the Accused, the Complainant 
filed the aforesaid Criminal Complaint bearing No. 566/2018 before the Court inter-alia praying that the Court 
direct the Accused to pay the Cheque Amount at the earliest and be penalized for an amount which is double 
cheque Amount. This matter is currently pending.

x. Criminal Complaint bearing No. 565/2018 filed by the Company (“the Complainant”) against Baluhari 
Shirpati Naikwada (“the Accused”) before the Court of J.M.F.C, Hukkeri (“the Court”).  

The Company had issued an advance amount to the Accused for transportation of sugar during the harvest 
season of 2017-2018. However, the Complainant alleges that the accused failed to transport the sugarcane. 
Therefore, the Complainant requested the Accused to return the advance amount issued by the Company. On 
March 21, 2018, the Accused issued a cheque to the Company for the advance amount (including added 
interest) of � 3,29,688/- (“the Cheque Amount”)which was returned by the bank on account of insufficient 
funds. Subsequently, the Company issued a legal notice dated April 26, 2018 to the Accused requiring the 
Accused to pay � 3,29,688/- at the earliest. Upon receiving no response from the Accused, the Complainant 
filed the aforesaid Criminal Complaint bearing No. 565/2018 before the Court inter-alia praying that the Court 
direct the Accused to pay the Cheque Amount at the earliest and be penalized for an amount which is double 
cheque Amount. This matter is currently pending.
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y. Criminal Complaint bearing No. 556/2018 filed the Company (“the Complainant”) against Bhimrao 
Damodar Thonde (“the Accused”) before the Court of J.M.F.C, Hukkeri (“the Court”). 

The Company had issued an advance amount to the Accused for transportation of sugar during the harvest 
season of 2017-2018. However, the Complainant alleges that the accused failed to transport the sugarcane. 
Therefore, the Complainant requested the Accused to return the advance amount issued by the Company. On 
March 21, 2018, the Accused issued a cheque to the Company for the advance amount (including added 
interest) of � 4,39, 584/- (“the Cheque Amount”)which was returned by the bank on account of insufficient 
funds. Subsequently, the Company issued a legal notice dated April 26, 2018 to the Accused requiring the 
Accused to pay � 4,39, 584/- at the earliest. Upon receiving no response from the Accused, the Complainant 
filed the aforesaid Criminal Complaint bearing No. 556/2018 before the Court inter-alia praying that the Court 
direct the Accused to pay the Cheque Amount at the earliest and be penalized for an amount which is double 
cheque Amount. This matter is currently pending.

z. Criminal Complaint bearing No. 555/2018 filed by the Company (“the Complainant”) against Mahadev 
Baban Bade (“the Accused”) before the Court of J.M.F.C, Hukkeri (“the Court”).  

The Company had issued an advance amount to the Accused for transportation of sugar during the harvest 
season of 2017-2018. However, the Complainant alleges that the accused failed to transport the sugarcane. 
Therefore, the Complainant requested the Accused to return the advance amount issued by the Company. On 
March 21, 2018, the Accused issued a cheque to the Company for the advance amount (including added 
interest) of � 2,69, 041/- (“the Cheque Amount”) which was returned by the bank on account of insufficient 
funds. Subsequently, the Company issued a legal notice dated April 26, 2018 to the Accused requiring the 
Accused to pay � 2,69,041/- at the earliest. Upon receiving no response from the Accused, the Complainant 
filed the aforesaid Criminal Complaint bearing No.555/2018 before the Court inter-alia praying that the Court 
direct the Accused to pay the Cheque Amount at the earliest and be penalized for an amount which is double 
cheque Amount. This matter is currently pending.

aa. Criminal Complaint bearing No. 557/2018 filed by the Company (“the Complainant”) against Namdev 
Ramabahu Walekar (“the Accused”) before the Court of J.M.F.C, Hukkeri (“the Court”). 

The Company had issued an advance amount to the Accused for transportation of sugar during the harvest 
season of 2017-2018. However, the Complainant alleges that the accused failed to transport the sugarcane. 
Therefore, the Complainant requested the Accused to return the advance amount issued by the Company. On 
March 21, 2018, the Accused issued a cheque to the Company for the advance amount (including added 
interest) of � 5,03,852/- (“the Cheque Amount”) which was returned by the bank on account of insufficient 
funds. Subsequently, the Company issued a legal notice dated April 26, 2018 to the Accused requiring the 
Accused to pay � 5,03,852/- at the earliest. Upon receiving no response from the Accused, the Complainant 
filed the aforesaid Criminal Complaint bearing No. 557/2018 before the Court inter-alia praying that the Court 
direct the Accused to pay the Cheque Amount at the earliest and be penalized for an amount which is double 
cheque Amount. This matter is currently pending.

bb. Criminal Complaint bearing No. 477/2018 filed by the Company (“the Complainant”) against 
Shatrugna Shiranga Gidde (“the Accused”) before the Court of J.M.F.C, Hukkeri (“the Court”). 

The Company had issued an advance amount to the Accused for transportation of sugar during the harvest 
season of 2017-2018. However, the Complainant alleges that the accused failed to transport the sugarcane. 
Therefore, the Complainant requested the Accused to return the advance amount issued by the Company. On 
March 21, 2018, the Accused issued a cheque to the Company for the advance amount (including added 
interest) of � 16,21,685/- (“the Cheque Amount”) which was returned by the bank on account of insufficient 
funds. Subsequently, the Company issued a legal notice dated April 26, 2018 to the Accused requiring the 
Accused to pay � 7,49,905/- at the earliest. Upon receiving no response from the Accused, the Complainant 
filed the aforesaid Criminal Complaint bearing No. 477/2018 before the Court inter-alia praying that the Court 
direct the Accused to pay the Cheque Amount at the earliest and be penalized for an amount which is double 
cheque Amount. This matter is currently pending.
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cc. Criminal Complaint bearing No. 564/2018 filed by the Company (“the Complainant”) against Sadashiv 
Mahadev Bade (“the Accused”) before the Court of J.M.F.C, Hukkeri (“the Court”). 

The Company had issued an advance amount to the Accused for transportation of sugar during the harvest 
season of 2017-2018. However, the Complainant alleges that the accused failed to transport the sugarcane. 
Therefore, the Complainant requested the Accused to return the advance amount issued by the Company. On 
March 21, 2018, the Accused issued a cheque to the Company for the advance amount (including added 
interest) of � 3,92,170/- (“the Cheque Amount”) which was returned by the bank on account of insufficient 
funds. Subsequently, the Company issued a legal notice dated April 26, 2018 to the Accused requiring the 
Accused to pay � 3,92,170/- at the earliest. Upon receiving no response from the Accused, the Complainant 
filed the aforesaid Criminal Complaint bearing No. 564/2018 before the Court inter-alia praying that the Court 
direct the Accused to pay the Cheque Amount at the earliest and be penalized for an amount which is double 
cheque Amount. This matter is currently pending.

dd. Criminal Complaint bearing No. 478/2018 filed by the Company (“the Complainant”) against Sugreev 
Manik Karad (“the Accused”) before the Court of J.M.F.C, Hukkeri (“the Court”). 

The Company had issued an advance amount to the Accused for transportation of sugar during the harvest 
season of 2017-2018. However, the Complainant alleges that the accused failed to transport the sugarcane. 
Therefore, the Complainant requested the Accused to return the advance amount issued by the Company. On 
March 21, 2018, the Accused issued a cheque to the Company for the advance amount (including added 
interest) of � 21,97,918/- (“the Cheque Amount”) which was returned by the bank on account of insufficient 
funds. Subsequently, the Company issued a legal notice dated April 26, 2018 to the Accused requiring the 
Accused to pay � 21,97,918/- at the earliest. Upon receiving no response from the Accused, the Complainant 
filed the aforesaid Criminal Complaint bearing No. 478/2018 before the Court inter-alia praying that the Court 
direct the Accused to pay the Cheque Amount at the earliest and be penalized for an amount which is double 
cheque Amount. This matter is currently pending.

ee. Criminal Complaint bearing No. 563/2018 filed by the Company (“the Complainant”) against Shahu 
Vaijinath Bade (“the Accused”) before the Court of J.M.F.C, Hukkeri (“the Court”).  

The Company had issued an advance amount to the Accused for transportation of sugar during the harvest 
season of 2017-2018. However, the Complainant alleges that the accused failed to transport the sugarcane. 
Therefore, the Complainant requested the Accused to return the advance amount issued by the Company. On 
March 21, 2018, the Accused issued a cheque to the Company for the advance amount (including added 
interest) of � 5,49,479/- (“the Cheque Amount”)which was returned by the bank on account of insufficient 
funds. Subsequently, the Company issued a legal notice dated April 26, 2018 to the Accused requiring the 
Accused to pay � 5,49,479/- at the earliest. Upon receiving no response from the Accused, the Complainant 
filed the aforesaid Criminal Complaint bearing No. 563/2018 before the Court inter-alia praying that the Court 
direct the Accused to pay the Cheque Amount at the earliest and be penalized for an amount which is double 
cheque Amount. This matter is currently pending.

ff. Criminal Complaint bearing No. 586 of 2015 filed by the Company (“the Complainant”) against Dattu 
Bhutali Pujeri (“Accused”) before the Court of the Civil Judge and JMFC Hukkeri, Hukkeri (“the
Court”).

Mr. Nikhil Umesh Katti filed a Criminal Complaint bearing No. 586 of 2015 before the Court of the Civil 
Judge and JMFC Hukkeri, Hukkeri against the Accused under Section 138 of the Negotiable Instruments Act, 
1881 for the dishonour of cheque bearing number 005961 dated October 8, 2013 amounting to � 5,06,323.29/-
(“the said amount”), inter alia praying that the Accused be dealt with in accordance with the law and be 
ordered to pay the said amount as well as penalty extending to double of the said amount. The criminal case is 
currently pending. 

gg. Private Complaint bearing no. 70 of 2016 filed the Company (“Complainant”) against Suresh 
Basavanneppa Gajapati (“Accused”) before the Court of the Civil Judge and JMFC Hukkeri, Hukkeri 
(“the Court”).

The Company had issued an advance amount to the Accused for transportation of sugar during the harvest 
season of 2009-2010. However, the Complainant alleges that the accused failed to transport the sugarcane. 
Therefore, the Complainant requested the Accused to return the advance amount issued by the Company. On 
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May 16, 2016, the Accused issued a cheque to the Company for the advance amount (including added interest) 
of � 1,23,368/- (“the Cheque Amount”) which was returned by the bank on account of insufficient funds. 
Subsequently, the Company issued a legal notice dated June 14, 2016 to the Accused requiring the Accused to 
pay � 1,23,368/- at the earliest. Upon receiving no response from the Accused, the Complainant filed the 
aforesaid Private Complaint bearing No. 70/2016 before the Court inter-alia praying that the Court direct the 
Accused to pay the Cheque Amount at the earliest and be penalized for an amount which is double cheque 
Amount. This matter is currently pending.

hh. Criminal Complaint bearing No. 972 of 2017 filed by the Company (“the Complainant”) against Jyoti 
Kiran Patil (“Accused”) before the Court of the Civil Judge and JMFC Hukkeri, Hukkeri (“the 
Court”).

The Company had issued an advance amount to the Accused for transportation of sugar during the harvest 
season of 2014-2015. However, the Complainant alleges that the accused failed to transport the sugarcane. 
Therefore, the Complainant requested the Accused to return the advance amount issued by the Company. On 
February 03, 2017, the Accused issued a cheque to the Company for the advance amount (including added 
interest) of � 6,85,452/- (“the Cheque Amount”) which was returned by the bank on account of insufficient 
funds. Subsequently, the Company issued a legal notice dated May 11, 2017 to the Accused requiring the 
Accused to pay � 6,85,452/- at the earliest. Upon receiving no response from the Accused, the Complainant 
filed the aforesaid Criminal Complaint bearing No. 972/2017 before the Court inter-alia praying that the Court 
direct the Accused to pay the Cheque Amount at the earliest and be penalized for an amount which is double 
cheque Amount. This matter is currently pending.

ii. Criminal Complaint bearing No. 973 of 2017 filed by the Company (“the Complainant”) against 
Iragouda Kalagouda Patil (“Accused”) before the Court of the Civil Judge and JMFC Hukkeri, 
Hukkeri (“the Court”).

The Company had issued an advance amount to the Accused for transportation of sugar during the harvest 
season of 2014-2015. However, the Complainant alleges that the accused failed to transport the sugarcane. 
Therefore, the Complainant requested the Accused to return the advance amount issued by the Company. On 
February 03, 2017, the Accused issued a cheque to the Company for the advance amount (including added 
interest) of � 4,16,701/- (“the Cheque Amount”) which was returned by the bank on account of insufficient 
funds. Subsequently, the Company issued a legal notice dated May 11, 2017 to the Accused requiring the 
Accused to pay � 4,16,701/- at the earliest. Upon receiving no response from the Accused, the Complainant 
filed the aforesaid Criminal Complaint bearing No. 973/2017 before the Court inter-alia praying that the Court 
direct the Accused to pay the Cheque Amount at the earliest and be penalized for an amount which is double 
cheque Amount. This matter is currently pending.

jj. Criminal Complaint bearing No. 974 of 2017 filed by the Company (“the Complainant”) against 
Mangala Kalagouda Patil  (“Accused”) before the Court of the Civil Judge and JMFC Hukkeri, 
Hukkeri (“the Court”).

The Company had issued an advance amount to the Accused for transportation of sugar during the harvest 
season of 2014-2015. However, the Complainant alleges that the accused failed to transport the sugarcane. 
Therefore, the Complainant requested the Accused to return the advance amount issued by the Company. On 
February 03, 2017, the Accused issued a cheque to the Company for the advance amount (including added 
interest) of � 11,51,378/- (“the Cheque Amount”) which was returned by the bank on account of insufficient 
funds. Subsequently, the Company issued a legal notice dated May 11, 2017 to the Accused requiring the 
Accused to pay � 11,51,378/- at the earliest. Upon receiving no response from the Accused, the Complainant 
filed the aforesaid Criminal Complaint bearing No. 974/2017 before the Court inter-alia praying that the Court 
direct the Accused to pay the Cheque Amount at the earliest and be penalized for an amount which is double 
cheque Amount. This matter is currently pending.

kk. Criminal Complaint bearing No. 1334 of 2017 filed by the Company (“the Complainant”) against 
Pandit Sukhadev Madar  (“Accused”) before the Court of the Civil Judge and JMFC Hukkeri, Hukkeri 
(“the Court”).

The Company had issued an advance amount to the Accused for transportation of sugar during the harvest 
season of 2014-2015. However, the Complainant alleges that the accused failed to transport the sugarcane. 
Therefore, the Complainant requested the Accused to return the advance amount issued by the Company. On 
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April 12, 2016, the Accused issued a cheque to the Company for the advance amount (including added 
interest) of � 4,36,119/- (“the Cheque Amount”) which was returned by the bank on account of insufficient 
funds. Subsequently, the Company issued a legal notice dated April 25, 2016 to the Accused requiring the 
Accused to pay � 4,36,119/- at the earliest. Upon receiving no response from the Accused, the Complainant 
filed the aforesaid Criminal Complaint bearing No. 1334 /2017 before the Court inter-alia praying that the 
Court direct the Accused to pay the Cheque Amount at the earliest and be penalized for an amount which is 
double cheque Amount. This matter is currently pending.

ll. Criminal Complaint bearing No. 1335 of 2017 filed by the Company (“the Complainant”) against 
Dhareppa Mahadev Loni (“Accused”) before the Court of the Civil Judge and JMFC Hukkeri, Hukkeri 
(“the Court”).

The Company had issued an advance amount to the Accused for transportation of sugar during the harvest 
season of 2014-2015. However, the Complainant alleges that the accused failed to transport the sugarcane. 
Therefore, the Complainant requested the Accused to return the advance amount issued by the Company. On 
April 12, 2016, the Accused issued a cheque to the Company for the advance amount (including added 
interest) of � 2,77,898/- (“the Cheque Amount”) which was returned by the bank on account of insufficient 
funds. Subsequently, the Company issued a legal notice dated April 25, 2016 to the Accused requiring the 
Accused to pay � 2,77,898/- at the earliest. Upon receiving no response from the Accused, the Complainant 
filed the aforesaid Criminal Complaint bearing No. 1335/2017 before the Court inter-alia praying that the 
Court direct the Accused to pay the Cheque Amount at the earliest and be penalized for an amount which is 
double cheque Amount. This matter is currently pending.

mm. Criminal Complaint bearing No. 1336 of 2017 filed by the Company (“the Complainant”) 
against Laxman Appasab Patil (“Accused”) before the Court of the Civil Judge and JMFC Hukkeri, 
Hukkeri (“the Court”).

The Company had issued an advance amount to the Accused for transportation of sugar during the harvest 
season of 2009-2010. However, the Complainant alleges that the accused failed to transport the sugarcane. 
Therefore, the Complainant requested the Accused to return the advance amount issued by the Company. On 
April 21, 2016, the Accused issued a cheque to the Company for the advance amount (including added 
interest) of � 1,32,522/- (“the Cheque Amount”) which was returned by the bank on account of insufficient 
funds. Subsequently, the Company issued a legal notice dated May 05, 2016 to the Accused requiring the 
Accused to pay � 1,32,522/- at the earliest. Upon receiving no response from the Accused, the Complainant 
filed the aforesaid Criminal Complaint bearing No. 1336/2017 before the Court inter-alia praying that the 
Court direct the Accused to pay the Cheque Amount at the earliest and be penalized for an amount which is 
double cheque Amount. This matter is currently pending.

2. Litigation Involving Actions by Statutory/Regulatory Authorities

a. Ordinary Petition bearing No. 62 of 2016 filed by the Company against Bangalore Electricity Supply 
Company Limited and Others ("the Respondents") before the Karnataka Electricity Regulatory 
Commission (“KERC”)

The Company filed a Petition bearing No. 62/2016 before the KERC inter-alia praying for determination of 
the tariff for its Bagasse based co-generation power plants and for a direction to the Electric Supply 
Companies (ESCOMs) for executing individual Power Purchase Agreements (PPA) in their favour. 
Subsequently, KERC passed an Order dated December 05, 2016 inter-alia fixing an interim tariff at � 3.47 per 
unit. Subsequently, the Respondents filed a Review Petition dated July 10, 2017 before KERC inter-alia 
requesting for determination of the tariff payable for the supply of power. Thereafter, the Company filed its 
objections under the Limitation Act, 1963 on the aforesaid Review Petition dated July 10, 2017 which was 
rejected by the Court vide and Order on October 24, 2017 further directing the Respondents to file their 
objections. This matter is currently pending.

3. Litigation involving Tax Liabilities

(i) Direct Tax Liabilities

NIL
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(ii) Indirect Taxes Liabilities

Sr. No. Type of Direct Tax No. of Cases Amount in dispute/ demanded (in �)
1. Central Excise 4 8,73,44,965/-
2. Custom Duty 2 1,77,79,527.26/-

Total 6 10,51,24,492.26/-

a. Appeal dated November 21, 2011 filed by the Company before the Customs, Excise and Service Tax 
Appellate Tribunal, South Zonal Bench (“CESTAT”) by the Company.

The Assistant Commissioner of Central Excise, Belgaum Division had issued a Show Cause Notice dated June 
19, 2008 bearing No. 39/2008 (“SCN”) to the Company inter alia requiring the Company to show cause as to 
why (i) Cenvat credit of � 3.35 lakhs (� 3,35,404) during the period from 2004-2005 to 2007-2008 should not 
be recovered from our Company along with interest thereon; (ii) the amount of � "�~�� ������ �� 1,67,522) 
which has been reversed to our Company should not be appropriated; (iii) interest at appropriate rate under 
Rule 14 of the Cenvat Credit Rules, 2004 should not be appropriated; and (iv) Penalty under Rule 15(1) of the 
Cenvat Credit Rules, 2004 should not be imposed on our Company for these alleged violations. The Company 
filed its reply vide letter dated August 13, 2008 inter alia requesting the Assistant Commissioner to vacate the 
SCN and drop the proceedings and refund to the Company an amount of � 1,70,183/- being the amount 
reversed by the Company in excess. Thereafter, vide order dated January 30, 2009, the Assistant 
Commissioner inter- alia (i) confirmed demand of � 3,35,404/-; (ii) appropriated � 1,70,183/- reversed vide 
entry 27 dated July 27, 2007 in the Cenvat account cited supra, towards the confirmed demand as above; (iii) 
appropriated � 1,65,221/- from � 3,20,814/- paid vide GAR-7 No.01/2008-09 dated May 01, 2008 towards the 
demand as above; (iv) sanctioned refund of � 1,55,593/- which was reversed in excess and allowed the 
Company to take credit in their Cenvat Account after deduction towards interest demand; (v) demanded 
interest under Section 11AB of Central Excise Act, 1944; (vi) appropriated an amount of � 60,306/- towards 
demand interest and (vi) dropped the proceedings with regard to penalty proposed in the SCN.  Subsequently, 
the Company filed an Appeal dated November 21, 2011 before the CESTAT. This matter is currently pending.

b. Appeal dated filed by the Company before the Customs, Excise And Service Tax Appellate Tribunal, 
Mumbai (“CESTAT”)

The Commissioner of Customs, Pune had issued a Show Cause Notice ("SCN") bearing no 
VIII/COS/CPP/VSIL/04/2013 dated July 17, 2013 requiring the Company to inter alia show cause as to why 
(i) The benefit of the exemption under Sr. No. 123 of the Notification No. 12/2012-Cus., dated March 17, 
2012 (“Exemption Notice”) should not be denied to the goods imported under the said Bill of Entry No. 
108/JGD/12-13 dated November 30, 2012 (“Bill of Entry”), filed by the Company with Ratnagiri Customs; 
(ii) the Bill of Entry should not be re-assessed to appropriate customs duty by reclassifying the goods imported 
therein as “Bituminous Coal”; (iii)Subsequent to such re-assessment, the differential duty amounting to ��
1,39,37,096/- (Rupees One Crore Thirty Nine Lakhs Thirty Seven Thousand and Ninety-Six only) should not 
be demanded and recovered from the Company along with interest thereon; and (iv) Penalty under the 
provisions of Section 112 (a) and Section 114A of the Customs Act, 1962 should not be imposed on the 
Company for these alleged violations. Subsequently, vide Order-In-Original dated January 7, 2014 passed by 
the Commissioner of Customs, Pune, it was inter alia held that the (i) benefit of the exemption under the 
Exemption Notice be denied to the goods imported under the Bill of Entry; (ii) the Bill of Entry be re-assessed; 
(iii)Subsequently to such re-assessment, the differential duty amounting to �� 1,39,37,096.26/- (Rupees One 
Crore Thirty Nine Lakhs Thirty Seven Thousand and Ninety-Six and Twenty-Six Paise only) be demanded 
and recovered from the Company along with interest thereon; and (v) Penalty of � 15,00,000/- (Rupees Fifteen 
Lakhs only) be imposed on the Company. Thereafter, the Company filed its appeal before the CESTAT for 
challenging the Order-In-Original dated January 7, 2014. The matter is currently pending before CESTAT. 

c. Appeal bearing No. E/20219/2016-DB dated February 25, 2016 filed by the Company against the 
Commissioner of Central Excise, Customs and Service Tax, Belgaum before the Commissioner 
(Appeals), Customs, Excise & Service Tax Appellate Tribunal

Vide a Show Cause Notices dated August 13, 2013, March 15, 2014, December 26, 2014 and  December 02, 
2015 (“SCN”) issued by the Commissioner of Central Excise, Customs and Service Tax, Belgaum, the 
Company has been inter-alia directed to show cause as to why (i) The amount of � 2,36,36,992/- equal to 6% 
of the amount of � 39,39,49,874/- being the value of electricity sold to outside power distribution companies 
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during the period from August-2012 to March 20l3 should not be demanded from the Company (ii) the amount 
of � 93,73,567/- equal to 60% of the amount of Rs 15,62,26,117/- being the value of electricity sold to outside 
to power distribution companies during the period from April 2013 to November 2013 should not be 
demanded and recovered from the Company (iii) the amount of � 2,01,59,813/- equal to 60% of the amount of 
� 35,59,96,882/- being the value of electricity sold to outside to power distribution companies during the 
period from December 2013 to October 2014 should not be demanded and recovered from the Company; and 
(iv) the amount of � 1,05,48,860/- , equal to 6% of the amount of � 77,58,1.4,3341- being the value of 
Electricity sold to outside power distribution companies during the period from November, 2014 to February, 
2015, should not be demanded and recovered from the Company as Rule 14(1) of CENVAT Credit Rules, 
2004 read with section 11A(1)(a) of the Central Excise Act,1944.Vide an Order in Original dated December 
30, 2017 (“Impugned OIO”) the Commissioner dropped the proceedings initiated against the Company under 
the aforesaid Show Cause Notices, demanding the amount of � 6,32,19,232/- on the value of electricity of �
1,08,19,87,202/- sold to power distribution companies. Further, as per the aforesaid Impugned OIO the 
provisions of Rule 6 of the CENVAT Credit Rules, 2004 were applicable for the clearance of electricity (non-
excisable goods) for a consideration by the Company. Aggrieved by the Impugned OIO, the Company 
preferred an appeal dated February 25, 2016 before Commissioner (Appeals), Customs, Excise & Service Tax 
Appellate Tribunal inter-alia praying to set aside Impugned OIO and allow the appeal. The matter is currently 
pending.

d. Appeal bearing dated September 29, 2018 filed by the Company against the Commissioner (Appeals) 
Central Tax, Belagavi before the Commissioner (Appeals), Customs, Excise & Service Tax Appellate 
Tribunal, Bangalore.

Vide a Show Cause Notice dated January 24, 2018 (“SCN”) issued by the Joint Commissioner of Central 
Excise, Customs and Service Tax, Belgaum, the Company has been inter-alia directed to show cause as to 
why the amount of � 93,23,882/- equal to 6% on the amount of � 15,53,98,028/- being the value of Electricity 
sold to outside agencies and to power distribution companies during the period from January 2016 to March 
2016 should not be demanded and recovered from the Company under Rule 14 of Cenvat Credit Rules, 2004 
read with Section 11A(1)(a) of the Central Excise Act, 1944. The Company filed its reply to the aforesaid 
SCN on March 19, 2018.Vide an Order in Original dated April 05, 2018 (“Impugned OIO”) the 
Commissioner confirmed the recovery of � 93,23,882/- from the Company and further imposed a penalty of �
9,32,388/- under Rule 15 of Cenvat Credit Rules, 2004 read with Section 11A(1)(a) of the Central Excise Act, 
1944.Aggrieved by the Impugned OIO, the Company preferred an appeal dated May 05, 2018 before 
Commissioner (Appeals), Central GST and Central Excise, Belgaum inter-alia praying to set aside Impugned 
OIO and allow the appeal. The matter is currently pending. Vide an Order in Appeal dated August 09, 2018 
(“Impugned AIO”) the Commissioner (Appeals) Central Tax, Belagavi upheld the Impugned Order and 
dismissed the Aforesaid Appeal dated May 05, 2018. Aggrieved by the Impugned AIO, the Company 
preferred an appeal dated September 29, 2018 before the Customs, Excise, Service Tax Appellate Tribunal, 
South Zonal Bench, and Bangalore inter-alia praying to set aside Impugned OIA and allow the appeal. The 
matter is currently pending.

e. Appeal bearing dated April 02, 2018 filed by the Company against the Commissioner (Appeals) Central 
Tax, Belagavi before the Commissioner (Appeals), Customs, Excise & Service Tax Appellate Tribunal, 
Bangalore.

Vide a Show Cause Notice dated March 29, 2016 (“SCN”) issued by the Commissioner of Central Excise, 
Customs and Service Tax, Belgaum, the Company has been inter-alia directed to show cause as to why the 
amount of � 1,44,66,447/- equal to 6% on the amount of � 24,11,07,442/- being the value of Electricity sold to 
outside agencies and to power distribution companies during the period from March 2015 to December 2015 
should not be demanded and recovered from the Company under Rule 14 of Cenvat Credit Rules, 2004 read 
with Section 11A(1)(a) of the Central Excise Act, 1944. The Company filed its reply to the aforesaid SCN on 
June 03, 2016.

Vide an Order in Original dated February 27, 2017 (“Impugned OIO”) the Joint Commissioner confirmed the 
recovery of � 1,44,66,447/- from the Company and further imposed a penalty of � 14,46,645/- under Rule 15 
of Cenvat Credit Rules, 2004 read with Section 11A(1)(a) of the Central Excise Act, 1944.Aggrieved by the 
Impugned OIO, the Company preferred an appeal dated April 03, 2017 before Commissioner (Appeals), 
Central GST and Central Excise, Belgaum inter-alia praying to set aside Impugned OIO and allow the appeal. 
The matter is currently pending. Vide an Order in Appeal dated December 15, 2017 (“Impugned AIO”) the 
Commissioner (Appeals) Central Tax, Belagavi upheld the Impugned Order and dismissed the Aforesaid 
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Appeal dated April 03, 2017. Aggrieved by the Impugned AIO, the Company preferred an appeal dated April 
02, 2018 before the Customs, Excise, Service Tax Appellate Tribunal, South Zonal Bench, Bangalore inter-
alia praying to set aside Impugned OIA and allow the appeal. The matter is currently pending.

f. Appeal bearing dated April 11, 2017 filed by the Company against the Commissioner of Customs 
(Appeals), Bangalore before the Commissioner (Appeals), Customs, Excise & Service Tax Appellate 
Tribunal, Bangalore.

Vide a Show Cause Notice dated August 08, 2013 (“SCN”) issued by the Additional Commissioner of 
Customs, Mangalore, the Company has been inter-alia directed to show cause as to why the subject goods i.e., 
10000 MT of coal imported per vessel MV tianjin, venture, through New Mangalore port vide Bill of Entry 
No. 8051255 dated September 29, 2012 should not be classified as Bituminous Coal as defined under the 
Customs Tariff Act, 1975 and the differential duty of � 38,42,431/- arising on account of change in rates of 
duty owing to its reclassification of subject goods should not be demanded and recovered from the Company. 
The Company filed its reply to the aforesaid SCN on October 01, 2013.Vide an Order in Original dated June 
30, 2014 (“Impugned OIO”) the Additional Commissioner of Customs, Mangalore (i) confirmed the demand 
duty of � 38,42,431/-; (ii) demanded interest under Section 28 AA of the Customs Act, 1975; (iii) held 10,000 
MT of imported coal liable for confiscation as per Section 111 (m) of the Customs Act, 1975 and (iv) imposed 
a penalty of � 5,00,000/- under Section 112 (a) of the Customs Act. 1975 from the Company. Aggrieved by 
the Impugned OIO, the Company preferred an appeal dated August 04, 2016 before Commissioner of
Customs, Bangalore inter-alia praying to set aside Impugned OIO and allow the appeal. The matter is 
currently pending. Vide an Order in Appeal dated September 20, 2016 (“Impugned AIO”) the Commissioner 
of Customs (Appeals), Bangalore upheld the Impugned Order and dismissed the Aforesaid Appeal dated 
August 04, 2016. Aggrieved by the Impugned AIO, the Company preferred an appeal dated April 11, 2017 
before the Customs, Excise, Service Tax Appellate Tribunal, Bangalore inter-alia praying to set aside 
Impugned OIA and allow the appeal. The matter is currently pending.

4. Other Pending Litigations 

a. Regular First Appeal 1450 of 2015 filed by the Company (“Petitioner”) against (i) John Distilleries and 
(ii) Venkateshwara Distilleries (“Defendants”) before the Hon’ble High Court of Karnataka, Bangalore.

Ordinary Suit dated bearing no. 4788 of 2009 was filed by the Plaintiff before the XVIII Additional City Civil 
Judge Court against the Defendants for permanent injunction against debarring the Defendants from use of the 
label "Our Choice" inter alia praying for a decree of permanent injunction and other reliefs against the 
Defendants. Aggrieved by the judgment and decree dated July 28, 2015, the Company filed a Regular First 
Appeal bearing no. 1450 of 2015 before the High Court of Karnataka, Bangalore inter-alia praying to the 
Court to call for records on file of XVIII Additional City Civil Judge Court in Original Suit no. 4788 of 2015 
and setting aside the aforesaid judgment and decree in the interest of justice. This matter is currently pending 
before the Court.

b. Writ Petition dated January 21, 2019 bearing No. 104162-163 of 2019 filed by the Company against The 
Union of India (“the Respondent No. 1”), the Superintendent of Central Excise, Belgaum Audit Circle 
(“the Respondent No. 2”) and the Superintendent of Central GST Range I and II, Nippani (“the 
Respondent No. 3”) before The High Court of Karnataka (“The Court”).

The Company under Section 140 of the Goods and Service Tax Act, 2017 (“The Act”) claimed a total
��������
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October 13, 2017, the Respondent No. 1 directed the Company to reverse the aforesaid amount on the grounds 
of its ineligibility to be claimed as credit and the same was directed by the Respondent 2. On April 4, 2018 
Respondent 3 notified the Company that the Respondents would recover the Amount under Section 79 of the 
Act  to which the Company filed an objection inter-alia stating that action under Section 79 of the Act cannot 
be invoked without adhering to Section 73 and 74 of the Act. Consequently, the Company filed the aforesaid 
Writ Petition dated January 21, 2019 inter-alia praying that the Court grants a Writ of Certiorari quashing the 
notification dated April 04, 2018 issued by the Respondent 3 as it is passed in violation of the principles of 
natural justice. The matter is currently pending.
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c. Special Leave Petition (CRL.) bearing no. 14016-14018 of 2017 filed by the Company against The Union 
of India and others (“the Respondents’) before the Hon’ble Supreme Court of India (“the Hon’ble 
Court”).

The Company had filed Writ Petition No. 83223 of 2013 and Writ Petition No.19874 of 2013 before the 
Hon’ble High Court of Karnataka, Dharwad Bench (“the Hon’ble High Court”) challenging the Orders dated 
May 23, 2013, September 12, 2013,  September 18, 2013, July 27, 2012 and November 26, 2012  (“the 
Orders”) under which Orders directions were issued by recovery of levy sugar from the Company for the 
seasons 2005-2009 and seizure of sugar of the Company on September 26, 2013 by the Respondents. In the 
said Writ Petitions, the Company had stated that the Respondents issued a Levy Sugar Supply (Control) Order, 
1979 (‘the 1979 Order’) under which the Central Government had the power to direct a sugar manufacturer to 
supply a certain percentage of sugar produced by it at a price determined under Section 3 (3-C) of the 
Essential Commodities Act, 1955. Further, the Respondents issued a notification dated November 30, 2010 
bearing no. F.No.5-5(Legal - 21)/ 2009-SC-II (“the Notification”) clarifying that the sugar mills will be 
allowed to sell equivalent quantity of their uplifted levy sugar even after a lapse of three months from the date 
of allotment in the open market and that the obligation with respect to levy sugar will remain unchanged. 
Subsequently, the Company filed the above Writ Petitions in challenging the Orders and the seizure of sugar 
inter-alia on the grounds that on failure of the government to issue levy quote orders, the right to issue the 
same lapses and cannot be enforced for the subsequent years. Vide Order dated December 18, 2013, the 
Hon’ble High Court  inter-alia held that authorized corporation would liquidate the accumulated monthly carry 
liabilities within 3 months beyond which the same would not continue and there would not be any carry 
forward of past liabilities and the levy liability would start with clean slate every year. and dismissed the 
aforesaid Orders. Upon being aggrieved by the aforesaid Order dated December 18, 2013, the Respondents 
filed Writ Appeals bearing Nos.100474 of 2015 and 100018–100019 (GM-RES) (“Writ Appeals”) before the
Hon’ble High Court. Vide Order dated January 03, 2017, the High Court partly (i) allowed the Writ Appeals, 
(ii) set aside the Order dated December 18, 2013 passed in Writ Petition No. 83223 of 2013 and (iii) directed 
the Respondents to re-calculate the amount of levy sugar that the Petitioner is obliged to deposit with the 
Government in discharge of its obligations for sugar seasons 2005 to 2008 and 2009 -10. Consequently, the 
Company filed the above Special Leave Petition before the Hon’ble Court against the Respondents 
challenging the aforesaid Order dated January 03, 2017 passed by the Hon’ble High Court. This matter is 
currently pending.

LITIGATION INVOLVING OUR DIRECTORS

A. LITIGATION AGAINST OUR DIRECTORS

1. Criminal matters

a. Criminal Writ Petition 3895 of 2016 filed by Kundlik Gopal Bhegade (“the Petitioner”) against the 
Directors of National Heavy Engineering Co. Op. Ltd. (our Director/Promoter, Mr. Nikhil Katti is also 
a director) (“NHECOL”)  before the Hon’ble High Court of Judicature at Bombay (“the Court”)

The Petitioner, who is the president of NHECOL had lodged a complaint under Sections 406, 420 and 34 of 
Indian Penal Code, 1860 against the directors of NHECOL, including Mr. Nikhil Katti, inter-alia alleging that 
NHECOL had failed to deposit an amount of � 67,44,794/- which was deducted from the salaries of workers 
from the period from March 2013 to March 2015. The Judicial Magistrate of the First Class (“Magistrate”) 
vide an order dated May 27, 2016 (“JMFC Order”) passed an order under Section 156(3) of Criminal 
Procedure Code, 1973. Aggrieved by the JMFC Order, Mr. Nikhil Katti filed a Criminal Revision Application 
bearing no. 291/2016 against the JMFC Order before the Hon’ble Sessions Judge, Pune (“Hon’ble Sessions 
Judge”) inter-alia stating that the Assistant Register of Co-Operative Department Vadgaon Maval, Pune has 
already taken the cognizance of the alleged act and therefore the Magistrate should not have directed the 
police to investigate the matter. The Hon’ble Sessions Judge vide an order dated October 17, 2016 (“Revision 
Order”) allowed the revision petition and set aside the impugned JMFC Order. Aggrieved by the Revision 
Order the Petitioner, filed Criminal Writ Petition bearing no. 3895 of 2016 before the Hon’ble High Court of 
Judicature at Bombay (“Hon’ble Court”) inter-alia praying for writ of certiorari for quashing and setting aside 
the Revision Order. The matter is pending before the Hon’ble Court.

2. Litigation Involving Actions by Statutory/Regulatory Authorities

NIL
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3. Litigation involving Tax Liabilities

(i) Direct Tax Liabilities

NIL

(ii) Indirect Taxes Liabilities

NIL

4. Other Pending Litigations

NIL

B. LITIGATION FILED BY OUR DIRECTORS 

1. Litigation Involving Criminal matters

NIL

2. Litigation Involving Actions by Statutory/Regulatory Authorities

NIL

3. Litigation involving Tax Liabilities

(i) Direct Tax Liabilities

NIL

(ii) Indirect Taxes Liabilities

NIL

4. Other Pending Litigations 

NIL

LITIGATION INVOLVING OUR PROMOTERS 

A. LITIGATION AGAINST OUR PROMOTERS

1. Litigation Involving Criminal matters

For details regarding the litigation filed against our Promoters, please refer to the section titled ‘Litigations 
involving our Directors’ of this chapter beginning on page no. 295 of this Red Herring Prospectus.

2. Litigation Involving Actions by Statutory/Regulatory Authorities

NIL

3. Litigation involving Tax Liabilities

(i) Direct Tax Liabilities

NIL
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(ii) Indirect Taxes Liabilities

NIL

4. Other Pending Litigations 

NIL

B. LITIGATION FILED BY OUR PROMOTERS

1. Litigation Involving Criminal matters

NIL

2. Litigation Involving Actions by Statutory/Regulatory Authorities

NIL

3. Litigation involving Tax Liabilities

(i) Direct Tax Liabilities

NIL

(ii) Indirect Taxes Liabilities

NIL

4. Other Pending Litigations 

NIL

LITIGATION INVOLVING OUR GROUP COMPANIES

A. LITIGATION AGAINST OUR GROUP COMPANIES 

1. Litigation involving Criminal matters

NIL

2. Litigation Involving Actions by Statutory/Regulatory Authorities

NIL

3. Litigation involving Tax Liabilities

(i) Direct Tax Liabilities

NIL

(ii) Indirect Taxes Liabilities

NIL

4. Other Pending Litigations 

NIL
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B. LITIGATION FILED BY OUR GROUP COMPANIES 

1. Criminal matters

NIL

2. Litigation Involving Actions by Statutory/Regulatory Authorities

NIL

3. Litigation involving Tax Liabilities

(i) Direct Tax Liabilities

NIL

(ii) Indirect Taxes Liabilities

NIL

4. Other Pending Litigations 

NIL

There are no litigations or legal actions, pending or taken, by any Ministry or Department of the Government or 
a statutory authority against our Promoters during the last 5 (five) years. 

There are no litigations or legal actions, pending or taken, by any Ministry or Department of the Government or a 
statutory authority against our Promoters during the last 5 (five) years.

Pending proceedings initiated against our Company for economic offences. 

There are no pending proceedings initiated against our Company for economic offences.

Inquiries, investigations etc. instituted under the Companies Act, 2013 or any previous companies enactment in 
the last 5 (five) years against our Company. 

There are no inquiries, investigations etc. instituted under the Companies Act or any previous companies enactment in 
the last 5 (five) years against our Company except as stated below:

Our Company was involved in proceedings before the NCLT and also before SEBI for alleged violation of public issue 
requirements by the Company under Companies Act, 1956. The Company undertook certain steps to give investors an 
option to surrender the securities issued by the Company and obtain refunds of the amounts invested. All the formalities 
pertaining to the above have been completed and the relevant confirmations and certificate of the same have been 
submitted to SEBI as per procedure. For further information, see “Capital Structure – Notes to Capital Structure” on 
page no. 70 and Risk Factor No. 1 on page no. 17 of this Red Herring Prospectus, respectively.

Material Fraud against our Company in the last 5 (five) years 

There has been no material fraud committed against our Company in the last 5 (five) years. 

Fines imposed or compounding of offences for default 

There are no fines imposed or compounding of offences done in the last 5 (five) years immediately preceding the year 
of the Draft Prospectus for the Company for default or outstanding defaults. 
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Non-Payment of Statutory Dues 

There have been no defaults or outstanding defaults in the payment of statutory dues payable by the Company as of the 
date of the last audited financial statements of the Company.

Amounts owed to small scale undertakings and other creditors 

In terms of our Materiality Policy adopted by the Board vide Resolution dated December 18, 2017; there are no 
outstanding amounts above 1% of the total revenue as per audited financial statements of March 31, 2019 due to any 
creditors by our Company. The company is in process of identifying its MSME creditors for which the company has 
sent the letter to its creditors. As on date of filling of this Red Herring Prospectus, no creditor has responded to the 
same and hence disclosure, if any, in relation to amount unpaid as at the year-end together with interest payable as 
required under the said MSME Act has not been furnished. As on March 31, 2019�� ��� �#�	��� ��������
��� ��� ��
11,271.89 lakhs was outstanding and due to 15,255 creditors by our Company (includes outstanding for Cane payables 
and payables to H & T Contractors). Details in relation to the amount owed by our Company to material creditors, 
small scale undertakings and other creditors as on March 31, 2019 are also available on www.vsil.co.in.

It is clarified that any other information provided on the website of our Company is not a part of this Red Herring 
Prospectus and should not be deemed to be incorporated by reference. Anyone placing reliance on any other source of 
information, including our Company’s website, would be doing so at its own risk.

Material developments occurring after last balance sheet date 

Except as disclosed elsewhere in this Red Herring Prospectus, there have been no material developments that have 
occurred after the Last Balance Sheet Date.
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GOVERNMENT & OTHER KEY APPROVALS

Our Company has received the necessary licenses, permissions and approvals from the Central and State 
Governments and other government agencies/regulatory authorities/certification bodies required to undertake the 
Offer or continue our business activities. In view of the approvals listed below, we can undertake the Offer and our 
current business activities and no further major approvals from any governmental/regulatory authority or any other 
entity are required to be undertaken, in respect of the Offer or to continue our business activities. It must, however, 
be distinctly understood that in granting the above approvals, the Government of India and other authorities do not 
take any responsibility for the financial soundness of our Company or for the correctness of any of the statements or 
any commitments made or opinions expressed in this behalf.

The main objects clause of the Memorandum of Association of our Company and the objects incidental, enable our 
Company to carry out its activities.
Approvals for the Offer

1. The Board of Directors have, pursuant to Section 62(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013, by a resolution passed at 
its meeting held on November 20, 2017 authorized the Offer, subject to the approval of the shareholders and 
such other authorities as may be necessary.

2. The shareholders of our Company have, pursuant Section 62(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013, by a special 
resolution passed in the extra ordinary general meeting held on December 18, 2017authorized the Offer.

3. In-principle approval dated January 12, 2018 from the BSE for listing of the Equity Shares issued by our 
Company pursuant to the Issue. 

4. In-principle approval dated January 10, 2018 from the NSE for listing of the Equity Shares issued by our 
Company pursuant to the Issue.

Approvals pertaining to Incorporation, name and constitution of our Company

1. Certificate of Incorporation dated May 02, 1995 issued by the Registrar of Companies, Bangalore, Karnatakain 
the name of “Vishwanath Sugars Limited”. 

2. Fresh Certificate of Incorporation dated December 28, 2010 issued by the Registrar of Companies, Bangalore, 
Karnataka pursuant to change of name of the Company from “Vishwanath Sugars Limited” to “Vishwanath 
Sugar and Steel Industries Limited”.

3. Fresh Certificate of Incorporation dated November 29, 2012 issued by the Registrar of Companies, Bangalore, 
Karnataka pursuant to change of name from “Vishwanath Sugar and Steel Industries Limited” to “Vishwaraj 
Sugar Industries Limited” 

4. Certificate of Commencement of Business dated December 21, 1999 issued by the Registrar of Companies, 
Bangalore, Karnataka.  

5. The Corporate Identification Number (CIN) of our Company is U85110KA1995PLC017730.

I. BUSINESS RELATED APPROVALS

Sr. 
No. Description Authority Registration Number Date of 

Certificate
Date of 
Expiry

1. License under Food Safety 
and Standards Act.

Food Safety and 
Standards Authority of 
India

10015043001290 August, 03, 
2015

August 02, 
2020

2. Certificate of Importer-
Exporter Code (IEC)

Foreign Trade 
Development Officer, 
Bengaluru

0703008790 July 12, 
2013

Valid until 
cancelled

3. Permission to draw water 
for industrial use

Executive Engineer, 
KNNL GRBCC, 
Division 2, Hidkal Dam

WRDO/81/NIN2012 January 10, 
2013

July 21, 
2020
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Sr. 
No. Description Authority Registration Number Date of 

Certificate
Date of 
Expiry

4. Final Allotment of Plant 
Code No. 62101 and Short 
Name “Bellad Bagewadi”

Chief Director(Sugar), 
Directorate of Sugar, 
Department of Food and 
Public Distribution, 
Ministry of Consumer 
Affairs, Food& Public 
Distribution

6-1(8)/2009-Stat-
II/276-281

January 
04,2010

Valid until 
cancelled

5. NoC for height clearance of 
chimney*
The Company however has 
misplaced the copy of this 
approval

Assistant General 
Manager, Airports 
Authority of India

AAI/420012/839/2005
-ARI(NOC)

December
02, 2005

-

6. Certificate for use of Boiler 
KTK 2405 with Maximum 
continuous evaporation of 
10 TPH. 

Deputy Director of 
Boilers, Belagavi
Division, Belagavi

Certificate No: 190

GSC No.: 
IS0990000070610

March 11, 
2019 Valid until 

March 09, 
2020

7. Certificate for use of Boiler 
KTK 3459 with maximum 
continuous evaporation of 
14 TPH. 

Deputy Director of 
Boilers, Belagavi
Division, Belagavi

Certificate No: 192

GSC No. 
IS0990000070942

March 20, 
2019 Valid until 

March 18, 
2020

8. Commissioning approval of 
14.4 kms long 110 KV 
Single Circuit Line on 
Double Circuit Tower and 
one 110 KV Terminal Bay

Chief Electrical 
Inspector to Government 
of Karnataka

CEIG/DCEI/EI(T)/DE
I1/16098-101/05-06

October 11, 
2005

Valid until 
cancelled

9. Commissioning approval of 
Switch Yard

Chief Electrical
Inspector to Government 
of Karnataka

CEIG/DCEI/EI(T)/DE
I1/16089-92/05-06

October 11, 
2005

Valid until 
cancelled

10. Synchronisation Approval 
of 14 MW gross capacity 
with an exportable capacity 
of 7.8 Mw from Co-
Generation Power Project

Deputy General Manager
(Tech), Karnataka Power
Transmission
Corporation Limited

KPTCL/B-
28/4149/2000-01

October 14, 
2005

Valid until 
cancelled

11. Approval for revision of
evacuation scheme for 39 
MW (Exportable 22.4 Mw) 
co-generation power plant 
at the factory of the 
Company 

Chief Engineer
Electrical, Karnataka
Power Transmission
Corporation
Limited

CEE(P&C)/KCO-
93/8892/F-41

April 30,
2008

Valid until 
cancelled

12. Approval to commission 
the electrical installation of
additional 22.4 MW, 11 KV
Unit II Co-generation Plant 
along with 7500 TCD Sugar
Plant and Distillery Plant

Chief Electrical
Inspector to Government 
of Karnataka

CEIG/EI-3/31906-
10/09-10

January 06,
2010

Valid until 
cancelled

13. Regular Interconnection
Approval for
interconnecting 22.4 MW
exportable an 39 MW gross 
Cogeneration Power

Chief Engineer (Electy),
Karnataka Power
Transmission
Corporation Limited

CEE9TA&QC)/SEE9
Plg)/EE(Plg)/KCO-
93/17412/F-41

January 28, 
2010

Valid until 
cancelled

14. License to store petroleum 
in tank/s under the 
Petroleum Act, 1934 

Jt. Chief  Controller of 
Explosives, Mangalore

P/SC/KA/14/3713(P23
9869)

November 
24, 2017

December 
31, 2020

15. Letter of authorization 
under Foreign Trade 
(Development and 

Assistant Director 
General of Foreign Trade

0730015953/3/12/00 November 
07, 2016

November 
06, 2023
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Sr. 
No. Description Authority Registration Number Date of 

Certificate
Date of 
Expiry

Regulation) Act, 1992. 

16. Certificate of Verification 
under the Karnataka Legal 
Metrology Rules, 2011 

Assistant Controller of 
Legal Metrology, 
Belgaum

AC21927 September 
29, 2018

September 
28, 2019

17. Consent to Establish from 
Gram Panchayat for 5500 
FCD Sugar plant and 30Mx 
co-generation power plant 
at Rs. Nos. 136, 139, 140/1, 
140/2, 140/3 and 141/1 at 
Bellad, Bagewadi Village.

Gram Panchayat, Bellad
Bagewadi

- February 
18, 2013

-

18. Environment  Clearance for 
expansion of Sugar Plant 
(5500-11000 TCD) 
molasses based Distillery 
Unit (35 KLPD to 100 
KLPD), ENA Plant 
(20KLPD to 75KLPD) and 
Co-generation Power Plant 
(39Mw to 64 Mw) 
establishment of Ethanol 
Plant (30KLPD) and D.G 
sets (2x1mw) at factory 
premises located at Plot 
Nos. 136, 139/2, 140/1, 
140/2. 140/3, 140/4, 140/4, 
141/1, 148/3, 149/2, 149/3, 
150/1, 150/2A, 150/2B, 
150/2A, 151/1, 151/2C and 
152.  

Ministry of Environment 
and Forests, (I.A. 
Division)

J-11011/453/2009-1A 
II (1)

November 
24, 2011

-

19. Registration and License to 
run factory  

Department of Factories, 
Boilers, Industrial Safety 
and Welfare, 
Government of 
Karnataka

MYBGM 2325 November 
16, 2018

December 
31, 2019

20. Certificate of Registration 
under Food Safety 
Management System.

Scope of the Certificate:
Processing (Mash 
Preparation, Fermentation 
and Filtration) of Brewed 
Vinegar from Spirit.

Intertek India Private 
Limited

Certificate Number:
0085236

December 
17, 2018

December 
15, 2021

21. Combined Consent for 
discharge of effluents under 
the Water (Prevention and 
Control of Pollution) Act, 
1974 and Air (Prevention 
and Control of Pollution) 
Act, 1981 authorizing the 
Company to operate the 
Industrial plant at Bellad-
Bagewadi Village, Hukkeri

Karnataka State 
Pollution Control Board

Combined Consent 
Order No.
PCB/157/HPI/2017-
2018

February 
20, 2018

June 30, 
2021
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Sr. 
No. Description Authority Registration Number Date of 

Certificate
Date of 
Expiry

Taluk, Belgaum District 
and to discharge of 
effluents and emissions in 
respect of the (i) Trade 
effluent from Sugar Plant-
740 KLD, (ii) Trade 
effluents from Distillery 
(Spent Wash)- 381 KLD 
and  (iii) Co-gen Plant and 
IML Bottling- 206 KLD. 
The Consent is valid for the 
manufacture of (i) Whiter 
crystal sugar- 8500 TCD, 
(ii) Co, generation- 39 MW, 
(iii) Rectified Spirit or 
Ethanol- 35 KLD, (iv) IML 
Bottling- 5000 Boxes/day, 
(v) ENA- 30 KLPD, (vi) 
Natural Alcohol Vinegar-
75 KLPD, Liquid Carbon-
di-oxide- 15 MTPD.   

22. Consent for establishment 
for expansion of sugarcane 
crushing capacity from 
5500 TCD to 11000 TCD, 
rectified spirit from 35
KLD to 100 KLD, 
Cogeneration plant of 39 
MW to 64 MW, IML 
bottling from 2500 boxes a 
day to 5000boxes/ day, 
ENA plant from 20 KLD to 
75 KLD, establishment of 
ethanol plant of 30 KLD 
and installation of 2x1250 
KVA DG sets at 
Belladbagewadi, Hukkeri 
Taluk, Belgaum, District.

Karnataka State 
Pollution Control Board

PCB/157/HPI/2010-
11/1408

February 
13, 2013

Cotermino
us with the 
Environme
nt 
Clearance 
issued by 
Ministry of 
Environme
nt and 
Forests
dated 
November 
24, 2011.

23. Permission to lift essential 
21.89 MCET water 
annually from Ghataprabha 
River for Industrial 
purpose. 

Governor of Karnataka, 
Under Secretary to 
Government, 
Jalasampanmula, 
Department (Technical-
4)

JSE 32 NIN 2016 
Bengaluru.

November 
16, 2017

July 21, 
2020

24. Memorandum of 
Understanding between the 
Company and Government 
of Karnataka with an 
objective to ensure that 
adequate quantity of ENA 
is made available to IMFL 
manufactures and to ensure 
that alcohol mean for non-
potable purposes is not 
misused/ diverted to potable 
purposes*

Government of 
Karnataka

- June 27, 
2019

June 26, 
2020. 
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II. INDUSTRIAL ENREPRENUER MEMORANDUM OBTAINED BY THE COMPANY

Sr. 
No. Description Authority Registration 

Number
Date of 

Certificate
Date of 
Expiry

1. Industrial Entrepreneur 
Memorandum for manufacture of 
Rectified Spirits for adding 
proposed capacity of 19500 
KL/year to already existing 
capacity of 10500 KL/year 
making its total capacity 30000 
KL/year after expansion.

Secretariat of Industrial 
Assistance, Ministry of 
Commerce and 
Industry

422/SIA/IMO/2011 February 
07, 2011

-

2. Industrial Entrepreneur 
Memorandum for manufacture of 
Extra Neutral Spirit for adding 
proposed capacity of 15000 
KL/year, to already existing 
capacity of 6000 KL/year 
making its total capacity 21000 
KL/year after expansion. 

Secretariat of Industrial 
Assistance, Ministry of 
Commerce and 
Industry

422/SIA/IMO/2011 February 
07, 2011

-

3. Industrial Entrepreneur 
Memorandum for manufacture of 
Industrial Alcohol for adding 
proposed capacity of 45000 
KL/year, to already existing 
capacity of 45000 KL/year 
making its total capacity 9000 
KL/year. #

Secretariat of Industrial 
Assistance, Ministry of
Commerce and 
Industry

422/SIA/IMO/20112 February 
07, 2011

-

4. Industrial Entrepreneur 
Memorandum for manufacture of 
Electricity for adding proposed 
capacity of 216000 mw/hrs to 
already existing capacity of 
280800 mw/hrs making its total 
capacity 496800 mw/hrs after 
expansion. 

Secretariat of Industrial 
Assistance, Ministry of 
Commerce and 
Industry

2763/SIA/IMO/20111 August 30, 
2011

-

5. Industrial Entrepreneur 
Memorandum for manufacture of 
White Crystalline Sugar for 
adding proposed capacity of 
83600 tons to already existing 
capacity of 158400 tons making 
its total capacity 242000 tons 
after expansion.  

Department for 
Promotion of Industry 
and Internal Trade,
Ministry of Commerce 
and Industry

2765/SIA/IMO/2011 May 16, 
2019

-

6. Industrial Entrepreneur 
Memorandum for manufacture of 
Bagasse for adding proposed 
capacity of 228000 tons to 
already existing capacity of 
432000 tons making its total 
capacity 660000 tons after 
expansion.

Department for 
Promotion of Industry 
and Internal Trade,
Ministry of Commerce 
and Industry

2765/SIA/IMO/2011 May 16, 
2019

-
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7. Industrial Entrepreneur 
Memorandum for manufacture of 
Molasses for adding proposed 
capacity of 30400 tons to already 
existing capacity of 57600 tons 
making its total capacity 88000 
tons after expansion.

Department for 
Promotion of Industry 
and Internal Trade,
Ministry of Commerce 
and Industry

2765/SIA/IMO/2011 May 16, 
2019

-

8. Industrial Entrepreneur 
Memorandum for manufacture of 
Brewed Vinegar for total 
capacity of 10,350 Kilo litres per 
annum.

Department for 
Promotion of Industry 
and Internal Trade, 
Ministry of Commerce 
and Industry

2917/SIA/IMO/20123 May 16, 
2019

-

# The IEM dated February 07, 2011 bearing no. 422/SIA/IMO/20113 refers to proposed capacity of 45000 KL/year 
being added to the existing capacity of 45000 KL/year. However, the total capacity reflected on the IEM is 9000. The 
Company currently adheres to the total capacity of 9000 and the references made to the proposed and existing capacity 
of 45000 KL/year are erroneously recorded under the abovementioned IEM. 
1 vide letter dated December 18, 2012, the Secretariat of Industrial Assistance, Ministry of Commerce and Industry has 
confirmed the change in the name of the company from “Vishwanath Sugar and Steel Industries Limited” to 
“Vishwaraj Sugar Industries” in respect of  IEM Acknowledgment No. 2763/SIA/IMO/2011 dated August 30, 2011.
2 vide letter dated December 18, 2012, the Secretariat of Industrial Assistance, Ministry of Commerce and Industry has 
confirmed the change in the name of the company from “Vishwanath Sugar and Steel Industries Limited” to 
“Vishwaraj Sugar Industries” in respect of IEM Acknowledgment No. 422/SIA/IMO/2011 dated February 07, 2011.

3The IEM acknowledgement dated May 16, 2019 bearing reference no. 2197/SIA/IMO/2012 refers to total capacity of 
10,350 LTPD (liters per day). However, the total capacity applied for under the application made by the Company is 
10,350 KLPA (Kilo Liters Per Annum).The Company is in the process of making an application to the concerned 
authorities to have the reference made to the unit of measurement ‘LTPD’ rectified to reflect the correct unit of 
measurement ‘KLPA’.

III. DISTILLERY RELATED APPROVALS ACQUIRED BY THE COMPANY

Sr. 
No. Description Authority Registration 

Number
Date of 

Certificate
Date of 
Expiry

1. Permission for installation of 
one new machine in the 
distillery, two service tanks of 
2000 litres each and construction 
of shed for storage of raw 
materials used for aseptic 
packing machine

Deputy 
Commissioner of 
Excise

ECD/13/REV/Be
lagavi/2016-17

December 
03, 2016

-

2. Permission for replacing one 
Kakambi tank out of two tanks 
having capacity of 7000 m tn. 
each and installing two new 
tanks of 7000 m. tn and 6000 m. 
tn for storage of Kakambi.

Deputy 
Commissioner of 
Excise

ECE/76/Kakamb
i/2011

March 21, 
2012

-

3. Permission for use of two new 
Kakambi tanks having 7000 MT 
capacity each. 

Deputy 
Commissioner of 
Excise

ECE/40/Kakamb
i-1/2013

October 13, 
2014

-

4. Permission for following 
substitutions in the Distillery:
a. Installation of 20mm pipe 
having flinch in the roof portion 
of fermentation
b. Installation of 100mm 
transparent glass and light glass 
in the roof portion of 
fermentation

Deputy 
Commissioner of 
Excise

ECD/03/REV/Be
lagavi/2013-14

July 22, 
2014

-
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c. Installation of new pipeline 
connection with 250mm PVC 
Pipes and new pipelines for the 
proposed carbon dioxide plant
d. Fixing of 25mm new M.S. 
Pipes for supply of steam to the 
proposed carbon dioxide plant 
from distillation section

5. Permission for installation of 
one automatic belt and two 
blending tanks of 1000 and 3000 
litres each for preparation of 
1800 Indian liquor boxes. 

Deputy 
Commissioner of 
Excise

ECD/46/REV/20
10

February 04, 
2011

-

6. Permission for installation of 
one automatic belt and two semi-
automatic belt in the distillery

Deputy 
Commissioner of 
Excise

ECD/46/REV/20
10

June 09, 
2011

-

7. Permission for installation of 
new 65 K.L.P.D. liquor 
substance production unit. 

Deputy 
Commissioner of 
Excise

ECD/37/REV/Be
lagavi /2011-12

September 
22, 2016

-

8. Permission for change in the 
name of the Distillery “M/s 
Vishwanath Sugar and Steel 
Industries Limited” into 
“Vishwaraj Sugar Industries 
Limited” 

Commissioner of 
Excise

ECD/20/REV/20
12

June 20,
2013

-

9. Permission for constructing of: 
a. One another warehouse. 
b. Two new 550 m-3 cooling 
tower along with one existing 
550 m-3 cooling tower.
c. another 32 diameter tank 
along with one existing 21 meter 
digester tank. 
d. 1,00,000/- B.L. capacity 
liquor substance storage tank.
e. 38,000/- B.L. capacity ethanol 
storage tank.
f. 1,00,000/- B.L. capacity three 
neutral spirit storage tanks.
g. 1,00,000/- B.L. capacity M.G. 
alcohol storage tank.
h. installing two M. G. Alcohol 
storage tank of 60,000 B.L. 
capacities in the existing 
warehouse along with 
i. 50,000 B L. capacity liquor 
substance storage tank in the 
new warehouse
j. 3 neutral spirit storage tank of 
50,000 BL capacity in the new 
warehouse

Deputy 
Commissioner of 
Excise

ECD/37/REV/Be
lagavi /2011-12

September 
22, 2016

-

10. Permission for making following 
changes in Indian liquor 
production unit:
a. Installing tank no. 11 having 
30000 litre capacity in place of 
tank no. 8.
b. Installing two tanks numbered 
13 &14 having 50000 litre 
capacity each by the side of tank 

Deputy 
Commissioner of 
Excise

ECD/16/REV/Be
lagavi/2013-14

April 23, 
2014

-
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no. 9 and 10.
c. Installing tank no. 12 of 30000 
litre capacity by the side of D. M 
water tank.
d. Reinstalling tank no.5 and 
tank no.8.
e. Construction of Indian liquor 
production office in place of 
Tank no. 5

11. Permission for making following 
changes in primary distillery 
unit:
a. Installing a new 850 K.V. 
Turbine along with existing 300 
K.V
b. Installing 2 additional 
columns (Fuel oil column and 
head column) along with 
existing 3 columns  
c. Installing 5 condensers along 
with the existing 5
d. Installing 4 re-boilers along 
with existing one re boiler and 
the necessary pipelines for the 
same.  

Deputy 
Commissioner of 
Excise

ECD/16/REV/Be
lagavi/2013-14

April 23, 
2014

-

12. Permission to export liquor for 
the year 2016-17

Deputy 
Commissioner of 
Excise

ECD/26/Con/201
6

August 17, 
2016

-

13. Distillery License Excise 
Commissioner, 
Karnataka, 
Bengaluru

EX7DVISHWA
RAJES20190629
40

July 22,
2019

June 30, 
2020

14. License for the bottling of 
Liquor 

Excise 
Commissioner, 
Karnataka, 
Bengaluru

EX7DVISHWA
RAJES20190629
40

July 22,
2019

June 30, 
2020

15. License for possession and use 
of Molasses for the manufacture 
of Rectified Spirit viz. for 
manufacture of alcohol with a 
quota of 60,000 MT of molasses 
per annum 

Excise 
Commissioner, 
Karnataka, 
Bengaluru

EX29PDVISHW
ARAJSUGARM
2ES2019070240

August 6, 
2019

June 30, 
2020

16. License for possession and sale 
of molasses by the sugar factory 
of the Company

Excise 
Commissioner, 
Karnataka, 
Bengaluru

EX29SVISHWA
RAJASUGARS
ES201907038

July 16,
2018

June 30, 
2020

IV. TAX RELATED APPROVALS

Sr. 
No.

Description Authority Registration 
Number

Date of 
Certificate

Date of 
Expiry

1. Permanent Account Number 
(PAN)

Income Tax 
Department

AABCV1727H - Valid until 
cancelled

2. Tax Deduction Account 
Number (TAN)

Income Tax 
Department

BLRV03401G April 20, 
2004

Valid until 
cancelled

3. Tax Payer Identification Sales Tax Officer, 29610385979 September Valid until 
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Sr. 
No.

Description Authority Registration 
Number

Date of 
Certificate

Date of 
Expiry

Number (TIN) under 
Karnataka Value Added 
Tax Act, 2003

Sankeshwar 22, 2008 cancelled

4. Certificate certifying
that our Company has
been registered as a dealer 
under Section 22 of the 
Karnataka Value Added 
Tax Act, 2003

Value Added Tax
Registration
Certificate, VAT 
Sub-Office,
Sankeshwar

29610385979 March 21, 
2013

Valid until 
cancelled

5. Service Tax Registration for 
taxable service i.e. transport 
of goods by road

Superintendent of 
Central Excise,
Customs and Service 
Tax, Nipani Range

AABCV1727HST
001

Date of 
Issue of 
Original 
Registratio
n
Certificate: 
June 7, 
2007

Date of last 
amendment
: March 6, 
2013

Valid until 
cancelled

6. Central Excise
Registration Certificate for 
operating as a manufacturer 
of excisable goods at 
Ghataprabha Road, Bellad
Bagewadi, Hukkeri, 
Belgaum Karnataka

Superintendent of 
Customs and Central
Excise, Nipani Range

AABCV1727HX
M001

Date of 
Issue of 
Original 
Registratio
n
Certificate: 
June 29, 
2003

Date of last 
amendment
: February 
27, 2013

Valid until 
cancelled

7. Employees Provident Fund 
Registration

Assistant Provident
Fund Commissioner, 
Sub-regional Office, 
Hubli

MN/PF/HBL/EN
F/40236/659200

August 
24,2006

Valid until 
cancelled

8. Certificate of Registration 
issued under Karnataka Tax 
on Professions, Trades, 
Callings and Employments 
Act, 1976 

Professional Tax 
Officer, Sankeshwar

338118041 February 
16, 2013

Valid until 
cancelled

9. Certificate of Enrolment 
issued under Karnataka Tax 
on Professions, Trades, 
Callings and Employments 
Act, 1976

Professional Tax 
Officer, Sankeshwar

29610385979 April 24, 
2013

Valid until 
cancelled

10. Certificate of Registration 
under Goods and Service 
Tax Act, 2017

Government of India, 29AABCV1727H
IZA

September 
20, 2017

Valid until 
cancelled.

11. The Company has also obtained registration under the Central Sales Tax Act, 1956.
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V. INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY

Sr. No Particulars of the 
mark

Word/ 
Label 
Mark

Proprietor Trademark 
Number

Issuing 
Authority Class Status

(e) Device The 
Company

2152827 Trade Marks 
Registry, 
Chennai

33 Registered

(f) Device The 
Company

2152826 Trade Marks 
Registry, 
Chennai

30 Registered

Pending Approvals

1. Application dated June 23, 2018 for renewal of Crushing License for manufacturing sugar from sugarcane for the 
year 2018-19 for 8,500 TCD filed under Section 3 of Karnataka Sugar(Regulation of Production) Order, 1975.

2. Application dated August 27, 2019 for renewal of Boiler No. KTK 3478 with the Deputy Director of Boilers, 
Belgaum Division, Belgaum under Boilers Act, 1923.

3. Application dated August 27, 2019 for renewal of Boiler no. KTK 2760 with the Deputy Director of Boilers, 
Belgaum Division, Belgaum under Boilers Act, 1923.

Applications yet to be made

1. The Company had made an application dated June 01, 2017 to the State Excise Department under the Karnataka 
Excise Act 1965 for renewal of RS-2 license and for manufacture/possession of non-potable Rectified Spirit. The 
Office of the Commissioner of Excise vide letter dated July 15, 2017 has conveyed that the renewal of the RS-2
license no more falls under the purview of the State Excise Department and is now under the purview of the 
Central Government pursuant to Notification No. 27/2016 dated May 14, 2016. Thereafter, the Company has made 
efforts to file the said renewal application with the Central Government but the same has not been accepted since 
the Central Government is yet to establish the necessary administrative machinery for accepting the said 
application and issuing the requisite license.

2. The Company is in the process of making application to the Union of Orthodox Jewish Congregations of America 
for obtaining its certification as to kosher in respect of Natural Alcohol Vinegar.
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SECTION VIII - OTHER REGULATORY AND STATUTORY DISCLOSURES

Authority for the Offer

The Offer has been authorised by our Board pursuant to a resolution passed at its meeting held on November 20, 2017 
and the Shareholders have approved the Offer by a special resolution passed in accordance with Section 62(1) (c) of the 
Companies Act, 2013, at the EGM held on December 18, 2017.

The Selling Shareholders, pursuant to the Selling Shareholders’ Consent Letters, have given their consent to offer their 
Equity Shares in the Offer. Each Selling Shareholder, severally and not jointly, specifically confirms that, as required 
under Regulation 26(6) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, they have held their respective portion of the Offered Shares 
for a period of at least one year prior to the date of filing of the Draft Red Herring Prospectus.

Further, we confirm that:

a. none of the Selling Shareholders have/had been debarred from accessing or operating in capital markets under any
order or direction passed by SEBI or any other regulatory or governmental authority.

b. none of the companies, with which the selling shareholders are or were associated as promoters, directors or 
persons in control have been debarred from accessing or operating in capital markets under any order or direction 
passed by SEBI or any other regulatory or governmental authority.

c. none of the Selling Shareholders or any of the entities that selling shareholders are associated with are engaged in 
securities market related business or are registered with SEBI.

d. there has been no action taken by the SEBI against any selling shareholders or any entity in which selling 
shareholders are involved in as promoters or directors or any such action is pending.

e. none of the Selling Shareholders have been categorised as wilful defaulters by any bank or financial institution or 
consortium thereof, in accordance with the guidelines on wilful defaulters issued by the Reserve Bank of India.

f. None of our Selling Shareholders' are/were directors of company which were classified as "Vanishing Company'' 
by MCA.

In – principle Listing Approvals:

1. We have received in-principle approval from BSE for the listing of our Equity Shares pursuant to a letter dated 
January 12, 2018.

2. We have received in-principle approval from NSE for the listing of our Equity Shares pursuant to a letter dated 
January 10, 2018.

Prohibition by SEBI or other Governmental authorities

Our Company, our Promoter, our Directors, the members of the Promoter Group and our Group Companies have not 
been debarred from accessing or operating in capital markets or buying and selling or dealing in securities, under any 
order or direction passed by SEBI or any other regulatory or governmental authority / court as on date of this Red 
Herring Prospectus. The companies, with which our Promoter, our Directors or persons in control of our Company are 
or were associated as promoters, directors or persons in control have not been debarred from accessing or operating in 
capital markets under any order or direction passed by SEBI or any other regulatory or governmental authority.

The listing of any securities of our Company or Associates has never been refused at any time by any of the stock 
exchanges in India or abroad.

Directors associated with the Securities Market

None of our Directors or any of the entities that our Directors are associated with is engaged in securities market related 
business or is registered with SEBI. There has been no action taken by the SEBI against our Directors or any entity in 
which our Directors are involved in as promoters or directors.
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Prohibition with respect to wilful defaulters

Neither our Company, nor our Promoter, Directors, Group Companies, have been categorized as wilful defaulters by 
any bank or financial institution or consortium thereof, in accordance with the guidelines on wilful defaulters issued by 
the Reserve Bank of India.

Eligibility for the Offer

Our Company is eligible for the Offer in accordance with the eligibility criteria provided in Regulation 26(1) of the 
SEBI ICDR Regulations, and as calculated from the Restated Financial Statements prepared in accordance with the 
Companies Act, 2013 and restated in accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations:

� Our ��#�����������������
������������������������������������������������in each of the preceding three full years 
(of 12 months each) of which not more than 50% are held in monetary assets;

� Our Company has a minimum average pre-����������
�������
�������",500.00 lakhs ���"`���������calculated on a 
restated and consolidated basis, during the three most profitable years out of the immediately preceding five 
years;

� Our Company has a pre-Offer ������������������������"������������"��������in each of the three preceding full years 
(of 12 months each);

� the proposed offer size does not exceed five times the pre-offer net worth as per the audited accounts for the year 
ended March 31, 2019; and

� Our Company has not changed its name in the last one year.

The Company's pre-tax operating profit, net worth, net tangible assets and monetary assets derived from the restated 
financial statements included in this Red Herring Prospectus as at, and for the financial years ended March 31, 2019,
March 31, 2018, March 31, 2017, March 31, 2016 and March 31, 2015 are set forth below:

��������	
��
Particulars FY 2018-19 FY 2017-18 FY 2016-17 FY 2015-16 FY 2014-15

Net Tangible Assets(1) 21,149.69 22.887.95 23.248.79 22.609.26 22.989.42
Monetary Assets(2) 184.35 745.72 1,273.65 5,164.93 1,992.43 
Monetary assets as a percentage of the 
net tangible assets(1)(2) 0.87% 3.26% 5.48% 22.84% 8.67%

Pre-Tax Operating Profit(3) 1,139.00 1.034.05 3.432.83 2.226.34 1.168.20
Net Worth(4) 21149.69 22.887.95 23.248.79 22.609.26 22,989.42

Financial Year 2014-15, Financial Year 2015-16 and Financial Year 2016-17 are the three most profitable years out of 
the five immediately preceding financial years in terms of our Restated Financial Statements with Pre-Tax Operating 
Profit of � 1,168.20 ���������2,226.34 ��������*���3,432.83 lakhs on a standalone basis, respectively.  Our Company’s 
average Pre-Tax Operating Profit based on the three most profitable years out of the five immediately preceding 
Financial Years in terms of Restated $
����
���
����#�����
����2,275.79 lakhs on a standalone basis.

Notes

(1) 'Net tangible assets' is defined as the sum of fixed assets (including capital work-in-progress and excluding 
revaluation reserves), current assets (excluding deferred tax assets) less current liabilities (excluding deferred tax 
liabilities).

(2) ‘Monetary assets’ comprise of cash on hand, bank balances (including the deposits accounts and interest accrued 
thereon) and quoted Investments. 

(3) ‘Pre-tax operating profits’ comprise of profit from operations before finance expenses, other income and 
exceptional items.
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(4) 'Net worth' has been defined as the aggregate of the paid up share capital, share premium account, and reserves 
and surplus (excluding revaluation reserve) as reduced by the aggregate of the miscellaneous expenditure (to the 
extent not adjusted or written-off) and the debit balance of the profit and loss account.

Further, in accordance with Regulation 26(4) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, our Company shall ensure that the 
number of prospective allottees to whom the Equity Shares will be allotted will be not less than 1,000 failing which the 
entire application money shall be refunded. In case of delay, if any, in refund within such timeline as prescribed under 
applicable laws, our Company shall be liable to pay interest on the application money in accordance with applicable 
laws.

Our Company is in compliance with the conditions specified in Regulations 4(2) and 4(5)(a) of the SEBI ICDR 
Regulations.

DISCLAIMER CLAUSE OF SEBI

AS REQUIRED, A COPY OF THE DRAFT RED HERRING PROSPECTUS HAS BEEN SUBMITTED TO 
SEBI. IT IS TO BE DISTINCTLY UNDERSTOOD THAT SUBMISSION OF THE DRAFT RED HERRING 
PROSPECTUS TO SEBI SHOULD NOT, IN ANY WAY, BE DEEMED OR CONSTRUED TO MEAN THAT 
THE SAME HAS BEEN CLEARED OR APPROVED BY SEBI. SEBI DOES NOT TAKE ANY 
RESPONSIBILITY EITHER FOR THE FINANCIAL SOUNDNESS OF ANY SCHEME OR THE PROJECT 
FOR WHICH THIS OFFER IS PROPOSED TO BE MADE OR FOR THE CORRECTNESS OF THE 
STATEMENTS MADE OR OPINIONS EXPRESSED IN THE DRAFT RED HERRING PROSPECTUS. THE 
BOOK RUNNING LEAD MANAGER, ARYAMAN FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED HAS CERTIFIED 
THAT THE DISCLOSURES MADE IN THE DRAFT RED HERRING PROSPECTUS ARE GENERALLY 
ADEQUATE AND ARE IN CONFORMITY WITH THE SEBI (ISSUE OF CAPITAL AND DISCLOSURE 
REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2009, AS FOR THE TIME BEING IN FORCE. THIS REQUIREMENT 
IS TO FACILITATE INVESTORS TO TAKE AN INFORMED DECISION FOR MAKING AN 
INVESTMENT IN THE PROPOSED OFFER. 

IT SHOULD ALSO BE CLEARLY UNDERSTOOD THAT WHILE THE COMPANY IS PRIMARILY 
RESPONSIBLE FOR THE CORRECTNESS, ADEQUACY AND DISCLOSURE OF ALL RELEVANT 
INFORMATION IN THE DRAFT RED HERRING PROSPECTUS, THE BOOK RUNNING LEAD 
MANAGER, ARYAMAN FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED, IS EXPECTED TO EXERCISE DUE 
DILIGENCE TO ENSURE THAT THE COMPANY DISCHARGES ITS RESPONSIBILITY ADEQUATELY 
IN THIS BEHALF AND TOWARDS THIS PURPOSE, THE BOOK RUNNING LEAD MANAGER, 
ARYAMAN FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED, HAS FURNISHED TO SEBI A DUE DILIGENCE 
CERTIFICATE DATED DECEMBER 20, 2017, WHICH READS AS FOLLOWS:

WE, THE LEAD MERCHANT BANKERS TO THE ABOVE MENTIONED FORTHCOMING OFFER, 
STATE AND CONFIRM AS FOLLOWS:

1. WE HAVE EXAMINED VARIOUS DOCUMENTS INCLUDING THOSE RELATING TO LITIGATION 
LIKE COMMERCIAL DISPUTES, PATENT DISPUTES, DISPUTES WITH COLLABORATORS, ETC. 
AND OTHER MATERIAL IN CONNECTION WITH THE FINALISATION OF THE DRAFT RED 
HERRING PROSPECTUS PERTAINING TO THE SAID OFFER;

2. ON THE BASIS OF SUCH EXAMINATION AND THE DISCUSSIONS WITH THE COMPANY, ITS 
DIRECTORS AND OTHER OFFICERS, OTHER AGENCIES, AND INDEPENDENT VERIFICATION 
OF THE STATEMENTS CONCERNING THE OBJECTS OF THE OFFER, PRICE JUSTIFICATION 
AND THE CONTENTS OF THE DOCUMENTS AND OTHER PAPERS FURNISHED BY THE 
COMPANY, WE CONFIRM THAT:

(A) THE DRAFT RED HERRING PROSPECTUS FILED WITH SEBI IS IN CONFORMITY WITH THE
DOCUMENTS, MATERIALS AND PAPERS RELEVANT TO THE OFFER;

(B) ALL THE LEGAL REQUIREMENTS RELATING TO THE OFFER AS ALSO THE 
REGULATIONS, GUIDELINES, INSTRUCTIONS, ETC. FRAMED / ISSUED BY SEBI, THE 
CENTRAL GOVERNMENT, AND ANY OTHER COMPETENT AUTHORITY IN THIS BEHALF 
HAVE BEEN DULY COMPLIED WITH; AND
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(C) THE DISCLOSURES MADE IN THE DRAFT RED HERRING PROSPECTUS ARE TRUE, FAIR 
AND ADEQUATE TO ENABLE THE INVESTORS TO MAKE A WELL INFORMED DECISION AS 
TO THE INVESTMENT IN THE PROPOSED OFFER AND SUCH DISCLOSURES ARE IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 1956, THE 
COMPANIES ACT, 2013, THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE BOARD OF INDIA (ISSUE OF 
CAPITAL AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2009 AND OTHER 
APPLICABLE LEGAL REQUIREMENTS.

3. WE CONFIRM THAT BESIDES OURSELVES, ALL THE INTERMEDIARIES NAMED IN THE 
DRAFT RED HERRING PROSPECTUS ARE REGISTERED WITH SEBI AND THAT TILL DATE 
SUCH REGISTRATION IS VALID. – NOTED FOR COMPLIANCE

4. WE HAVE SATISFIED OURSELVES ABOUT THE CAPABILITY OF THE UNDERWRITERS TO 
FULFIL THEIR UNDERWRITING COMMITMENTS. – NOTED FOR COMPLIANCE

5. WE CERTIFY THAT WRITTEN CONSENT FROM PROMOTER HAS BEEN OBTAINED FOR 
INCLUSION OF THEIR EQUITY SHARES AS PART OF THE PROMOTERS’ CONTRIBUTION 
SUBJECT TO LOCK-IN AND THE EQUITY SHARES PROPOSED TO FORM PART OF 
PROMOTER’S CONTRIBUTION SUBJECT TO LOCK-IN, SHALL NOT BE DISPOSED / SOLD / 
TRANSFERRED BY THE PROMOTERS DURING THE PERIOD STARTING FROM THE DATE OF 
FILING THE DRAFT RED HERRING PROSPECTUS WITH SEBI TILL THE DATE OF 
COMMENCEMENT OF LOCK-IN PERIOD AS STATED IN THE DRAFT RED HERRING 
PROSPECTUS.

6. WE CERTIFY THAT REGULATION 33 OF THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE BOARD OF INDIA 
(ISSUE OF CAPITAL AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2009, WHICH 
RELATES TO SPECIFIED SECURITIES INELIGIBLE FOR COMPUTATION OF PROMOTERS 
CONTRIBUTION, HAS BEEN DULY COMPLIED WITH AND APPROPRIATE DISCLOSURES AS TO 
COMPLIANCE WITH THE SAID REGULATION HAVE BEEN MADE IN THE DRAFT RED 
HERRING PROSPECTUS. – NOTED FOR COMPLIANCE

7. WE UNDERTAKE THAT SUB-REGULATION (4) OF REGULATION 32 AND CLAUSE (C) AND (D) OF 
SUB-REGULATION (2) OF REGULATION 8 OF THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE BOARD OF 
INDIA (ISSUE OF CAPITAL AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2009 SHALL BE 
COMPLIED WITH. WE CONFIRM THAT ARRANGEMENTS HAVE BEEN MADE TO ENSURE 
THAT PROMOTERS’ CONTRIBUTION SHALL BE RECEIVED AT LEAST ONE DAY BEFORE THE 
OPENING OF THE OFFER. WE UNDERTAKE THAT AUDITORS’ CERTIFICATE TO THIS EFFECT 
SHALL BE DULY SUBMITTED TO SEBI. WE FURTHER CONFIRM THAT ARRANGEMENTS HAVE 
BEEN MADE TO ENSURE THAT PROMOTERS’ CONTRIBUTION SHALL BE KEPT IN AN 
ESCROW ACCOUNT WITH A SCHEDULED COMMERCIAL BANK AND SHALL BE RELEASED TO 
THE COMPANY ALONG WITH THE PROCEEDS OF THE PUBLIC OFFER. – NOT APPLICABLE

8. WE CERTIFY THAT THE PROPOSED ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY FOR WHICH THE FUNDS 
ARE BEING RAISED IN THE PRESENT OFFER FALL WITHIN THE ‘MAIN OBJECTS’ LISTED IN 
THE OBJECT CLAUSE OF THE MEMORANDUM OF ASSOCIATION OF THE COMPANY OR 
OTHER CHARTER OF THE COMPANY AND THAT THE ACTIVITIES WHICH HAVE BEEN 
CARRIED OUT UNTIL NOW ARE VALID IN TERMS OF THE OBJECT CLAUSE OF ITS 
MEMORANDUM OF ASSOCIATION. – COMPLIED WITH TO THE EXTENT APPLICABLE.

9. WE CONFIRM THAT NECESSARY ARRANGEMENTS HAVE BEEN MADE TO ENSURE THAT THE 
MONEYS RECEIVED PURSUANT TO THE OFFER ARE KEPT IN A SEPARATE BANK ACCOUNT 
AS PER THE PROVISIONS OF SUB-SECTION (3) OF SECTION 40 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 
AND THAT SUCH MONEYS SHALL BE RELEASED BY THE SAID BANK ONLY AFTER 
PERMISSION IS OBTAINED FROM ALL THE STOCK EXCHANGES MENTIONED IN THE DRAFT 
RED HERRING PROSPECTUS. WE FURTHER CONFIRM THAT THE AGREEMENT ENTERED 
INTO BETWEEN THE BANKERS TO THE OFFER AND THE COMPANY SPECIFICALLY 
CONTAINS THIS CONDITION – NOTED FOR COMPLIANCE.

10. WE CERTIFY THAT A DISCLOSURE HAS BEEN MADE IN THE DRAFT RED HERRING 
PROSPECTUS THAT THE INVESTORS SHALL BE GIVEN AN OPTION TO GET THE SHARES IN 
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DEMAT OR PHYSICAL MODE - NOT APPLICABLE. UNDER SECTION 29 OF THE COMPANIES 
ACT, 2013, EQUITY SHARES IN THE OFFER HAVE TO BE ISSUED IN DEMATERIALISED FORM 
ONLY;

11. WE CERTIFY THAT ALL THE APPLICABLE DISCLOSURES MANDATED IN THE SECURITIES 
AND EXCHANGE BOARD OF INDIA (ISSUE OF CAPITAL AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) 
REGULATIONS, 2009 HAVE BEEN MADE IN ADDITION TO DISCLOSURES WHICH, IN OUR 
VIEW, ARE FAIR AND ADEQUATE TO ENABLE THE INVESTOR TO MAKE A WELL INFORMED 
DECISION.

12. WE CERTIFY THAT THE FOLLOWING DISCLOSURES HAVE BEEN MADE IN THE DRAFT RED 
HERRING PROSPECTUS:

(A) AN UNDERTAKING FROM THE COMPANY THAT AT ANY GIVEN TIME, THERE SHALL BE 
ONLY ONE DENOMINATION FOR THE EQUITY SHARES OF THE COMPANY; AND

(B) AN UNDERTAKING FROM THE COMPANY THAT IT SHALL COMPLY WITH SUCH 
DISCLOSURE AND ACCOUNTING NORMS SPECIFIED BY SEBI FROM TIME TO TIME.

13. WE UNDERTAKE TO COMPLY WITH THE REGULATIONS PERTAINING TO ADVERTISEMENT 
IN TERMS OF THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE BOARD OF INDIA (ISSUE OF CAPITAL AND 
DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2009 WHILE MAKING THE OFFER – NOTED 
FOR COMPLIANCE

14. WE ENCLOSE A NOTE EXPLAINING HOW THE PROCESS OF DUE DILIGENCE HAS BEEN 
EXERCISED BY US IN VIEW OF THE NATURE OF CURRENT BUSINESS BACKGROUND OF THE 
COMPANY, SITUATION AT WHICH THE PROPOSED BUSINESS STANDS, THE RISK FACTORS, 
PROMOTERS EXPERIENCE, ETC.

15. WE ENCLOSE A CHECKLIST CONFIRMING REGULATION-WISE COMPLIANCE WITH THE 
APPLICABLE PROVISIONS OF THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE BOARD OF INDIA (ISSUE OF 
CAPITAL AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2009, CONTAINING DETAILS 
SUCH AS THE REGULATION NUMBER, ITS TEXT, THE STATUS OF COMPLIANCE, PAGE 
NUMBER OF THE DRAFT RED HERRING PROSPECTUS WHERE THE REGULATION HAS BEEN 
COMPLIED WITH AND OUR COMMENTS, IF ANY.

16. WE ENCLOSE STATEMENT ON ‘PRICE INFORMATION OF PAST ISSUES HANDLED BY 
MERCHANT BANKERS (WHO ARE RESPONSIBLE FOR PRICING THIS OFFER)’, AS PER 
FORMAT SPECIFIED BY THE SEBI THROUGH CIRCULAR;

17. WE CERTIFY THAT PROFITS FROM RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS HAVE ARISEN FROM 
LEGITIMATE BUSINESS TRANSACTIONS – COMPLIED WITH TO THE EXTENT OF THE 
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS REPORTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH ACCOUNTING 
STANDARD 18 / IND AS 24 IN THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE COMPANY INCLUDED IN 
THE DRAFT OFFER DOCUMENT.

18. WE CERTIFY THAT THE ENTITY IS ELIGIBLE UNDER 106Y (1) (A) OR (B) (AS THE CASE MAY 
BE) TO LIST ON THE INSTITUTIONAL TRADING PLATFORM, UNDER CHAPTER XC OF THESE 
REGULATIONS. (IF APPLICABLE). – NOT APPLICABLE

The filing of this Red Herring Prospectus does not, however, absolve our Company from any liabilities under Section 
34 or Section 36 of the Companies Act, 2013 or from the requirement of obtaining such statutory or other clearances as 
may be required for the purpose of the Offer. SEBI further reserves the right to take up, at any point of time, with the 
BRLM any irregularities or lapses in the Draft Red Herring Prospectus, this Red Herring Prospectus and the 
Prospectus.

The filing of this Red Herring Prospectus does not absolve the Selling Shareholders from any liability to the extent the 
statements made by them in respect of the Equity Shares being offered by them, respectively under the Offer for Sale, 
under Section 34 and Section 36 of the Companies Act, 2013.
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All legal requirements pertaining to the Offer will be complied with at the time of filing of the Red Herring Prospectus 
with the RoC in terms of Section 32 of the Companies Act, 2013. All legal requirements pertaining to the Offer will be 
complied with at the time of registration of the Prospectus with the RoC in terms of Sections 26, 28 and 32 of the 
Companies Act, 2013.

Price information of past issues handled by the BRLM

Price information of past issues (during current financial year and two financial years preceding the current financial 
year) handled by Aryaman Financial Services Limited.

Sr. 
No. Issue Name

Issue 
size 

(MM Cr.)

Issue 
Price 
(M)

Listing date

Opening 
price on   
listing 
date

+/- % change in 
Price on closing 

price, [+/- %
change in closing 
benchmark]- 30th

calendar days from 
listing

+/- % change in 
Price on closing 

price, [+/- %
change in closing 
benchmark]- 90th

calendar days from 
listing

+/- % change in 
Price on closing 

price, [+/- % change 
in closing 

benchmark]- 180th

calendar days from 
listing

1
Transpact 
Enterprises 
Limited

1.35 130.00 05/09/2019 132.50 N.A N.A N.A N.A N.A N.A

2
Meera 
Industries 
Limited(1)

11.75 225.00 26/06/2019 215.00 -6.04% -4.32% N.A N.A N.A N.A

3 Roopshri 
Resorts Ltd 3.60 20.00 01/04/2019 20.25 1.25% 0.41% 1.25% 1.34% N.A N.A

4 Gleam 
Fabmat Ltd 3.12 10.00 05/03/2019 9.00 -36.50% 6.15% -45.40% 10.50% -67.50% 2.44%

5 DRS Dilip 
Roadlines Ltd 31.50 75.00 10/12/2018 75.15 1.33% 3.50% 0.33% 5.21% 0.67% 13.18%

6
Roni 
Households 
Ltd

3.00 20.00 03/12/2018 20.05 25.00% -0.96% 25.00% -0.49% 25.50% 9.58%

7
Marine
Electricals 
India Ltd

42.87 66.00 11/10/2018 66.60 21.21% 3.43% 24.17% 6.06% 59.85% 14.04%

8 Silgo Retail 
Ltd 4.88 36.00 10/10/2018 36.45 0.00% 1.20% 0.00% 3.27% 1.39% 10.94%

9 Sky Gold Ltd 25.56 180 03/10/2018 180.45 2.22% -2.68% 0.58% 0.78% 1.11% 8.05%

10
Saketh Exim 
Ltd 9.44 69.00 13/08/2018 69.30 0.00% 0.12% 3.48% -6.79% 18.84% -3.63%

(1) Equity Shares of Meera Industries Limited was listed on May 15, 2017 on BSE Limited. Aryaman Financial Services 
Limited was appointed as lead manager for the Further Public Issue by the Company on BSE Limited pursuant to 
which its additional shares were listed on June 26, 2019.

Summary statement of price information of past issues (during current financial year and two financial years preceding 
the current financial year) handled by Aryaman Financial Services Limited

Financi
al Year

Total 
no. 
of 

IPOs

Total 
Funds 
Raised
(M in 
Cr.)

Nos. of IPOs trading at 
discount - 30th calendar 

day from listing day

Nos. of IPOs trading at 
premium - 30th calendar 

day from listing day

Nos. of IPOs trading at 
discount  - 180th calendar 

day from listing day

Nos. of IPOs trading at 
premium - 180th

calendar day from 
listing day

Over
50%

Betwee
n

25--50%

Less 
than 
25%

Over 
50%

Betwee
n

25--50%

Less 
than 
25%

Over
50%

Betwee
n

25--50%

Less 
than 
25%

Over
50%

Betwee
n

25--50%

Less 
than 
25%

2019-20 3(1) 16.70 - - 1 - - 1 - - - - - -
2018-19 14(2) 327.66 - - 1 - 1 9 - - 2 1 1 9
2017-18 16 318.24 1 1 4 1 1 8 3 3 3 0 0 6

(1) Details indicated in 2019-20 are for the public issues completed as on date
(2) As on the 30th and 90th Calendar day from the listing day, the price of Silgo Retail Limited and 30th Calendar day 
from the listing day, the price of Saketh Exim Limited is exactly equal to its Issue Price and hence it is neither trading 
at Premium or Discount
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Notes:

a) Since the listing date of Transpact Enterprises Limited, was September 05, 2019, information related to closing 
price and benchmark index as on the 30th Calendar day, 90th Calendar day and 180th Calendar day from the listing 
date is not available.

b) Since the listing date of Meera Industries Limited, was June 26, 2019, information related to closing price and 
benchmark index as on the 90th Calendar day and 180th Calendar day from the listing date is not available.

c) Since the listing date of Roopshri Resorts Limited was April 1, 2019, information related to closing price and 
benchmark index as on the 180th Calendar day from the listing date is not available.

d) The respective Designated Stock Exchange for each Issue has been considered as the Benchmark index for each of 
the above Issues.

e) In the event any day falls on a holiday, the price/index of the immediate preceding working day has been 
considered. If the stock was not traded on the said calendar days from the date of listing, the share price is taken of 
the immediately preceding trading day.

f) Source: www.bseindia.com and www.nseindia.com BSE Sensex and Nifty Fifty as the Benchmark Indices.

Track record of past issues handled by the Lead Manager

For details regarding the track record of the BRLM to the Offer as specified in Circular reference CIR/MIRSD/1/ 2012 
dated January 10, 2012 issued by the SEBI, please see the website of Aryaman Financial Services Limited –
www.afsl.co.in

Disclaimer from our Company, the Selling Shareholders and the BRLM

Our Company, the Selling Shareholders and the BRLM accept no responsibility for statements made otherwise than in 
this Red Herring Prospectus or in the advertisements or any other material issued by or at our Company’s instance and 
anyone placing reliance on any other source of information would be doing so at his or her own risk.

CAUTION

The BRLM accept no responsibility, save to the limited extent as provided in the MoU for Offer Management entered 
into among the BRLM, our Company and the Selling Shareholders dated December 18, 2017 and the Underwriting 
Agreement to be entered into between the Underwriters the Selling Shareholders and our Company. All information 
shall be made available by our Company, the Selling Shareholders and the BRLM to the public and investors at large 
and no selective or additional information would be available for a section of the investors in any manner whatsoever, 
including at road show presentations, in research or sales reports, at bidding centre’s or elsewhere.

None among our Company, Selling Shareholders or any member of the Syndicate shall be liable for any failure in 
uploading the Bids due to faults in any software / hardware system or otherwise. Bidders will be required to confirm 
and will be deemed to have represented to our Company, Underwriters and their respective directors, officers, agents, 
affiliates, and representatives that they are eligible under all applicable laws, rules, regulations, guidelines and 
approvals to acquire the Equity Shares and will not issue, sell, pledge, or transfer the Equity Shares to any person who 
is not eligible under any applicable laws, rules, regulations, guidelines and approvals to acquire the Equity Shares. 

Our Company, Selling Shareholders, Underwriters and their respective directors, officers, agents, affiliates, and 
representatives accept no responsibility or liability for advising any investor on whether such investor is eligible to 
acquire the Equity Shares. The BRLM and their respective associates and affiliates may engage in transactions with, 
and perform services for, our Company, Associates, the Promoter and Promoter Group and their respective directors 
and officers, group companies, affiliates or associates or third parties in the ordinary course of business and have 
engaged, or may in the future engage, in underwriting, commercial banking and investment banking transactions with 
our Company, Associates, the Promoter and Promoter Group and their respective group companies, affiliates or 
associates or third parties, for which they have received, and may in the future receive, compensation.
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None among our Company, the Selling Shareholders or any member of the Syndicate shall be liable for any failure in 
(i) uploading the Bids due to faults in any software/ hardware system or otherwise or (ii) the blocking of Bid Amount in 
the ASBA Account on receipt of instructions from the Sponsor Bank on account of any errors, omissions or non 
compliance by various parties involved in, or any other fault, malfunctioning or breakdown in, or otherwise, in the UPI 
Mechanism.

Disclaimer in Respect of Jurisdiction

This Offer is being made in India to persons resident in India (including Indian nationals resident in India, Hindu 
Undivided Families (“HUFs”), companies, other corporate bodies and societies registered under the applicable laws in 
India and authorized to invest in equity shares, Indian Mutual Funds registered with the SEBI, Indian financial 
institutions, commercial banks, regional rural banks, co-operative banks (subject to permission from the RBI), or trusts 
under the applicable trust laws, and who are authorized under their constitution to hold and invest in equity shares, 
public financial institutions as specified under Section 2(72) of the Companies Act, 2013, venture capital funds, 
permitted insurance companies and pension funds and, to permitted non-residents including Eligible NRIs, Eligible 
Qualified Foreign Investors (“QFIs”), Alternative Investment Funds (“AIFs”),Foreign Institutional Investors (“FIIs”), 
Foreign Portfolio Investors registered with SEBI (“FPIs”) and QIBs. Any dispute arising out of the Offer will be 
subject to the jurisdiction of appropriate court(s) in Mumbai, India only.

No action has been or will be taken to permit a public offering in any jurisdiction where action would be required for 
that purpose, except that the Draft Red Herring Prospectus has been filed with SEBI for its observations and Stock 
Exchanges. Accordingly, the Equity Shares, offered in the Offer may not be offered or sold, directly or indirectly, and 
this Red Herring Prospectus may not be distributed, in any jurisdiction, except in accordance with the legal 
requirements applicable in such jurisdiction. 

The Equity Shares have not been and will not be registered under the U.S. Securities Act, 1933 or any other 
applicable law of the United States and, unless so registered, and may not be offered or sold within the United 
States or to, or for the account or benefit of, U.S. persons (as defined in Regulation S under the Securities Act), 
except pursuant to an exemption from, or in a transaction not subject to, the registration requirements of the 
Securities Act and applicable state securities laws. Accordingly, the Equity Shares are being offered and sold 
outside the United States in offshore transactions in reliance on Regulation S under the Securities Act.

The Equity Shares have not been and will not be registered, listed or otherwise qualified in any other 
jurisdiction outside India and may not be offered or sold, and Bids may not be made by persons in any such 
jurisdiction, except in compliance with the applicable laws of such jurisdiction.

Bidders are advised to ensure that any Bid from them does not exceed investment limits or maximum number of 
Equity Shares that can be held by them under applicable law.

Neither the delivery of this Red Herring Prospectus nor any sale hereunder shall, under any circumstances, create any 
implication that there has been no change in the affairs of our Company from the date hereof or that the information 
contained herein is correct as of any time subsequent to this date.

Disclaimer Clause of BSE

“BSE Limited (“the Exchange”) has given vide its letter dated January 12, 2018 permission to this Company to use the 
Exchange’s name in this offer document as one of the stock exchanges on which this company’s securities are proposed 
to be listed. The Exchange has scrutinised this offer document for its limited internal purpose of deciding on the matter 
of granting the aforesaid permission to this Company. The Exchange does not in any manner:

a. warrant, certify or endorse the correctness or completeness of any of the contents of this offer document; or

b. warrant that this Company’s securities will be listed or will continue to be listed on the Exchange; or

c. take any responsibility for the financial or other soundness of this Company, its promoter, its management or any 
scheme or project of this Company;

and it should not for any reason be deemed or construed that this offer document has been cleared or approved by the 
Exchange. Every person who desires to apply for or otherwise acquires any securities of this Company may do so 
pursuant to independent inquiry, investigation and analysis and shall not have any claim against the Exchange 
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whatsoever by reason of any loss which may be suffered by such person consequent to or in connection with such 
subscription/ acquisition whether by reason of anything stated or omitted to be stated herein or for any other reason 
whatsoever.

Disclaimer Clause of NSE

As required, a copy of this Offer Document has been submitted to National Stock Exchange of India Limited 
(hereinafter referred to as NSE). NSE has given vide its letter Ref.: NSE/LIST/0016 dated January 10, 2018 permission 
to the Issuer to use the Exchange’s name in this Offer Document as one of the stock exchanges on which this Issuer’s 
securities are proposed to be listed. The Exchange has scrutinized this draft offer document for its limited internal 
purpose of deciding on the matter of granting the aforesaid permission to this Issuer. It is to be distinctly understood 
that the aforesaid permission given by NSE should not in any way be deemed or construed that the offer document has 
been cleared or approved by NSE; nor does it in any manner warrant, certify or endorse the correctness or completeness 
of any of the contents of this offer document; nor does it warrant that this Issuer’s securities will be listed or will 
continue to be listed on the Exchange; nor does it take any responsibility for the financial or other soundness of this 
Issuer, its promoter, its management or any scheme or project of this Issuer.

Every person who desires to apply for or otherwise acquire any securities of this Issuer may do sopursuant to 
independent inquiry, investigation and analysis and shall not have any claim against the Exchange whatsoever by 
reason of any loss which may be suffered by such person consequent to or inconnection with such subscription 
/acquisition whether by reason of anything stated or omitted to be stated herein or any other reason whatsoever.

Filing of Prospectus with SEBI and the RoC

A copy of the Draft Red Herring Prospectus has been filed with SEBI at 7th Floor, 756-L, Anna Salai, Chennai – 600
002, Tamil Nadu. 

A copy of the Red Herring Prospectus, along with the documents required to be filed, will be delivered to the RoC in 
accordance with Section 32 of the Companies Act, 2013, and a copy of the Prospectus required to be filed under 
Section 26 of the Companies Act, 2013 will be delivered to the RoC at ‘E’ Wing, 2nd Floor, Kendriya Sadan, Bangalore 
– 560 034.

Listing

The Equity Shares issued through the Red Herring Prospectus are proposed to be listed on BSE and NSE. Applications 
will be made to the BSE and the NSE for permission to list the Equity Shares and for an official quotation of the Equity 
Shares of our Company. BSE Ltd. shall be the Designated Stock Exchange with which the Basis of Allotment will be 
finalised.

If the permissions to deal in, and for an official quotation of, the Equity Shares are not granted by any of the Stock 
Exchanges mentioned above, our Company and the Selling Shareholders will forthwith repay without interest, all 
moneys received from the applicants in pursuance of the Red Herring Prospectus as required by applicable law. If such 
money is not repaid within the prescribed time, then our Company, the Selling Shareholders and every officer in default 
shall be liable to repay the money, with interest, as prescribed under applicable law.

Our Company shall ensure that all steps for the completion of the necessary formalities for listing and commencement 
of trading of the Equity Shares at all the Stock Exchanges mentioned above are taken within six Working Days from 
the Bid / Offer Closing Date. Further, the Selling Shareholders confirm that they shall extend all reasonable co-
operation required by our Company, the BRLM for the completion of the necessary formalities for listing and 
commencement of trading at all the Stock Exchanges where the Equity Shares are proposed to be listed within six 
Working Days of the Bid / Offer Closing Date or such other timeline as prescribed by law.

The Selling Shareholders severally and not jointly undertake to provide such reasonable support and extend reasonable 
cooperation as may be requested by our Company, to the extent such support and cooperation is required from such 
party to facilitate the process of listing and commencement of trading of the Equity Shares on the Stock Exchanges.

Expenses for the Offer shall be shared amongst the Company and the Selling Shareholders in the manner specified in 
the section entitled “Objects of the Offer” on page no. 102 of this Red Herring Prospectus.
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Impersonation 

Attention of the Bidders is specifically drawn to the provisions of sub-section (1) of Section 38 of the Companies Act, 
2013 which is reproduced below:

“Any person who –

a) makes or abets making of an application in a fictitious name to a company for acquiring, or subscribing for, its 
securities, or

b) makes or abets making of multiple applications to a company in different names or in different combinations of 
his name or surname for acquiring or subscribing for its securities; or

c) otherwise induces directly or indirectly a company to allot, or register any transfer of, securities to him, or to 
any other person in a fictitious name, shall be liable for action under section 447.”

The liability prescribed under Section 447 of the Companies Act, 2013 includes imprisonment for a term of not less 
than six months extending up to 10 years (provided that where the fraud involves public interest, such term shall not be 
less than three years) and fine of an amount not less than the amount involved in the fraud, extending up to three times 
of such amount.

Consents

Consents in writing of our Directors; our Company Secretary and Compliance Officer, our Chief Financial Officer; our 
Statutory Auditors; Bankers to our Company; Share Escrow Agent(1); Escrow Collection Bank(s)(1); Refund Bank(s)(1);
Syndicate Members(1); BRLM, the Registrar, Underwriter(s)(1) and the Legal Advisor to the Offer to act in their 
respective capacities, have been obtained and will be filed along with a copy of the Red Herring Prospectus with the 
RoC as required under Sections 26 and Section 32 of the Companies Act and such consents have not been withdrawn 
up to the time of delivery of the Red Herring Prospectus for registration with the RoC.

(1) The aforesaid will be appointed prior to filing of the Red Herring Prospectus with RoC and their consents as above 
would be obtained prior to the filing of the Red Herring Prospectus with RoC.

In accordance with the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI ICDR Regulations, the Statutory Auditors, M/s. Gojanur & 
Co, Chartered Accountants, have given their written consent to the inclusion of the report dated July 08, 2019 on 
Restated Financial Statements and the report dated July 08, 2019 on the Statement of Tax Benefits in this Red Herring 
Prospectus and such consent have not been withdrawn as on the date of this Red Herring Prospectus.

Expert Opinion

Except for the Statutory Auditor’s report dated July 08, 2019 on the Restated Financial Statements of our Company and 
the report dated July 08, 2019 on the Statement of Tax Benefits, our Company has not obtained any expert opinions.

However, the term “expert” shall not be construed to mean an “expert” as defined under the U.S. Securities Act.

Offer Expenses

The expenses of this Offer include, among others, underwriting and management fees, selling commissions, bidding 
charges, printing and distribution expenses, legal fees, statutory advertisement expenses, registrar and depository fees, 
filing fees, auditor’s fees and listing fees. For further details of Offer expenses, please see the section entitled “Objects 
of the Offer” on page no. 102 of this Red Herring Prospectus.

Expenses for the Offer shall be shared amongst the Company and the Selling Shareholders in the manner specified in 
the section entitled “Objects of the Offer – Offer Related Expenses” on page no. 105 of this Red Herring Prospectus.

Fees payable to the Registrar to the Offer

The fees payable by our Company and the Selling Shareholders to the Registrar to the Offer for processing of 
applications, data entry, printing of Allotment Advice / CAN / refund order, preparation of refund data on magnetic 
tape, printing of bulk mailing register will be as per the agreement dated November 27, 2017 entered into, between our 
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Company, the Selling Shareholders and the Registrar to the Offer a copy of which is available for inspection at the 
Registered Office.

The Registrar to the Offer will be reimbursed for all out-of-pocket expenses including cost of stationery, postage, and 
stamp duty and communication expenses. Adequate funds will be provided to the Registrar to the Offer to enable it to 
send refund orders or Allotment advice by registered post / speed post / under certificate of posting.

Fees, Brokerage and Selling Commission payable

The total fees payable to the BRLM, Underwriters and Syndicate Members (including underwriting commission, 
selling commission and reimbursement of their out-of-pocket expense) will be as per the MoU dated December 18, 
2017����*����
�
��������#����*���*�������*�����
��*
����������#����*���*�August 26, 2019.

CAPITAL ISSUE DURING THE LAST FIVE YEARS

Previous Rights and Public Issues

There have been no public or rights issues undertaken by our Company during the five years preceding the date of this 
Red Herring Prospectus. However, during the period October 01, 2007 to March 31, 2008, we had made certain 
allotments and in FY 2013-14 there have been certain transfers which may be perceived as a Public Offer. For details of 
the allotment and transfers and regarding the developments in the said matter please refer the “Risk Factor - We have in 
the past, made certain issuances and allotments of our equity shares which may not be in compliance with the 
applicable provisions and rules of the Companies Act, 1956.” and “Capital Structure – Notes to Capital Structure” on 
page nos. 17 and 70 of this Red Herring Prospectus.

Previous Issues of Shares otherwise than for Cash

Except as disclosed in the chapter “Capital Structure” on page no. 69 of this Red Herring Prospectus, our Company 
has not issued any securities for consideration other than cash.

Underwriting commission, brokerage and selling commission on previous issues

Since this is the initial public offering of the Equity Shares, no sum has been paid or is payable as commission or 
brokerage for subscribing to or procuring for, or agreeing to procure subscription for any of the Equity Shares of our 
Company since inception.

Capital Issues in the last three (3) years by Listed Group Companies / Subsidiaries / Associates

None of our Group Companies / Associates is listed on any Stock Exchange and hence there is no Capital Issue. 
Further, we do not have any subsidiary as on date of this Red Herring Prospectus.

PERFORMANCE VIS-À-VIS OBJECTS

Issuer Company

Our Company has not undertaken any previous public or rights issue in the last 10 years preceding the date of this Red 
Herring Prospectus.

Listed Group Companies / Subsidiaries / Associate Companies

None of our Group Companies / Associates is listed on any Stock Exchange and has not made any rights and public 
issues in the past ten (10) years. Further, we do not have any subsidiary as on date of this Red Herring Prospectus.

OUTSTANDING DEBENTURES OR BOND ISSUES OR REDEEMABLE PREFERENCE SHARES AND 
OTHER INSTRUMENTS ISSUED BY THE COMPANY

Except as stated in the chapter “Capital Structure” and “History and Certain Corporate Matters” on page nos. 69 and 
166 respectively, our Company has no outstanding debentures, bonds or redeemable preference shares as of the date of 
this Red Herring Prospectus.
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Partly Paid-Up Shares

As on the date of this Red Herring Prospectus, there are no partly paid up Equity Shares of our Company.

Stock Market Data for our Equity Shares of our Company

This being an initial public offering of our Company, the Equity Shares of our Company are not listed on any stock 
exchange.

DISPOSAL OF INVESTOR GRIEVANCES

Mechanism for redressal of investor grievances 

The agreement dated November 27, 2017 between the Registrar to the Offer, the Selling Shareholders and our 
Company provides for retention of records with the Registrar to the Offer for a period of at least three years from the 
last date of despatch of the letters of Allotment, demat credit and refund orders to enable the investors to approach the 
Registrar to the Offer for redressal of their grievances. 

All grievances relating to the Offer may be addressed to the Registrar to the Offer, with a copy to the relevant SCSB 
and the Syndicate Members at the Specified Locations with whom the Bid cum Application Form was submitted. 

All grievances relating to the Offer may be addressed to the Registrar to the Offer, giving full details such as name, 
application number, address of the applicant, number of Equity Shares applied for, the Bid Amount paid on submission 
of the Bid cum Application Form, the Depository Participant and the bank branch or collection centre where the Bid 
cum Application Form was submitted. 

In addition to the information indicated above, the ASBA Bidder should also specify the Designated Branch or the 
collection centre of the SCSB or the address of the centre of the Syndicate Member at the Specified Locations or the 
Registered Broker at the Broker Centre where the Bid cum Application Form was submitted by the ASBA Bidder. 

Further, with respect to the Bid cum Application Forms submitted with the Registered Brokers, the investor shall also 
enclose the acknowledgment from the Registered Broker in addition to the documents/information mentioned 
hereinabove.

The Registrar to the Offer shall obtain the required information from the SCSBs for addressing any clarifications or 
grievances of ASBA Bidders. Our Company, the Selling Shareholders, the BRLM and the Registrar to the Offer accept 
no responsibility for errors, omissions, commission or any acts of SCSBs including any defaults in complying with its 
obligations under applicable ICDR Regulations. Investors can contact the Compliance Officer or the Registrar to the 
Offer in case of any pre-Offer or post-Offer related problems such as non-receipt of letters of Allotment, non-credit of 
Allotted Equity Shares in the respective beneficiary account, non-receipt of refund intimations and non-receipt of funds 
by electronic mode.

Disposal of Investor Grievances by our Company

Our Company estimates that the average time required by our Company or the Registrar to the Offer or the SCSB in 
case of ASBA Bidders, for the redressal of routine investor grievances shall be 10 Working Days from the date of 
receipt of the complaint. In case of non-routine complaints and complaints where external agencies are involved, our 
Company will seek to redress these complaints as expeditiously as possible.

Our Board by a resolution on December 18, 2017 re-constituted the Stakeholders Relationship Committee. The 
composition of the current Stakeholders Relationship Committee is as follows:

Name of the Member Nature of Directorship Designation in Committee
Shivanand Tubachi Non Executive Independent Director Chairman
Lava Katti Whole-time Director Member
Nikhil Katti Managing Director Member

For details, please refer to the chapter “Our Management” on page no. 171 of this Red Herring Prospectus.
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Our Company has appointed Sneha Patil, Company Secretary of our Company, as Compliance Officer who would 
directly deal with SEBI office with respect to implementation of various laws, rules, regulations and other directives 
issued by SEBI and matters related to investor complaints. For details, please refer the chapter titled “General 
Information” on page no. 61 of this Red Herring Prospectus.

Status of Investor Complaints

We confirm that we have not received any investor compliant during the three years preceding the date of this Red 
Herring Prospectus and also there are no pending investor complaints as on the date of this Red Herring Prospectus.

Disposal of Investor Grievances by Listed Companies under the same Management as the Company

No company under the same management as the Company has made any public issue (including any rights issues to the 
public) during the last three years and hence there are no pending investor grievances.

Changes in Auditors

Except as disclosed below, there has been no change in the statutory auditors of our Company during the last three 
years preceding the date of this Red Herring Prospectus:

Sr. No. Date From To
1. September 30, 2017 P.G. Ghali & Co, Chartered Accountants Gojanur & Co, Chartered Accountants

Capitalization of Reserves or Profits

Our Company has not capitalized its reserves or profits at any time during the last five years, except as stated in the 
chapter “Capital Structure” on page no. 69 of this Red Herring Prospectus.

Revaluation of Assets

Our Company has not re – valued its assets since incorporation.
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SECTION IX – OFFER RELATED INFORMATION

TERMS OF THE OFFER

The Equity Shares being offered and transferred pursuant to this Offer are subject to the provisions of the Companies 
Act, the SCRA, SCRR, SEBI ICDR Regulations, our Memorandum and Articles of Association, the terms of the Draft 
Red Herring Prospectus, this Red Herring Prospectus, the Prospectus, the Abridged Prospectus, the Bid cum 
Application Form, the Revision Form, CAN, the Allotment Advice, the SEBI Listing Regulations and other terms and 
conditions as may be incorporated in the Allotment Advice and other documents or certificates that may be executed in 
respect of this Offer. The Equity Shares shall also be subject to all applicable laws, guidelines, rules, notifications and 
regulations relating to the offer of capital and listing and trading of securities offered from time to time by the SEBI, 
the GoI, the Stock Exchanges, the RoC, the RBI, the FIPB and/or other authorities, as in force on the date of this Offer 
and to the extent applicable or such other conditions as may be prescribed by such governmental, regulatory or 
statutory authority while granting its approval for the Offer.

Offer for Sale

The Offer consists of a Fresh Offer by our Company and an Offer for Sale by the Selling Shareholders. The object of 
the Offer for Sale is to allow the Selling Shareholders to sell an aggregate of up to 70,00,000 Equity Shares held by 
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Shareholders in proportion to the number of Equity Shares being issued or offered, as the case may be, by each of them 
in the Fresh Offer and the Offer for Sale, in accordance with applicable law. Any payments by our Company in relation 
to the Offer on behalf of the Selling Shareholders shall be reimbursed by the Selling Shareholders to our Company in 
proportion to the Equity Shares being offered for sale by each of the Selling Shareholders in the Offer.

Ranking of the Equity Shares

The Equity Shares being offered and transferred in the Offer shall be subject to the provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013, Companies Act, 1956 (to the extent applicable), our Memorandum and Articles of Association and shall rank 
pari passu in all respects with the existing Equity Shares including rights in respect of dividend and other corporate 
benefits if any, declared by our Company after the date of Allotment. For further details, see “Main Provisions of the 
Articles of Association” on page no. 347 of this Red Herring Prospectus.

Mode of Payment of Dividend

Our Company shall pay dividends, if declared, to shareholders of our Company as per the provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013, our Memorandum and Articles, the SEBI Listing Regulations and other applicable law. All dividends, if 
any, declared by our Company after the date of Allotment (pursuant to the transfer of Equity Shares from the Offer for 
Sale), will be payable to the Bidders who have been Allotted Equity Shares in the Offer, for the entire year, in 
accordance with applicable law. For further details in relation to dividends, see “Dividend Policy” and “Main 
Provisions of the Articles of Association” on page nos. 201 and 347, respectively of this Red Herring Prospectus.

Face Value and Offer Price

The face value ���������	
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Company and the Selling Shareholders, in consultation with the BRLM, and advertised all editions of the English 
national daily newspaper Business Standard and all editions of the Hindi national daily newspaper Business Standard 
and Belgaum edition  of Kannada daily newspaper Kannada Prabha (Kannada being the regional language in the state 
where our Company’s Registered Office is located), each with wide circulation, respectively, at least two Working 
Days prior to the Bid/ Offer Opening Date and shall be made available to the Stock Exchanges for the purpose of 
uploading on their website. The Price Band, along with the relevant financial ratios calculated at the Floor Price and at 
the Cap Price, shall be pre-filled in the Bid cum Application Forms available at the websites of the Stock Exchanges. 
The Offer Price shall be determined by our Company and the Investor Selling Shareholders, in consultation with the 
BRLM, after the Bid/Offer Closing Date, on the basis of assessment of market demand for the Equity Shares offered by 
way of Book Building Process. At any given point of time there shall be only one denomination for the Equity Shares.
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Compliance with SEBI Rules and Regulations 

In connection with the Offer, Allotment and transfer of the Equity Shares in the Offer, the Company shall comply with 
applicable disclosures and accounting norms specified by SEBI from time to time.

Rights of the Equity Shareholders

Subject to applicable laws, the equity shareholders of our Company shall have the following rights:

� the right to receive dividend, if declared;

� the right to attend general meetings and exercise voting powers, unless prohibited by law;

� the right to vote on a poll either in person or by proxy;

� the right to receive offers for rights shares and be allotted bonus shares, if announced;

� the right to receive surplus on liquidation subject to any statutory and other preferential claims being satisfied;

� the right of free transferability of Equity Shares , subject to applicable law, including RBI rules and regulations, if 
any; and

� such other rights, as may be available to a shareholder of a listed public company under the Companies Act the 
terms of the listing agreements executed with the Stock Exchanges, and the Memorandum and Articles of 
Association of our Company.

For a detailed description of the main provisions of the Articles of Association such as those dealing with voting rights, 
dividend, forfeiture and lien, transfer and transmission and / or consolidation / splitting, please refer to the chapter 
“Main Provisions of the Articles of Association” on page no. 347 of this Red Herring Prospectus.

Market Lot and Trading Lot

Under Section 29 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Equity Shares shall be allotted only in dematerialized form for all 
investors. 

In this context, two agreements have been signed among our Company, the respective Depositories and the Registrar to 
the Offer:

� Agreement dated  April 23, 2019 among CDSL, our Company and the Registrar to the Offer; and

� Agreement dated December 28, 2017 among NSDL, our Company and the Registrar to the Offer

Since trading of the Equity Shares is in dematerialized mode, the tradable lot is one Equity Share. Allocation and 
allotment of Equity Shares through the Offer will be done only in electronic form, in multiple of one Equity Share, 
�	�¥���������#
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�����*������#��t, please refer to the chapter 
“Offer Procedure” on page no. 330 Red Herring Prospectus.

Joint Holders

Subject to our Articles, where two or more persons are registered as the holders of any Equity Shares, they shall be 
deemed to hold the same as joint-tenants with benefits of survivorship.

Jurisdiction 

The courts of Mumbai, India will have exclusive jurisdiction in relation to this Offer.

Nomination facility to investors

In accordance with Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Share Capital and Debenture) 
Rules, 2014, as amended, the sole or First Bidder, along with other joint Bidders, may nominate anyone person in 
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whom, in the event of the death of the sole Bidder or in case of joint Bidders, the death of all the Bidders, as the case 
may be, the Equity Shares Allotted, if any, shall vest to the exclusion of all other persons, unless the nomination is 
varied or cancelled in the prescribed manner. A person, being a nominee, entitled to the Equity Shares by reason of 
death of the original holder(s), shall be entitled to the same advantages to which such person would be entitled if such 
person were the registered holder of the Equity Share(s). Where the nominee is a minor, the holder(s) may make a 
nomination to appoint, in the prescribed manner, any person to become entitled to the Equity Share(s) in the event of 
his or her death during the minority. A nomination shall stand rescinded upon a sale or transfer of Equity Share(s) by 
the person nominating. A nomination may be cancelled or varied by nominating any other person in place of the 
present nominee by the holder of the Equity Shares who has made the nomination by giving a notice of such 
cancellation. A buyer will be entitled to make a fresh nomination in the manner prescribed. A fresh nomination can be 
made only on the prescribed form, which is available on request at our Registered Office or with the registrar and 
transfer agents of our Company.

Any person who becomes a nominee by virtue of Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013 as mentioned above, shall, 
upon the production of such evidence as may be required by our Board, elect either:

� to register himself or herself as the holder of the Equity Shares; or

� to make such transfer of the Equity Shares, as the deceased holder could have made.

Further, the Board may at any time give notice requiring any nominee to choose either to be registered himself or 
herself or to transfer the Equity Shares, and if the notice is not complied with within a period of ninety days, the Board 
may thereafter withhold payment of all dividends, bonuses or other monies payable in respect of the Equity Shares, 
until the requirements of the notice have been complied with.

Since the allotment of Equity Shares in the Offer will be made only in dematerialized mode, there is no need to make a 
separate nomination with our Company. Nominations registered with respective depository participant of the applicant 
would prevail. If the investors require changing the nomination, they are requested to inform their respective depository 
participant.

Bid/Offer Program

Bid / Offer Opens On September 30, 2019
Bid / Offer Closes On October 04, 2019

An indicative timetable in respect of the offer is set out below:

Event Indicative Date
Bid / Offer Closing Date October 04, 2019
Finalisation of Basis of Allotment with the Designated Stock Exchange on or before October 11, 2019
Initiation of Refunds / unblocking of funds from ASBA Account on or before October 14, 2019
Credit of Equity Shares to demat account of the Allottees on or before October 15, 2019
Commencement of trading of the Equity Shares on the Stock Exchanges on or before October 16, 2019

The above timetable is indicative and does not constitute any obligation on our Company, Selling Shareholders or the 
BRLM. Whilst our Company shall ensure that all steps for the completion of the necessary formalities for the listing 
and the commencement of trading of the Equity Shares on the Stock Exchanges are taken within 6 Working Days of the 
Bid / Offer Closing Date, the timetable may change due to various factors, such as extension of the Bid / Offer Period 
by our Company and the Selling Shareholders, revision of the Price Band or any delay in receiving the final listing and 
trading approval from the Stock Exchanges. The commencement of trading of the Equity Shares will be entirely at the 
discretion of the Stock Exchanges and in accordance with the applicable laws. The Selling Shareholders confirms that it 
shall extend complete co-operation required by our Company and the BRLM for the completion of the necessary 
formalities for listing and commencement of trading of the Equity Shares at the Stock Exchanges within six Working 
Days from the Bid/Offer Closing Date.

Bids and any revision in Bids will be accepted only between 10.00 a.m. and 5.00 p.m. (Indian Standard Time) during 
the Bidding Period at the Bidding centers mentioned in the Bid-cum-Application Form or, in case of Bids submitted 
through ASBA, at the Designated Branches (a list of such branches is available at the website of the SEBI at 
http://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/home/list/5/33/0/0/Recognised-Intermediaries) or with the members of the Syndicate at 
the Specified Locations or with the Registered Brokers at the Broker Centers (a list of such Broker Centers is available 



Page | 326

at the websites of the Stock Exchanges), as the case may be. On the Bid/Offer Closing Date (which for QIBs will be a 
day prior to the Bid / Offer Closing Date for other non-QIB Bidders), Bids shall be accepted only between 10.00 a.m. 
and 3.00 p.m. (Indian Standard Time) and uploaded until (i) 4.00 p.m. in case of Bids by QIB Bidders and Non-
Institutional Bidders; and until (ii) 5.00 p.m. or such extended time as may be permitted by the Stock Exchanges, in 
case of Bids by Retail Individual Bidders, after taking into account the total number of applications received up to the 
closure of timings and reported by BRLM to the Stock Exchanges. It is clarified that Bids not uploaded on the 
electronic bidding system would be rejected.

Due to limitation of time available for uploading the Bids on the Bid / Offer Closing Date, the Bidders other than QIB 
Bidders are advised to submit their Bids one day prior to the Bid/Offer Closing Date and, in any case, no later than 3.00 
p.m. (Indian Standard Time) on the Bid / Offer Closing Date. Any time mentioned in this Red Herring Prospectus, 
unless specifically mentioned otherwise, is in Indian Standard Time. Bidders other than QIB Bidders are cautioned that 
in the event a large number of Bids are received on the Bid / Offer Closing Date, as is typically experienced in public 
offerings, which may lead to some Bids not being uploaded due to lack of sufficient time to upload, such Bids that 
cannot be uploaded will not be considered for allocation in the Offer. If such Bids are not uploaded, our Company and 
the Syndicate shall not be responsible. Bids will be accepted only on working days, i.e., Monday to Friday (excluding 
any public holiday). None among our Company, the Selling Shareholders or any member of the Syndicate is liable for 
any failure in (i) uploading the Bids due to faults in any software/ hardware system or otherwise, (ii) the blocking of 
Bid Amount in the ASBA Account on receipt of instructions from the Sponsor Bank on account of any errors, 
omissions or noncompliance by various parties involved in, or any other fault, malfunctioning or breakdown in, or 
otherwise, in the UPI Mechanism.

On the Bid / Offer Closing Date, extension of time will be granted by the Stock Exchanges only for uploading the Bids 
received by Retail Individual Bidders, after taking into account the total number of Bids received and reported by the 
BRLM to the Stock Exchanges within half an hour of such closure.

Our Company and the Selling Shareholders, in consultation with the BRLM, reserve the right to revise the Price Band 
during the Bidding Period in accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations. Under the SEBI ICDR Regulations, the Cap 
Price should not be more than 20% of the Floor Price i.e., the Cap Price shall be less than or equal to 120% of the Floor 
Price. Subject to compliance with the immediately preceding sentence, the revised Floor Price Band can move up or 
down to the extent of 20% of the Floor Price and the Cap Price will be revised accordingly.

In case of revision in the Price Band, the Bid/Offer Period will be extended for at least three (3) additional 
Working Days after revision of the Price Band subject to the Bid / Offer Period not exceeding ten (10) Working 
Days. Any revision in the Price Band and the revised Bid / Offer Period, if applicable, will be widely 
disseminated by notification to the Stock Exchanges, by issuing a press release, and also by indicating the change 
on the websites of the BRLM at the terminals of the other members of the Syndicate.

In case of discrepancy in the data entered in the electronic book vis-à-vis the data contained in the physical Bid cum 
Application Form, for a particular Bidder, the details as per the Bid file received from the Stock Exchanges may be 
taken as the final data for the purpose of Allotment. In case of discrepancy in the data entered in the electronic book  
vis-à-vis the data contained in the physical or electronic Bid cum Application Form, for a particular ASBA Bidder, the 
Registrar to the Offer shall ask the relevant SCSB or the member of the Syndicate for rectified data.

It is clarified that Bids not uploaded on the electronic bidding system or in respect of which the full Bid Amount 
is not blocked by SCSBs would be rejected.

Minimum Subscription

In the event our Company does not receive (i) a minimum subscription of 90% of the Offer, and (ii) a subscription in 
the Offer equivalent to minimum number of securities as specified in Rule 19(2) of the SCRR, including through 
devolvement to the Underwriters, as applicable, our Company shall forthwith refund the entire subscription amount
received no later than 15 days from the Bid / Offer Closing Date, failing which, the directors of our Company who are 
officers in default shall jointly and severally be liable to repay that money with interest at the rate of 15% per annum. If 
there is a delay beyond such period, our Company shall pay such interest prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013, 
read with the applicable rules framed thereunder. The Selling Shareholders shall reimburse to our Company, on a pro-
rata basis, any expense incurred by our Company on their behalf with regard to refunds, interest for delays, etc., for the 
Equity Shares being offered in the Offer in proportion of the Equity Shares offered for sale pursuant to the Offer 
provided that subject to applicable law, a Selling Shareholder shall not be responsible to reimburse any interest unless 
such delay has been caused by such Selling Shareholder, in which case the Company shall be responsible for payment 
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of such interest. Our Company in consultation with the BRLM, reserve the right not to proceed with the Offer for any 
reason at any time after the Bid / Offer Opening Date but before the Allotment of Equity Shares. The requirement for 
minimum subscription is not applicable to the Offer for Sale.

In the event of an undersubscription in the Offer, Equity Shares offered pursuant to the Fresh Issue shall be allocated in 
the Offer, prior to the Equity Shares offered pursuant to the Offer for Sale. The Selling Shareholders agree and 
acknowledge that in the event that any Equity Shares are not sold in the Offer for Sale on account of under 
subscription, such unsold Equity Shares shall be subject to lock-in in accordance with this Red Herring Prospectus and 
the SEBI ICDR Regulations.

Further, in accordance with Regulation 26(4) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, our Company shall ensure that the 
number of prospective allottees to whom the Equity Shares will be Allotted will be not less than 1,000.

Arrangement for disposal of odd lot

Since our Equity Shares will be traded in dematerialised form only and the market lot for our Equity Shares will be one 
Equity Share, no arrangements for disposal of odd lots are required.

Restriction on transfer and transmission of shares

Except for lock-in of pre-Offer equity shareholding and Promoters’ Contribution lock-in in the Offer and except as 
provided in our Articles and under applicable laws, there are no restrictions on transfers and transmission of Equity 
Shares or on their consolidation or splitting. For details please see the chapters “Capital Structure” and “Main 
Provisions of the Articles of Association” on page nos. 69 and 347 of this Red Herring Prospectus respectively.

New Financial Instruments

As on the date of this Red Herring Prospectus, there are no outstanding warrants, new financial instruments or any 
rights, which would entitle the shareholders of our Company, including our Promoter, to acquire or receive any Equity 
Shares after the Offer.

Withdrawal of the Offer

Our Company and the Selling Shareholders in consultation with the BRLM, reserves the right not to proceed with the 
Offer anytime after the Bid / Offer Opening Date but before the Allotment. In such an event, our Company would issue 
a public notice in the same newspapers, in which the pre-offer advertisements were published, within two days of the 
Bid / Offer Closing Date, providing reasons for not proceeding with the Offer and the Stock Exchanges shall be 
informed promptly in this regard. The BRLM, through the Registrar to the Offer, shall notify the SCSBs to unblock the 
Bank Accounts of the ASBA Bidders within one Working Day from the date of receipt of such notification. 

If our Company withdraws the Offer after the Bid / Offer Closing Date and thereafter determine that they will proceed 
with an initial public offering of the Company’s Equity Shares, the Company shall file a fresh Draft Red Herring 
Prospectus with SEBI. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Offer is also subject to obtaining (i) the final listing and 
trading approvals of the Stock Exchanges, which the Company shall apply for after Allotment, and (ii) the final RoC 
approval of the Prospectus after it is filed with the RoC.

Option to Receive Securities in Dematerialized Form

Pursuant to Section 29 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Equity Shares in the Issue shall be allotted only in 
dematerialized form. Further, as per the SEBI ICDR Regulations, the trading of the Equity Shares shall only be in 
dematerialised form on the Stock Exchanges.
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OFFER STRUCTURE

Public Offer of upto 1,00,00,000 Equity Shares ��������������
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lakhs by our Company and an Offer of Sale of upto 70,00,000 Equity 
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shareholders. The Offer will constitute 26.63% of the post – Offer paid-up Equity Share capital of our Company.

The Offer is being made through the Book Building Process:

Particulars QIBs Non-Institutional Bidders Retail Individual Bidders

Number of Equity 
Shares available for 
Allotment / 
allocation(1)

Not more than 10,00,000 
Equity Shares or Offer less 
allocation to Non- Institutional 
Bidders and Retail Individual 
Bidders 

Not less than 40,00,000 
Equity Shares available for 
allocation or Offer less 
allocation to QIBs Bidders 
and Retail Individual Bidders 

Not less than 50,00,000 
Equity Shares available for 
allocation or Offer less 
allocation to QIBs Bidders 
and Non- Institutional 
Bidders 

Percentage of Offer 
size available for 
Allotment / allocation 

Not more than 10% of the 
Offer Size shall be available 
for allocation to QIBs. 

However, upto 5% of the QIB 
Portion shall be available for 
allocation proportionately to 
Mutual Funds only. Mutual 
Funds participating in the 5% 
reservation in the QIB Portion 
will also be eligible for 
allocation in the remaining 
QIB Portion. The 
unsubscribed portion in the 
Mutual Fund reservation will 
be available for allocation to 
QIBs. 

Not less than 40% of the 
Offer or Offer less allocation 
to QIBs Bidders and Retail 
Individual Bidders 

Not less than 50% of the 
Offer or Offer less 
allocation to QIBs Bidders 
and Non- Institutional 
Bidders 

Basis of Allotment if 
respective category is 
oversubscribed 

Proportionate as follows: 
a) Upto 50,000 Equity Shares 
shall be available for 
allocation on a proportionate 
basis to Mutual Funds only; 
and 
b) Upto 9,50,000 Equity 
Shares shall be allotted on a 
proportionate basis to all 
QIBs, including Mutual Funds 
receiving allocation as per (a) 
above. 

Proportionate. 

Allotment to each Retail 
Individual Bidders shall not 
be less than the minimum 
Bid Lot, subject to
availability of Equity 
Shares in the Retail 
Portion, and the remaining 
available Equity Shares, if 
any, shall be Allotted on a 
proportionate basis. For 
further details, see 
“Allotment Procedure and 
Basis of Allotment –
Allotment to RIBs” in the 
GID

Minimum Bid 

Such number of Equity Shares 
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Such number of Equity Shares 
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Maximum Bid 

Such number of Equity Shares 

�� #	��
����� ��� ���� ��	
���
Shares so that the Bid does not 
exceeds the size of the Offer, 
subject to applicable limits to 
the Bidder.

Such number of Equity Shares 

�� #	��
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���
Shares so that the Bid does 
not exceeds the size of the 
Offer, excluding QIB 
allocation, subject to 
applicable limits to the 
Bidder.

Such number of Equity 
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Equity Shares so that the 
Bid Amount does not 
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Mode of Allotment Compulsorily in dematerialised form.
Bid Lot ������	
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Allotment Lot 
�� #
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Shares and thereafter in 
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Share, subject to 
availability in the Retail 
Portion. 

Trading Lot One Equity Share.

Who can Apply (2)

Mutual Funds, Venture 
Capital Funds, AIFs, FPIs 
(other than Category III FPIs) 
public financial institution as 
defined in Section 2(72) of the 
Companies Act, 2013, a 
scheduled commercial bank, 
NBFC-SI, state industrial 
development corporation, 
insurance company registered 
with the Insurance Regulatory 
and Development Authority, 
provident fund with minimum 
corpus of � 2,500 lakhs,
pension fund with minimum 
corpus of � 2,500 lakhs,
National Investment Fund, 
insurance funds set up and 
managed by army, navy or air 
force of the Union of India 
and insurance funds set up and 
managed by the Department of 
Posts, India.

Eligible NRIs, Resident 
Indian individuals, HUFs (in 
the name of the Karta), 
companies, corporate bodies, 
scientific institutions, 
societies and trusts, sub-
accounts of FIIs registered 
with SEBI, which are foreign 
corporates or foreign 
individuals and Category III 
FPIs.

Resident Indian 
individuals, HUFs (in the 
name of the Karta) and 
Eligible NRIs.

Terms of Payment (3) Full Bid Amount shall be payable at the time of submission of the Bid cum Application Form.
Mode of Bidding Only through the ASBA process. 
(1) Applicants Subject to valid Bids being received at or above the Offer Price. In terms of Rule 19(2)(b)(i) of the SCRR, 
this is an Offer for atleast 25% of the post- offer paid-up equity share capital of our Company. The Offer is being made 
through the Book Building Process, in compliance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations, wherein not more than 10% of the 
Offer shall be available for allocation on a proportionate basis to QIBs, 5% of the QIB Category shall be available for 
allocation on a proportionate basis to Mutual Funds only, and the remainder of the QIB Category shall be available 
for allocation on a proportionate basis to all QIB Bidders including Mutual Funds, subject to valid Bids being received 
at or above the Offer Price. Further, not less than 40% of the Offer shall be available for allocation on a proportionate 
basis to Non-Institutional Bidders and not less than 50% of the Offer shall be available for allocation to Retail 
Individual Bidders in accordance with the SEBI Regulations, subject to valid Bids being received at or above the Offer 
Price.

Subject to valid Bids being received at or above the Offer Price, under-subscription, if any, in the Non-Institutional 
Portion or the Retail Portion would be allowed to be met with spill-over from other categories or a combination of 
categories at the discretion of our Company and the Selling Shareholders, in consultation with the BRLM and the 
Designated Stock Exchange, on a proportionate basis. However, under-subscription, if any, in the QIB Portion will not 
be allowed to be met with spill-over from other categories or a combination of categories.

(2) In case of joint Bids, the Bid cum Application Form should contain only the name of the first Bidder whose name 
should also appear as the first holder of the beneficiary account held in joint names. The signature of only such first 
Bidder would be required in the Bid cum Application Form and such first Bidder would be deemed to have signed on 
behalf of the joint holders.

(3) In case of ASBA Bidders, the SCSB shall be authorised to block such funds in the bank account of the ASBA Bidder 
that are specified in the Bid cum Application Form. 
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OFFER PROCEDURE

All Bidders should review the ‘General Information Document for investing in Public Issues prepared and issued in 
accordance with the circular (CIR/CFD/DIL/12/2013) dated October 23, 2013 notified by SEBI and updated pursuant 
to among others the circular (CIR/CFD/POLICYCELL/11/2015) dated November 10, 2015 as amended and modified 
by the circular (CIR/CFD/DIL/1/2016) dated January 1, 2016 and the circular (SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL/CIR/P/2016/26) 
dated January 21, 2016, notified by SEBI (“General Information Document”), which highlights the key rules, 
processes and procedures applicable to public Offers in general in accordance with the provisions of the Companies 
Act, the SCRA, the SCRR and the SEBI ICDR Regulations for all the Draft Red Herring Prospectus filed prior to 
November 10, 2018, to the extent applicable and the SEBI ICDR Regulations 2018. The General Information Document 
has been updated to reflect various amendments to the SEBI ICDR Regulations and provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013, to the extent applicable to a public issue and any other enactments and regulations to the extent applicable to the 
Offer. The General Information Document is also available on the websites of the Stock Exchanges and the BRLM.
Please refer to the relevant portions of the General Information Document which are applicable to this Offer especially 
in relation to the process for Bids by RIIs through the UPI mechanism. The investors should note that the details and 
process provided in the GID should be read along with this section.. All Designated Intermediaries in relation to the 
Offer should ensure compliance with the SEBI circular (CIR/CFD/POLICYCELL/11/2015) dated November 10, 2015,
as amended and modified by the circular (SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL/CIR/P/2016/26) dated January 21, 2016, circular 
(SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2018/22) dated February 15, 2018 and circular (SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2018/138) 
dated November 1, 2018 as amended from time to time, including pursuant to circular 
(SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2019/50) dated April 3, 2019, each notified by SEBI, in relation to clarifications on 
streamlining the process of public issue of equity shares and convertibles.

SEBI through its circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2018/138 dated November 1, 2018 as amended from time to 
time, including pursuant to circular (SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2019/50) dated April 3, 2019, circular no. 
SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2019/76 dated June 28, 2019 and circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2019/85 dated 
July 26, 2019 (“UPI Circular”) has introduced an alternate payment mechanism using Unified Payments Interface 
(“UPI”) and consequent reduction in timelines for listing in a phased manner. From January 1, 2019, the UPI 
mechanism for RIIs applying through Designated Intermediaries will be made effective along with the existing process 
and existing timeline of T+6 days. The same will continue for a period of three months or launch of five main board 
public issues, whichever is later (“UPI Phase I”). Thereafter, for application by RIIs through Designated 
Intermediaries, the existing process of physical movement of forms from Designated Intermediaries to SCSBs for 
blocking of funds will be discontinued and only the UPI mechanism with existing timeline of T+6 days will continue for 
a period of three months or launch of five main board public issues, whichever is later (“UPI Phase II”). Subsequently, 
the final reduced timeline will be made effective using the UPI mechanism for applications by RIIs (“UPI Phase III”), 
as may be prescribed by SEBI.

The procedure set forth in this section is based on the assumption that the Offer will be under UPI Phase II. 
However, if the Bid/ Offer Opening Date falls after UPI Phase III becomes applicable in accordance with any 
circulars issued by SEBI from time to time, the Offer will be undertaken in accordance with the framework made 
applicable by SEBI through such circulars, including, among others, bid by Retail Individual Investors through 
Designated Intermediaries using the UPI Mechanism.

Our Company, the Selling Shareholders and the Syndicate do not accept any responsibility for the completeness and 
accuracy of the information stated in this section and the General Information Document for any amendment, 
modification or change in the applicable law which may occur after the date of this Red Herring Prospectus. Bidders 
are advised to make their independent investigations and ensure that their Bids are submitted in accordance with 
applicable laws and do not exceed the investment limits or maximum number of Equity Shares that can be held by them 
under applicable law or as specified in this Red Herring Prospectus, the Red Herring Prospectus and the Prospectus.

Book Building Procedure

The Offer is being made through the Book Building Process, in compliance with Regulation 26(1) of the SEBI ICDR 
Regulations, wherein where in not more than 10% of the Offer shall be allocated on a proportionate basis to Qualified 
Institutional Buyers (“QIBs”) (“QIB Portion”), 5% of the QIB Portion shall be available for allocation on a 
proportionate basis to Mutual Funds only, and the remainder of the QIB Portion shall be available for allocation on a 
proportionate basis to all QIB Bidders, including Mutual Funds, subject to valid Bids being received at or above the 
Offer Price. Further, not less than 40% of the Offer shall be available for allocation on a proportionate basis to Non-
Institutional Bidders and not less than 50% of the Offer shall be available for allocation to Retail Individual Bidders in 
accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations, subject to valid Bids being received at or above the Offer Price. All 



Page | 331

potential investors are required to mandatorily use the Application Supported by Blocked. Amount (“ASBA”) process 
providing details of the irrespective bank accounts which will be blocked by the Self Certified Syndicate Banks 
(“SCSBs”).

Under-subscription, if any, in any category, except in the QIB Category, would be allowed to be met with spill over 
from any other category or combination of categories, at the discretion of our Company and the Selling Shareholders in 
consultation with the BRLM and the Designated Stock Exchange, subject to applicable laws.

The Equity Shares, on Allotment, shall be traded only in the dematerialized segment of the Stock Exchanges.

Investors should note that according to section 29(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, allotment of Equity Shares to 
all successful Bidders will only be in the dematerialised form. The Bid cum Application Forms which do not 
have the details of the Bidder’s depository account including DP ID, PAN and Beneficiary Account Number,
UPI ID, as applicable, shall be treated as incomplete and rejected. In case DP ID, Client ID and PAN mentioned 
in the Bid cum Application Form and entered into the electronic system of the stock exchanges, do not match 
with the DP ID, Client ID and PAN available in the depository database, the bid is liable to be rejected. Bidders 
will not have the option of getting allotment of the Equity Shares in physical form. The Equity Shares on 
allotment shall be traded only in the dematerialised segment of the Stock Exchanges.

Phased implementation of UPI for Bids by Retail Individual Bidders as per the UPI Circular 

SEBI has issued a circular bearing number SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2018/138 dated November 1, 2018 and circular 
no. SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2019/50 dated April 3, 2019, circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2019/76 dated 
June 28, 2019 and circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2019/85 dated July 26, 2019 (collectively the “UPI 
Circular”) in relation to streamlining the process of public issue of equity shares and convertibles. Pursuant to the UPI 
Circular, UPI will be introduced in a phased manner as a payment mechanism (in addition to mechanism of blocking
funds in the account maintained with SCSBs under the ASBA) for applications by RIIs through intermediaries with the 
objective to reduce the time duration from public issue closure to listing from six Working Days to up to three Working 
Days. Considering the time required for making necessary changes to the systems and to ensure complete and smooth 
transition to the UPI Mechanism, the UPI Circular proposes to introduce and implement the UPI Mechanism in three 
phases in the following manner:

a) Phase I: This phase has become applicable from January 1, 2019 and will continue till June 30, 2019. Under this 
phase, a Retail Individual Bidder would also have the option to submit the Bid cum Application Form with any of 
the intermediary and use his / her UPI ID for the purpose of blocking of funds. The time duration from public issue 
closure to listing would continue to be six Working Days.

b) Phase II: This phase will commence upon completion of Phase I and will continue for a period of three months or 
floating of five main board public issues, whichever is later. Under this phase, submission of the Bid cum 
Application Form by a Retail Individual Bidder through intermediaries to SCSBs for blocking of funds will be 
discontinued and will be replaced by the UPI Mechanism. However, the time duration from public issue closure to 
listing would continue to be six Working Days during this phase.

c) Phase III: Subsequently, the time duration from public issue closure to listing would be reduced to be three 
Working Days. 

All SCSBs offering facility of making application in public issues shall also provide facility to make application using 
the UPI Mechanism. The issuers are to appoint one of the SCSBs as a sponsor bank to act as a conduit between the 
Stock Exchanges and NPCI in order to facilitate collection of requests and / or payment instructions of the Retail 
Individual Bidders into the UPI mechanism. 

For further details, refer to the General Information Document available on the websites of the Stock Exchanges and 
the Book Running Lead Manager.

Bid cum Application Form

Copies of the ASBA Form and the abridged prospectus will be available with the Designated Intermediaries at the 
Bidding Centers and Registered and Corporate Office of our Company. An electronic copy of the ASBA Form will also 
be available for download on the websites of SCSBs, NSE (www.nseindia.com) and BSE (www.bseindia.com) and the 
terminals of Non-Syndicate Registered Brokers at least one day prior to the Bid/Offer Opening Date.
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All Bidders shall mandatorily participate in the Offer only through the ASBA process.
Bidders (other than RIIs bidding using the UPI mechanism) must provide bank account details and authorisation by the 
ASBA account holder to block funds in their respective ASBA Accounts in the relevant space provided in the Bid cum 
Application Form and the Bid cum Application Form that does not contain such detail are liable to be rejected.

RIIs bidding using the UPI mechanism must provide the UPI ID in the relevant space provided in the Bid cum 
Application Form and the Bid cum Application Form that does not contain the UPI ID are liable to be rejected.

ASBA Bidders must provide bank account details or the UPI ID, as applicable, in the relevant space provided in the 
ASBA Form and authorisation to block funds in their respective ASBA Accounts in the relevant space provided in the 
ASBA Form and the ASBA Forms that do not contain such details are liable to be rejected.

ASBA Bidders shall ensure that the Bids are made on ASBA Forms bearing the stamp of the Designated Intermediary, 
submitted at the Bidding Centres only (except in case of electronic ASBA Forms) and the ASBA Forms not bearing 
such specified stamp are liable to be rejected. RIIs using UPI Mechanism, may submit their ASBA Forms, including 
details of their UPI IDs, with the Syndicate, Sub-Syndicate members, Registered Brokers, CRTAs or CDPs. RIIs 
authorising an SCSB to block the Bid Amount in the ASBA Account may submit their ASBA Forms with the SCSBs. 
ASBA Bidders must ensure that the ASBA Account has sufficient credit balance such that an amount equivalent to the 
full Bid Amount can be blocked by the SCSB at the time of submitting the Bid.

The prescribed colour of the Bid Cum Application Form for various categories is as follows:

Category Colour(1)

Resident Indians and Eligible NRIs applying on a non-repatriation basis White
Non-Residents and Eligible NRIs, FIIs, FVCIs, etc. applying on a repatriation basis Blue

(1) excluding electronic Bid cum Application Form

In case of ASBA Forms, Designated Intermediaries shall upload the relevant bid details in the electronic bidding 
system of the Stock Exchanges. Subsequently, for ASBA Forms (other than RIIs using UPI mechanism) Designated 
Intermediaries (other than SCSBs) shall submit/deliver the Bid cum Application Form (except the Bid cum Application 
Form from a RIIs using the UPI mechanism) to the respective SCSB, where the Bidder has a bank account and shall not 
submit it to any non-SCSB bank or any Escrow Bank. For RIIs using UPI mechanism, the Stock Exchanges shall share 
the bid details (including UPI ID) with the Sponsor Bank on a continuous basis to enable the Sponsor Bank to initiate 
UPI Mandate Request to RIIs for blocking of funds.

Who can Bid?

In addition to the category of Bidders set forth in the General Information Document, the following persons are also 
eligible to invest in the Equity Shares under all applicable laws, regulations and guidelines:

� Scientific and/or industrial research organizations in India, which are authorised to invest in equity shares; and

� Any other person eligible to Bid in this Offer, under the laws, rules, regulations, guidelines and polices applicable 
to them.

The Equity Shares have not been and will not be registered under the U.S. Securities Act of 1933, as amended 
(the “U.S. Securities Act”) or any state securities laws in the United States and may not be offered or sold within 
the United States or to, or for the account or benefit of, U.S. persons (as defined in Regulation S) except 
pursuant to an exemption from, or in a transaction not subject to, the registration requirements of the U.S. 
Securities Act and applicable state securities laws in the United States. Accordingly, the Equity Shares are being 
offered and sold outside the United States in offshore transactions in compliance with Regulation S under the 
U.S. Securities Act and the applicable laws of the jurisdiction where those offers and sales occur.

The Equity Shares have not been and will not be registered, listed or otherwise qualified in any other 
jurisdiction outside India and may not be offered or sold, and Bids may not be made by persons in any such 
jurisdiction, except in compliance with the applicable laws of such jurisdiction.

Participation by Promoter, Promoter Group, the BRLM, the Syndicate Members and persons related to the 
Promoter/Promoter Group/BRLM
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The BRLM and the Syndicate Members shall not be allowed to subscribe to the Equity Shares in this Offer in any 
manner, except towards fulfilling their underwriting obligations. However, associates and affiliates of the BRLM and 
the Syndicate Members may subscribe to or purchase Equity Shares in the Offer, in the QIB Portion or in Non-
Institutional Portion as may be applicable to such Bidders. Such Bidding and subscription may be on their own account 
or on behalf of their clients. All categories of investors, including associates or affiliates of the BRLM and Syndicate 
Members, shall be treated equally for the purpose of allocation to be made on a proportionate basis. 

For the purposes of this section, a QIB who has any of the following rights shall be deemed to be a “person related to 
the Promoters or Promoter Group”: (a) rights under a shareholders’ agreement or voting agreement entered into with 
the Promoters or members of the Promoter Group; (b) veto rights; or (c) right to appoint any nominee director on our 
Board.

The Selling Shareholders, Promoters and the Members of the Promoter Group will not participate in the Offer except to 
the extent of the Offered Shares.

Bids by Mutual Funds

Bids made by asset management companies or custodians of Mutual Funds shall specifically state names of the 
concerned schemes for which such Bids are made. In case of a Mutual Fund, a separate Bid can be made in respect of 
each scheme of the Mutual Fund registered with SEBI and such Bids in respect of more than one scheme of the Mutual 
Fund will not be treated as multiple Bids provided that the Bids clearly indicate the scheme concerned for which the 
Bid has been made.

With respect to Bids by Mutual Funds, a certified copy of their SEBI registration certificate must be lodged with the 
Bid cum Application Form. Failing this, our Company and the Selling Shareholders reserves the right to reject any Bid 
in whole or in part, in either case, without assigning any reason thereof.

No Mutual Fund scheme shall invest more than 10% of its net asset value in the equity shares or equity related 
instruments of any single company provided that the limit of 10% shall not be applicable for investments in index funds 
or sector or industry specific funds. No Mutual Fund under all its schemes should own more than 10% of any 
company’s paid-up share capital carrying voting rights.

Bids by Eligible NRIs

Eligible NRIs may obtain copies of Bid cum Application Form from the Designated Intermediaries. Eligible NRI 
Bidders bidding on a repatriation basis by using the Non-Resident Forms should authorize their SCSB to block their 
Non-Resident External (“NRE”) accounts, or Foreign Currency Non-Resident (“FCNR”) ASBA Accounts, and 
eligible NRI Bidders bidding on a non-repatriation basis by using Resident Forms should authorize their SCSB to block 
their Non-Resident Ordinary (“NRO”) accounts for the full Bid Amount, at the time of the submission of the Bid cum 
Application Form.

Eligible NRIs Bidding on a repatriation basis are advised to use the Bid cum Application Form meant for Non-
Residents (blue in colour).

Eligible NRIs Bidding on non-repatriation basis are advised to use the Bid cum Application Form for residents. (white 
in colour).

Pursuant to the provisions of the FEMA regulations, investments by NRIs under the Portfolio Investment Scheme 
(“PIS”) is subject to certain limits, i.e., 10.00% of the paid-up equity share capital of the company. Such limit for NRI 
investment under the PIS route can be increased by passing a board resolution, followed by a special resolution by the 
shareholders, subject to prior intimation to the RBI. Our Company has not passed any resolution to increase this limit.

Bids by FPI and FIIs

In terms of the SEBI FPI Regulations, any qualified foreign investor or FII who holds a valid certificate of registration 
from SEBI shall be deemed to be an FPI until the expiry of the block of three years for which fees have been paid as 
per the SEBI FII Regulations. An FII or a sub-account may participate in this Offer, in accordance with Schedule 2 of 
the FEMA Regulations, until the expiry of its registration with SEBI as an FII or a sub-account. An FII shall not be 
eligible to invest as an FII after registering as an FPI under the SEBI FPI Regulations.
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In case of Bids made by FPIs, a certified copy of the certificate of registration issued by the designated depository 
participant under the FPI Regulations is required to be attached to the Bid cum Application Form, failing which our 
Company reserves the right to reject any Bid without assigning any reason. An FII or subaccount may, subject to 
payment of conversion fees under the SEBI FPI Regulations, participate in the Offer, until the expiry of its registration 
as a FII or sub-account, or until it obtains a certificate of registration as FPI, whichever is earlier. Further, in case of 
Bids made by SEBI-registered FIIs or sub-accounts, which are not registered as FPIs, a certified copy of the certificate 
of registration as an FII issued by SEBI is required to be attached to the Bid cum Application Form, failing which our 
Company reserves the right to reject any Bid without assigning any reason.

In terms of the SEBI FPI Regulations, the Offer of Equity Shares to a single FPI or an investor group (which means the 
same set of ultimate beneficial owner(s) investing through multiple entities) must be below 10.00% of our post-Offer 
Equity Share capital. Further, in terms of the FEMA Regulations, the total holding by each FPI shall be below 10.00% 
of the total paid-up Equity Share capital of our Company and the total holdings of all FPIs put together shall not exceed 
24% of the paid-up Equity Share capital of our Company. The aggregate limit of 24% may be increased up to the 
sectorial cap by way of a resolution passed by the Board of Directors followed by a special resolution passed by the 
Shareholders of our Company and subject to prior intimation to RBI. In terms of the FEMA Regulations, for 
calculating the aggregate holding of FPIs in a company, holding of all registered FPIs as well as holding of FIIs (being 
deemed FPIs) shall be included. The existing individual and aggregate investment limits an FII or sub account in our 
Company is 10.00% and 24% of the total paid-up Equity Share capital of our Company, respectively.

FPIs are permitted to participate in the Offer subject to compliance with conditions and restrictions which may be 
specified by the Government from time to time.

Subject to compliance with all applicable Indian laws, rules, regulations, guidelines and approvals in terms of 
Regulation 22 of the SEBI FPI Regulations, an FPI, other than Category III foreign portfolio and unregulated broad 
based funds, which are classified as Category II foreign portfolio investor by virtue of their investment manager being 
appropriately regulated, may Offer or otherwise deal in offshore derivative instruments (as defined under the SEBI FPI 
Regulations as any instrument, by whatever name called, which is issued overseas by an FPI against securities held by 
it that are listed or proposed to be listed on any recognized stock exchange in India, as its underlying) directly or 
indirectly, only in the event (i) such offshore derivative instruments are issued only to persons who are regulated by an 
appropriate regulatory authority; and (ii) such offshore derivative instruments are issued after compliance with know
your client‘ norms. An FPI is also required to ensure that no further Offer or transfer of any offshore derivative 
instrument is made by or on behalf of it to any persons that are not regulated by an appropriate foreign regulatory 
authority.

FPIs who wish to participate in the Offer are advised to use the Bid cum Application Form for Non-Residents (blue in 
colour).

Bids by SEBI registered VCFs, AIFs and FVCIs

The SEBI FVCI Regulations and the SEBI AIF Regulations inter-alia prescribe the investment restrictions on the 
VCFs, FVCIs and AIFs registered with SEBI. Further, the SEBI AIF Regulations prescribe, among others, the 
investment restrictions on AIFs.

The holding by any individual VCF registered with SEBI in one venture capital undertaking should not exceed 25% of 
the corpus of the VCF. Further, VCFs and FVCIs can invest only up to 33.33% of the investible funds by way of 
subscription to an initial public offering.

The category I and II AIFs cannot invest more than 25% of the corpus in one Investee Company. A category III AIF 
cannot invest more than 10% of the corpus in one Investee Company. A venture capital fund registered as a category I 
AIF, as defined in the SEBI AIF Regulations, cannot invest more than 1/3rd of its corpus by way of subscription to an 
initial public offering of a venture capital undertaking. Additionally, the VCFs which have not re-registered as an AIF 
under the SEBI AIF Regulations shall continue to be regulated by the VCF Regulation until the existing fund or scheme 
managed by the fund is wound up and such funds shall not launch any new scheme after the notification of the SEBI 
AIF Regulations.

All FIIs and FVCIs should note that refunds, dividends and other distributions, if any, will be payable in Indian Rupees 
only and net of Bank charges and commission.
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Our Company or the Selling Shareholders or the BRLM will not be responsible for loss, if any, incurred by the 
Bidder on account of conversion of foreign currency.

There is no reservation for Eligible NRIs, FPIs and FVCIs and all Bidders will be treated on the same basis with 
other categories for the purpose of allocation.

Bids by Limited Liability Partnerships

In case of Bids made by limited liability partnerships registered under the Limited Liability Partnership Act, 2008, a 
certified copy of certificate of registration issued under the Limited Liability Partnership Act, 2008, must be attached to 
the Bid cum Application Form. Failing this, our Company and the Selling Shareholders reserve the right to reject any 
Bid without assigning any reason thereof.

Bids by Insurance Companies

In case of Bids made by insurance companies registered with the IRDA, a certified copy of certificate of registration 
issued by IRDA must be attached to the Bid cum Application Form. Failing this, our Company and the Selling 
Shareholders reserves the right to reject any Bid without assigning any reason thereof.

The exposure norms for insurers prescribed in Regulation 9 of the Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority of 
India (Investment) Regulations, 2016 (“IRDAI Investment Regulations”) are set forth below:

a. equity shares of a company: the lower of 10%(1) of the investee company’s outstanding equity shares (face value) 
or 10% of the respective fund in case of a life insurer/investment assets in case of a general insurer or a reinsurer;

b. the entire group of the investee company: not more than 15% of the respective fund in case of a life insurer or 15% 
of investment assets in case of a general insurer or a reinsurer or 15% of the investment assets in all companies 
belonging to the group, whichever is lower; and

c. the industry sector in which the investee company operates: not more than 15% of the respective fund of a life 
insurer or general insurance or 15% of the investment assets, whichever is lower.

The maximum exposure limit, in the case of an investment in equity shares, cannot exceed the lower of an amount of 
10% of the investment assets of a life insurer or general insurer and the amount calculated under points (i), (ii) or (iii) 
above, as the case may be.

(1) The above limit of 10% shall stand substituted as 15% of outstanding equity shares (face value) for insurance 
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Insurer companies participating in this Offer shall comply with all applicable regulations, guidelines and circulars 
issued by the IRDA from time to time to time including the Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority 
(Investment) Regulations, 2016 (“IRDA Investment Regulations”).

Bids by provident funds/ pension funds

In case of Bids made by provident funds / pension funds, subject to applicable laws, with minimum corpus of � 2,500 
lacs, a certified copy of a certificate from a chartered accountant certifying the corpus of the provident fund / pension 
fund must be attached to the Bid cum Application Form. Failing this, our Company and the Selling Shareholders 
reserves the right to reject any Bid, without assigning any reason thereof.

Bids by Systemically Important Non-Banking Financial Companies

In case of Bids made by systemically important non-banking financial companies, a certified copy of the certificate of 
registration issued by the RBI, a certified copy of its last audited financial statements on a standalone basis and a net 
worth certificate from its statutory auditor(s), must be attached to the Bid cum Application Form. Failing this, our 
Company reserves the right to reject any Bid, without assigning any reason thereof. Systemically Important Non 
Banking Financial Companies participating in the Offer shall comply with all applicable regulations, guidelines and 
circulars issued by RBI from time to time.
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Bids by banking companies

In case of Bids made by banking companies registered with RBI, certified copies of: (i) the certificate of registration 
issued by RBI, and (ii) the approval of such banking company’s investment committee are required to be attached to 
the Bid cum Application Form, failing which our Company and the Selling Shareholders reserves the right to reject any 
Bid without assigning any reason.

The investment limit for banking companies in non-financial services companies as per the Banking Regulation Act, 
1949, as amended (“Banking Regulation Act”), and the Master Direction – Reserve Bank of India (Financial Services 
provided by Banks) Directions, 2016, is 10.00% of the paid-up share capital of the investee company or 10.00% of the 
banks’ own paid-up share capital and reserves, whichever is less. Further, the aggregate investment by a banking 
company in subsidiaries and other entities engaged in financial and non-financial services company cannot exceed 
20.00% of the bank’s paid-up share capital and reserves. A banking company may hold up to 30.00% of the paid-up 
share capital of the investee company with the prior approval of the RBI provided that the investee company is engaged 
in non-financial activities in which banking companies are permitted to engage under the Banking Regulation Act.

Bids by SCSBs

SCSBs participating in the Offer are required to comply with the terms of the SEBI circulars dated September 13, 2012 
and January 2, 2013. Such SCSBs are required to ensure that for making applications on their own account using 
ASBA, they should have a separate account in their own name with any other SEBI registered SCSBs. Further, such 
account shall be used solely for the purpose of making application in public Offers and clear demarcated funds should 
be available in such account for such applications.

Bids under Power of Attorney

In case of Bids made pursuant to a power of attorney or by limited companies, corporate bodies, registered societies, 
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the relevant resolution or authority, as the case may be, along with a certified copy of the memorandum of association 
and articles of association and/or bye laws must be lodged along with the Bid cum Application Form. Failing this, our 
Company and the Selling Shareholders reserves the right to accept or reject any Bid in whole or in part, in either case, 
without assigning any reasons thereof. In addition to the above, certain additional documents are required to be 
submitted by the following entities:

a) With respect to Bids by FIIs and Mutual Funds, a certified copy of their SEBI registration certificate must be lodged 
along with the Bid cum Application Form. 

b) With respect to Bids by insurance companies registered with the Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority, 
in addition to the above, a certified copy of the certificate of registration issued by the Insurance Regulatory and 
Development Authority must be lodged along with the Bid cum Application Form. 

c) With respect to Bids made by provident fun*���
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accountant certifying the corpus of the provident fund/pension fund must be lodged along with the Bid cum 
Application Form. 

d) With respect to Bids made by limited liability partnerships registered under the Limited Liability Partnership Act, 
2008, a certified copy of certificate of registration issued under the Limited Liability Partnership Act, 2008, must be 
attached to the Bid cum Application Form. 

e) Our Company in its absolute discretion, reserves the right to relax the above condition of simultaneous lodging of 
the power of attorney along with the Bid cum Application form, subject to such terms and conditions that our 
Company and the BRLM may deem fit. 

The above information is given for the benefit of the Bidders. Our Company, the Selling Shareholder, the Book 
Running Lead Manager and the Syndicate Members are not liable for any amendments or modification or 
changes in applicable laws or regulations, which may occur after the date of the Red Herring Prospectus. 
Bidders are advised to make their independent investigations and Bidders are advised to ensure that any single 
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Bid from them does not exceed the applicable investment limits or maximum number of Equity Shares that can 
be held by them under applicable law or regulation or as specified in the Red Herring Prospectus.

Pre- Offer Advertisement

Subject to Section 30 of the Companies Act, 2013, our Company shall, after registering the Red Herring Prospectus 
with the RoC, publish a pre-Offer advertisement in all editions of the English national daily newspaper Business 
Standard, all editions of the Hindi national daily newspaper Business Standard and the Belgaum edition of the Kannada 
newspaper Kannada Prabha (Kannada being the regional language of Belgaum, where the Registered Office of our 
Company is situated), each with wide circulation, respectively. In the pre-Offer advertisement, we shall state the Bid / 
Offer Opening Date and the Bid/Offer Closing Date. This advertisement, subject to the provisions of Section 30 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, shall be in the format prescribed in Part A of Schedule X of the SEBI ICDR Regulations 2018.

Information for Bidders

In addition to the instructions provided to Bidders in the General Information Document for Investing in Public Offers,
Bidders are requested to note the following additional information in relation to the Offer.

1. The relevant Designated Intermediary will enter each Bid option into the electronic Bidding system as a separate 
Bid and generate an acknowledgement slip (“Acknowledgement Slip”), for each price and demand option and give 
the same to the Bidder. Therefore, a Bidder can receive up to three Acknowledgement Slips for each Bid cum 
Application Form. It is the Bidder’s responsibility to obtain the TRS from the relevant Designated Intermediary. 
The registration of the Bid by the Designated Intermediary does not guarantee that the Equity Shares shall be 
allocated/ Allotted. Such Acknowledgement will be non-negotiable and by itself will not create any obligation of 
any kind. When a Bidder revises his or her Bid, he /she shall surrender the earlier Acknowledgement Slip and may 
request for a revised TRS from the relevant Designated Intermediary as proof of his or her having revised the 
previous Bid. 

2. In relation to electronic registration of Bids, the permission given by the Stock Exchanges to use their network and 
software of the electronic bidding system should not in any way be deemed or construed to mean that the 
compliance with various statutory and other requirements by our Company, the Selling Shareholders and/or the 
BRLM are cleared or approved by the Stock Exchanges; nor does it in any manner warrant, certify or endorse the 
correctness or completeness of compliance with the statutory and other requirements, nor does it take any 
responsibility for the financial or other soundness of our Company, the Selling Shareholders, the management or 
any scheme or project of our Company; nor does it in any manner warrant, certify or endorse the correctness or 
completeness of any of the contents of the Draft Red Herring Prospectus or the Red Herring Prospectus; nor does it 
warrant that the Equity Shares will be listed or will continue to be listed on the Stock Exchanges. 

3. In the event of an upward revision in the Price Band, Retail Individual Bidders who had Bid at Cut-off Price could 
either (i) revise their Bid or (ii) shall make additional payment based on the cap of the revised Price Band (such that 
the total amount i.e., original Bid Amount plus additional payment does not exceed � 200,000 if the Bidder wants to 
continue to Bid at Cut-off Price). The revised Bids must be submitted to the same Designated Intermediary to whom 
the original Bid was submitted. If the total amount (i.e., the original Bid Amount plus additional payment) exceeds �
200,000, the Bid will be considered for allocation under the Non-Institutional Portion. If, however, the Retail 
Individual Bidder does not either revise the Bid or make additional payment and the Offer Price is higher than the 
cap of the Price Band prior to revision, the number of Equity Shares Bid for shall be adjusted downwards for the 
purpose of allocation, such that no additional payment would be required from the Retail Individual Bidder and the 
Retail Individual Bidder is deemed to have approved such revised Bid at Cut-off Price. 

4. In the event of a downward revision in the Price Band, Retail Individual Bidders who have bid at Cut-off Price may 
revise their Bid; otherwise, the excess amount paid at the time of Bidding would be unblocked after Allotment is 
finalised. 

5. Any revision of the Bid shall be accompanied by instructions to block the incremental amount, if any, to be paid on 
account of the upward revision of the Bid. 
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Signing of the Underwriting Agreement and the RoC Filing

Our Company and the Selling Shareholders intend to enter into an Underwriting Agreement with the Underwriters on 
or immediately after the finalisation of the Offer Price. After signing the Underwriting Agreement, the Company will 
file the Prospectus with the RoC. The Prospectus would have details of the Offer Price, Anchor Investor Offer Price, 
Offer size and underwriting arrangements and would be complete in all material respects.

GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS

In addition to the general instructions provided in the sub-section “General Information Document for Investing in 
Public Offers” Bidders are requested to note the additional instructions provided below.

Do’s:

1. Check if you are eligible to apply as per the Red Herring Prospectus and under applicable law, rules, regulations, 
guidelines and approvals;

2. Ensure that you have Bid within the Price Band;

3. Read all the instructions carefully and complete the Bid cum Application Form in the prescribed form;

4. Ensure that the details about the PAN, DP ID and Client ID are correct and the Bidders depository account is 
active, as Allotment of the Equity Shares will be in the dematerialised form only; 

5. Ensure that your Bid cum Application Form, bearing the stamp of a Designated Intermediary is submitted to the 
Designated Intermediary at the Bidding Centre within the prescribed time, except in case of electronic forms.

6. In case of joint Bids, ensure that the first applicant is the ASBA Account holder, and also signs the Bid cum 
Application Form  (for all Bidders other than RIIs bidding using the UPI mechanism);

7. All Bidders (other than Anchor Investors) should submit their Bids through the ASBA process only;

8. RIIs bidding using the UPI mechanism should ensure that the correct UPI ID is mentioned in the Bid cum 
Application Form and that you use only your own bank account linked UPI ID (only for RIIs using the UPI 
Mechanism) to make an application in the Offer;

9. RIIs bidding shall ensure that the bank, with which it has its bank account, where the funds equivalent to the 
application amount are available for blocking is UPI 2.0 certified by NPCI;

10. With respect to Bids by SCSBs, ensure that you have a separate account in your own name with any other SCSB 
having clear demarcated funds for applying under the ASBA process and that such separate account (with any 
other SCSB) is used as the ASBA Account with respect to your Bid;

11. Ensure that you request for and receive a stamped Acknowledgement Slip of the Bid cum Application Form for 
all your Bid options from the concerned Designated Intermediary as proof of registration of the Bid cum 
Application Form;

12. Ensure that you have funds equal to the Bid Amount in the ASBA Account with the SCSB before submitting the 
ASBA Form to any of the Designated Intermediaries;

13. Instruct your respective banks to release the funds blocked in accordance with the ASBA process;

14. Submit revised Bids to the same Designated Intermediary, through whom the original Bid was placed and obtain a 
revised Acknowledgement Slip;

15. Except for Bids (i) on behalf of the Central or State Governments and the officials appointed by courts, who, in 
terms of a SEBI circular dated June 30, 2008, may be exempt from specifying their PAN for transacting in the 
securities market, (ii) Bids by persons resident in the State of Sikkim, who, in terms of the SEBI circular dated 
July 20, 2006, are exempted from specifying their PAN for transacting in the securities market, and (iii) any other 
category of Bidders, including without limitation, institutions, which are exempted from specifying, may be 
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exempted from specifying their PAN for transacting in the securities market, for Bids of all values, ensure that 
you have mentioned your PAN allotted under the Income Tax Act in the Bid cum Application Form. The 
exemption for the Central or the State Government and officials appointed by the courts and for investors residing 
in the State of Sikkim is subject to (a) the demographic details received from the respective depositories 
confirming the exemption granted to the beneficiary owner by a suitable description in the PAN field and the 
beneficiary account remaining in “active status”; and (b) in the case of residents of Sikkim, the address as per the 
demo graphic details evidencing the same;

16. Ensure that the Demographic Details are updated, true and correct in all respects;

17. Ensure that thumb impressions and signatures other than in the languages specified in the Eighth Schedule to the 
Constitution of India are attested by a Magistrate or a Notary Public or a Special Executive Magistrate under 
official seal;

18. Ensure that the name(s) given in the Bid cum Application Form is/are exactly the same as the name(s) in which 
the beneficiary account is held with the Depository Participant. In case of joint Bids, the Bid cum Application 
Form should contain only the name of the First Bidder whose name should also appear as the first holder of the 
beneficiary account held in joint names. Ensure that the signature of the First Bidder is included in the Bid cum 
Application Forms;

19. Ensure that you tick the correct investor category and the investor status, as applicable, in the Bid cum 
Application Form to ensure proper upload of your Bid in the electronic Bidding system of the Stock Exchanges;

20. Ensure that for Bids under power of attorney or by limited companies, corporate, trust etc., relevant documents 
are submitted;

21. Ensure that Bids submitted by any person outside India should be in compliance with applicable foreign and 
Indian laws; 

22. Ensure that the DP ID, the Client ID and the PAN mentioned in the Bid cum Application Form and entered into 
the electronic system of the Stock Exchanges by the relevant Designated Intermediary match with the DP ID, 
Client ID and PAN available in the Depository database;

23. Bidders should note that in case the DP ID, Client ID, UPI ID (if applicable) and the PAN mentioned in their Bid 
cum Application Form and entered into the online system of the Stock Exchanges by the relevant Designated 
Intermediary, do not match with the DP ID, Client ID, UPI ID (if applicable) and PAN available in the Depository 
database, then such Bids are liable to be rejected. Where the Bid cum Application Form is submitted in joint 
names, ensure that the beneficiary account is also held in the same joint names and such names are in the same 
sequence in which they appear in the Bid cum Application Form

24. Ensure that the Bid cum Application Forms are delivered by the Bidders within the time prescribed as per the Bid 
cum Application Form and the Red Herring Prospectus;

25. Ensure that while Bidding through a Designated Intermediary, the ASBA Form is submitted to a Designated 
Intermediary in a Bidding Centre and that the SCSB where the ASBA Account, as specified in the ASBA Form, 
is maintained has named at least one branch at that location for the Designated Intermediary to deposit ASBA 
Forms (a list of such branches is available on the website of SEBI athttp://www.sebi.gov.in).

26. For RIIs bidding using the UPI mechanism, ensure that you approve the Mandate Request generated by the 
Sponsor Bank to authorise blocking of funds equivalent to application amount and subsequent debit of funds in 
case of allotment, in a timely manner;

27. Ensure that you have mentioned the correct ASBA Account number in the ASBA Form; and

28. In relation to the ASBA Bids, ensure that you have correctly signed the authorization/undertaking box in the 
ASBA Form, or have otherwise provided an authorisation to the SCSB or Sponsor Bank, as applicable, via the 
electronic mode, for blocking funds in the ASBA Account equivalent to the Bid Amount mentioned in the ASBA 
Form.
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29. RIIs shall ensure that details of the Bid are reviewed and verified by opening the attachment in the UPI Mandate 
Request and then proceed to authorise the UPI Mandate Request using his/her UPI PIN. Upon the authorization of 
the mandate using his/her UPI PIN, an RII may be deemed to have verified the attachment containing the 
application details of the RII in the UPI Mandate Request and have agreed to block the entire Bid Amount and 
authorized the Sponsor Bank to block the Bid Amount mentioned in the Bid Cum Application Form.

30. RIIs bidding using the UPI mechanism should mention valid UPI ID of only the Applicant (in case of single 
account) and of the first Applicant (in case of joint account) in the Bid cum Application Form.

31. RIIs who wish to revise their Bids using the UPI Mechanism, should submit the revised Bid with the Designated
Intermediaries, pursuant to which RIIs should ensure acceptance of the UPI Mandate Request received from the
Sponsor Bank to authorise blocking of funds equivalent to the revised Bid Amount in the RIB’s ASBA Account

32. RIIs bidding using the UPI mechanism, who have revised their Bids subsequent to making the initial Bid, should 
also approve the revised Mandate Request generated by the Sponsor Bank to authorise blocking of funds 
equivalent to the revised Bid Amount and subsequent debit of funds in case of allotment in a timely manner.

The Bid cum Application Form is liable to be rejected if the above instructions, as applicable, are not complied with.

Don’ts:

1. Do not Bid for lower than the minimum Bid size;

2. Do not Bid or revise the Bid to less than the Floor Price or higher than the Cap Price;

3. Do not Bid on another Bid cum Application Form after you have submitted a Bid to a Designated Intermediary;

4. Do not pay the Bid Amount by cheques and demand drafts or in cash, by money order or by postal order or by 
stockinvest or any mode other than blocked amounts in the bank account maintained with SCSB; 

5. Do not send ASBA Forms by post. Instead submit the same to only a Designated Intermediary;

6. Do not Bid on a physical ASBA Form that does not have the stamp of a Designated Intermediary and not submit 
the Bid cum Application Forms to the Escrow Collection Bank(s) (assuming that such bank is not an SCSB), the 
BRLM or the Registrar to the Offer (assuming that the Registrar to the Offer is not one of the CRTAs);

7. Anchor Investors should not Bid through the ASBA process;

8. Bidders bidding in QIB and Non- Institutional Bidders category cannot Bid at the Cut-off Price.;
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10. Do not fill up the Bid cum Application Form such that the Equity Shares Bid for exceeds the Offer size and/ or 
investment limit or maximum number of the Equity Shares that can be held under the applicable laws or 
regulations or maximum amount permissible under the applicable regulations; 

11. Do not submit the General Index Register number instead of the PAN;

12. Do not instruct your respective banks to release the funds blocked in your ASBA Account;

13. Do not submit the Bids without instructions to block funds equivalent to the Bid Amount in the ASBA Account;

14. Do not submit incorrect UPI ID details if you are a RII bidding through the UPI mechanism;

15. Do not submit incorrect details of the DP ID, Client ID and PAN or provide details for a beneficiary account 
which is suspended or for which details cannot be verified by the Registrar to the Offer; 

16. Do not submit Bids on plain paper or on incomplete or illegible Bid cum Application Forms or on Bid cum 
Application Forms in a colour prescribed for another category of Bidder; 
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17. If you are a QIB, do not submit your Bid after 3.00 p.m. on the QIB Bid/Offer Closing Date;

18. Do not submit a Bid in case you are not eligible to acquire Equity Shares under applicable law or your relevant 
constitutional documents or otherwise

19. If you are a Non-Institutional Bidder or Retail Individual Bidder, do not submit your Bid after 3.00 p.m. on the 
Bid/Offer Closing Date;

20. Do not Bid if you are not competent to contract under the Indian Contract Act, 1872;

21. Do not withdraw your Bid or lower the size of your Bid (in terms of quantity of the Equity Shares or the Bid 
Amount) at any stage, if you are a QIB or a Non-Institutional Bidders; 

22. Do not submit more than one ASBA Forms per ASBA Account;

23. Do not submit more than one Bid cum Application Form for each UPI ID in case of RIIs bidding through the 
Designated Intermediaries using the UPI mechanism.

24. Do not submit a Bid using the UPI, if you are not a RII;

25. Do not submit ASBA Bids to a Designated Intermediary at a Bidding Centre unless the SCSB where the ASBA 
Account is maintained, as specified in the ASBA Form, has named at least one branch in the relevant Bidding 
Centre, for the Designated Intermediary to deposit ASBA Forms (a list of such branches is available on the 
website of SEBI at http://www.sebi.gov.in); and

26. Do not submit a Bid in case you are not eligible to acquire Equity Shares under applicable law or your relevant 
constitutional documents or otherwise;

27. Do not link the UPI ID with a bank account maintained with a bank that is not UPI 2.0 certified by the NPCI in 
case of Bids submitted by RII Bidder using the UPI mechanism.

28. Do not submit a Bid cum Application Form with third party UPI ID (in case of in case of Bids submitted by RII 
Bidder using the UPI mechanism).

The Bid cum Application Form is liable to be rejected if the above instructions, as applicable, are not complied with.

Issuance of a Confirmation of Allocation Note (“CAN”) and Allotment in the Offer 

1. Upon approval of the basis of allotment by the Designated Stock Exchange, the BRLM or Registrar to the Offer 
shall send to the SCSBs a list of their Bidders who have been allocated Equity Shares in the Offer.

2. The Registrar will then dispatch a CAN to their Bidders who have been allocated Equity Shares in the Offer. The 
dispatch of a CAN shall be deemed a valid, binding and irrevocable contract for the Bidder.

Payment instructions

The entire Offer Price of ��� per Equity Share is payable on Application. In case of allotment of lesser number of 
Equity Shares than the number applied, then the Registrar shall instruct the SCSBs to unblock the excess amount paid 
on Application to the Bidders.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR COMPLETING THE BID CUM APPLICATION FORM

In addition to the instructions for completing the Bid cum Application Form provided in the sub-section “General 
Information Document for Investing in Public Offers – Applying in the Offer – Instructions for filing the Bid cum 
Application Form/ Application Form” Bidders are requested to note the additional instructions provided below.

1. Thumb impressions and signatures other than in the languages specified in the Eighth Schedule in the Constitution 
of India must be attested by a Magistrate or a Notary Public or a Special Executive Magistrate under official seal. 
Bids must be in single name or in joint names (not more than three, and in the same order as their Depository 
Participant details).
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2. ASBA Bids must be made in a single name or in joint names (not more than three, and in the same order as their 
details appear with the Depository Participant), and completed in full, in BLOCK LETTERS in ENGLISH and in 
accordance with the instructions contained in the Red Herring Prospectus and in the ASBA Form.

3. Bids on a repatriation basis shall be in the names of FIIs or FPIs but not in the names of minors, OCBs, firms or 
partnerships and foreign nationals.

Designated Date and Allotment

(a) Our Company will ensure that the Allotment and credit to the successful Bidder’s depositary account will be 
completed within six Working Days, or such period as may be prescribed by SEBI, of the Bid/Offer Closing 
Date or such other period as may be prescribed. 

(b) Equity Shares will be issued and Allotment shall be made only in the dematerialised form to the Allottees.

(c) Allottees will have the option to re-materialise the Equity Shares so Allotted as per the provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and the Depositories Act.

Communications

All future communications in connection with Bids made in this Offer should be addressed to the Registrar to the Offer, 
quoting the full name of the sole or First Bidder, Bid cum Application Form number, Bidders Depository Account 
Details, number of Equity Shares applied for, date of Bid cum Application Form, name and address of the member of 
the Syndicate or the SCSB / Designated Intermediary, where the Bid was submitted and bank account number in which 
the amount equivalent to the Bid Amount was blocked.

Bidders can contact the Compliance Officer or the Registrar to the Offer, in case of any Pre-Offer or Post-Offer related 
problems such as non-receipt of letters of Allotment, credit of allotted shares in the respective beneficiary accounts, 
unblocking of funds, etc.

Grounds for Technical Rejections

In addition to the grounds for rejection of Bids on technical grounds as provided in the “General Information 
Document for Investing in Public Offers – Offer Procedure in Book Built Offer – Rejection and Responsibility for 
Upload of Bids – Grounds for Technical Rejections” Bidders are requested to note that Bids may be rejected on the 
following additional technical grounds.

1. Bid submitted without payment of the entire Bid Amount;

2. Bids submitted by Bidders which do not contain details of the Bid Amount and the bank account details in the 
ASBA Form;

3. Bids submitted on a plain paper;

4. Bids under the UPI Mechanism submitted by RIIs using third party bank accounts or using a third party linked 
bank account UPI ID;

5. Bids by HUFs not mentioned correctly as given in the sub-section “Who can Bid?” on page no. 332 of this Red 
Herring Prospectus;

6. ASBA Form submitted to a Designated Intermediary does not bear the stamp of the Designated Intermediary;

7. Bids submitted without the signature of the First Bidder or sole Bidder;

8. With respect to ASBA Bids, the ASBA Form not being signed by the account holders, if the accountholder is 
different from the Bidder;

9. Bids by persons for whom PAN details have not been verified and whose beneficiary accounts are ‘suspended for 
credit’ in terms of SEBI circular (reference number: CIR/MRD/DP/ 22 /2010) dated July29, 2010;
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10. GIR number furnished instead of PAN;

11. Bids by Retail Individual Bidders with Bid Amount for a value of more than � 200,000.00;

12. Bids by persons who are not eligible to acquire Equity Shares in terms of all applicable laws, rules, regulations, 
guidelines and approvals;

13. Bids by Bidders (who are not Anchor Investors) accompanied by cheques or demand drafts;

14. Bids accompanied by stock invest, money order, postal order or cash;

15. Bids uploaded by QIBs after 4.00 p.m. on the QIB Bid / Offer Closing Date and by Non-Institutional Bidders 
uploaded after 4.00 p.m. on the Bid/Offer Closing Date, and Bids by Retail Individual Bidders uploaded after 5.00 
p.m. on the Bid/Offer Closing Date, unless extended by the Stock Exchanges; and

16. Bids by OCB.

Method of allotment as may be prescribed by SEBI from time to time 

Our Company will not make any Allotment in excess of the Equity Shares through the Offer Document except in case 
of over-subscription for the purpose of rounding off to make Allotment, in consultation with the Designated Stock 
Exchange. Further, upon over-subscription, an allotment of not more than ten per cent of the Net Offer may be made 
for the purpose of making Allotment in minimum lots.

The Allotment of Equity Shares to applicants other than to the Retail Individual Investors shall be on a proportionate 
basis within the respective investor categories and the number of securities allotted shall be rounded off to the nearest 
integer, subject to minimum allotment being equal to the minimum application size as determined and disclosed. 

The Allotment of Equity Shares to each Retail Individual Investors shall not be less than the minimum bid lot, subject 
to the availability of shares in Retail Individual Investors Portion, and the remaining available Equity Shares, if any, 
shall be Allotted on a proportionate basis.

Depository Arrangements

The Allotment of the Equity Shares in the Offer shall be only in a de-materialised form, (i.e., not in the form of 
physical certificates but be fungible and be represented by the statement issued through the electronic mode). In this 
context, two agreements had been signed among our Company, the respective Depositories and the Registrar to the 
Offer:

1. Agreement dated December 28, 2017 among NSDL, our Company and the Registrar to the Offer.

2. Agreement dated April 23, 2019 among CDSL, our Company and Registrar to the Offer.

Impersonation

Attention of the Bidders is specifically drawn to the provisions of sub-section (1) of Section 38 of the Companies 
Act, which is reproduced below:

“Any person who:

a) makes or abets making of an application in a fictitious name to a company for acquiring, or subscribing for, its 
securities; or

b) makes or abets making of multiple applications to a company in different names or in different combinations of 
his name or surname for acquiring or subscribing for its securities; or 

c) Otherwise induces directly or indirectly a company to allot, or register any transfer of, securities to him, or to any 
other person in a fictitious name, shall be liable for action under Section 447” 
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The liability prescribed under Section 447 of the Companies Act, 2013 includes imprisonment for a term which shall 
not be less than six months extending up to 10 years (provided that where the fraud involves public interest, such term 
shall not be less than three years) and fine of an amount not less than the amount involved in the fraud, extending up to 
three times of such amount.

UNDERTAKINGS BY OUR COMPANY

Our Company undertakes the following:

1. That if our Company and/or the Selling Shareholders does not proceed with the Offer after the Bid/Offer Closing 
Date but prior to Allotment, the reason thereof shall be given as a public notice within two days of the Bid/Offer 
Closing Date. The public notice shall be issued in the same newspapers where the pre- Offer advertisements were 
published. The stock exchanges on which the Equity Shares are proposed to be listed shall also be informed 
promptly;

2. That the complaints received in respect of the Offer shall be attended to by the Company expeditiously and 
satisfactorily;

3. That all steps for completion of the necessary formalities for listing and commencement of trading at all the Stock 
Exchanges where the Equity Shares are proposed to be listed are taken within six Working Days of the Bid/Offer 
Closing Date or such other period as may be prescribed;

4. If Allotment is not made, application monies will be refunded/unblocked in the ASBA Accounts within 6 days 
from the Bid/Offer Closing Date or such lesser time as specified by SEBI, failing which interest will be due to be 
paid to the Bidders at the rate of 15.00% per annum for the delayed period;

5. That where refunds (to the extent applicable) are made through electronic transfer of funds, a suitable 
communication shall be sent to the Bidder within 6 days from the Bid/Offer Closing Date or such lesser time as 
specified by SEBI, giving details of the bank where refunds shall be credited along with the amount and expected 
date of electronic credit for the refund;

6. That the Promoters’ contribution in full, if applicable, shall be brought in advance before the Offer opens for 
subscription

7. That funds required for making refunds to unsuccessful applicants as per mode(s) disclosed shall be made 
available to the Registrar to the Offer by the Company;

8. No further offer of Equity Shares shall be made until the Equity Shares offered through the Red Herring 
Prospectus are listed or until the Bid monies are unblocked in the ASBA Accounts on account of non-listing, 
under-subscription etc.;

9. That if our Company and the Selling Shareholders withdraw the Offer after the Bid/Offer Closing Date, our 
Company shall be required to file a fresh offer document with the SEBI, in the event our Company and / or the 
Selling Shareholders subsequently decides to proceed with the Offer;

10. That our Company shall comply with such disclosure and accounting norms as may be specified by SEBI from 
time to time;

11. That the allotment of securities/refund confirmation to Eligible NRIs shall be dispatched within specified time;

12. That adequate arrangements shall be made to collect all Bid cum Application Forms; and

13. That our Company shall not have recourse to the Offer Proceeds until the final approval for listing and trading of 
the Equity Shares from all the Stock Exchanges.

Undertaking by the Selling Shareholder

Only statements and undertakings which are specifically “confirmed” or “undertaken” by the Selling Shareholders in 
this Red Herring Prospectus shall be deemed to be “statements and undertakings made by the Selling Shareholder.” All 
other statements and/ or undertakings in this Red Herring Prospectus shall be statements and undertakings made by our 
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Company even if the same relates to the Selling Shareholders. Each Selling Shareholder severally and not jointly, 
specifically confirms and undertakes the following in respect of itself and the Equity Shares being offered by it 
pursuant to the Offer for Sale:

2. Its respective portion of the Offered Shares shall be transferred in the Offer free and clear of any pre-emptive 
rights, liens, mortgages, charges, pledges, trusts or any other encumbrance or transfer restrictions, both present and 
future, in a manner prescribed under Applicable Law in relation to the Offer, and without any objection by it and in 
accordance with the instructions of the Registrar to the Offer.

3. Its respective portion of the Offered Shares have been held by such Selling Shareholders for a minimum period of 
one year prior to the date of filing the Draft Red Herring Prospectus, such period determined in accordance with 
Regulation 26 (6) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations.

4. It is the legal and beneficial owner and has full title of its respective portion of the Offered Shares.

5. That it shall provide all reasonable co-operation as requested by our Company and the BRLM in relation to the 
completion of the Allotment and dispatch of the Allotment Advice and CAN, if required, and refund orders (as 
applicable) to the requisite extent of its respective portion of the Offered Shares.

6. It will not have recourse to the proceeds of the Offer for Sale, until approval for final listing and trading of the 
Equity Shares is received from the Stock Exchanges.

7. It will deposit its respective portion of the Offered Shares in an escrow account opened with the Share Escrow 
Agent prior to filing of this Red Herring Prospectus with the RoC.

8. It shall not offer any incentive, whether direct or indirect, in any manner, whether in cash or kind or services or 
otherwise, to any person for making a Bid in the Offer, and shall not make any payment, whether direct or indirect, 
whether in the nature of discounts, commission, allowance or otherwise, to any person who makes a Bid in the 
Offer.

9. That it will provide such reasonable support and extend such reasonable cooperation as may be required by our 
Company and the BRLM in redressal of such investor grievances that pertain to the Equity Shares held by it and 
being offered pursuant to the Offer.

The Selling Shareholders have authorised the Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of our Company and the 
Registrar to the Offer to redress any complaints received from Bidders in respect of the Offer for Sale.

Utilisation of Net proceeds

Our Company and the Selling Shareholders specifically confirms and declares that:

(i) all monies received out of Offer of specified securities to public shall be transferred to separate bank 
account other than the bank account referred to in sub-section (3) of section 40 of the Companies Act, 2013;

(ii) details of all monies utilised out of the Offer referred to in sub-item(i) shall be disclosed and continue to be 
disclosed till the time any part of the Fresh Issue proceeds remains un-utilised under an appropriate separate 
head in the balance-sheet of the issuer indicating the purpose for which such monies had been utilised; and

(iii) details of all un-utilised monies out of the Fresh Issue, if any, shall be disclosed under an appropriate 
separate head in the balance sheet of the issuer indicating the form in which such un-utilised monies have 
been invested.



Page | 346

RESTRICTIONS ON FOREIGN OWNERSHIP OF INDIAN SECURITIES

Foreign investment in Indian securities is regulated through the Industrial Policy, 1991 of the Government of India and 
FEMA. While the Industrial Policy, 1991 prescribes the limits and the conditions subject to which foreign investment 
can be made in different sectors of the Indian economy, FEMA regulates the precise manner in which such investment 
may be made. The Union Cabinet, as provided in the Cabinet Press Release dated May 24, 2017, has given its approval 
for phasing out the FIPB. Accordingly, the process for foreign direct investment (“FDI”) and approval from the 
Government of India will now be handled by the concerned ministries or departments, in consultation with the 
Department of Industrial Policy and Promotion, Ministry of Commerce and Industry, Government of India (“DIPP”), 
Ministry of Finance, Department of Economic Affairs, FIPB section, through a memorandum dated June 5, 2017 has 
notified the specific ministries handling relevant sectors.

The Government has from time to time made policy pronouncements on FDI through press notes and press releases. 
DIPP, issued the Consolidated FDI Policy Circular of 2016 (“FDI Circular 2016”), which, with effect from June 7, 
2016, consolidated and superseded all previous press notes, press releases and clarifications on FDI issued by the DIPP 
that were in force and effect as on June 7, 2016. The Government proposes to update the consolidated circular on FDI 
policy once every year and therefore, FDI Circular 2016 will be valid until the DIPP issues an updated circular.

The transfer of shares between an Indian resident and a non-resident does not require the prior approval of the RBI, 
provided that (i) the activities of the investee company are under the automatic route under the foreign direct 
investment policy and transfer does not attract the provisions of the Takeover Regulations; (ii) the non-resident 
shareholding is within the sectoral limits under the FDI policy; and (iii) the pricing is in accordance with the guidelines 
prescribed by the SEBI/RBI.

As per the existing policy of the Government of India, OCBs cannot participate in this Offer.

The Equity Shares offered in the Offer have not been and will not be registered under the Securities Act, and 
may not be offered or sold within the United States, except pursuant to an exemption from, or in a transaction 
not subject to, the registration requirements of the Securities Act and applicable U.S. state securities laws. 
Accordingly, the Equity Shares are being offered and sold (i) within the United States to persons reasonably 
believed to be “qualified institutional investors” (as defined in Rule 144A under the Securities Act) pursuant to 
Rule 144A under the Securities Act or other applicable exemption under the Securities Act and (ii) outside the 
United States in offshore transactions in reliance on Regulation S under the Securities Act and the applicable 
laws of the jurisdictions where such offers and sales occur.

The above information is given for the benefit of the Bidders. Our Company and the BRLM are not liable for 
any amendments or modification or changes in applicable laws or regulations, which may occur after the date of 
this Red Herring Prospectus. Bidders are advised to make their independent investigations and ensure that their 
Bids are not in violation of laws or regulations applicable to them.
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SECTION X - MAIN PROVISIONS OF ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

Pursuant to the Companies Act and the SEBI ICDR Regulations, the main provisions of the Articles of Association are 
detailed below. Capitalised terms used in this section have the meaning given to them in the Articles of Association.

Each provision below is numbered as per the corresponding article number in the Articles of Association and defined 
terms herein have the meaning given to them in the Articles of Association.

1. The regulations contained in Table F of the first schedule to the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred as 
Table F) shall apply to this Company in so far as are applicable to Public Company and are not amended, modified 
or substituted by the following Articles.

Interpretation

2. In the interpretation of these Articles, unless repugnant to the subject or context:-

a) “The company” or “this company” means  VISHWARAJ SUGAR INDUSTRIES LIMITED

b) “The Act” means the Companies Act 2013, or any statutory modification or re- enactment thereof for the 
time being in force. 

c) “Auditor” means and includes those persons appointed as such for the time being by the Company.

d) “Board Meeting” means meeting of the Directors duly and constituted or as the case may be, the  Directors 
assembled at a Board.

e) “Capital” means the share capital for the time being raised or authorized to be raised, for the Company.

f) “Debenture” includes the Debenture stock.

g) “Directors” mean the Directors for the time being of the Company of as the case may be the Directors 
assembled at as Board.

h) “Dividend” includes bonus.

i) Gender 

Word importing the masculine gender also includes the feminine gender. 

j) In Writing or Written

“In Writing” or “Written” includes printing, lithography and other modes of representing or reproducing 
words in a visible form.  

k) Member

“Member” means the duly registered holder from time to time of the shares of the Company and includes 
the subscriber to the Memorandum of the Company.

l) Meeting or Annual General Meeting

“Annual General Meeting” means a General Meeting of the members duly called and constituted and any 
adjourned holding thereof in accordance of section 96 of the Act.

m) Meeting or Extraordinary general meeting  

“Extraordinary General Meeting” means Extraordinary General meeting of the Members duly called and 
constituted and any adjourned holding thereof.
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n) Month

“Month” means a calendar month

o) Office

“Office” means the registered office for the time being of the Company.

p) Paid up

Paid up” includes credited as paid up.

q) Persons

“Persons” includes corporation and firms as well as individuals.

r) Register of members

“Register of member” means the Register of members to be kept pursuant to the Act.

s) The Registrar

“The Registrar” means the Registrar of the Companies (as defined under Section 2(75) of the Act of the 
state in which the office of the Company is for the time being situated.

t) Officer

“Officer” includes any director, manager or secretary, or any person in accordance with whose direction or 
instruction the board of Director or any or more of the directors is accustomed to act 

u) Seal

“Seal” means the Common Seal for the time being of the Company.

v) Share

“Share” means share in the share capital of a company and includes stock except where a distinction 
between stock and share is expressed or implied.

w) Special Resolution

“Special Resolution” shall have the meaning assigned thereto by section 114 of Companies Act, 2013.

x) Year and Financial Year.

“Year” means the calendar year and “financial year” shall have the meaning assigned thereto by section 
2(41) of the Act.

Public Company

3. The company is a Public Company within the meaning of section 2(71) of the Companies Act, 2013 with a 
minimum paid up capital of Rupees Five Lakhs or such higher amount as may be prescribed from time to time. 

Share capital and variation of rights

4. (i) The Authorised Share Capital of the Company shall be as laid down in Memorandum of Association of the 
Company. 

(ii) Subject to the provisions of the Companies Act 2013 and the applicable Rules made thereunder, the Company 
/ Board shall have power to issue / allot shares, whether on preferential basis or otherwise, from time to time 
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and the shares shall be under the control of the Directors who may allot or otherwise dispose off the same to 
such persons, on such terms and conditions and at such times as the Directors think fit.

5. (i) Every person whose name is entered as a member in the register of members shall be entitled to receive 
within  two months after incorporation, in case of subscribers to the memorandum or after allotment or 
within one month after the application for the registration of transfer or transmission or within such other 
period as the conditions of issue shall be provided:—

                (a)   one certificate for all his shares without payment of any charges; or

(b) several certificates, each for one or more of his shares, upon payment of twenty rupees for each 
certificate after the first.

(ii) Every certificate shall be under the seal and shall specify the shares to which it relates and the amount 
paid-up thereon.

(iii) In respect of any share or shares held jointly by several persons, the company shall not be bound to issue 
more than one certificate, and delivery of a certificate for a share to one of several joint holders shall be 
sufficient delivery to all such holders.

6. (i) If any share certificate be worn out, defaced, mutilated or torn or if there be no further space on the back for 
endorsement of transfer, then upon production and surrender thereof to the company, a new certificate may be 
issued in lieu thereof, and if any certificate is lost or destroyed then upon proof thereof to the satisfaction of 
the company and on execution of such indemnity as the company deem adequate, a new certificate in lieu 
thereof shall be given. Every certificate under this Article shall be issued on payment of twenty rupees for 
each certificate.

(ii)The company may issue new share certificates pursuant to consolidation or sub-division of share certificate(s) 
upon written request received from shareholder together with production and surrender of respective original 
share certificate(s).  Every certificate under this Article shall be issued on payment of twenty rupees for each 
certificate.

(iii) The provisions of Articles (5) and (6) shall mutatis mutandis apply to debentures of the company.

7. Except as required by law, no person shall be recognized by the company as holding any share upon any trust, and 
the company shall not be bound by, or be compelled in any way to recognize (even when having notice thereof) 
any equitable, contingent, future or partial interest in any share, or any interest in any fractional part of a share, or 
(except only as by these regulations or by law otherwise provided) any other rights in respect of any share except 
an absolute right to the entirety thereof in the registered holder.

8. (i) The company may exercise the powers of paying commissions conferred by sub-section (6) of section 40, 
provided that the rate per cent. or the amount of the commission paid or agreed to be paid shall be disclosed in 
the manner required by that section and rules made thereunder.

(ii) The rate or amount of the commission shall not exceed the rate or amount prescribed in rules made under sub-
section (6) of section 40.

(iii) The commission may be satisfied by the payment of cash or the allotment of fully or partly paid shares or 
partly in the one way and partly in the other.

9. (i) If at any time the share capital is divided into different classes of shares, the rights attached to any class (unless 
otherwise provided by the terms of issue of the shares of that class) may, subject to the provisions of section 
48 and whether or not the company is being wound up, be varied with the consent in writing of the holders of 
three-fourths of the issued shares of that class, or with the sanction of a special resolution passed at a separate 
meeting of the holders of the shares of that class.

(ii) To every such separate meeting, the provisions of these regulations relating to general meetings shall mutatis 
mutandis apply, but so that the necessary quorum shall be at least two persons holding at least one-third of the 
issued shares of the class in question.
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10. The rights conferred upon the holders of the shares of any class issued with preferred or other rights shall not, 
unless otherwise expressly provided by the terms of issue of the shares of that class, be deemed to be varied by 
the creation or issue of further shares ranking pari passu therewith.

11. Subject to the provisions of section 55, any preference shares may, with the sanction of an ordinary resolution, 
be issued on the terms that they are to be redeemed on such terms and in such manner as the company before 
the issue of the shares may, by special resolution, determine.

Lien

12. (i) The company shall have a first and paramount lien—

(a) on every share (not being a fully paid share), for all monies (whether presently payable or not) called, or 
payable at a fixed time, in respect of that share; and

(b) on all shares (not being fully paid shares) standing registered in the name of a single person, for all 
monies presently payable by him or his estate to the company:

Provided that the Board of directors may at any time declare any share to be wholly or in part exempt from the 
provisions of this clause.

(ii) The company’s lien, if any, on a share shall extend to all dividends payable and bonuses declared 
from time to time in respect of such shares.

(iii) The fully paid shares shall be free from all lien and that in the case of partly paid shares the 
Company’s lien shall be restricted to monies called or payable at a fixed time in respect of such 
shares.

13. The company may sell, in such manner as the Board thinks fit, any shares on which the company has a lien:

Provided that no sale shall be made—

(a) unless a sum in respect of which the lien exists is presently payable; or

(b) until the expiration of fourteen days after a notice in writing stating and demanding payment of such part 
of the amount in respect of which the lien exists as is presently payable, has been given to the registered 
holder for the time being of the share or the person entitled thereto by reason of his death or insolvency.

14. (i) To give effect to any such sale, the Board may authorise some person to transfer the shares sold to the 
purchaser thereof.

(ii) The purchaser shall be registered as the holder of the shares comprised in any such transfer.

(iii) The purchaser shall not be bound to see to the application of the purchase money, nor shall his title to 
the shares be affected by any irregularity or invalidity in the proceedings in reference to the sale.

15. (i) The proceeds of the sale shall be received by the company and applied in payment of such part of the 
amount in respect of which the lien exists as is presently payable.

(ii) The residue, if any, shall, subject to a like lien for sums not presently payable as existed upon the 
shares before the sale, be paid to the person entitled to the shares at the date of the sale.

Calls on shares

16. (i) The Board may, from time to time, make calls upon the members in respect of any monies unpaid on their 
shares (whether on account of the nominal value of the shares or by way of premium) and not by the 
conditions of allotment thereof made payable at fixed times:

Provided that no call shall exceed one-fourth of the nominal value of the share or be payable at less than one 
month from the date fixed for the payment of the last preceding call.
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(ii) Each member shall, subject to receiving at least fourteen days’ notice specifying the time or times and 
place of payment, pay to the company, at the time or times and place so specified, the amount called on 
his shares.

(iii) A call may be revoked or postponed at the discretion of the Board. 

(iv) The option or right to make call on shares shall not be given to any person except with the sanction of 
the Company in General Meetings. That is, it may delegate power to make calls on shares subject to 
approval of the shareholders in a general meeting of the company.

17. A call shall be deemed to have been made at the time when the resolution of the Board authorising the call was 
passed and may be required to be paid by instalments.

18. The joint holders of a share shall be jointly and severally liable to pay all calls in  respect thereof.

19.  (i) If a sum called in respect of a share is not paid before or on the day appointed  for payment thereof, the person 
from whom the sum is due shall pay interest thereon from the day appointed for payment thereof to the time of 
actual payment at ten per cent. per annum or at such lower rate, if any, as the Board may determine.

(ii) The Board shall be at liberty to waive payment of any such interest wholly or in part.

20. (i) Any sum which by the terms of issue of a share becomes payable on allotment or at any fixed date, whether 
on account of the nominal value of the share or by way of premium, shall, for the purposes of these 
regulations, be deemed to be a call duly made and payable on the date on which by the terms of issue such 
sum becomes payable.

(ii) In case of non-payment of such sum, all the relevant provisions of these regulations as to payment of 
interest and expenses, forfeiture or otherwise shall apply as if such sum had become payable by virtue of a call 
duly made and notified.

21.      The Board—

(a) may, if it thinks fit, receive from any member willing to advance the same, all or any part of the 
monies uncalled and unpaid upon any shares held by him; and

(b) upon all or any of the monies so advanced, may (until the same would, but for such advance, become 
presently payable) pay interest at such rate not exceeding, unless the company in general meeting 
shall otherwise direct, twelve per cent. per annum, as may be agreed upon between the Board and the 
member paying the sum in advance but shall not confer a right to dividend or to participate in profits.

Transfer of shares

22. (i) The Company shall use a Common form of transfer. The instrument of transfer of any share in the company 
shall be executed by or on behalf of both the transferor and transferee.

(ii) The transferor shall be deemed to remain a holder of the share until the name of the transferee is entered in 
the register of members in respect thereof.

23.    The Board may, subject to the right of appeal conferred by section 58 decline to register—

(a) the transfer of a share, not being a fully paid share, to a person of whom they do not approve; or
(b)  any transfer of shares on which the company has a lien.

24.     The Board may decline to recognise any instrument of transfer unless—

(a) the instrument of transfer is in the form as prescribed in rules made under sub-section (1) of section 56;

(b) the instrument of transfer is accompanied by the certificate of the shares to which it relates, and such 
other evidence as the Board may reasonably require to show the right of the transferor to make the 
transfer; and
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(c)  the instrument of transfer is in respect of only one class of shares.

25. On giving not less than seven days’ previous notice in accordance with section 91 and rules made thereunder, 
the registration of transfers may be suspended at such times and for such periods as the Board may from time 
to time determine:

Provided that such registration shall not be suspended for more than thirty days at any one time or for more 
than forty-five days in the aggregate in any year.

26. Subject to the provisions of Section 59 of Companies Act, 2013, the Board may decline to register any transfer 
of Shares on such grounds as it think fit in the benefit of the company (notwithstanding that the proposed 
transferee be already a Member), but in such case it shall, within two (2) months from the date the instrument 
of transfer was lodged with the Company, send to the transferee and the transferor notice of the refusal to 
register such transfer giving reasons for such refusal. Provided that registration of a transfer shall not be 
refused on the ground of the transferor being either alone or jointly with any other person or persons indebted 
to the Company on any account whatsoever.  

Transmission Of Shares

27.    (i) On the death of a member, the survivor or survivors where the member was a joint holder, and his nominee 
or nominees or legal representatives where he was a sole holder, shall be the only persons recognised by 
the company as having any title to his interest in the shares.

(ii) Nothing in clause (i) shall release the estate of a deceased joint holder from  any liability in respect of any 
share which had been jointly held by him with other persons.

28. (i) Any person becoming entitled to a share in consequence of the death or insolvency of a member may, upon 
such evidence being produced as may from time to time properly be required by the Board and subject as 
hereinafter provided, elect, either—

(a) to be registered himself as holder of the share; or

(b) to make such transfer of the share as the deceased or insolvent member could have made.

(ii) The Board shall, in either case, have the same right to decline or suspend registration as it would have had, 
if the deceased or insolvent member had transferred the share before his death or insolvency.

29.  (i) If the person so becoming entitled shall elect to be registered as holder of   the share himself, he shall deliver 
or send to the company a notice in writing signed by him stating that he so elects.

(ii) If the person aforesaid shall elect to transfer the share, he shall testify his election by executing a transfer 
of the share.

(iii) All the limitations, restrictions and provisions of these regulations relating to the right to transfer and the 
registration of transfers of shares shall be applicable to any such notice or transfer as aforesaid as if the 
death or insolvency of the member had not occurred and the notice or transfer were a transfer signed by 
that member.

30. A person becoming entitled to a share by reason of the death or insolvency of the holder shall be entitled to the 
same dividends and other advantages to which he would be entitled if he were the registered holder of the 
share, except that he shall not, before being registered as a member in respect of the share, be entitled in 
respect of it to exercise any right conferred by membership in relation to meetings of the company:

Provided that the Board may, at any time, give notice requiring any such person to elect either to be registered 
himself or to transfer the share, and if the notice is not complied with within ninety days, the Board may 
thereafter withhold payment of all dividends, bonuses or other monies payable in respect of the share, until the 
requirements of the notice have been complied with.
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Forfeiture Of Shares

31. If a member fails to pay any call, or installment of a call, on the day appointed for payment thereof, the Board 
may, at any time thereafter during such time as any part of the call or installment remains unpaid, serve a 
notice on him requiring payment of so much of the call or installment as is unpaid, together with any interest 
which may have accrued.

32. The notice aforesaid shall—

(a) name a further day (not being earlier than the expiry of fourteen days from the date of service of the 
notice) on or before which the payment required by the notice is to be made; and

(b) state that, in the event of non-payment on or before the day so named, the shares in respect of which the   
call was made shall be liable to be forfeited.

33. If the requirements of any such notice as aforesaid are not complied with, any share in respect of which the 
notice has been given may, at any time thereafter, before the payment required by the notice has been made, 
be forfeited by a resolution of the Board to that effect.

34. (i) A forfeited share may be sold or otherwise disposed of on such terms and in such manner as the Board 
thinks fit.

(ii) At any time before a sale or disposal as aforesaid, the Board may cancel the forfeiture on such terms as it 
thinks fit.

35. (i) A person whose shares have been forfeited shall cease to be a member in respect of the forfeited shares, but 
shall, notwithstanding the forfeiture, remain liable to pay to the company all monies which, at the date of 
forfeiture, were presently payable by him to the company in respect of the shares.

(ii) The liability of such person shall cease if and when the company shall have received payment in full of 
all such monies in respect of the shares.

36. (i) A duly verified declaration in writing that the declarant is a director, the manager or the secretary, of the 
company, and that a share in the company has been duly forfeited on a date stated in the declaration, shall be 
conclusive evidence of the facts therein stated as against all persons claiming to be entitled to the share.

(ii) The company may receive the consideration, if any, given for the share on any sale or disposal thereof and 
may execute a transfer of the share in favour of the person to whom the share is sold or disposed of.

(iii) The transferee shall thereupon be registered as the holder of the share
.

(iv) The transferee shall not be bound to see to the application of the purchase money, if any, nor shall his title 
to the share be affected by any irregularity or invalidity in the proceedings in reference to the forfeiture, sale or 
disposal of the share.

37. The provisions of these regulations as to forfeiture shall apply in the case of nonpayment of any sum which, 
by the terms of issue of a share, becomes payable at a fixed time, whether on account of the nominal value of 
the share or by way of premium, as if the same had been payable by virtue of a call duly made and notified.

Alteration Of Capital

38. The company may, from time to time, by ordinary resolution increase the share capital by such sum, to be 
divided into shares of such amount, as may be specified in the resolution. The Authorised Share Capital shall be 
as per the clause V (a) of Memorandum of Association of the company.

39. Subject to the provisions of section 61, the company may, by ordinary resolution,—

(a) increase its authorised share capital by such amount as it thinks expedient.
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(b) consolidate and divide all or any of its share capital into shares of larger amount than its existing shares;

(c) convert all or any of its fully paid-up shares into stock, and reconvert that stock into fully paid-up shares of 
any denomination;

(d) sub-divide its existing shares or any of them into shares of smaller amount than is fixed by the 
memorandum;

(e) cancel any shares which, at the date of the passing of the resolution, have not been taken or agreed to be 
taken by any person.

40. Where shares are converted into stock,—

(a) the holders of stock may transfer the same or any part thereof in the same manner as, and subject to the 
same regulations under which, the shares from which the stock arose might before the conversion have been 
transferred, or as near thereto as circumstances admit:

Provided that the Board may, from time to time, fix the minimum amount of stock transferable, so, however, 
that such minimum shall not exceed the nominal amount of the shares from which the stock arose.

(b) the holders of stock shall, according to the amount of stock held by them, have the same rights, privileges 
and advantages as regards dividends, voting at meetings of the company, and other matters, as if they held the 
shares from which the stock arose; but no such privilege or advantage (except participation in the dividends 
and profits of the company and in the assets on winding up) shall be conferred by an amount of stock which 
would not, if existing in shares, have conferred that privilege or advantage.

(c) such of the regulations of the company as are applicable to paid-up shares shall apply to stock and the 
words “share” and “shareholder” in those regulations shall include “stock” and “stock-holder” respectively.

41.    The company may, by special resolution, reduce in any manner and with, and subject to, any incident authorised 
and consent required by law,—

(a) its share capital;
(b) any capital redemption reserve account; or
(c) any share premium account.

Capitalisation of profits

42. (i) The company in general meeting may, upon the recommendation of the Board resolve—

(a) that it is desirable to capitalise any part of the amount for the time being standing to the credit of any of 
the company’s reserve accounts, or to the credit of the profit and loss account, or otherwise available 
for distribution; and

                   (b) that such sum be accordingly set free for distribution in the manner specified in clause (ii) amongst the 
members who would have been entitled thereto, if distributed by way of dividend and in the same 
proportions.

(ii) The sum aforesaid shall not be paid in cash but shall be applied, subject to the provision contained in 
clause (iii), either in or towards—

A. paying up any amounts for the time being unpaid on any shares held by such members respectively;

B. paying up in full, unissued shares of the company to be allotted and distributed, credited as fully paid-
up, to and amongst such members in the proportions aforesaid;

C. partly in the way specified in sub-clause (A) and partly in that specified in sub-clause (B);

(iii) A securities premium account and a capital redemption reserve account may, for the purposes of this 
regulation, be applied in the paying up of unissued shares to be issued to members of the company as fully 
paid bonus shares;
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(iv) The Board shall give effect to the resolution passed by the company in pursuance of this regulation.

43. (i) Whenever such a resolution as aforesaid shall have been passed,  the Board shall—

(a) make all appropriations and applications of the undivided profits resolved to be capitalised 
thereby, and all allotments and issues of fully paid shares if any; and

(b) generally do all acts and things required to give effect thereto.

(ii) The Board shall have power—

(a) to make such provisions, by the issue of fractional certificates or by payment in cash or otherwise as 
it thinks fit, for the case of shares becoming distributable infractions; and

(b) to authorise any person to enter, on behalf of all the members entitled thereto, into an agreement with 
the company providing for the allotment to them respectively, credited as fully paid-up, of any further 
shares to which they may be entitled upon such capitalisation, or as the case may require, for the 
payment by the company on their behalf, by the application thereto of their respective proportions of 
profits resolved to be capitalised, of the amount or any part of the amounts remaining unpaid on their 
existing shares;

(iii)      Any agreement made under such authority shall be effective and binding on such members.

Dematerialisation Of Securities 

44. (i) For the purpose of this Article:-

"Beneficial Owner": Beneficial Owner shall have the meaning assigned thereto in section 2(1)(a)         
of the Depositories Act, 1996.

"Depositories Act": Depositories Act shall mean the Depositories Act, 1996 and includes any 
statutory modification or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force.

"Depository": Depository shall mean a Depository as defined in section 2(1)(e) of the Depositories Act, 
1996.

"Member": Member shall mean a duly registered holder from time to time of the security of the 
company and includes every person whose name is entered as beneficial owner in the records of the 
Depository.

"Security": Security shall mean such security as may be specified by SEBI.

(ii) "Dematerialisation of Securities": Notwithstanding anything on the contrary contained in this 
Article, the company shall be entitled to dematerialise its securities and to offer securities in a 
dematerialised form and further to rematerialise the securities held on depository pursuant to the
Depositories Act, 1996 or any amendment thereof.

(iii) "Option to hold securities in physical form or with depository": Every person holding 
securities of the company through allotment or otherwise shall have the option to receive and 
hold the same in the dematerialised form with a depository.

(iv) "Beneficial Owner may opt out of a Depository": Every person holding securities of the 
company with a depository, being the beneficial owner thereof, may at any time opt out of the 
depository in the manner provided under the provisions of the Depositories Act and the Rules, if 
any, prescribed there under and on fulfilment of the conditions prescribed by the company from 
time to time, company shall issue the relevant security certificates to the beneficial owner 
thereof.

(v) "Securities in Depositories to be in fungible form": All securities held by a depository shall be 
dematerialised and shall be in fungible form. Nothing contained in Sections 153, 153A, 153B, 



Page | 356

187B, 187C and 372A of the Companies Act, shall apply to a depository in respect of the 
securities held by it on behalf of the beneficial owners.

(vi) "Rights of depository and beneficial owners": A depository shall be deemed to be the 
registered owner for the purposes of affecting the transfer of ownership of securities on behalf of 
the beneficial owners and shall not have any voting rights or any other rights in respect of the 
securities held by it.

(vii) Every person holding securities of the Company and whose name is entered as the beneficial 
owner in the records of the depository shall be deemed to be a member of the Company. The 
beneficial owner of securities shall be entitled to all rights and benefits and be subject to all the 
liabilities in respect of his/her securities, which are held by a depository.

(viii) "Transfer of securities": Transfer of security held in a depository will be governed by the 
provisions of the Depository Act, 1996. Nothing contained in Section 56 of the Companies Act, 
2013 or these Articles shall apply to a transfer of securities effected by a transferor and transferee 
both of whom are entered as beneficial owners in the records of a depository.

(ix) "Register and Index of beneficial owners": The Register and Index of beneficial owners 
maintained by a depository under the Depositories Act, 1996 shall be deemed to be the Register 
and Index of Members and Security holders for the purpose of these Articles.

(x) "Other matters": Notwithstanding anything contained in these Articles, the provision of 
Depositories Act, 1996 relating to dematerialisation of securities including any modification(s) or 
re-enactment thereof and Rules/Regulations made there under shall prevail accordingly.

(xi) Notwithstanding anything contained in the Act or the Articles, where securities are held in a 
depository, the records of the beneficial ownership may be served by such depository on the 
company by means of electronic mode or by delivery of floppies or disks.

Nomination

45. Notwithstanding anything contained in Articles, every holder of shares(s) or debenture(s) of the Company 
may, at any time, nominate, in the prescribed manner, a person to whom these share(s) shall vest in the event of 
his death and the provisions of Section 109A and Section 109B of the Companies Act, 1956 shall apply in 
respect of such nomination.

The provisions of this Article shall apply mutatis mutandis to a depository of money with the Company as per 
the provisions of Section 58A of the Act.

Buy-Back Of Shares

46. Notwithstanding anything contained in these articles but subject to the provisions of sections 68 to 70 and any 
other applicable provision of the Act or any other law for the time being in force, the company may purchase its 
own shares or other specified securities.

General Meetings

47. All general meetings other than Annual General Meeting shall be called extraordinary general meeting.
48.   (i) The Board may, whenever it thinks fit, call an extraordinary general meeting.

(ii) If at any time directors capable of acting who are sufficient in number to form a quorum are not within India, 
any director or any two members of the company may call an extraordinary general meeting in the same manner, 
as nearly as possible, as that in which such a meeting may be called by the Board.

Proceedings At General Meetings

49. (i) No business shall be transacted at any general meeting unless a quorum of members is present at the time when 
the meeting proceeds to business.

(ii) Save as otherwise provided herein, the quorum for the general meetings shall be as provided in section 103.
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(iii) The chairperson, if any, of the Board shall preside as Chairperson at every general meeting of the company.
(iv) If there is no such Chairperson, or if he is not present within fifteen minutes after the time appointed for 

holding the meeting, or is unwilling to act as chairperson of the meeting, the directors present shall elect one 
of their members to be Chairperson of the meeting.

(v) If at any meeting no director is willing to act as Chairperson or if no director is present within fifteen minutes 
after the time appointed for holding the meeting, the members present shall choose one of their members to 
be Chairperson of the meeting.

Adjournment Of Meeting

50. (i) The Chairperson may, with the consent of any meeting at which a quorum is present, and shall, if so 
directed by the meeting, adjourn the meeting from time to time and from place to place.

(ii) No business shall be transacted at any adjourned meeting other than the business left unfinished at the 
meeting from which the adjournment took place.

(iii) When a meeting is adjourned for thirty days or more, notice of the adjourned meeting shall be given as in 
the case of an original meeting.

(iv) Save as aforesaid, and as provided in section 103 of the Act, it shall not be necessary to give any notice of 
an adjournment or of the business to be transacted at an adjourned meeting.

Voting Rights

51. Subject to any rights or restrictions for the time being attached to any class or classes of shares,—
(a) on a show of hands, every member present in person shall have one vote; and
(b) on a poll, the voting rights of members shall be in proportion to his share in the paid-up equity share 
capital of the company.

52. A member may exercise his vote at a meeting by electronic means in accordance with section 108 and shall 
vote only once.

53. (i) In the case of joint holders, the vote of the senior who tenders a vote, whether in person or by proxy, shall 
be accepted to the exclusion of the votes of the other joint holders.

(ii) For this purpose, seniority shall be determined by the order in which the names stand in the register of 
members.

54. A member of unsound mind, or in respect of whom an order has been made by any court having jurisdiction in 
lunacy, may vote, whether on a show of hands or on a poll, by his committee or other legal guardian, and any 
such committee or guardian may, on a poll, vote by proxy.

55. Any business other than that upon which a poll has been demanded may be proceeded with, pending the taking 
of the poll.

56. No member shall be entitled to vote at any general meeting unless all calls or other sums presently payable by 
him in respect of shares in the company have been paid.

57. (i) No objection shall be raised to the qualification of any voter except at the meeting or adjourned meeting at 
which the vote objected to is given or tendered, and every vote not disallowed at such meeting shall be valid 
for all purposes.

(ii) Any such objection made in due time shall be referred to the Chairperson of the meeting, whose decision 
shall be final and conclusive.

Proxy

58. The instrument appointing a proxy and the power-of-attorney or other authority, if any, under which it is 
signed or a notarised copy of that power or authority, shall be deposited at the registered office of the company 
not less than 48 hours before the time for holding the meeting or adjourned meeting at which the person 
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named in the instrument proposes to vote, or, in the case of a poll, not less than 24 hours before the time 
appointed for the taking of the poll; and in default the instrument of proxy shall not be treated as valid.

59. An instrument appointing a proxy shall be in the form as prescribed in the rules made under section 105.

60. A vote given in accordance with the terms of an instrument of proxy shall be valid, notwithstanding the 
previous death or insanity of the principal or the revocation of the proxy or of the authority under which the 
proxy was executed, or the transfer of the shares in respect of which the proxy is given:

Provided that no intimation in writing of such death, insanity, revocation or transfer shall have been received 
by the company at its office before the commencement of the meeting or adjourned meeting at which the 
proxy is used.

Board Of Directors

61. Until otherwise determined by a General Meeting of the Company and subject to the provisions of Section 149 
of the Act, 2013 the number of Directors (including Debenture and Alternate Directors) shall not be less than 
three and not more than fifteen. Provided that a company may appoint more than fifteen directors after passing 
a special resolution.

62. The First Directors of the Company are:
1. Umesh V. Katti
2. Babu A. Dhammangi
3. G.B. Patil

63. (i) Subject to the provisions of the Act, the Company may pay any remuneration, as determined by the 
Board of Directors / General Meeting to all or any of its Directors for the services rendered by them / him in 
day to day management of the affairs of the company or any other type of services, whether professional 
in nature or not, for any of the purposes of the company, either by a fixed sum on monthly or annual basis and 
/ or perquisites and / or a percentage of the profits or otherwise as may be determined by the Board or the 
members in General Meeting. 

The remuneration of the directors shall, in so far as it consists of a monthly payment, be deemed to accrue 
from day-to-day.

(ii) In addition to the remuneration payable to them in pursuance of the Act, the directors may be paid all 
travelling, hotel and other expenses properly incurred by them—

(a) in attending and returning from meetings of the Board of Directors or any committee thereof or general 
meetings of the company; or

(b)  in connection with the business of the company.

64. The Board may pay all expenses incurred in getting up and registering the company.

65. The company may exercise the powers conferred on it by section 88 with regard to the keeping of a foreign 
register; and the Board may (subject to the provisions of that section) make and vary such regulations as it 
may thinks fit respecting the keeping of any such register.

66. All cheques, promissory notes, drafts, hundis, bills of exchange and other negotiable instruments, and all 
receipts for monies paid to the company, shall be signed, drawn, accepted, endorsed, or otherwise executed, as 
the case may be, by such person and in such manner as the Board shall from time to time by resolution 
determine.

67. Every director present at any meeting of the Board or of a committee thereof shall sign his name in a book to 
be kept for that purpose.

68. (i) Subject to the provisions of section 149, the Board shall have power at any time, and from time to time, to 
appoint a person as an additional director, provided the number of the directors and additional directors 
together shall not at any time exceed the maximum strength fixed for the Board by the articles.
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(ii) Such person shall hold office only up to the date of the next annual general meeting of the company but 
shall be eligible for appointment by the company as a director at that meeting subject to the provisions of the 
Act.

Proceedings of the Board

69. (i) The Board of Directors may meet for the conduct of business, adjourn and otherwise regulate its meetings, 
as it thinks fit.

(ii) Subject to the Articles herein, a director may, and the manager or secretary on the requisition of a director 
shall, at any time, summon a meeting of the Board.

(iii)  Save as otherwise expressly provided in the Act, questions arising at any meeting of the Board shall be 
decided by a majority of votes.

(iv) In case of an equality of votes, the Chairperson of the Board, if any, shall have a second or casting vote.

70. The continuing directors may act notwithstanding any vacancy in the Board; but, if and so long as their 
number is reduced below the quorum fixed by the Act for a meeting of the Board, the continuing directors or 
director may act for the purpose of increasing the number of directors to that fixed for the quorum, or of 
summoning a general meeting of the company, but for no other purpose.

71. (i) The Board may elect a Chairperson of its meetings and determine the period for which he is to hold office.

(ii) If no such Chairperson is elected, or if at any meeting the Chairperson is not present within five minutes 
after the time appointed for holding the meeting, the directors present may choose one of their number to be 
Chairperson of the meeting.

72. (i) The Board may, subject to the provisions of the Act, delegate any of its powers to committees consisting of 
such member or members of its body as it thinks fit.

73. (ii) Any committee so formed shall, in the exercise of the powers so delegated, conform to any regulations that 
may be imposed on it by the Board.

74. A committee may elect a Chairperson of its meetings.

75. If no such Chairperson is elected, or if at any meeting the Chairperson is not present within five minutes after 
the time appointed for holding the meeting, the members present may choose one of their members to be 
Chairperson of the meeting.

76. (i) A committee may meet and adjourn as it thinks fit.

(ii) Questions arising at any meeting of a committee shall be determined by a majority of votes of the members 
present, and in case of an equality of votes, the Chairperson shall have a second or casting vote.

77. All acts done in any meeting of the Board or of a committee thereof or by any person acting as a director, 
shall, notwithstanding that it may be afterwards discovered that there was some defect in the appointment of 
any one or more of such directors or of any person acting as aforesaid, or that they or any of them were 
disqualified, be as valid as if every such director or such person had been duly appointed and was qualified to 
be a director.

78. Save as otherwise expressly provided in the Act, a resolution in writing, signed by all the members of the 
Board or of a committee thereof, for the time being entitled to receive notice of a meeting of the Board or 
committee, shall be valid and effective as if it had been passed at a meeting of the Board or committee, duly 
convened and held.
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Chief Executive Officer, Manager, Company Secretary or Chief Financial Officer

79. Subject to the provisions of the Act,—

(i) A chief executive officer, manager, company secretary or chief financial officer may be appointed by the 
Board for such term, at such remuneration and upon such conditions as it may thinks fit; and any chief 
executive officer, manager, company secretary or chief financial officer so appointed may be removed by 
means of a resolution of the Board;

(ii) A director may be appointed as chief executive officer, manager, company secretary or chief financial 
officer.

80. A provision of the Act or these regulations requiring or authorising a thing to be done by or to a director and 
chief executive officer, manager, company secretary or chief financial officer shall not be satisfied by its being 
done by or to the same person acting both as director and as, or in place of, chief executive officer, manager, 
company secretary or chief financial officer.

Managing Director

80. The business of the Company may be carried on by the Managing Director(s) who may be appointed by the 
Board of Directors / members in their General Meeting, from time to time who shall fix the terms, 
qualifications, remuneration, duties, authorities and powers. The Board may from time to time and subject to 
the provisions of the Act delegate to the Managing Director(s) such of their powers and duties and subject to 
such limitations and conditions as they may deem fit. The Board may from time to time, revoke, withdraw, 
alter or vary all or any of the powers conferred on him or dismiss him from office and appoint another in his 
place.

81. Subject to the provisions of section 179 and 180 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Managing Director of the 
Company, if any, shall be empowered to carry on the day to day business affairs of the Company. He shall 
have the general control, management and superintendence of the business of the Company with power to 
appoint and to dismiss employees and to enter into contracts on behalf of the Company in the ordinary course 
of business and to do and perform all other acts, deeds and things which in the ordinary course of business 
may be considered necessary/proper or in the interest of the Company. 

The Seal

82. (i) The Board shall provide for the safe custody of the seal.

(ii) The seal of the company shall not be affixed to any instrument except by the authority of a resolution of 
the Board or of a committee of the Board authorised by it in that behalf, and except in the presence of at least 
two directors and of the secretary or such other person as the Board may appoint for the purpose; and those 
two directors and the secretary or other person aforesaid shall sign every instrument to which the seal of the 
company is so affixed in their presence.

Dividends And Reserve

83. The company in general meeting may declare dividends, but no dividend shall exceed the amount 
recommended by the Board.

84. Subject to the provisions of section 123, the Board may from time to time pay to the members such interim 
dividends as appear to it to be justified by the profits of the company.

85. (i) The Board may, before recommending any dividend, set aside out of the profits of the company such sums 
as it thinks fit as a reserve or reserves which shall, at the discretion of the Board, be applicable for any purpose 
to which the profits of the company may be properly applied, including provision for meeting contingencies or 
for equalizing dividends; and pending such application, may, at the like discretion, either be employed in the 
business of the company or be invested in such investments (other than shares of the company) as the Board 
may, from time to time, thinks fit.

(ii) The Board may also carry forward any profits which it may consider necessary not to divide, without 
setting them aside as a reserve.
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(i) Subject to the rights of persons, if any, entitled to shares with special rights as to dividends, all dividends 
shall be declared and paid according to the amounts paid or credited as paid on the shares in respect whereof 
the dividend is paid, but if and so long as nothing is paid upon any of the shares in the company, dividends 
may be declared and paid according to the amounts of the shares.

(ii) No amount paid or credited as paid on a share in advance of calls shall be treated for the purposes of this 
regulation as paid on the share.

(iii) All dividends shall be apportioned and paid proportionately to the amounts paid or credited as paid on the 
shares during any portion or portions of the period in respect of which the dividend is paid; but if any share is 
issued on terms providing that it shall rank for dividend as from a particular date such share shall rank for 
dividend accordingly.

86. The Board may deduct from any dividend payable to any member all sums of money, if any, presently payable 
by him to the company on account of calls or otherwise in relation to the shares of the company.

87. (i) Any dividend, interest or other monies payable in cash in respect of shares may be paid by cheque or 
warrant sent through the post directed to the registered address of the holder or, in the case of joint holders, to 
the registered address of that one of the joint holders who is first named on the register of members, or to such 
person and to such address as the holder or joint holders may in writing direct.

(ii) Every such cheque or warrant shall be made payable to the order of the person to whom it is sent

88. Any one of two or more joint holders of a share may give effective receipts for any dividends, bonuses or
other monies payable in respect of such share.

89. Notice of any dividend that may have been declared shall be given to the persons entitled to share therein in 
the manner mentioned in the Act.

90. No dividend shall bear interest against the company.

91. No unclaimed Dividend shall be forfeited before the claim becomes barred by law, and unclaimed Dividends 
shall be dealt with in accordance with the applicable provisions of the Act

Accounts

92. (i) The Board shall from time to time determine whether and to what extent and at what times and places and 
under what conditions or regulations, the accounts and books of the company, or any of them, shall be open to 
the inspection of members not being directors.

(ii) No member (not being a director) shall have any right of inspecting any account or book or document of 
the company except as conferred by law or authorised by the Board or by the company in general meeting.

Winding Up

93. If the company shall be wound up, the liquidator may, with the sanction of a special resolution of the company 
and any other sanction required by the Act, divide amongst the members, in specie or kind, the whole or any 
part of the assets of the company, whether they shall consist of property of the same kind or not.

94. For the purpose aforesaid, the liquidator may set such value as he deems fair upon any property to be divided 
as aforesaid and may determine how such division shall be carried out as between the members or different 
classes of members.

95. The liquidator may, with the like sanction, vest the whole or any part of such assets in trustees upon such 
trusts for the benefit of the contributories if he considers necessary, but so that no member shall be compelled 
to accept any shares or other securities whereon there is any liability.
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INDEMNITY

96. Every officer of the company shall be indemnified out of the assets of the company against any liability 
incurred by him in defending any proceedings, whether civil or criminal, in which judgment is given in his 
favour or in which he is acquitted or in which relief is granted to him by the court or the Tribunal.

The erstwhile Articles of Association, containing Article 1 – 229 was replaced by new set of Articles of Association 
containing Article 1  to 97 vide a resolution passed in the EGM held on 18thDecember, 2017.
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SECTION XI – OTHER INFORMATION

MATERIAL CONTRACTS AND DOCUMENTS FOR INSPECTION

The copies of the following contracts which have been entered or are to be entered into by our Company (not being 
contracts entered into in the ordinary course of business carried on by our Company or contracts entered into more than 
two years before the date of this Red Herring Prospectus) which are or may be deemed material will be attached to the 
copy of the Red Herring Prospectus which will be delivered to RoC for registration. Copies of these contracts and also 
the documents for inspection referred to hereunder, may be inspected at the Registered Office between 10.00 a.m. and 
5.00 p.m. on all Working Days from the date of the Red Herring Prospectus until the Bid/Offer Closing Date.

A. Material Contracts

1. Memorandum of Understanding dated December 18, 2017 entered into between our Company, the Selling 
Shareholders and the Book Running Lead Manager.

2. Memorandum of Understanding dated November 27, 2017 entered into between our Company, the Selling 
Shareholders and the Registrar to the Offer.

3. Tripartite Agreement dated April 23, 20019 between CDSL, our Company and the Registrar to the Offer.

4. Tripartite Agreement dated December 28, 2017 between NSDL, our Company and the Registrar to the Offer.

5. Escrow Agreement dated September 11, 2019 between our Company, the Selling Shareholders, the Book 
Running Lead Manager, the Syndicate Members, the Escrow Collection Bank(s), Refund Bank(s) and the 
Registrar to the Offer.

6. Share Escrow Agreement dated August 26, 2019 between the Selling Shareholders, our Company, the Book 
Running Lead Manager and the Share Escrow Agent.

7. Syndicate Agreement dated August 26, 2019 between our Company, the Selling Shareholders, the Book 
Running Lead Manager, and the Syndicate Members and Registrar to the Offer.

8. ��*����
�
��� �����#���� *���*� ���� �������� �	�� ��#������ ���� 
���
��� 
�������*����� ���� �<��� ��*� ����
Underwriters.

B. Material Documents

1. Certified true copies of the Memorandum and Articles of Association of our Company, as amended from time to 
time.

2. Certificates of Incorporation as amended from time to time and Certificate of Commencement of Business.

3. Resolution of the Board of Directors dated November 20, 2017 authorising the Offer.

4. Shareholders’ Resolution passed at the Extra-ordinary General Meeting of the Company held on December 18, 
2017, authorising the Offer

5. Consent Letters from the Selling Shareholders’ authorising the Offer.

6. Report of our Statutory Auditor dated July 08, 2019 regarding the Restated Financial Statements of our 
Company for Fiscal Year ended 2015, 2016, 2017, 2018 and 2019 included in this Red Herring Prospectus.

7. Statement of Tax Benefits dated July 08, 2019 issued by our Statutory Auditor.

8. Consents of our Directors, Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary and Compliance Officer, BRLM, Legal 
Counsel to the Offer, Statutory Auditors, Registrar to the Offer, Share Escrow Agent, Bankers to the Offer, 
Bankers to our Company, Underwriters(1) and Syndicate Members as referred to in their specific capacities.
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(1) The aforesaid will be appointed prior to filing of the Prospectus with RoC and their consents as above would 
be obtained prior to the filing of the Prospectus with RoC.

9. Due diligence Certificate dated December 20, 2017 addressed to SEBI issued by the BRLM.

10. Resolution of the Board of Directors of our Company dated December 20, 2017, approving the Draft Red 
Herring Prospectus and Resolution of the Board of Directors of our Company dated September 16, 2019,
approving this Red Herring Prospectus.

11. .Certificates dated July 08, 2019 each issued by our Statutory Auditors i.e. M/s. Gojanur & Co., Chartered 
Accountants certifying the working capital requirements for the F. Y. 2019-20 and certifying the Internal 
Accruals as on March 31, 2019.

12. Copy of Memorandum of Understanding dated August 16, 2017 and September 26, 2017 between our Company 
and Venture Capital and Corporate Investments Private Limited for the purpose of acting as Exit Offer 
Registrars for the Exit Offer – 1 and Exit Offer – 2 respectively.

13. Copy of Agreement dated August 23, 2017 and September 25, 2017 between our Company and Yes Bank 
Limited for the purpose of acting as Exit Offer Escrow Bankers for the Exit Offer – 1 and Exit Offer – 2
respectively.

14. Copy of Appointment Letter dated August 07, 2017 confirming M/s. S. P. Ghali & Co., Company Secretaries to 
act as Independent Company Secretary for verification of the eligible shareholders for for the Exit Offers.

15. Copy of Appointment Letter dated August 08, 2017 confirming NSVR & Associates LLP, Chartered 
Accountants to act as Independent Chartered Accountant for confirmation of the process and outcome of the Exit 
Offers.

16. Copy of Certificates dated August 16, 2017 and September 29, 2017 issued by M/s. S. P. Ghali & Co., Company 
Secretaries certifying the eligible shareholders for the Exit Offer – 1 and Exit Offer – 2.

17. Copy of Certificates dated November 20, 2017 each issued by M/s. NSRV & Associates, Chartered Accountants 
certifying the compliance in the Exit Offer – 1 and Exit Offer – 2 pursuant to SEBI Circular 
CIR/CFD/DIL3/18/2015 dated December 31, 2015.

18. Copy of Trust Deed dated May 21, 2010 for the VSL Shareholders Welfare Trust

19. In – principle listing approvals dated January 12, 2018 and January 10, 2018 from BSE and NSE, respectively.

20. SEBI observation letter no. SRO/Issues/AT/ 0004467/01/2019 dated February 15, 2019.

Any of the contracts or documents mentioned in this Red Herring Prospectus may be amended or modified at any time 
if so required in the interest of our Company or if required by the other parties, without reference to the shareholders 
subject to compliance of the provisions contained in the Companies Act and other relevant statutes.
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DECLARATION

We hereby declare that all relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 1956, the Companies Act, 2013 and the 
guidelines / regulations issued by the Government of India or the guidelines / regulations issued by the Securities and 
Exchange Board of India, established under section 3 of the Securities and Exchange Board of  India Act, 1992, as the 
case may be, have been complied with and no statement made in this Red Herring Prospectus is contrary to the 
provisions of the Companies Act, 1956, the Companies Act, 2013, the Securities Contract (Regulation) Act, 1956, the 
Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 or rules made or guidelines or regulations issued there under, as the 
case may be. We further certify that all statements in this Red Herring Prospectus are true and correct.

Signed by the Directors of our Company

_______________
Umesh Katti 
Chairman & Non-Executive Director

_______________
Nikhil Katti 
Managing Director

_______________
Mukesh Kumar
Whole-time Director (Additional Director)

_______________
Lava Katti 
Whole-time Director

_______________
Kush Katti 
Whole-time Director

_____________
Surendra Khot
Non-Executive Independent Director

_______________
Shivanand Tubachi 
Non-Executive Independent Director

_______________
Basavaraj Hagaragi
Non-Executive Independent Director

_______________
Pratibha Munnolli 
Non-Executive Independent Director

_______________
R. V. Radhakrishna 
Non-Executive Independent Director

Signed by the Chief Financial Officer of our Company

________________
Sheshagiri Kulkarni
(Chief Financial Officer)

Signed by the Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of our Company

_____________
Sneha Patil
(Company Secretary and Compliance Officer)

Date: September 16, 2019
Place: Bellad Bagewadi
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DECLARATION BY SELLING SHAREHOLDERS

Each Selling Shareholder, severally and not jointly, certifies that all statements and undertakings made in this Red 
Herring Prospectus by it or in relation to itself and the Equity Shares being offered by it by way of the Offer are true 
and correct. Each Selling Shareholder assumes no responsibility for any other statements in this Red Herring 
Prospectus.

Signed on behalf of the Selling Shareholders by its duly constituted attorney holder

_____________
Mr. Nikhil Katti (as the duly constituted power of attorney holder for the Selling Shareholders)

Date: September 16, 2019
Place: Bellad Bagewadi
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ANNEXURE A – LIST OF SELLING SHAREHOLDERS

Sr. 
No. Name of Shareholder

Pre-Offer Offered Shares Post- Offer

Number of 
equity 
shares

As a % of 
Pre-offer 

share 
capital

Number 
of equity 

shares 
Offered

As a % of 
Total 

number of 
shares 
offered

Number 
of equity 

shares

As a % of 
Post-offer 

share 
capital

Promoters
1 Nikhil Katti 36,92,875 10.69% 2,00,000 2.86% 34,92,875 9.30%
2 Lava Katti 12,00,275 3.47% 1,00,000 1.43% 11,00,275 2.93%
3 Kush Katti 12,45,075 3.60% 1,00,000 1.43% 11,45,075 3.05%

Promoter Group
4 Rammappa Khemalpure 537,000 1.55% 5,37,000 7.67% 0 0.00%
5 Ashok Utture 1,029,300 2.98% 10,29,300 14.70% 0 0.00%
6 Kashinath Utture 681,000 1.97% 6,81,000 9.73% 0 0.00%
7 Kadayya Pujar 643,550 1.86% 6,43,550 9.19% 0 0.00%
8 Basavaraj Pujar 639,600 1.85% 6,39,600 9.14% 0 0.00%
9 Ramesh Shiralakar 500,650 1.45% 4,98,350 7.11% 2,300 0.01%
10 Sudhir Katti 400,700 1.16% 4,00,700 5.72% 0 0.00%
11 Ramappa Bani 340,850 0.99% 3,40,850 4.87% 0 0.00%
12 Muragesh Katti 321,500 0.93% 3,21,500 4.59% 0 0.00%
13 Kallapa Bani 297,500 0.86% 2,97,500 4.25% 0 0.00%
14 Rajaram Shiralkar 263,400 0.76% 2,63,400 3.76% 0 0.00%
15 Gurappa Katti 165,850 0.48% 1,65,850 2.37% 0 0.00%
16 Vinod Katti 157,550 0.46% 1,57,550 2.25% 0 0.00%
17 Purnima Pangi 5,000 0.01% 5,000 0.07% 0 0.00%
18 Padmaja Katti 10,000 0.03% 5,000 0.07% 5,000 0.01%
19 Sanjay Khemalapure 4,900 0.01% 4,900 0.07% 0 0.00%
20 Sudharshan Khemalapure 1,500 0.00% 1,500 0.02% 0 0.00%
21 Pallavi Ghuli 1,000 0.00% 1,000 0.01% 0 0.00%
22 Tejasvini Chunamuri 1,000 0.00% 1,000 0.01% 0 0.00%
23 Yuvaraj Chunamuri 2,000 0.01% 1,000 0.01% 1,000 0.00%
24 Prachi Ghuli 1,000 0.00% 1,000 0.01% 0 0.00%
25 Satish Ghuli 2,000 0.01% 1,000 0.01% 1,000 0.00%
26 Suhas Ghuli 2,000 0.00% 1,000 0.01% 1,000 0.00%
27 Channavva Chunamuri 1,000 0.00% 1,000 0.01% 0 0.00%
28 Shanmukappa Chunamuri 1,000 0.00% 1,000 0.01% 0 0.00%
29 Drakashayani Katti 3,500 0.01% 3,500 0.05% 0 0.00%
30 Kalavati Savadakar   1,000 0.00% 1,000 0.01% 0 0.00%
31 Shailaja Uchale 1,000 0.00% 1,000 0.01% 0 0.00%

Public
32 Riyaz Bargeer 789,100 2.28% 5,56,950 7.96% 232,150 0.62%
33 Shridevi Angadi 6,500 0.02% 6,500 0.09% 0 0.00%
34 Pallavi Hawanale 6,500 0.02% 6,500 0.09% 0 0.00%
35 Rekha Katti 6,000 0.02% 6,000 0.09% 0 0.00%
36 Sandeep Katti 6,000 0.02% 6,000 0.09% 0 0.00%
37 Nirmala Lingadalli 3,500 0.01% 3,500 0.05% 0 0.00%
38 Mahadevi Bellad 3,500 0.01% 3,500 0.05% 0 0.00%
39 Lalita Khemalapure 3,000 0.01% 3,000 0.04% 0 0.00%
40 Mohan Munnoli 2,000 0.01% 2,000 0.03% 0 0.00%

TOTAL 1,29,80,675 37.56% 70,00,000 100.00% 59,80,675 15.92%




